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The PRESIDING OFFICER. Two
thirds of the Senators present and voting
having voted in the affirmative, the res
olution of ratification is agreed to.

tor from California [Mr. KUCHEL], and
the Senator from Iowa [Mr. MILLER]
would each vote "yea."

The yeas and nays reSUlted-yeas 86,
nays 0, as follows:

[No. 198 EX.]
YEA8-86

LABOR, HEW APPROPRIATIONS, 1968

The Senate resumed the consideration
of the bill (H.R. 10196) making appro
priations for the Departments of Labor
and Health, Education, and Welfare, and
related agencies, for the fiscal year end
ing June 30, 1968, and for other pur
poses.

Mr. HILL. Mr. President, the bill, H.R.
10196, making appropriations for the De
partments of Labor, and Health, Edu
cation, and Welfare, and related agen
cies for the fiscal year ending June 30.
1968, and for other purposes, as report
ed to the Senate by the Committee on
Appropriations totals $13,409,835,000,
an increase of $272,347,000 over the
House allowance, an increase of $393,
270,800 over the appropriations for 1967.
but under the budget estimates by $14,
311,000.

I might say that of this increase of
$272,347,000 over the House allowance,
$68,193,000 was added by the considera
tion of bUdget estimates not considered
by the House, estimates that had no au
thorization at the time the House acted
on the bill.

For the Department of Labor the com
mittee recommends an appropriation of
$625,562,000, a reduction of $9,462,000
from the House allowance, and a decrease
of $17,740,278 from the comparable 1967
appropriation, and a decrease of $27,
411,000 under the budget estimate. The
committee recommended only two
changes in the Department of Labor

amount of enforced desegregation would
have ended discriminatlon in the hard-bitten
army and harder-bitten professional sports
teams, if Negroes had not pegged even, and
often much better than even, with their
white fellow soldiers and fellow athletes. Yet
in most areas of our national life, conspicu
ous Negro achievement is all but impossible,
because so few American Negroes as yet re
ceive normally decent schooling. Give them
the needed education. At the outset, it may
be, only seven in 20 wUl break through the
barriers of prejudice and custom. But those
few will surely inspire the next generation to
say, "If they could do it, we can do it." And
by the same token, white prejudice will surely
be eroded, in every area where Negroes are
enabled to achieve highly.

The truth is that in our approach to al
most every aspect of the race problem
whether segregation, or discrimination, or
Negro poverty, or whatever it may be-we
have persistently been placing the moral
cart before the practical horse. Education
is the key to the whole problem, because
education leads to jobs;jobs lead to achieve
ment; and achievement reduces discrimina
tion. That is the common-sense formula,
which puts the horse ahead of the cart. And
if we do not get the moral cart moving at
long last--if we cannot provide good edu
cation and decent jobs for our Negro fellow
citizens, and if these first steps do not begin
to erode discrimination and open ever wider
doors of opportunity-then this country can
too soon become a place in which none wUl
wish to live, who stUl care much about the
things that America is supposed to stand for.

Some may say: "But if many white Ameri
cans have always cared so much about these
things America is supposed to stand for,
Why this belated sense of urgency? Why did
not Franklin Roosevelt, for instance, begin
pressing for serious civ11 rights legislation
nearly 40 years ago?" In the abstract, those
who say this wUl be dead right. But the
sad truth is that any national problem that
is highly controversial, very difficult, yet
possible to shove under the rug, invariably
ends by getting shoved under the rug with
extreme firmness. WhUe the race problem
in America was mainly a rural Southern
problem, it could stUl be shoved under the
rug. But in the last two decades and more,
our race problem has more and more be
come a Northern urban problem, as well as
a more and more urban problem even in the
South, where the major cities show the same
pattern of demographic change already
trl'lced above. In this new guise, the race
problem cannot any longer be shoved under
the rug. Justice must be done at last, or we
must expect a gradual decline toward the
sort of country that wUl choose a new Presi
dent Verwoerd. Those are, literally, the
choices before us. For my own part, I am
confident that justice can and will be done,
at no matter what cost to the bUdget and
the taxpayer, if only we can manage to look
at the problem in common-sense terms.

CONCLUSION OF MORNING
BUSINESS

Mr. BYRD of West Virginia. Mr. Pres
ident, is there 'further morning business?

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Is there
further morning business? If not, the
morning business is concluded.

LABOR, HEW APPROPRIATIONS. 1968

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Under
the previous unanimous-consent order,
the Chair lays before the Senate the
unfinished business, H.R. 10196, which
will be stated by title.

The LEGISLATIVE CLERK. A bill (FI.R.
10196) making appropriations for the

Departments of Labor and Health, Edu
cation, and Welfare, and related agencies,
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1968,
and for other purposes.

The Senate proceeded to consider the
bill which had been reported from the
Committee on Appropriations with
amendments.

Mr. BYRD of West Virginia. Mr. Pres
ident, I suggest the absence of a quorum.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The clerk
will call the roll.

The legislative clerk proceeded to call
the roll.

Mr. BYRD of West Virginia. Mr. Pres
ident, I ask unanimous consent that the
order for the quorum call be rescinded.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it is so ordered.

PARTIAL REVISION OF THE RADIO
REGULATIONS, GENEVA, 1959,
WITH AN ADDITIONAL PROTOCOL

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The hour
of 1 o'clock p.m. having arrived, the
Chair, as in executive session, lays be
fore the Senate the treaty designated as
Executive H, for 90th Congress, first ses
sion, which will be read by title.

The ASSISTANT LEGISLATIVE CLERK. Ex
ecutive H, 90th Congress, first session, a
partial revision of the Radio RegUlations
(Geneva, 1959), with an additional pro
tocol.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The
question is, Will the Senate advise and
consent to the resolution of ratification?
On this question the yeas and nays have
been ordered. and the clerk will call the
roll.

The legislative clerk called the roll.
Mr. BYRD of West Virginia. I an

nounce that the Senator from Indiana
[Mr. BAYH] , the Senator from Oklahoma
[Mr. HARRIS], the Senator from Michigan
[Mr. HART], the Senator from Louisiana
[Mr. LONG], and the Senator from Maine
[Mr. MUSKIE], are absent on official busi
ness.

I also announce that the Senator from
Mgryland [Mr. BREWSTER], the Senator
from Wyoming [Mr. MCGEE], the Sena
tor from Montana [Mr. METCALF], the
Senator from Rhode Island [Mr. PELL] ,
the Senator from Florida [Mr. SMATHERS]
and the Senator from Texas [Mr. YAR
BOROUGH], are necessarily absent.

I further announce that, if present and
voting, the Senator from Indiana [Mr.
BAYH], the Senator from Maryland [Mr.
BREWSTER], the Senator from Oklahoma
[Mr. HARRIS], the Senator from Michi
gan [Mr. HARTl, the Senator from
Louisiana [Mr. LoNG], the Senator from
Wyoming [Mr. McGEE], the Senator
from Montana [Mr. METCALF], the Sen
ator from Maine [Mr. MUSKIEl, the
Senator from Rhode Island [Mr. PELL],
the Senator from Florida [Mr. SMATHERS]
and the Senator from Texas [Mr. YAR
BOROUGH] would each vote "yea."

Mr. DIRKSEN. I announce that the
Senator from California [Mr. KUCHEL]
and the Senator from Iowa [Mr. MILLER]
are necessarily absent.

The Senator from Michigan [Mr.
GRIFFIN] is detained on official busi
ness.

If present and voting, the Senator
from Michigan [Mr. GRIFFIN], the Sena-
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bUdget, a reduction of $9,500,000 from
the House allowance for manpower de
velopment and training activities, a new
ly created program for the training of
prison inmates by the Department, a
responsibility in the opinion of the com
mittee, of the Department of Justice and
of the state agencies; and an increase
of $38,000 to provide for the President's
Committee on Employment of the Han
dicapped, the full amount authorized,
$500,000, for that organization under the
able direction of Mr. Harold Russell.

For the Department of Heath, Educa
tion, and Welfare, the committee recom
mends appropriations totaling $12,724,
440,000, an increase of $281,809,000 over
the House allowance, an increase of
$403,752,800 over the 1967 appropria
tions, and an increase of $13,150,000 over
the budget estimates.

For the Food and Drug Administra
tion, the committee recQmmends a small
reduction of $225,000 from the House al
lowance of $66,225,000 for salaries and
expenses. This reduction is the result of
an unobligated balance of some $370,000
for fiscal year 1967. For buildings and
facilities, the committee has approved
the bUdget estimate of $1,150,000, but
has stricken the House proviso which
would have forbidden the planning and
construction of laboratory No.2 within
50 miles of the District of Columbia. The
committee feels that the selection of the
site is a proper function of the Food and
Drug Administration.

For the Office of Education, the com
mittee recommends a total of $3,943,
015,000, a sum I should inform my col
leagues, which exceeds the total amount
recommended by this committee for the
entire Department for fiscal year 1961
when we reported a bill recommending a
total appropliation of $3,913,890,631, of
which $489,248,331 was for the Office of
Education. This recommendation in
cludes increases of $108,900,000 for the
Office of Education, $51 million for ele
mentary and secondary educational ac
tivities, $33.8 million for school assistance
in federally affected areas-providing
$450 million, of the $461.5 million needed
to pay full entitlements, $18.1 million for
the Teachers Corps, an item not consid
ered by the House, inasmuch as there
was, at the time they acted, no author
ization for the program, $1 million for
libraries and community services, and $5
million for educational improvement for
the handicapped.

For the Vocational Rehabilitation Ad
ministration, the committee recommends
appropriations of $389,303,000, an in
crease of $4,194,000 over the House allow
ance. The committee allowed the full
budget estimate, $65,484,000, an increase
of $3,044,000 for research and training;
added $1 million for grants for rehabili
tation services and facilities for the con
struction grant program in order to as
sure that sufficient funds are available
for construction and related require
ments for a research and training cen
ter in the Chicago area. The committee
also restored $150,000 of the House re
duction of $302,000 for salalies and ex
penses, Vocational Rehabilitation Ad
ministration.

For the Public Health Service, the

committee recommends a total of $2,817,
976,000, an increase of $149,002,000 over
the House allowance. For the National
Institutes of Health, a total of $1,252,
225,000 is recommended, an increase of
$77,801,000. Included in the recom
mended increases for NIH are $9 million
for cancer, $10 million for heart, $2 mil
lion for dental health activities, $3,250,
000 for arthritis, $7 million for neurology,
$4.5 million for allergy, $4 million for
general medical sciences, $6 million for
child health, $10 million, to allow the
budget estimate, for the regional medi
cal program, $3,326,000 for environ
mental health sciences, $3.5 million for
general research and services, $15 mil
lion for grants for construction of health
research facilities-for this program the
NIH had at the close of business on June
30, 1967, 53 approved and unpaid proj
ects in the amount of some $61 million, or
$26 million in excess of the bUdget esti
mate presented by the administration
this year. Sundry other increases are in
cluded by the committee for the Public
Health Service-$750,OOO additional for
the schools of public health; $2,188,000
for chronic diseases to provide additional
funds for work on arthritis and work on
pediatric pulmonary centers for the cys
tic fibrosis sufferers; $600,000 to provide
sufficient funds to man the newly opened
Arctic Health Institute; $803,000, the in
crease sought by the Department, for the
program on emergency health services;
$60 million, of which $50 million, the
budget estimate, is for construction
grants for community mental health
centers, and $10 million for the staffing
of such centers, the balance of the an
nual authorization for the program; $2.5
million to allow the full budget estimate
for the National Library of Medicine and
to provide a total of $6.5 million for con
struction grants for the regional library
program; and $4,360,000 for buildings
and facilities, of which $4,260,000 is pro
vided for the construction costs of the
Appalachian environmental health field
station, and $100,000 is for preliminary
planning for a headquarters building for
the Public Health Service.

The whole field of immunologic re
search is developing so rapidly that the
Institute needs an additional sum above
the President's request to take prompt
advantage of the latest research findings.
The new methods utilize allergic reac
tions which until now have been known
only as the cause of disease. This new
concept makes it possible to use the cause
of one disease for the treatment of an
other. It is a challenging concept which
calls for further exploration. The bill,
therefore, provides $500,000 of the in
crease in immunology for the start of a
collaborative program on immuno
therapy. This program should extend
current clinical stUdies, and it shOUld ex
amine underlying immunological mech
anisms with a view toward applying the
principles involved to other medical prob
lems.

It is of utmost importance that re
search and development in the fields of
automated laboratory instrumentation
and procedures be developed as quickly
as possible in order that patient needs
in heart disease, cancer and stroke, as

well as other important causes of dis
ease and disability, be provided the best
medical care and services of which our
country is capable, Testimony before this
committee has been convincing that
through automation with suitable quality
controls the best medical care can be
brought to the patient with considerable
reduction in unit cost.

The savings thus available could
amount to several billion dollars, but even
more important, a highly increased qual
ity of medical care would be widely avail
able. In order to provide flexibility and
to insure efficiency and speed in program
operation, $5 million of the foregoing
sums for research grant projects are to
be made available interchangeably for
contracts under the collaborative re
search and development program of the
General Medical Sciences Institute. With
this interchangeability provided there is
no increase in the request for research
grants. However, the committee is con
vinced that flexibility thus provided will
provide the necessary funds for research
and development in these special areas.

The committee has approved $1,011,
631,000 in general funds for the Social
Security Administration, as well as $631,
500,000 in trust funds for the operation
of the social security offices.

For the Welfare Administration, the
bill contains $4,379,636,000 for the pub
lic assistance program, the program of
the Children's Bureau, and for the Office
of the Commissioner. Only a small in
crease of $93,000, for "Assistance for re
patriated U.S. nationals" is included, that
resulting from the enactment of contin
uing authorization, which had not been
passed when the l'Iouse acted on the bill.

For the Administration on Aging the
committee has approved the full budget
estimate, $18,450,000.

For special institutions the committee
has approved a total of $35,726,000, an
increase of $186,000 over the House al
lowance. The committee added $70,000
for "Salaries and expenses, Gallaudet
College" to provide for the rental of a
new computer. The college has a com
puter received as a gift several years ago
but it· is somewhat antiquated and does
not offer the opportunity for a complete
training of the students. The committee
also added $116,000 for the construction
of an extension to the student cafeteria.

For the Office of the Secretary the
committee approved a total of $37,987,
000, an increase of $1,209,000, of which
$400,000 was approved for the immediate
Office of the Secretary, $209,000 for the
Office of Field Coordination, and $600,
000 for "Foreign language training and
area programs,"the latter item included
$300,000 for the international education
program.

Mr. President, I ask unanimous con
sent that the committee amendments be
agreed to en bloc, and that the bill as
thus amended be considered for the pur
pose of amendment as original text; pro
vided, however, that no point of order
against any amendment shall be deemed
to have been waived by the adoption of
this· agreement.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it is so ordered.
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The amendments agreed to en bloc,

are as follows:
On page 2, at the beginning of line 7, to

strike out "$394,997,000" and Insert "$385,
497,000".

On page 7, line 21, after the word "than",
to strike out "$462,000" and Insert "$500,000";
and, In line 24, after "(63 Stat. 409) ", to
strike out "$4,429,000" and insert "$4,467,
000".

On page 12, line 15, after the word "else
where", to strike out "$66,225,000" and in
sert "$66,000,000".

On page 12 line 20, after the word "ex
pended", to strike out the colon and "Pro
vided, That none of the funds contained In
this paragraph shall be used to plan the
facill ty, Identified in the bUdget justifica
tions as 'Laboratory No.2', to be located
within a radius of fifty miles of the District
of Columbia.".

On page 13, line 11, after "(20 U.S.C. ch.
17; Public Laws 88-665, 89-329, 89-698, and
89-752) ", to strike out "$1,645,707,000" and
insert "$1,696,707,000"; In line 21, after the
numerals "1965", to strike out "$208,750,000"
and Insert "$213,750,000"; on page 14, line
1, after the word "Act", to strike out
"$50,000,000" and insert "$96,000,000"; In
line 5, after the word "administrative", to
insert "supervisory, and other"; and, In line
10, after· the word "of", to strike out
"$47,000,000" and insert "$88,000,000",

On page 14, at the beginning of line 18,
to strike out "$439,137,000" and Insert "$472,
937,000"; In the same line, after the word
"which", to strike out "$416,200,000" and
insert "$450,000,000"; and, on page 15, line 4,
after the word "date", to insert a colon and
"Provided further, That no part of this ap
propriation for payments to local educa
tional agencies for the maintenance and
operation of schools shall be available to
carry out the provisions of legislation en
acted after June 30, 1967."

On page 15, after line 8, to Insert:
I'TEACHER CORPS

"For the Teacher Corps authorized In
Part B of title V of the Higher Education
Act of 1965, as amended, $18,100,000 for
the purposes of section 514 of said Act:
Provided, That none of these funds may be
used to pay in excess of 90 per centum of the
salary and other emoluments In the Teacher
Corps: Provided further, That none of these
funds may be spent on behalf of any Teacher
Corps program In any local school system
prIor to approval of such program by the
State educational agency of the State in
which the school system is located,"

On page 18, Hne 14, after the numerals
"1966", to strike out "$155,500,000" and in
sert "$156,500,000"; and, on page 19, Hne 1,
after the numerals "1965", to strike out
"$4,000,000" and insert "$5,000,000".

On page 19, llne 17, after "(20 U.S.C, 871
880) ", to strike out "$53,400,000" and Insert
"$58,400,000",

On page 20, llne 20, after the figures "$37,
385,000", to insert a colon and "Provided,
That the sum made available in the 'Depart
ment of Health, Education, and Welfare Ap
propriation Act 1967' for transfer to the
'Office of Secretary, salaries and expenses'
for a comprehensive study of training pro
grams financed in whole or in part with
Federal funds shall remain available until
June 30, 1968."

On page 22, line I, after the word "amend
ed", to strike out "$311,550,000" and insert
"$312,550,000"; In the same line, after the
word "which", to strike out '$287,000,000" and
Insert "$286,000,000"; In line 4, after "section
3", to strike out "$7,500,000" and Insert
$8,500,000, of which $7,500,~''''''; In line 8
after "(A) ", to Insert a comma and "and of
which $1,000,000 (to remain available, to
gether with sums heretofore appropriated for
this purp~e, through June 30,1969) shall be
for State planning for the development of

comprehensive vocational rehabl11tatlon pro
grams under section 4(a) (2) (B) :"; In line
13, after the amendment just above stated,
to strike out "$3,850,000" and Insert "$4,850,
000"; and, on page 23, line 4, after the word
"or", to strike out "relocation" and insert
"reallocation".

On page 24, line 5, after "(74 Stat. 364) ", to
strike out "$62,440,000" and Insert "$65,
484,000".

On page 24, Hne 22, after the word "Ad
ministration", to strike out "$5,319,000" and
Insert "$5,469,000",

On page 26, at the beginning of line 20,
to strike out "$164,163,000" and insert
"$164,913,000".

On page 27, line 18, after the word "Act",
to Insert "Including $35,000,000 for the pur
pose of subsection (2) of said section,".

On page 28, Hne 10, after the word "dis
eases", to strike out $27,504,000" and Insert
"$29,692,000",

On page 29, llne 19, to strike out
"$41,594,000" and Insert "$42,194,000".

On page 30, at the beginning of line 17,
to Insert a colon and "Provided further, That
there may be transferred to this appropria
tion from "Community mental health re
source support" an amount not to exceed the
sum of the allotment adjustment made by
the Secretary pursUltnt to section 202(c) of
the Community Mental Health Centers Act,"

On page 31, llne 5, after the word "amend
ed", to strike out "$62,830,000" and Insert
"$63,633,000".

On page 32, line 15, after the word "Act",
to strike out "$183,356,000" and Insert "$192,
356,000".

On page 32, line 19, to strike out "$167,
954,000" and Insert "$177,954,000".

On page 32, line 24, to strike out "$30,
307,000" and Insert "$32,307,000".

On page 33, llne 5, after the word "diseases",
to strike out "$143,954,000" and Insert "$147,
204,000".

On page 33, llne 9, after the word "blind
ness", to strike out "$128,633,000" and Insert
"$135,633,000".

On page 33, line 15, after the word "dis
eases", to strike out "$94,422,000" and insert
"$98,922,000",

On page 33, Hne 23, after the word "an
esthesiologists", to strike out "$160,284,000"
and Insert "$164,284,000".

On page 34, line 5, after the word "devel
opment", to strike out "$68,621,000" and in
sert "$74,621,000".

On page 34, line 7, after the word "Act",
to strike out "$54,314,000" and insert "$64,
314,000"; and, in line 8, after the word
"Which", to strike out "$49,400,000" and in
sert "$59,400,000".

On page 34, line 13, after the word "ac
tivities", to strike out "$17,289,000" and In
sert "$20,615,000".

On page 34, at the beginning of line 21,
to strike out "$81,141,000" and Insert "$84,
641,000".

On page 35, at the beginning of line 6,
to strike out "$35,000,000" and insert "$50,
000,000".

On page 35, line 12, after the word "of",
to strike out "$61,700,000" and insert
"$75,000,000".

On page 35, line 19, after the word
"SCiences", to strike out "$500,000" and In
sert "$725,000, to remain available until
December 31, 1968".

On page 36, line 17, after "(Public Law
89-793) ", to strike out "$50,168,000" and In
sert "$110,168,000, of which $50,000,000 for
construction shall remain available until
June 30, 1969: Provided, That there may be
transferred to this appropriation from "Com
munity health services" an amount not to
exceed the sum of the allotment adjustments
made by the Secretary pursuant to section
132(c) of the Mental Retardation Faclllties
Construction Act.".

On page 37, line 10. after "(79 Stat. 1059)",
to strike out "$18,662,000" and Insert

"$21,162,000"; and, in the same line. after the
word "which", to strike out "$4,000,000" and
Insert "$6,500,000".

On page 37, line 17, after the word "sites",
to strike out "$10,715,000" and Insert "$15,
075,000",

On page 39, after line 17, to Insert:
"HEALTH EDUCATION LOANS

"The Secretary is hereby authorized to
make such expenditures, within the limits
of funds available in the following revolving
funds, and In accord with law, and to make
such contracts and commitments without
regard to fiscal year limitation as provided
by section 104 of the Government Coopera
tion Control Act, as amended, as may be
necessary In carrying out the programs set
forth In the budget for the current fiscal
year for the 'Health Professions Education
Fund' and the 'Nurse Training Fund',"

On page 42, line 17, after the word "out",
to Insert "section 1113 of the Social Security
Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 1313), and of
carrying out"; and, at the beginning of line
23, to strike out "$432,000" and Insert
"$525,000",

On page 45, after line 10, to strike out:
"Grants to States, next succeeding fiscal

year: For making, after May 31 of the current
fiscal year, payments to States under titles I,
IV, V, X, XIV, XVI, and XIX, respectively,
of the Social Security Act, as amended, for
the first quarter of the next succeeding fiscal
year, such sums as may be necessary, the
obligations incurred and the expenditures
made thereunder for payments under each
of such titles to be charged to the appro
priation therefor for that fiscal year."

And, In lieu thereof, to insert:
"Grants to States, payments after April

30: For making, after April 30 of the current
fiscal year, payments to States under titles I,
IV, V, X, XIV, XVI, and XIX, respectively,
of the Social Security Act, as amended, for
the last two months of the current fiscal
year and for the first quarter of the next
succeeding fiscal year, such sums as may be
necessary, the obligations Incurred and the
expenditures made thereunder for payments
under each of such titles to be charged
to the subsequent apprOprIation therefor for
the current or succeeding fiscal year."

On page 46, after line 14, to insert:
"ADMINISTRATION ON AGING

"COORDINATION AND DEVELOPMENT OF PROGRAMS

FOR THE AGING

"For grants for community planning,
services, and training, and for grants and
contracts for research and development
projects and training projects, and for con
sultative services, technical assistance, train
Ing and other services, relating to programs
for the aged and aging, and for salaries and
expenses in connection therewith, as au
thorized by the Older Americans Act of 1965,
as amended, $18,450,000."

On page 47, at the beginning of line 20, to
strike out "personnel" and Insert "personal";
and, in Hne 22, after "(Public Law 420) ", to
strike out "$2,878,000" and Insert "$2,948,
000".

On page 48, at the beginning of Hne 11, to
strike out "$2,196,000" and insert "$2,312,
000".

On page 49, line 25, after the word "Deaf",
to strike out "$6,739,000" and Insert "$7,139,
000",

On page 50, line 9, after the word "Coor
dination", to strike out "$2,000,000" and in
sert "$2,209,000".

On page 52, line I, after the numerals
"1961", to strike out "$15,700,000" and in
sert "and for carrying out the purposes of
PubHc Law 89-698, $16,300,000".

On page 58, after Hne 14, to strike out:
"SEC. 907. No part of the funds appropri

ated by this Act shall be used to provide pay
ments, assistance, or services. in any form,
with respect to any IndiVidual who--
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"(I) incites, promotes, encourages, or car

ries on, or facllltates the incitement, promo
tion, encouragement, or carrying on of, a riot
or other civil disturbance m violation of Fed
eral, State, or local laws designed to preserve
the peace of the community concerned or to
protect the persons or property of residents
ot such community; or

"(2) assists, encourages, or instructs any
person to commit or perform any act specified
in paragraph (1)."

And, in lieu thereof, to insert:
"SEC. 907. No part of the funds appropri

ated under this Act shall be used to provide
payments, assistance, or services, in any form,
with respect to any individual convicted in
any Federal, State, or local court ot com
petent jurisdiction, of inciting, promoting,
or carrying on a riot, or any group activity
resulting in material damage to property or
Injury to persons, found to be in violation
of Federal, State, or local laws designed to
protect persons or property in the community
concerned."

Mr. PASTORE. Mr. President, I want
to take a moment to pay a word of trib
ute to my very distinguished colleague,
the veteran legislator from the great
State of Alabama [Mr. HILL].

I know of no man who strives more as
siduously and more compassionately to
work out the responsibility that is his,
as chairman of the Committee on
Health, Education, and Labor.

I realize that the bill does not provide
all the money which those interested in
particular programs would like to have,
but I can say this: the Senator from Ala
bama has been most fair. He has been
attentive to his responsibility, and also
to the budget and the fiscal situation of
the country. He has hammered out a bill
which does justice to all the people con
cerned. When it comes to the health as
pects of this country's responsibility, he
has met in full measure.

I take this occasion to compliment
him on a job well done.

Mr. IDLL. Mr. President, I want to
express my heartfelt appreciation to the
distinguished Senator from Rhode Is
land for his most generous words.

In the years that I have been chair
man of the subcommittee handling this
bill, no one has contributed more, no
one has done more, no one has fought
more battles for the bill or fought more
brilliantly or more effective battles than
has the distinguished Senator from
Rhode Island.

Therefore, any credit or any honor
which might come from passage of the
proposed legislation certainly must be
wholly shared with the distinguished
Senator from Rhode Island for the bril
liant part he has played in the passage
of this bill.

Mr. COTTON. Mr. President, will the
Senator from Alabama yield?

Mr. HILL. I am happy to yield to the
Senator from New Hampshire, provided
1:.hat I do not lose my right to the fioor.

Mr. COTTON. I wish to join the dis
tinguished Senator from Rhode Island
in saying a word of commendation, ap
preciation, and admiration for the dis
tinguished Senator from Alabama, the
chairman of the subcommittee reporting
the pending bill.

I have served on his subcommittee ever
since I became a member. of the Ap
propriations Committee. Until this year
I was the ranking minority member of

the subcommittee. That place has been
taken-and very ably-by the distin
guished Senator from New York [Mr.
JAVITS], so I am not speaking for the mi
nority but only for myself.

Once more, as in the past, I want the
RECORD to show that the contributions
made to the welfare of our country by
the Senator from Alabama in his long,
painstaking and expert treatment of the
pending bill year after year are beyond
estimate by any of us.

Each one of us who serves with him
realizes how dedicated he Is to this cause.
One thing we do not always realize is that
even though he is dedicated to the proj
ects In the bill, he always exercises care
and discretion and does not hesitate to
protect the public treasury and the tax
payers of this country, as much as he
possibly can, In dealing with the appro
priations in the bill.

I know of no committee chairman who
has been more fair, who has been more
considerate of witnesses who come be
fore it, who has been more considerate of
his colleagues who served with him on
the committee, and who has been any
more frank, honest, and faithful than
the Senator from Alabama.

After my senior colleague has spoken,
I have something more to say about the
bill; but I want to take this opportunity
once more to express how much I esteem
it a privilege to work with him on the
subcommittee.

Mr. HILL. Mr. President, from the
depths of my heart, I want to thank the
distinguished Senator from New Hamp
shire for his most kind and generous
words. Up until this year and for a num
ber of years, he was the ranking minority
member of this committee, and he and I
worked together in the closest possible
association. Nobody could have been
more helpful, nobody could have been
more constructive, nobody could have
contributed more as the ranking mi
nority member than did the distin
guished Senator from New Hampshire. It
was with much regret that he no longer
was the ranking minority member in
this session, but he has been tremen
dously helpful in this session, just as he
had been in session after session, and I
am deeply grateful to him.

Mr. COTTON. I thank the Senator.
Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President, the praise

which has been paid the distinguished
Senator from Alabama [Mr. HILL] is very
richly deserved. I now not only have ·the
privilege of serving on the subcommittee
as the ranking member on the minority
side, as a result of the cooperation on the
part of my senior colleague, but also as
ranking minority member of the legisla
tive committee which considers the
HEW matters in this body.

I must say that the usefulness of this
crossfire of information which is in the
hands of both of us has been tremen
dously demonstrated in the work of the
APpropriations Subcommittee. Also, we
all have deeper respect for the Senator
from Alabama [Mr. HILL] because of his
honesty and his integrity. He never en
deavors to overwhelm any of us by
seniority or authority, but subjects his
own most dearly held ideas to a com
pletely objective scrutiny. I know of no

man in the Senate with a better temper
for dissent than the Senator from Ala
bama.

In addition, the passion which he has
held for decades in the interest of the
health of all Americans, in the delibera
tions of the comInittee, has demonstrated
very clearly that his deep feelings upon
this subject are very much dictated by
the conviction that the greatest resource
of our Nation is its people. His dedica
tion to the health of the people, which
has been his passion and interest
throughout his life in the Senate, has
been recognized not only here but by the
whole medical fraternity throughout the
United States and even the world.

I think it is gratifying that, in the
fullness of his faculties and authority
and power, we can pay him this deserved
tribute both as a man and as a legisla
tor. I think the people of his State should
know that they have contributed an out
standing leader in the field of health and
education, the work which is done by the
Department of Labor in many of these
very same fields, and the Congress of the
United States.

Mr. President, in the time I have been
the ranking minority member of the
subcommittee, I have already experi
enced a tremendous gratification in the
cooperation and in the working as a
brother in arms with Senator HILL. I
hope the feeling of cooperation which
we have had in the committee will con
tinue to represent a truthful and con
structive aspect of the work of our com
mittee as it implements the work of the
legislative committee.

Mr. HILL. I thank the Senator for
his most generous words. Since he has
become the ranking minority member of
the committee, he has worked in closest
cooperation. He has been tremendously
helpful. He has been most constructive
and effective in every way. He has con
tributed very much to the bill that we
now have before us. I express to him my
deep appreciation.

Mr. JAVITS. I thank the Senator very
much.

Mr. BYRD of West Virginia. Mr.
President, will the Senator yield?

Mr. JAVITS. I yield.
Mr. BYRD of West Virginia. I want

to take a moment to express my grati
tude to Senator HILL, the distinguished
chairman of the Appropriations Sub
committee which handles this increas
ingly important appropriation bill, for
his excellent and painstaking and studi
ous work in the preparation of this bill,
in holding long and tedious hearings,
and in presenting the bill in his very able
way to the Senate, as he does year after
year.

I want to express the appreciation of
those of my· colleagues who may not be
on the fioor at. this moment, and the
appreciation of the people of my. State,
and the people of America, to this great
Senator, who pOssesses not only a great
mind but also a great, humanitarian,
and understanding heart.

His services to the people of the Na
tion in the field of health will never be
adequately. portrayed bywords, but the
American people know about them to
day, and 'they are going to continue to
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receive the benefits that flow from the
untiring and persevering labors of our
great chairman.

I feel honored to be on his subcom
mittee. I must say, as one member of that
subcommittee, that all of the laudatory
comments that can be expressed toward
this great chairman, the senior Senator
from Alabama, will indeed not be enough.
He is the one who spends the long and
countless hours working on this bill,
while others of us perhaps are working
on other matters. He is the one who lis
tens to the testimony. He is the one who
sits day after day and week after week
hearing the witnesses at the hearings.

So, I join our other friends who have
spoken today, Senator PASTORE, Senator
JAVITS, and Senator COTTON, in express
ing thanks and commendations to this
great man, the Senator from Alabama
[Mr. HILL].

Let me also express my appr0ciation
to the ranking minority member of the
SUbcommittee, the senior Senator from
New York, who has so ably assisted our
chairman in bringing this good bill to
the floor.

Before I close, I also want to express
my thanks to the clerk of the subcom
mittee, Mr. Herman Downey, who ren
ders to us all such able assistance and
courteous cooperation at all times.

Mr. HILL. Mr. President, will the Sen
ator yield to me?

Mr. BYRD of West Virginia. I yield.
Mr. HILL. I wish to express my ap

preciation to the distinguished Senator
from West Virginia for his most generous
words. He has been a member· of the
subcommittee which handles this bill for
some years now, and he has,given great
effort and great devotion to the work of
this subcommittee in bringing out these
bills. As the Senator from West Virginia
well knows, it takes the team to win the
game, and no man could have been a
more valuable or helpful member of this
team or could have done more than has
the Senator from West Virginia. So if
this team has won any victories, he can
certainly claim a very large share of any
honor or glory that may have come from
those victories for the part he played in
them.

Mr. BYRD of West Virginia. I thank
the Senator for his. most gracious and
charitable remarks.

Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President, I should
like to join the Senator from West Vir
ginia in expressing appreciation to the
clerk of the committee, Mr. Herman
Downey. I have now had a little expe
rience with and appreciate the tremen
dous amount of expertise and tradition
which he brings to the work of the sub
committee, and I wish to pay my tribute
to him, as other Senators have, in re
spect to his constructive acthities, which
fadlitates so markedly the work of the
subcommittee.

Before the Senator from West Vir
ginia [Mr. BYRD] leaves the floor, I would
like, if I may, to clarify one thing which
I think should be clarified, '::ith respect
to the paragraph which 3;Jpears at the
bottom of page 11 of the r,eport, dealing
with the support of activifies under the
Elementary Secondary Education Act,
for Which the committee recommenda
tion is $1,696,707,000, which is contained
in this bill, and which, incidentally, is a

material increase over the amount of the
bill provided by the other body.

It reads as follows:
The committee recommends that no funds

herein provided for the Office of Education
shall· be used for bussing of public school
stUdents or for any other activities calculated
to eliminate racial Imbalance In the pUblic
schools.

I wish to represent to the Senate that
the Senator from West Virginia felt ex
tremely strongly about this matter. and
that what was accomplished with respect
to the appropriations for elementary and
secondary education would, in my opin
ion, probably have been impossible if an
effort had not been made, in the utmost
good faith, to meet the very sincere con
victions of the Senator from West Vir
ginia.

However, as we discussed the matter in
the committee, his views upon this sub
ject were very sharply confined to the
matter of pressing this idea of eliminat
ing racial imbalance as the prime rea
son for the busing. He did not, as I
understood his feeling, intend to reach
busing which was incident to the devel
opment of such things as educational
parks, which was indeed one of the mat
ters very close to my heart; or did he
intend to restrict dealing with the prob
lems of overcrowding or obsolescent
facilities, where an incident would in
volve the busing of children to another
place with the use of some part of this
appropriation. His intention as I under
stand it was to zero in specifically on that
particular type of busing which was cal
culated to bring about a correction of
racial imbalance.

I ask the Senator whether that is his
specific intent, because I think, in all
deference to his sincere convictions
which caused us to include this state
ment, we still wish to be precise about
his meaning.

Mr. BYRD of West Virginia. Mr. Pres
ident, I feel that the distinguished senior
Senator from New York has precisely
stated my feelings in this matter.

I do not object, of course, to the bus
ing of students to relieve overcrowding
in the public school system. I do object
to deliberate, planned busing of public
school students calculated to eliminate
racial imbalance in public schools. I feel
strongly about this. I believe that such
busing, calculated to eliminate racial im
balance, flies squarely in the face of
the 1964 Civil Rights Act, in which the
word "desegregation" was stated not to
mean the assignment of students to pub
lic schools in order to overcome racial
imbalance. Moreover, forced integration
of public school children has never been
required by any U.S. Supreme Court de
cisions nor has there been any decision
of that Court requiring the elimination
of racial imbalance in the public schools.

I merely wanted the language to be
stated in the report, so as to put the
Office of Education on notice that the
committee does not expect to see any
funds in this bill used to bus students to
public schools in America with the cal
culated intent of doing so to eliminate
racial imbalance. But insofar as busing
to relieve overcrowded conditions is con
cerned, that is quite a different thing,
and there is no objection by this senator
to such busing when it is rightfully jus-

tified on this sole basis and where there
exists no feasible alternative to relieve
overcrowding.

Mr. JAVITS. I ask the Senator to clar
ify two points. First, the Senator, then,
as I understand it, reads the paragraph
preceding the paragraph I have read
from the report--

The committee calls attention to the fol
lowing language In Public Law 88-352, Civil
Rights Act, 1964: .. 'Desegregation' shall not
mean the assignment of students to public
schools In order to overcome racial 1mbal
ance"-

With the paragraph which we are dis
cussing; he feels they are to be taken
together, as the one is designed to com
plement the other. Is that correct?

Mr. BYRD of West Virginia. Yes; they
are designed to be taken together, and
additionally, if I may add, the busing of
public school students is cited as only
one of many activities which may be
calculated to eliminate racial imbalance
in the public schools.

Mr. JAVITS. The second point is this:
Would the Senator also add to the word
"overcrowding" when he used, "obsoles
cent facilities," as this, too, is often a
reason for busing?

Mr. BYRD of West Virginia. Indeed
it is.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The
Chair requests that the Senator suspend
until order is restored. The Senate will
be in order.

The Senator from West Virginia may
proceed.

Mr. BYRD of West Virginia. Indeed it
is, Mr. President. I believe that the Sen
ator from New York and I have achieved
a complete meeting of minds on this
question.

Mr. JAVITS. I thank the Senator very
much.

Mr. BYRD of West Virginia. I thank
the Senator from New York.

Mr. KENNEDY of Massachusetts. Mr.
President, on page 11 of the report be
fore us there appears a recommendation
by the Appropriations Committee regard
ing the use of funds for assisting in the
elimination of racial imbalance in pub~

lie schools. I know I am correct in as
suming that the committee has no in
tention of interferring with, or obstruct
ing, the local initiatives and State au
thority to provide the highest quality
education for students of all races and to
take whatever steps in their judgment
are incidental to achieve such quality ed
ucation. Certainly, even if this recom
mendation were fully carried out, it
could in no way affect any program that
I know of now funded by the Office of
Education.

r shall shortly be reintroducing in re
vised form the measure which I intro
duced last year to assist State and local
governments who voluntarily determine
that they wish to proceed with the e!im
ination of the racial isolation in the
schools, when they deem this phenom
enon to be contrary to the interests of
the students in their localities. We had
extensive hearings in the Labor Commit
tee on S. 2928 last year and there was
ample testimony and evidence support
ing the need for this measure. I will have
much more to say about it in the near
future but briefly stated the point of this
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bill is that those States and localities
where, by legislative action, school board
action, or other local decisions, a decision
has been made to remove the evil of
racial isolation in the schools, this vol
untary initiative should not be penalized
by making the applications for funds for
this purpose compete for the limited
funds available under title I and title ill
of the Elementary and Secondary Educa
tion Act. Because this is a bill and a con
cept which is bascd on, and rewards,
local and State initiatives and voluntary
action, and does not impose any manda
tory Federal requirements, I believe it
will merit and receive broad support from
senators of all parties and all persua
sions.

Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President, to con
tinue very briefly on the bill: I hope that
Senators understand that just because
we appropriate money does not mean
that the money is spent. This is an
added factor which Congress must al
ways have in mind. Anyone who listened
to the debate and the discussion in the
committee will realize that we certainly
matched minds and arguments, and that
the struggles were very real, indeed ti
tanic, upon many of these items. One
would think that, having gone through
such a difficult time in achieving a ma
jority in favor of the bill-I think the
final vote was unanimous, whatever may
have been our internal and intermediate
differences-at the very least, the money
appropriated ought to be spent.

But, Mr. President, it is not. At the
end of fiscal year 1967, I estimate that
between $80 million and $100 million of
appropriated funds will be held back by
the Department of Health, Education,
and Welfare upon the instructions of the
Bureau of the Budget.

Mr. President, in view of the state
ments of the President and the adminis
tration that these programs need beefing
up in the face of the riots and violence,
this situation of internal insecurity, of
which the absence of education and
training, and the lack of the job oppor
tunity which results from training, and
other problems sought to be alleviated
by this bill are considered to be basic
causes, I express the hope that at the
very least the administration will permit
the Department to spend what we in
tended it should spend for the objectives
for which we intended the funds should
be spent. I hope very much that we will
not run into the same situation which
we have run into in 1967, where we
thought we were doing what they ab
solutely required as the very basic mini
mum, but where, nevertheless, the White
House has enforced a material cutback
of appropriated funds. Indeed, it has
stated that it expects a cutback of 15
percent. I hope very much, Mr. Pres
ident, that the left hand, in this case,
will know what the right hand is doing,
and that what we appropriated in so
sensitive an area as the one I am dis
cussing will actually be expended for the
purpose for which we appropriated it.

Finally, Mr. President, I wish to point
out that one of the grave defaults, I
think, in meeting the responsibilities
which are so pressingly urgent today,
is the failure to deal more effectively

with this problem of elementary and
secondary education. We have increased
the total appropriation over that of
1967 by some $250 million; but consid
ering the need which we find in the
ghettos and the slums, what we are doing
is really completely inadequate for the
purpose; and, indeed, we are appro
priating but 50 percent of the authori
zation. The distinguished senator from
Oregon [Mr. MORSE] is the chairman of
the Education Subcommittee, upon
which I have the honor to serve as well.
I am sure he will pay his respects to
this situation, as indeed he should, and
I wish to join him in so doing. I know
of no problem greater than the educa
tional problem in the slums and ghettos
dealing as it does with children and
youth.

There has been much talk about 11
month schools, about using school prem
ises the year around. I can testify, as a
former slum child myself, that this
would be enormously helpful, especially
in these areas.

I had a colleague in the House years
ago, who came from Pennsylvania. He
always used to say, "Where are we going
to get the money?"

I disagree thoroughly with those who
think that this problem takes brains,
genius, gTeat skill, and dedication, but
no money. It does take money, and the
money largely has got to come from
the Federal Government in as sensitive
and difficult a field as the educational
field.

I pay tribute to my dear friend, the
senior Senator from Rhode Island [Mr.
PASTORE] for the monumental job he
did in the committee to get a little
more money for the Teachers Corps,
one of the most inventive ideas we have
had in this educational field.

Enlisting the ideas and the enthusi
asm of youths. I was able to lift the
appropriations up one rung of the lad
der. However, it was only because of the
fine int~itive spirit of my good friend,
the semor Senator from Rhode Island,
that the appropriations got lifted to
where they are in the pending bill.

The amount is only about half of the
authorization. It is still very inadequate,
but I pay tribute to the Senator from
Rhode Island for what he did.

Mr. PASTORE. Mr. President, will the
Senator yield?

Mr. JAVITS. I yield.
Mr. PASTORE. Mr. President, I know

that many Senators are somewhat dis
satisfied. as I am, that full funding is
not available.

We did have very many practical ques
tions to ponder. I repeat that the Sena
tor from Alabama [Mr. HILL] was very
compassionate and considerate.

We had to consider the pending bill
in the context of the money that was
available, the fact that we may be asked
very shortly to increase taxes, and the
fact that we might end up with a deficit
of between $20 billion and $24 billion.

These are serious questions. While the
House has approved nothing because the
authorization bill had not passed at the
time, the amount we receive from the
Senate is a workable amount. I would
like to see a great deal more. I would
like to see the $33 million. However. it is

my understanding that the Department
can get along with this amount.

Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President, I thank
my colleague.

I reiterate that without the assistance
of the Senator from Rhode Island we
would not have been this successful.

Mr. MORSE. Mr. President, will the
Senator yield?

Mr. JAVITS. I yield.
Mr. MORSE. Mr. President, I under

stand the point of view of the Senator
from Rhode Island. However, the ad
ministration would like to have the $33
million. They need the $33 million for
reasons which I will point out in a speech
that I will make shortly. If we act here,
that money can go toward an immediate
solution of some ghetto problems.

We need to put some money into those
ghettos fast. This is no place to cut back.
There are perhaps other places in which
to cut back but, iI, my judgment, the fact
that the Teachers Corps can deliver im
mediately by meeting crisis after crisis
does justify giving the $33 million.

If we go to the House with the $18.1
million figure, we will run a great danger
that that figure might be cut back in the
House-Senate conference to a pittance.
We should take the President's estimate
to conference instead.

Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President, I pledge
to my colleague that I will support him
in whatever he does. But, I think that the
Senator from Rhode Island and I would
bleed and die rather tIlan see a penny of
this amount reduced.

Mr. PASTORE. Mr. President, I hope
that the House will accept the amount
contained in the bill passed by the sen
ate.

I, too, would like to have $33 million
included in the bill, as would the senior
Senator from Oregon. However, taking
everything into account, under the cir
cumstances we did the best that we could
do.

I hope that the executive department
will assert its good offices to see to it that
the House goes along with the Senate
amount.

I certainly hope that the amount is not
cut in half again.

I say to my good friend, the senior
Senator from Oregon, that I think he is
conducting a worthy crusade. I wish him
the best of luck. But, I am a realist.

I sincerely hope that the amount we
pass will not be less than the committee
allowed.

Mr. JAVITS. I thank my colleague. His
work is always indispensable, as he
knows.

Mr. HILL. Mr. President, will the Sen
ator yield?

Mr. JAVITS. I yield.
Mr. HILL. Mr. President, there is con

tained in the bill for education alone the
amount of $3,943,015,000. That is practi
cally $4 billion.

As the Senator knows, we appropri
ated in the supplemental bill in May, un
der the leadership of the distinguished
senior Senator from Rhode Island, $3,
823,700. However, we have $18,100,000 for
this purpose.

Nothing was contained in the bill for
this purpose as it came from the House.
Almost $4 billion is now contained in the
bill.
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Mr. JAVITS. There is no question

about the. fact, and I repeat, that the
Senator from Alabama [Mr. HILLl is
certainly mindful of the problems which
we are discussing. He has been as help
ful as he could be with respect to the
problems.

The Senator from Rhode Island IMr.
PASTOREl, the Senator from Oregon IMr.
MORSEl, and I are talking about the ulti
mates which will be required.

I point out that in the city of New
York, with roughly 1 million public
school children, we have an education
budget that is close to $1 billion.

New York City has a population in
round figures of approximately 4 percent
of the national population. That gives
some concept of the order of magnitude.

Anyone who has been in the slums dur
ing this period and has seen the young
sters standing around on corners and sit
ting on stoops with blank looks during
the day and looking for excitement dur
ing the night, if the climate will allow it,
begins to understand some of the psy
chology of violence and riots.

I am sure that is what animates my
colleague.

Mr. President, I pay tribute to the
senior Senator from New Hampshire
[Mr. COTTON], whom I replaced rather
than displaced because he was its archi
tect as the ranking member on the
subcommittee.

The senior Senator from New Hamp
shire has been so friendly and tremen
dously helpful in guiding me in the work
which I have tried to do. He has given
me great support in matters concerning
which I may not have been as sure of
myself as I was of the fact that he
wanted to help me in carryin·g out this
new assignment.

I am very grateful to him.
With all the prayers and patriotism

and good will in the world, it takes money
to do what must be done to repair
decades of deprivation in the ghettos. We
also have the stark psychological fact
that 10 million Americans from rural
areas, mainly Negroes, have migrated
into the great cities in one decade alone.

That problem will be met by the
pending bill, albeit very inadequately. It
bears out what the Senator from Oregon
said about the· Teachers Corps.

We are not trying to assess upon the
Nation exclusively local problems. We are
seeking to have the Nation bear the re
sponsibility for an enormous sociological
shift of population in the country which
has taken so many of our taxpaying
elements from the big cities-especially
the bigger cities-and transferred them
to the suburbs where they pay income
taxes, but no city taxes.

This is not what the cities bargained
for and is not what they need.

We must have the help of the Federal
Government-albeit this would be very
inadequate assistance-to deal with the
matter.

I hope that at the very least the Sen
ate will approve the measure as the
committee brought it to th~ Senate floor.

Mr. MORSE. Mr. Presid~nt-
Mr. COTTON. Mr. President--
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The

Senator from New Hampshire is recog
nized.

Mr. COTTON. Mr. President, I say for
the benefit of the distinguished Senator
from Oregon that I realize he is about to
make a very constructive speech. How
ever, I will raise one point only and I
should like to do it at this time.

Mr. President, the senior Senator
from New Hampshire was deeply inter
ested during the deliberations of the sub
committee and during its markup, in
adding to some of the educational funds
and, I think, was instrumental in in
creasing somewhat certain of these
funds. His keen interest in the field of
education has increased even more since
he has served on the committee.

The Senator from New Hampshire
has been interested in the colloquy that
just occurred regarding the Teachers
Corps-the remarks made by the dis
tinguished Senator from Rhode Island
and the distinguished Senator from New
York.

The Senate and the members of the
committee, who fought so hard for
funds for the Teachers Corps, should
~ave in mind that they have had some
help from downtown-some rather ques
tionable help.

I greatly admire the sturdy way in
which the Senator from Rhode Island
[Mr. PASTORE] fought in the full com
mittee for the increase in funds for the
Teachers Corps. By main strength and
by his deep sincerity and able presenta
tion, he secured the $18 million which
now is in the bill.

I say frankly that he did not have
the vote of the Senator from New
Hampshire. The Senator from New
Hampshire, as a matter of conviction
through the years, has not been in favor
of the Federal Teachers Corps; because
the Senator from New Hampshire is one
of those who believes that we should
never open the door, not even a crack,
to the Federal Government paying
teachers in our schools.

Under the Teachers Corps, of course,
teachers are paid by the local school dis
trict, but 90 percent of the salaries of
the trainees is reimbursed by the Fed
eral Government.

It has been stated again and again that
the Federal Government and the Teach
ers Corps exercise no supervision what
ever, that the matter is entirely in the
hands of the local authorities. But some
of us-certainly, the Senator from New
Hampshire-believe that a danger exists
in that situation.

In the full committee, the Senator
from Rhode Island succeeded in getting
an increase. The House gave nothing to
the Teachers Corps, because the Corps
was not authorized in time for them to
do so. I believe the subcommittee re
ported some $13 million, and the Sena
tor from Rhode Island, with the assist
ance of other Senators, brought it up to
$18 million.

So far as the Senator from New
Hampshire is concerned, he feels honor
bound, as a member of the subcommit
tee-even though he voted against it and
reserved the right to vote against it on
the floor-to go along with the Senator

from Rhode Island; and I sincerely hope
that no one will attempt to take away
any of the money that h['.s been au
thorized.

However, Mr. President, in this morn
ing's Washington Post I read an article
containing a statement by the Director
of the Teachers Corps. The article begins
in this manner:

The Director of the Teacher Corps bitterly
attacked the Senate Appropriations Commit
tee yesterday for cutting the Corps program
by half at a time when teachers are desper
ately needed In the slums.

I continue to read:
"You'd think we would begin to search for

ways to turn the situation around in the ci
ties," said Corps Director Richard A. Gra
ham. "I know there Is concern about reward
Ing the rioters-

Incidentally, Mr. President, I do not
know of anyone who even expressed any
suggestion-any remote suggestion-that
we should not give money to the Teach
ers Corps because it would be rewarding
rioters. That is just errant nonsense, and
the Committee on Appropriations does
not act on matters before it in any such
spirit.

He continues:
but these were programs that were worked
out with some care before the riots began."

Then this bitter, sarcastic, vindictive
attack on the Appropriations Committee
continues by this man downtown, who is
the head of the Teachers Corps, on the
day before we vote.

No Member of the Senate is more lib
eral in providing hearings than is the
Senator from Alabama; and if Graham
had wanted to come before the subcom
mittee, all he had to do was to pick up
his telephone. He does not appreciate the
work that the Senator from Rhode Island
and others have put into this matter to
authorize $18 million.

He continues-this is typical-and he
names cities:

The budget cutting "will knock out pro
grams for Newark, Illinois, Memphis, New
Orleans, Milwaukee, Minneapolis, Harlem,
Kansas City, San Francisco, Buffalo and
other cIties" Graham said.

In other words, he selects cities in
many of which there has been trouble,
and says that the action of the Appro
priations Committee cuts the appropria
tions in those cities.

That, of course, is the typical argu
ment of a bureaucrat. He gets money
from the committee, when he was not gO
ing to get 1 cent, or he was going to get
perhaps $13 million, given to him re
luctantly.

By dint of the earnest effort of the
senator from Rhode Island and others,
he gets enough money so that, as I am
informed by the committee staff, there
can be 600 new trainees during the fall
of 1967 and 1,500 more during the sum
mer of 1968, and all told there will be
more trainees than there were last year
in the Teachers Corps program.

Then he proceeds to attack the Appro
priations Committee in the most vindic
tive way.

Mr. HILL. Mr. President, will the Sen
ator yield?
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Mr. COTTON. I yield.
Mr. HILL. Just last May, he also re

ceived $3,823,700.
Mr. COTTON. I thank the Senator.
I am not particularly excited about the

question of the Teachers Corps. I cer
tainly do not care anything about this
man Graham. I have never seen him
and I do not know him. I know some
thing about him by just reading this ar
ticle. In the first place, he has no sense.
He has no jUdgment. A man who is
drawing the taxpayers' money to admin
ister a national program should be a lit
tle more restrained when he attacks a
committee of the U.S. Senate, upon
which sit men who fought his fight only
yesterday, long and nobly.

I know, furthermore, that he has no
judgment, when he puts such an attack
in the newspaper on the morning when
this bill is being considered by the Sen
ate. Were it not for the fact that I do
not want the Teachers Corps or the cause
of education to suffer from any anger
on my part, that article would cause me
to introduce an amendment-and to
fight for it-to eliminate every cent au
thorized for the program. I would not do
that, because the money goes to the
Teachers Corps, not to this man, Richard
A. Graham.

I mention this matter particularly be
cause I am afraid that Mr. Graham is
not the only bureaucrat downtown who
has grown so arrogant that he does not
hesitate to insult committees of the Sen
ate, on which sit men who have been
elected-not handed out a political ap
pointment-bY the people of their States
to represent them here. Fortunately most
of the men downtown have a little more
sense than Mr. Graham.

I wish to add the following thought:
Some of us were in this Chamber for
years when Lyndon Johnson sat over in
that chair as the majority leader of the
Senate. Many of us have had the privi
lege of serving with him and under him.
There is no one on either side of the aisle
who would say he was not a talented
and most able leader, who knew the pro
prieties, and he knew how to deal-not
wheeling and dealing, necessarilY-but
how to deal, how to compromise, how
to obtain as much as he could for the
causes in which he believed or with which
he was charged to lead for the admin
istration. He knew them very well.

Mr. President, if Lyndon Johnson
were sitting in this chair as the majority
leader of the Senate today, and a man
downtown, appointed by the President to
administer a department had no more
sense than to come out and attack the
Committee on Appropriations after they
had saved him some of the money, by
the very methods of compromise that
Lyndon Johnson used so skillfully and so
well, in getting legislation before us, as
has the Senator from Rhode Island, I
think that Lyndon Johnson would have
gotten up on the floor of the Senate and
demanded that the President fire that
man because a bureaucrat who has be
come so entrenched and so sure of his
infallibility that he undertakes to lecture
the Committee on Appropriations on the
day the Senate is going to vote does not

indicate either the commonsense or abil
ity to make him fit to administer an
agency of Government.

Mr. President, I hope that there will
be no question raised. I am ready to vote
for the bill. I am ready to vote for all of
the bill. We had compromises, but I say
these few words because it seems to me
that the Senate and its committees are
entitled to be defended, when they are
charged with the responsibility of cut
ting here, cutting there, and choosing.
Mr. President, this man could have no
conception of the problems of the Com
mittee on Appropriations. We have to
weigh and give priorities by the scores
and scores of worthy projects. Everybody
is denied something. Then. we come in
unanimously with the best composite
judgment we can give.

If we are going to sit here tamely and
be lectured and assaulted by these self
opinionated, blownup bureaucrats to
whom someone has had the ill judgment
to grant some authority, and who are
being paid out of the Treasury, we are
very foolish if we submit to it.

Mr. President, I sincerely hope that I
will have the opportunity next year to
sit on the subcommittee, and have this
Mr.-What is his name?-Richard A.
Graham, that great and eloquent man,
come before us. I hope that I may have
the exquisite joy of teaching this gentle
man a few facts of life, a few rules of
courtesy, and a few rules of ordinary di
plomacy and commonsense.

Mr. HILL. Mr. President, will the Sen
ator yield?

Mr. COTTON. I yield.
Mr. HILL. Mr. President, I commend

the distinguished Senator from New
Hampshire for his remarks. I am in
wholehearted agreement with him. If I
am the chairman of this subcommittee
in the next Congress, and I expect to be
unless something unforeseen happens, I
will certainlY make sure that the Senator
from New Hampshire is right there with
me when Mr. Graham comes before the
subcommittee.

Mr. COTTON. I thank the Senator. I
appreciate that statement more than I
can say.

Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President, will the
Senator yield?

Mr. HILL. I yield.
Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President, I can un'"

derstand the Senator's criticism. I am
sure that it would have been the path of
wisdom and discretion not to have issued
such a statement. I do feel that some
times a man feels so keenly about a par
ticular program, and I am sure that is
the case here, that we have to temper
judgment with some-I shall not use the
word mercy-understanding of the pas
sion which may move a man in this way.

Mr. President, I wish to add to the
statement of the Senator from Alabama
[Mr. HILL]. I, too, would want to be pres
ent at the subcommittee meeting and be
sure my colleague from New Hampshire
is there.

I hope that this enthusiasm and pas
sion for the job will be translated into
top performance. I think that this gen
tleman, when he hears or reads the
proceedings of this afternoon, will have

learned something about what it takes
to be the head of a Corps and how intel
ligent one must be with respect to con
duct becoming the head of a Corps of
this character.

I find no fault with my colleague. I
hope we will temper our judgment with
the fact that undoubtedly this is a man
of deep commitment and let us at least
say that we expect him to transmit that
energy and devotion for the job and
perhaps learn a good hard lesson from
what the Senator has said.

Mr. COTTON. I thank the senator.
I am not reproaching Mr. Graham for
his enthusiasm and dedication to his
job. I feel that job is not safe in the
hands of someone who knows no better,
as a matter of expediency and policy,
than to follow the course he is following.

In addition, this matter has another
meaning. As I said before, my only ob
jection to the Teachers Corps is that I
still believe that when the Federal Gov
ernment is paying 90 percent of the sal
aries of teachers, even though it is being
paid through the local school authori
ties, the Federal Government can exer
cise some influence on those teachers.

I have opposed the spread of the
Teachers Corps because I do not want
the Federal Government in command of
teachers in our public schools. The an
swer always has been, "Well, no, we are
not doing that; we do not want to do it;
our policy is against it."

They assert the Teachers Corps would
never interfere in any way, shape, or
manner with the conduct, policy, and
work of tlle teacher in the school. But
here is a man I would not trust not to
interfere.

If he is so presuming, so persistent,
and so arrogant as to thoughtlessly,
without even knowing what he is talk
ing about, attack his best friends on the
committee. he is the kind of man I would
not trust not to interfere. That is what
leads me to think that he is dangerous
in this position, if the newspaper report
is an accurate reflection of his judgment.

Mr. NELSON. Mr. President, I am con
cerned about the article referred to by
the Senator from New Hampshire. I wish
the Senator from New Hampshire to lis
ten to'my observations, because I think
that Mr. Graham's attitude and view
point have not been accurately repre
sented in the article. I should also like
to have the chairman, the Senator from
Alabama [Mr. HILL], listen to my ob
servations.

Mr. Graham comes from Wisconsin.
He is a very distinguished and highly
regarded Republican businessman in my
State. Several years ago he sold his
business and went into the Peace Corps
and ran a successful overseas program
for the Peace Corps.

At the time his name was being con
sidered for the Teachers Corps, I told
the WhiteHouse that I had known Mr.
Graham for many years and, partisan
pOlitics aside, I thought that he was one
of the finest men I had ever met in my
life, with great judgment,great humility,
great decency, and great ability.

When the article was published this
morning, Mr. Graham called my omce. I
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did not get an opportunity to speak with
him. He told a member of my staff, how
ever, that the stOry misrepres€nted his
attitude and his viewpoint, that he had
no intention to criticize the Appropria
tions Committee.

If the Senator will look carefully at
the article, he will note that there are
really no quotes in it which can be char
acterized as being a bitter criticism of
the Appropriations Committee.

';I'he reporter says so, yes. He writes:
The director ot the Teacher Corps bitterly

attacked the Senate Approprlatlons CommIt
tee yesterday for cutting the Corps program
by half at a time when teachers are desper
atelineeded in the slums.

There are no bitter words anywhere in
the article directly attributable to Mr.
Graham. He did not make any. If one
reads every single word in the article,
one might not argue with him, but there
is no bitterness or any attack upon the
Appropriations Committee by Mr.
Graham.

You'd think we would begin to search for
ways to turn the situation around in the
cities,

Said Corps Director Richard A.
Graham:

I know there is concern about rewarding
the rioters, but these were programs that
were worked out with some care before the
rlots began.

There is another quote:
The budget-cutting "will knock out pro

grams for Newark, Ill1nois,. Memphis, • • ."

That is correct. That happens to be
a fact. For instance, they were going to
expand in Milwaukee and other Wiscon
sin cities, but they will not be able to do
so now. However, this is a simple state
ment of fact and not a bitter attack of
any kind.

Going down further in the article,
there are only two words in which Mr.
Graham is quoted:

Graham said that the cuttIng back will
"turn 011" many dedicated young people who
seek the challenge of tough teaching jobs
In the slums.

I think that is correct, Mr. President,
but it is not a bitter attack on the com
mittee.

The next one is:
He argued that the Corps could gIve major

aid to school systems "that are going to have
trOUble this fall getting first year teachers
to sta1l many of the schools In the burned
out sections of these citIes."

Mr. President, I think that is correct,
but it is not a bitter attack upon the
committee.

Here is another quotation from the
article:

Graham saId the committee's approval of
$33 mUllon requested for the Corps "kind of
hacked us up."

Well, I do not believe that is a bitter
attack upon the committee.

I recite these quotes only because if
they were bitter attacks upon the com
mittee, and intended as such, py Mr. Gra
ham, I would be the most astonished
man in this Chamber bec\use I have
known him for soine 15 to 1'8 years and
he is one of the finest, gentlest persons
I know.
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He tried to reach me this morning,
but when he could not do so, he talked
to a member of my staff and told him
that he did not make and would not
make such a bitter attack upon the com
mittee.

I am sure that when anyone gets the
opportunity to meet Mr. Graham and
talk to him about this matter, he will
find that the story, as stated in the news
pap-er, does not represent Mr. Graham's
viewpoint.

Mr. COTTON. Mr. President, will the
Senator from Wisconsin yield?

Mr. NELSON. I yield.
Mr. COTTON. I thank th€ Senator

from Wisconsin for his remarks and I ap
preciate his explanation. I am not sur
prised to learn that Mr. Graham is a
Republican, because no Democrat would
be so inept. It is only a Republican who
puts his foot in it, on the wrong day, in
the wrong place, and with the wrong
people. A Democrat would do it much
more smoothly.

However, I am not satisfied. I should
think that Mr. Graham would be pre
pared to come to our subcommittee and
talk to us about this in advance and pre
sent his suggestions rather than wait for
the morning after and put them in the
paper.

I do not entirely set that interpreta
tion on some of his words. One thing that
irritates me is the insinuation-and this
is a quote: "I know there is concern
about rewarding the rioters," which
is a distinct implication that some of us
were cutting down or withholding some
of the funds from this program and that
our attitude had something to do with
the rioting. Any member on the com
mittee, I am sure, will testify that there
was not one single suggestion or thought
about that, that it was a question of how
much we could squeeze out for the Teach
ers Corps. There was opposition by two
or three of us who had been opposed to
the Teachers Corps for the reason I have
stated; namely, that of payments to
teachers by the Federal Government.

That was entirely uncalled for. There
could be no facts in it. I am assuming it
was unintentional, perhaps, and pure
guesswork. All I say is, Mr. Graham may
be the fine fellow the Senator from Wis
consin says he is. The Senator says so
and he knows him, and I would take the
Senator's judgment as a man. I have no
desire to assail Mr. Graham personally,
but I still think that the people down
town had better learn we have our prob
lems in the Senate. As long as they are
on the Government payroll, they had
better restrain themselves and learn not
to judge what we do without adequate
knowledge. Mr. Graham could not have
known anything about the rest of the
parts of the bill Which we had to weigh
and to whiCh we had to give priorities.

I regret if I have said anything offen
sive to the Senator from Wisconsin in
my remarks, as he knows that I am not
a harsh and bitter person. I have nothing
against this man. I just did not like it
and I thought it should be mentioned. If
I did not mention it gently enough, I am
certainly sorry.

I thank the Senator from Wisconsin
for his analysis of this particular gentle-

man. I am willing to take the Senator at
his word. I repeat: I think that these
fellows downtown-had better learn a
little common sense about dealing with
the public and those of us who have so
many difIlcult problems to cope with in
making our decisions.

Mr. NELSON. I thank the Senator.
No, Mr. Graham did not make a bitter
attack upon the committee. I would cer
tainly understand the valid resentment
of the Senator from New Hampshire
and the Senator from Alabama if he
had, but since I have known Mr. Graham
for many years and know the kind of
gentleman he is, I am satisfied that when
he tells my staff he did not make a bit
ter attack upon the committee, he did
not intend to do so.

As to the quotation, "I know there is
concern about rewarding the rioters,"
we are looking at a newsstory. Knowing
Mr. Graham as I do, without having had
an opportunity to talk to him about this
incident, I give him the benefit of the
doubt. I am sure what happened was,
the appropriations came out at one-half
the authorization, and as all Senators
know, forthwith we find a reporter on
the telephone. The Senator and I have
been in politics for many years. When
we discuss an appropriation with a re
porter, certain quotations go into the
newspaper. I have had that happen to
me often enough. The quotation does
not represent the total picture at all. I
think that is the case here. Since he is
a friend of mine-though he is a fine
Republican, as I have said-and since I
am pleased to see men of his quality
give up their businesses, sell their busi
nesses, and come into the Government
because they want to do something con
structive for their Government and the
people, I thought it was my obligation to
tell the Senator what kind of a gentle
man Mr. Graham is.

Mr. COTTON. If the Senator will
yield, if there was a reporter on the
phone-this is an old expedient, and I
am sure all of us have seen this hap
pen-we shoot our mouth off. Then if
the newspaperman quotes what we said,
we immediately say we did not say it.
I am not saying this is the case with Mr.
Graham, but whoever wrote this story
started out this way:

The Director of the Teachers Corps bit
terly attacked the Senate commlttee for
cutting the Corps program in half.

Mr. NELSON. Will the Senator yield
at that point?

Mr. COTTON. Yes.
Mr. NELSON. I would think that if

the reporter wanted to quote a U.S. Sen
ator or a Director of the Teachers Corps
as bitterly attacking the Appropriations
Committee, he would put the bitter at
tack in quotes. It is nowhere in the stOry.
The leadoff is that he bitterly attacks.
Where is the bitter attack? That to me
is the strangest part of the story. That
is why I am glad to make the statement
that when he called my office he said
he made no bitter attack. I know him
too well. It is out of character for him.

Mr. COTTON. I am sure the news
paperman thought he had bitterly at
tacked it.

Mr. TYDINGS. Mr. President, I wonder
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if I maybave unanimouscorisent to. put
a question to the distinguished chairman
of the subcommittee? ..

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it is so ordered.

Mr. TYDINGS. It is my understanding
that both the House~passedand the Sen
ate-reported versions of the Labor-HEW
Appropriations Act, H.R. 10165, contain
an authorization for planning a badly
needed research laboratory for the Food
and Drug Administration. ,The House
version of H.R. 10165, however, contains
a rider proposed by Representative
MELVIN LAmD to preclude construction
of the laboratory at Beltsv11le, Md., the
site the Food and Drug Administration
says is the :Jest available location. Al
though the Laird rider would merely for
bid actual construction of the laboratory
within 50 miles of Washington, I believe
that the House was in error to arbitrarily
forbid the Food and Drug Administra
tion to build its laboratory within 50
miles of its headquarters in Washington
and its existing research facilities here.
Regardless of whether or not the Belts
ville facility is finally selected, I believe
maximum efficiency for the Food and
Drug Administration and Government
economy are the only considerations
which should guide the Food and Drug
Administration in its site selection.

My query is: When the Senate Appro
priations Committee struck the Laird
rider from the Appropriations Commit
tee bill, did it intend that the Secretary
should choose the best available location
for that laboratory in order to achieve
maximum economy and efficiency in
construction and operation without re
gard to its distance from or proximity to
the National Capital or any other
locality?

Mr. HILL. That is absolutely correct.
The committee was seeking to have the
Secretary select the site on the basis of
maximum economy and efficiency both in
the construction of any new bullding or
buildings and in the operation of the
laboratory.

Mr. TYDINGS. Would it be appro
priate to say the Senate committee wants
the Secretary to keep efficiency and
economy foremost in mind, and not polit
ical considerations, whether it be on the
part of the majority or minority or any
body else?

Mr. HILL. I would say that economy
and efficiency ought to be of paramount
consideration in making this selection,
and what will make for the greatest
economy so far as the Government and
taxpayers are concerned and what w1lI
make for the greatest efficiency so far
as the agency is concerned.

Mr. TYDINGS. I thank the Senator.
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The bill is

open to amendment. If there be no
amendment--

Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, I sug
gest the absence of a quorum.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The clerk
will call the roll.

The assistant legislative clerk pro
ceeded to call the roll.

Mr. MORSE. Mr. President, I ask
unanimous consent that the order for
the quorum call be rescinded.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it is so ordered.

Mr. MORSE. Mr. President, I want to
assure the Senator from Alabama [Mr.
HILL], every member of the Labor-HEW
Subcommittee, and the full Appropria
tions Committee that I do not rise to
criticize the committee. I am going to set
forth a different judgment that I have
from that of .the committee with respect
to what I think the amount ought to be
for the Teachers Corps.

I really rise to praise the committee for
what I think are some great improve
ments it has made by increasing its rec
ommended amounts over the Bureau of
the Budget recommendations, with re
spect to a good many parts of the bill.
But I am sure no one would defend me
more than my colleague, the Senator
from Alabama [Mr. HILL], who is my
chief on the Senate Committee on Labor
and Public Welfare, and has been for
years. He is a man and a Senator for
whom I have the greatest of admiration.
I believe that Senator HILL would take
the position that if a Senator feels an
amendment ought to be offered to an ap
propriation bill, even though he would
find himself on the other side, he would
expect that Senator to carry out that
trust. That is all I am proceeding to do
in this matter.

When I finish the speech I shall make
on this appropriation bill, there will be
no doubt, I think, in the mind of anyone
as to the motivation of the Senator from
Oregon. It is to work with, and not
against, the Appropriations Committee.
When I think a higher figure ought to be
recommended, as in the case of the
Teachers Corps, it is my duty, as I see
that duty, to make such a recommenda
tion.

I shall have something' to say about
the increases I fee] are justified in a num
ber of programs financed by the bill as
I proceed with my speech. May I say
further, however, to the chairman of the
subcommittee and to all members of the
subcommittee-who obviously are not
going to agree with me on my recom
mendation to return to the recommenda
tion of the administration of $33 million
to replace the $18.1 million contained in
the committee report-that I am sure
they will recognize my speaking most
sincerely words of praise for the great
record of the Senator from Alabama both
on this subcommittee and as chairman of
the Senate Committee on Labor and Pub
lic Welfare, out of which committee
came the authorization legislation.

I express again, as I have many times
over the years, my point of view that no
one in Congress, and I think no one in
the country, has done more to build a
great monument of achievement in' the
field of building up the health services
and health resources of our country than
has LISTER HILL. Very rarely do I find
myself having any difference of opinion
with him in connection with amounts in
appropriation bills.

However, I do have an obligation to
raise my voice in connection with my
chairmanship of the Subcommittee on
Education, with respect to the substan
tive legislation that is considered and
passed by the Senate. These bills contain

the authorization amounts. After all, it
is the legislative committee, which passes
on questions of policy. It is the commit
tee, not the Committee on Appropriations
which has the responsibilitY of determin'"
ing the merits of the policy involVed in
an education bill. In the educational area
this committee is the Committee on
Labor and Public Welfare, of which my
subcommittee is an agent.

I announce now that I intend
to ask for a rollcall vote on my amend
ment, which I shall subsequently offer.
I hope that the staff will notify the ma
jority leader, the minority leader, and
others that I shall plead for a rollcall
vote, because I think there should be a
record vote on this matter, for reasons
that I shall set forth in my substantive
argument. But what I seek to do this
afternoon, may I say to my fellow Sena
tors-is to call the attention of the Sen
ate to the fact that the committee whose
primary responsibility is to pass upon
the merits of educational policy vis-a-vis,
in this particular instance, the Teachers
Corps, is not the Committee on Appro
priations, but the Committee on Labor
and Public Welfare.

This is the committee that' took the
evidence. It is the committee that heard
the educators. It is the committee that
made the record on the need, and the
extent of the need, for the Teachers
Corps-not the Committee on Appropri-
ations. .

I ask my good friend, the Senator
from New Hampshire, in response to his
comment concerning the fact that Mr.
Richard Graham did not appear before
the Appropriations Committee-Was he
asked. to? He did appear before my SUb
committee, and he bore out exactly what
the senator from Wisconsin [Mr. NEL
SON] said about him. We had an oppor
tunity to sit there and judge the nature
of this man Richard Graham. I do not
know what happened in the telephonic
interview that he had with the news
paperman. It is not for' me to judge. I
do know that he got in touch with a
member of the staff of the Senate com
mittee, and expressed great concern.

Since the Senator from New Hamp
shire has now returned to the Chamber,
I repeat what I have stated. I said that
the Senator from New Hampshire had
made the point that Mr. Graham did not
appear before the Committee on Appro
priations, and that I do not know
whether he was asked. I assume he was
asked to, for certainly he should not be
expected to volunteer to appear before
the Committee on Appropriations.

He did appear, however, before the
Committee on Labor and PubIlc Welfare,
and in my opinion was a most effective
witness. We had an opportunity to decide
the kind of a man he was, to test his
qualifications, and the impression he left
bore out what the senator from Wiscon
sin said about him.

I think the report in the paper is most
unfortunate. I think, on the face of it, it
shows tha't he was inept on that occa
sion; but I wish to say that the impres
sion that he left with us on the Com
mittee on Labor and Public Welfare was
most favorable. He made a great case.
In fact, Mr. President, I ask unanimous
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consent that at the conclusion of my re
marks, an excerpt from Mr. Graham's
te.stimony which I have marked, starting
on page 187 of the record of the hear
ings, be printed in the RECORD.

The. PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it is so ordered.

(See exhibit 1.)
Mr. MORSE. His testimony speaks for

itself. I am very sad about this news
paper story, because, inept as it is, I
think he has done a great injustice to
himself, let me put it that way. I think
it is too bad.

He notified a member of the staff that
he would welcome an opportunity to ap
pear and be interrogated in regard to it,
and make perfectly clear that this is not
his intention.

I know also, as the Senator from New
Hampshire stated, that as we go into
press conferences, frequently our views
may be distorted or twisted, or taken out
of context. I have had that experience. I
know also the experience of going into
news conferences and coming out after
wards wishing I had not said some of
the things I said.

I have never denied anything I said
in a news conference, but that does not
mean I have not on occasion wished I
had not said some of the things I said.

I do not know what happened in this
news conference. All I have to say is
that on the basis of observation of Mr.
Graham when he appeared before our
committee and testified and was cross
examined at some length, I was dumb
founded by the implications of the arti
cle in the Post this morning.

Mr. COTTON. Mr. President, will the
Senator yield? ~

Mr. MORSE. As I said before, I rise
to criticize no one. My motivation here
is to make a plea on substantive legisla
tion which I think warrants increasing
the amount the committee has recom
mended.

I yield to the Senator from New
Hampshire. ,

Mr. COTTON. Mr. President, I thank
the Senator for yielding. I should like
to make this very clear to the Senator
from Oregon: When I ventured to speak
of this newspaper article, because I
thought it was the type of thing the Sen
ate should not pass over unnoticed, I
was not aware and had not been told
that the Senator from Oregon intended
to offer an amendment to increase the
amount for the Teachers Corps. Had I
known that, I would certainly have with
held what I had to say until later, be
cause I want to make it perfectly clear
that Mr. Graham is not on trial here;
the question is purely one of how much
should be appropriated for the Teach
ers Corps. I do not want any Senator
to be influenced to the slightest degree by
the article in question, in passing upon
the absolute merits of this question. I
shall consider the matter solely on its
merits; as far as I am concerned, the
Senator from Oregon may even be open
ing the path to move for redt.;;t.ion of the
appropriation. It should b.; considered
strictly on its merits, and as far as fur
ther discussion about Mr: Graham is
concerned, I hope that will be unneces
sary. Let us deal with the problem before

us. I did not intend to prejudice the
Teachers Corps by my remarks.

Mr. MORSE. I thank the Senator from
New Hampshire. Nothing in my com
ments was intended to imply that that
was the intention of the Senator from
New Hampshire. In fact, the Senator was
called off the floor while the quorum call
was in progress, and did not return in
time to hear the beginning of my re
marks, but the Senator from Alabama
did, and the Senator from Rhode Island
did; and I want the Senator from New
Hampshire to know what I said by way
of repetition.

I made it clear, when I rose to speak,
that the Senator from Oregon did not
wish to criticize any member of the Com
mittee on Appropriations, or the com
mittee itself. I praise it, because I am
highly pleased with the increase in its
recommendations for a number of items
in its report, where it has sought to cor
rect what I have thought needed to be
corrected, including some underfunding
recommendations of the Bureau of the
BUdget.

Then, while the Senator was off the
floor, I expressed, as the Senator has
heard me do many times over the years,
my great esteem for the Senator from
Alabama. But the Senator from Alabama
would be first to take the position that
if I differed with the committee on the
amount recommended for any item on
an appropriation bill, he would expect
me to offer my amendment, and what
ever views I had in suppor.t of the amend
ment, and let the Senate work its will.

The second point I had covered be
fore the Senator from New Hampshire
came back to the fioor was that I wanted
to point out that the committee which
has the responsibility of passing upon
policy as far as the substance of legisla
tion is concerned is the legislative com
mittee, which in this instance is the
Committee on Labor and Public Welfare,
of which the distinguished Senator from
Alabama is chairman.

I think, as I recall, that I used the
phrase that, in this respect, he is my chief
and has served for many years as my
chief adviser and leader on the Senate
Committee on Labor and Public Welfare.

The legislative committee brought
forth the bill containing the Teacher
Corps $33 million authorization figure.

Certainly the Senator from Alabama
[Mr. Hill] had a responsibility as chair
man of the Subcommittee on Appropria
tions to exercise his best judgment in re
gard to whatever polley ought to be fol
lowed within the Appropriations Com
mittee. He sits as chairman of the
legislative committee and wears one hat.
When he sits on the Committee on Ap
propriations he wears another hat.

What I want to plead for in the Senate
this afternoon is that when we start to
making educational policy, we should see
what the record is. The whole record
was not made before the Committee on
Appropriations vis-a-vis the Teachers
Corps.

A record on educational policy with
respect to the Teachers Corps was made
before the Senate Committee on Labor
and Public Welfare Subcommittee of
which I am the chairman. The chairman

of the full committee is the Senator from
Alabama [Mr. Hill].

I call attention to the matter of edu
cational policy that was made in those
hearings. And I have brought the hear
ings of record here.

On the basis of this policy, the thesis
and thrust of my argument is that the
Appropriations Committee ought to rec
ommend what the administration is ask
ing for-$33 million, rather than $18
million.

I yield to the distinguished junior
Senator from Illinois.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Sen
ator from TIlinois is recognized.

Mr. PERCY. Mr. President, I associate
myself With the comments of the dis
tinguished senior Senator from Oregon.

A year and a half ago I went to visit
a. major Teachers Corps establishment
located in the country in Illinois. I spent
a day with these young people and in
quired of groups of 10 or 15 at a. time,
going around the table, as to what moti
vated them to sign up in the Teachers
Corps and what their background was.

I asked each of the groups whether
some incentive would not be necessary
to get the teachers to go into the cultur
ally deprived areas. I was pleasantly
surprised that, almost universally, they
said:

No. ThIs Is not like the State Department
where you get a 25 percent allowance for a
hardship position. You shOUld not offer a
financial Incentive. You should offer the in
centive to those who have the knOWledge,
the understanding, the special sklIls, and
training. People have to be motivated. They
will not do this unless they are motivated.
You will not motivate the right people by a
monetary reward. Those who would most
likely have benefited by such a monetary
reward flatly refused, person after person.

I left there, after spending a day with
these people, absolutely convinced that
this program supplies the best possible
investment that we could make of our
Federal funds that are being put into the
culturallY deprived areas of America.

I support the amendment of the Sen
ator from Oregon to restore the full
amount of $33 million requested by the
administration.

I believe this is truly one of the great
programs that we have at this time. We
would be making a tragic mistake if we
were to cut a penny out of the program
particularly at this time.

I ask unanimous consent to have
printed in the RECORD at this point an
article which illustrates the need for such
dedicated and speciallY trained teachers,
printed in the Wall Street Journal, of
July 25, 1967.

There being no objection, the article
was ordered to be printed in the RECORD
as follows:
SLUM TEACHERS--THEY NEED A KNACK THAT

DOESN'T COME WITH A CERTD"ICATE

(By W. Stewart Pinkerton, Jr.)
It takes more than good Intentions and a

raft of education courses to teach In the
slums.

Educators are increasingly afraid that
many professional teachers working with
poverty youngsters are woefully unprepared
to cope with the specialized problems they
face.

The biggest block Is a teacher's Inab1l1ty to
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relate emotionally to his pupils; ironically,
this often stems from the teacher's own edu
cation. David Martin of the University of
Southern California's department of educa
tion contends most poverty youngsters live
In an environment that makes extensive use
of nonverbal, or emotional, communication.

"Personal feelings are much more Impor
tant to the ghetto child," he says, "Many
teachers never realize this and are talked to
so much themselves during their training
they get trained out of an ability to com
municate on a level of 'feeling.' As a result,
they come out insensitive and figure the only
way to get through to the kids Is talk, talk,
talk. Of course this doesn't work, but neither
the teacher nor the pupil understands what's
wrong."

Another, perhaps related, impediment lies
In the use of language. Kenneth Johnson, an
assistant professor of education at USC and
a specialist in linguistics, contends that dif
ferences In pronunciations, usage and voca
bulary can often be so great that the middle
class teacher Is effectively speaking a differ
ent language than her pupils.

Educators contend communication between
teachers and poverty pupils Is also Impaired
by Federal and r;tate certification criteria
that make no distinction for the teaching
attributes required In poverty areas. Such
programs as Head Start and the Job Corps,
for example, require that teachers be cer
tified. But these rules tend to screen out
those who can best communicate, educators
argue. Says Kenneth Clark, a professor of
psychology at City College of New York:
"The teaching art has been dehumanized
and preempted by Irrelevant licensing re
strictions," contributing "significantly" to
a breakdown of rapport.

AVERAGE DOESN'T MEAN A THING

"We need teachers who know how to raise
a family on $100 a month," asserts one Negro
social worker In Los Angeles. Maurice M.
Sampson, an official at the Opportunities In
dustrialization Center In Philadelphia, agrees
that teacher Identification With the pupil Is
the key factor and that It's often frustrated
by personnel standards: "Those responsible
for standards use people at their own level
as being average. But when you're dealing
with the poor, that average doesn't mean a
thing and those standards just aren't
realistic."

Stan Myles, an official of the Westminster
Neighborhood Association Inc., a highly suc
cessful basic education and vocational train
Ing program In Los Angeles' Watts section,
1llustrates the point. Recently, he says, a 20
year-old Negro enrolled who didn't know
there were 30 days In a month. "He had abso
lutely no concept of a calendar." After ex
hausting regular means, Mr. Myles finally
asked the youth If a judge put him In Jail for
90 days, how long would that be? The young
man thought for a moment, then quickly
replied: "Three months."

The fact that Mr. Myles could Identify with
the youth's environment paid off. "One of the
characteristics of the ghetto Is that you're
likely to get busted," explains USC's Profes
sor Martin. "In middle-class society being
put In jail Is frowned upon, but to the ghetto
resident It's often a fact of everyday Ilfe."

Understanding language d11ferences can
prove to be just as Important. USC's Mr.
Johnson says that one of the characteristics
of the Negro dialect Is a tremendous vari
ance In the usage of the verb "to be." To the
untrained ear, the differences can be baf
tIlng. Recently, for example, Mr. Johnson
walked Into a slum classroom accompanied
by the school's Caucasian principal. The
teacher wasn't In the room, so the principal
asked a little Negro girl where the teacher
was. "She be's gone," was the reply. Figuring
the pupil meant the teacher just stepped out
for a moment, the principal said, "We'lI stop
by a little later."

Actually, Mr. Johnson explains, the girl

meant something qUite different. The use of
"be's" signifies "all the time," he says. So
what the pupil was really saying was that
the teacher was usually gone. She came to
class occasionally, but It was more common
for her to be absent.

DOUGH OR DOOR?

Thus the girl was giving the principal a
very Important piece of Information, which
he misinterpreted. Similarly, Mr. Johnson ex
plains some other language deviations that
can prove bothersome to teachers: Dropping
final Rs (so the words "dough" and "door"
come out alike) and dropping final conso
nant clusters.

"Many teachers tend to look on these
differences as being Incorrect and sloppy," he
says. "It does deviate from so-called standard
English, but the deviations are systematic
and the patterns occur again and again, but
many middle-class teachers just call It slop
py and say the kids aren't capable of learn
Ing."

It's further argued that the whole concept
of the usual teacher-pupil relationship, gen
erally reinforced In many poverty projects
by personnel standards, needs some re-eval
uatlon. The question Is especially relevant In
poverty programs since the enrollees are gen
erally school dropouts: It's reasoned that If
a pupll droped out of school, chances are
good that he could drop out of the poverty
program If he's put back under the same
conditions.

Educators contend the usual classroom
aura shOUld be eliminated. The U.S. Labor
Department and the Department of Health,
Education and Welfare Jointly fund four sk1ll
centers In Los Angeles, Which prOVide voca
tional and pre-vocational training. The
teaching requirements are high: In three of
the centers, run by the Los Angeles city
schools, a teaching credential Is mandatory.
In the other, run by a private trade school,
basic education Instructors need five years
of on-the-job experience. Most of the classes
could pass for regular high school sessions.

At the Watts center, for instance. "no
smoking" signs line the halls and classrooms,
and Instructors in basic education generally
prevail from beWnd the standard teacher's
desk. Students sit In regulation school-type
study desks. The centers are considered suc
cessful, but the dropout rate Is one of the
highest for programs of Its kind In the area,
25% despite the fact all the stUdents are
paid while they attend. (Adults get $45 a
week, plus $5 a week for each dependent, and
young people get $20 a week.)

Skl11 center officials refuse to equate the
dropout rate and the high absenteeism (25%
to 30% for youngsters) With any communica
tions gap between teacher and pupil. "The
kids get every break," says one official. "They
can change teachers or counselors anytime
they want."

But the most successful of the centers, in
predominantly Mexican-American East Los
Angeles. is the one that emphasizes What
sklll center coordinator Jim Allison calls "un
structured school situations." In the classes.
free of grades to relieve pupils of the pres
sures of competition, stUdents gather in small
seminar-type groups around a table instead
of the usual classroom layout. The job place
ment rate for graduates here is between 90%
and 100%, compared with an average of 85%
at the other centers. Similarly, the 20%
dropout rate and the 15% average absentee
Ism are below the general sklll center aver
age.

WANTED: MOTIVATION

Another successful venture into a non
classroom approach is at Operation Boot
strap, a privately supported training pro
gram In Los Angeles. It has no requirements
for its 10 volunteer teachers other than
"sincere motivation," according to Robert
Hall, one of the program's co-founders.
Bootstrap shuns the usual teacher-pupil re-

latlonshlp, and ,trieste put emphasis on in
diVidual Instruction.

Ida Mosely, a pretty, 23-year-Old Negro.
teaches power sewing to about 10 Bootstrap
pupils. She dispenses With formal lectures
and moves about from machine to machine,
giving students Individual attention. A Boot
strap graduate herself, Miss Mosely finished
high school, enrolled in a Federal job
tralning program, but quit after only a
few weeks. "It was just like high school,"
she says, "We had lessons all day long In a
regular classroom With an hour off for lunch.
Here we have very few restrictions, and the
puplls can come and go when they want."
Mr. Hall claims this approach results In
close to 100% of the students staying with
the program from beginning to end.

To be sure, teaching methods shouldn't be
so unstructured as to leave pupils 1ll-pre
pared to face life In the outside world, educa
tors point out. Thus, at the sklll centers,
students in some of the vocational courses
have to punch in at a time clock every
morning, to get them to accept some of the
outward disciplines of the working world.

And the emphasis on the ablllty to com
municate rather than formal teaching cre
dentlais makes it a lot harder to identify
the special breed of teacher needed for pov
erty areas. At the Opportunities Industriali
zation Center In Philadelphia, prospective
teachers are put through a battery of per
sonal Interviews. "In each and every case
the prospect is being interviewed by a per
son who we know can communicate with the
poor," says Mr. Sampson. "We figure If the
interviewer can communicate with the pros
pect, we've got a pretty gOOd Idea that he'll
work out."

Clearly, no single teaching task Is going
to set the poverty pupil easily on the right
course. But It's becoming Increasingly appar
ent that some of the middle-class rules
need to be scrapped.

Mr. MORSE. Mr. President, I appreci
ate the support of the junior Senator
from Illinois. It means a great deal to me.

The amendment which I will olfer
after I make my argument is an amend
ment that carries out what I know is the
preference of the administration in re
spect to obtaining more money for the
Teachers Corps, for reasons that I shall
set forth in my speech. What is needed
is an immediate teacher transfusion into
the ghetto areas of this country. The
restoration of the larger figure I shall
propose will make that possible for rea
sons that I am about to state.

Mr. KENNEDY of Massachusetts. Mr.
President, will the Senator yield?

Mr. MORSE. Mr. President, I yield to
the distinguished senior Senator from
Massachusetts.

Mr. KENNEDY of Massachusetts. Mr.
President, I commend the distinguished
senior Senator from Oregon for taking
the floor of the U.S. Senate and making
this fight to restore the funds for the
Teachers Corps.

There certainly has been no better
champion of the Teachers Corps. No
one has developed a greater understand
ing of the need for the Teachers Corps
than has the distinguished senior Sena
tor from Oregon. It is my understand
ing-and I wish the senior Senator from
Oregon ~oJ1,ld correct me if I am wrong
that the Teachers Corps has been em
braced by the many school districts in
which it functions.

It has been embraced by the outstand
ing educational institutions who provide
training' for those who will participate
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in these programs, and the various ed
ucational associations have also been
providing a degree of cooperation.

Most importantly it has. been em
braced by the children who have bene
fited from the Teachers Corps and who
have been improving their skill and
knowledge.

There has been great national con
cern for the betterment of the young peo
ple who have been disadvantaged in our
Nation. This program has stimulated
within the educational profession new
vocations to work with the disadvan
tagedof this country.

And it is my understanding that the
record has been compelling and com
plete and fully justifies the whole au
thorization made by the committee.

Mr. PresIdent, the National Teachers
Corps came into existence 2 years ago.
Since that time it has su1Iered endless
delays and threats to Its very existence.
The expectationsheld out to our poorest
school districts in authorizing legisla
tion have been dashed on almost every
occasion by our failures in appropriating
legislatIon~The National Teachers Corps
Is the classic example of unmet hopes
of promises made and accepted in good
faith that have been broken time and
again. It seems tome that in this time
of terrible strife it is. totally inappro
priate for the U.S. Senate to give half a
loaf to the innocent children in our most
deprived schools. If the case can be made
that we have failed their parents and
we are reaping the rewards of that fail
ure now, then we should be able to make
the case that we will not fail the young
and create another generation of Amer
icans cynical and disbelieving..

When the fiscal 1968 appropriation for
the National Teachers Corps was before
the House of Representatives, no money
was appropriated at all. But it was clearly
stated at the time in the House report
that the failure to appropriate money
for the Corps was based on the fact that
authorizing legislation had not been
enacted; and the House clearly stated
that it was withholding money from the
Corps "without prejudice." The bill be
fore us today, however, was reported
from the Senate committee after the
Teachers Corps authorization was en
acted. Yet the administration's request
for $33 million, that is, the request for
the full authorization that we enacted,
has been cut to $18.1 million. This cut
could be explained if the House had ap
propriated nothing because of a stated
opposition to the Teachers Corps and the
Senate was trying to halve the di1Ierence
in preparation for a conference. But I
would repeat again that the House ap
propriated no funds "without prejudice"
and there is no good reason why the
Senate should not go to the House with
the full authorization met.

The cutdown in funds for the Teachers
Corps is simply another slice from this
program, simply another discouragement
to the dedicated members of the educa
tion· profession who have joined this or
ganization in the hopes of <l!evating the
minds of our young and to the school
systems throughout the country that are
waiting for their Corps members. School
systems from. practically every State
Mississippi; Connecticut, the Far West-

have all asked for the Teachers Corps,
and I might say that Members of this
body from those areas have inquired of
the Teachers Corps why the requests
from their States are not being met.

Under this appropriation, if allowed to
stand at $18 million, there will be many
more such inquiries, for Instead of 2,100
new entrants this summer and fall into
the Corps there will only be 1,100. In
stead of 2,500 entrants next summer and
fall there will only be 1,500. And un-'
fortunately the hardest hit school sys
tems will be those trying to work for the
advancement of thousands of children
of Mexican-American descent as well as
the children of the hundreds of thou
sands of our migrant laborers.

Mr. President, I would remind the
Senate that the National Teachers
Corps-a concept now endorsed by every
educational group in this country-has
In its 2 years of existence received only
$20 million. But they have done much
with thIs. They have somehow attracted
over 1,000 Corps members and they have
somehow interested some of our better
higher educational Institutions to par
ticipate in this program. But most im
portant, they have brought the best In
educational opportunities to countless
numbers of young people who need it the
most..The argument Is made by the
Senate committee that the Corps has
been relyIng upon forward financing and
thIs is one of the reasons cited for why
theIr appropriation is being cut.

The Senator from Oregon will bear me
out when I point out that forward financ
Ing has not been a procedure discredited
when used under title V of the Higher
Education Act for experienced teacher
fellowship programs and prospective
teacher fellowship programs. In the case
of the Teachers Corps the reliance on
forward financing is even more under
standable. Our better institutions of
higher education cannot be asked in
September after money is fully appro
priated to set up a training program in
September-plans must be made in the
prior winter for the sophisticated pro
grams that the Corps relies on. And It Is
very clear that most institutions would
not set up programs for the Teachers
Corps 9 months in advance without some
financial commitment from the Corps In
light of the terrible history that the
Corps has had here in the Congress.

Mr. President, I would ask those in this
body who are interested in education,
who are interested in our young and
above all who are committed to a more
healthy society to support the Senator
from Oregon in hIs e1Iorts today. There
are 18 school districts that I know of
whose programs are fully cleared with
State authorities, whose proposals are
acceptable to all and whose school prin
cipals are expecting the Corps members
that are now set to go-but will not go at
the cunent level of appropriation. And
there are 15 more today who are set to go
in a matter of weeks if we gave them the
slightest indication that we were pre
pared to support this program as we
promised In earlier legislation. The $33
million Is modest enough-we almost
cannot afiord not to give It. Is this not
the feeling of the distinguIshed Senator
from Oregon?

Mr. MORSE. I answer the question of
the Senator from Massachusetts by say
ing that the answer is a loud and re
sounding yes.

I hold in my hand the exhibit that sup
ports my answer. It is contained in the
testimony of the Deputy Commissioner of
Education in our hearings record start
ing on page 183.

While the Senator from Massachusetts
and the Senator from Wisconsin [Mr.
NELsoN].:.-the two original authors of the
Teachers Corps legislation-are not
members of my subcommittee, they at
tended our hearings, and they presented
testimony for which I again thank them,
as I have personally thanked them here
tofore.

Read the record. This Is the legislative
record. This is the record of the legis
lative committee.

The Appropriations Committee can
produce no such record. The Appropria
tions Committee cannot come forward
with the supporting evidence for cutting
the administration request for full ap
propriation of this bill authorization of
$33 million. However, my committee rec
ord can support the full funding of this
p!"ogram.

Read the record of what the heads of
these various educational agencies that
were referred to by the junior Senator
from Massachusetts in his statement.
There is the support and also the evi
dence of the remarkable record that has
already been accomplished with the
pittances that have been appropriated
heretofore compared with the need.

If it would help, I would get down
on both knees in this plea. All I can
say is that here is the hour of opportu
nity and, I happen to think, legisla
tive responsibility, too.

Here is the hour when we can set
aside by appropriations, as far as the
Senate is concerned, the money that will
give this transfusion that these educa
tors are pleading for with which to get
the teachers they say are sorely needed
now-not next year, but now.

We should put this special assistance
into the ghettos of America where we
know one of the great social and eco
nomic crises confronts us In regard to
the poverty-stricken. This money would
go to aid little boys and girls, as the
testimony contained within the covers
of this volume show.

There is not even a book in their
homes that we can really consider to be
an educational book. There may be some
comic books. There may be some other
books of very questionable nature that
should not be in their homes, but there
is not a cultural book, there is not a liter
ary book. Why? Because they come from
illiterate parents, poverty-stricken par
ents.

Do not forget that you have a whole
group of teachers in this country besides
the teacher in the classroom. The home
has to be a great teacher. The Sunday
School has to be a great teacher. The
people in the community in which chil
dren live must be teachers. That is all
part of the educational process. Educa
tion Is not ladled out only in the class
room. Here Is a group of teachers-part
of the Teachers Corps program-that
works with the home, too.
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Many of the Teachers Corps training

programs are for those teachers who are
being trained to deal with the disad
vantaged children of this country.
They get into the home and try to reach
the parents. They confer with the min
isters of the churches-if the people
whose children they seek to help are
church members.

I do not wish to appear deeply moved.
although I am. I want to keep the dis
cussion completely on a factual basis.
But the facts are here. and the facts
support the $33 million. not the proposed
cut.

Mr. KENNEDY of Massachusetts. I
wish to indicate to the Senator from
Oregon that I am in complete accord
with the observations he has made this
afternoon.

This morning I attended a hearing be
fore the Committee on the Judiciary on
the antirioting bill. The committee is be
ginning to delve into that legislation
and also. to some extent, will analyze the
cause and development of riots and what
useful legislation can be introduced.

Certainly, it is ironic that in one
breath we are beginning a stUdy of that
nature and in the second breath we are
addressing ourselves to what I believe,
in a small but useful way. could cer
tainly contribute to the restoration of
confidence, providing greater opportu
nity to those in various parts of our
country who are disadvantaged. That is
what I believe we are doing by support
ing the amendment of the Senator from
Oregon.

I again commend him for his efforts in
the fight he is making on the fioor of the
Senate this afternoon. I look forward to
supporting his amendment. and I am
hopefUl that all other Senators will do
so.

Mr. MORSE. Mr. President, I wish to
yield to the Senator from Oklahoma, but
before doing so I wish to congratulate
him publicly and to commend him and
pledge my assistance to him in connec
tion with the Presidential appointment
he has just received, in which he has
been thrown into the caldron of the
boiling problem concerning the ghettos
of America and the disturbing situation
that has developed as manifested by vari
ous riots and extremist actions in the
cities of the country. I am very proud of
him, and I am also very proud to yield
to him at this time.

Mr. HARRIS. Mr. President, I am hon
ored by the very generous comments of
the distinguished Senator from Oregon,
What he has said about the new Presi
dential Commission on Civil Disorder is
to some degree involved in what he is
attempting to do on the tIoor of the Sen
ate today-to restore a pitifully small
amount, in comparison "Vith our Federal
budget-for education, and particularly
for the Teachers Corps. Over the
years. the distinguished Senator from
Oregon has performed immensely val
uable service for this Nation in the field
of education.

Mr. President. our country now and
in the years ahead will be tested more.
perhaps, than it has ever been tested
since its foundation. Forces of change are
at work in our country and in the world
which most of us can just barely com-

mence to grasp: the entire problem of
urbanization and rural-to-urban shift
of papulation, the resultant breakdown
of family; the resultant lessening of the
pressure of conformity through knowing
your neighbors and being known by your
neighbors, and where you fit into things,
which are hand in hand with the urban
Ization process; the fantastic explosion
of knowledge and technology in this
country. where 85 percent of all the Ph.
D. degrees granted in the history of
America have been granted since the end
of World War n; the figure most of us
have heard a good many times-gO per
cent of all the scientists in the history of
the world are alive today. Think of what
pressures that puts on people for training
and retraining and for education.

If you are disadvantaged today, if you
come from a paverty background today.
you have many more obstacles to over
come than you had, say, back in the days
when the Italians and the Irish were
moving upward in our society. at a time
when a sixth-grade education was a tre
mendous accomplishment, and when a
substantial percentage of the jobs in
America were for the ttnskilled.

Consider the change in papulation, the
population growth alone. and then the
change in the age distribution. with the
majority of people in this country now 25
years of age or younger. Think of the
wrenching change that that in itself may
cause.

I believe t~ese are the best educated,
the most dedICated, and the most com
mitted young people this country has
ever produced. But they will make us
look at ourselves and examine what we
do. They will question us and our so
ciety. and they are already doing so.

This is a changing world. That is a
difficult concept to live with. but I be
lieve it is the central concept of our age.

All these f.actors. and many more. put
more stress on education than on any
other segment of our society.

Not long ago, I toured a rural poverty
area in eastern Oklahoma, in one of
which counties 46 percent of the people
above the age of 25 have less than an
eighth-grade education. I remember in
particul,ar one man whose home I visited.
He was a seasonal employee, when he
could get work. He helped sack grain
during the grain season.

He said, "Old J. B,"-he called his boss
"J. B,"-"kind of helps me out through
the winter, and I can get along on $20 or
$25 a week sometimes when he has odd
jobs for me to do."

We were in his house. which had no
screendoor, and tIies were in ,and out,
as were the dogs. He had several small
children, some with scabs on their faces
and the children were running back and
forth.

My wife and I spoke with him. I said.
"What do you have in mind for your
children? What sort of future would yOU
like to see for your children?"

He said. "I would like to see them gO to
college and get a college educ.ation. so
they wouldn't be like me, so they would
be able to get a good job."

You do not know whether to laugh or
cry. It is either terribly ridiculous. or it
is terribly sad. perhaps both, that a man
in those conditions would aspire to a col-

lege educatioh for hischlldren; when he
lives in those poverty conditions. But he
does, and I want us to helpniake that
dream come true.'

Consider the Job Corps. Mr. President.
Fifty percent of the young men in the
Job Corps. mostly from urbim slums.
according to the testimony of Sargent
Shriver which we heard today before our
Commission, are functionally'· illiterate,
passed along from year to year in school,
and yet really cannot read or write. ,

I have had personal contact with two
young men from the Job Corps who had
been in it for a month and came to
Washington, D.C., recently as a part of
their program. They were taken on a
tour of the Capitol and related buildings.
I spake with them aftel'\V1i.rd, and they
could not even relate what they had
seen. They had no way to know what
these buildings were or how they fit into
our society or government. They had no
way to describe it, because they had no
experience or education which would fit
them to understand what they had seen,
and they just could not relate it.

Mr. President, those are, the people
that, one way or another. you' and I bet
ter be involved \vith, because we are in
volved with them whether we like it or
not, and so is this country.

I am unable to understand those per
sons who say there is not a need for
this program, the Teachers Corps, in
that county in Oklahoma, where 46 per
cent of the people over 25 have less than
an eighth-grade education. I wish every
one could go With me to that school dis
trict which has an assessed property
valuation of less than $500,OOO-and
that is not for tax collected-from which
ad valorem taxes must be collected to
pay for that school. plus State aid and
plus the start we have made in this
country, under the leadership of the dis
tinguished 'Senator from Oregon, for
Federal aid to that school district. If
anyone says that without that aid those
children have much of a future, it is
because they do not know the facts.

The American people are decent peo
ple. They want to do the right thing.
They first have to be given the facts.

Dick Graham, who heads the Teachers
Corps, is a man of uncommon dedica
tion and extraordinary ability.' This is
a pitifully small amount of money he
needs to deal with these problems.

I suppor~ the cut the Space Com
mittee made of $250 million in that pro
gram. I would have supparted the addi
tional $100 million cut under the amend
ment offered by the Senator from Wis
consin. I supported the amendment of
the Senator from Rhode Island [Mr.
PASTORE], to delaY this year building of
the fantastically expensive project by
the Atomic Energy Commission in Wes
ton, m., not because it is not needed,
but because we have to put first thingS
first,and we have to have some system
of priorities.

Mr. President, this amount is little
enough. It is hardly worth the length of
time we have spent on it here today.
It is little enough money, but it is basic
to the future of this country.

The other day a witness before the
Subcommittee on Government Research,
of which I am chairman. said:
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America will go ahead whether there Is
lawlessness In our ghettos and whether we
do some of the things we should do about
human development, about which we know
very llttle.

He said:
We wlll stlll have an America.

That is true, but not nearly the kind
of America that you and I think about
and not nearly the kind of America that
you and I want for ourselves and our
children.

Lately I have heard people say, "What
are you going to do with people who will
not work? What are you going to do
with people who will not come into these
training programs when we offer them?"

I say: What are we going to do? Are
we only going to criticize, penalize, in
stitutionalize, and "welfarize"? Those
are the questions facing America. Those
who ask, "What are you going to do with
that kind of people" have asked the ques
tion which must be asked, but in a much
more meaningful way.

If we are not going to do it by new
innovations and give the school boards
this small additional amount of Teacher
Corps people under their supervision and
control, then I think we are not facing
up to the serious new chain of problems
this country confronts.

I am proud to endorse the effort of
the distinguished Senator from Oregon,
and I join with him in the hope that the
Senate will adopt this amendment and
restore this cut.

Mr. MORSE. Mr. President, I think
the Senator has made my case more
powerfully and eloquently than I could.
I only wish to suplement it by significant
factual material taken from 'Our record
so that we can make the record here.
I share every view that he has expressed.

With respect to the question which
the Senator posed, "What are we going
to do," we are going to try to get help
into those poverty-stricken areas with
trained personnel, which this program
helps to train, so we can help before
those people reach adulthood and before
they get into the same situation. We are
going to try to save that kind of human
loss.

In addition, I wish to say to the econo
mizers, save that economic loss because
in the age of the Nation in which we
are entering we are trying to train these
people for normal adjustment into a so
ciety to be employable and this is sound
economy. It will save money many, many
times the cost of a program, such as I am
pleading for this afternoon. How? By
the increased wealth that these people
trained for employment will pour into
the economic productive power of the
Republic from their earnings. It will re
pay over and over again the paltry cost
we are asking for by way of this amend
ment.

Mr. HART. Mr. President, will the sen
ator yield?

Mr. MORSE. I yield.
Mr. HART. Mr. President, once again

I wish to thank the distinguished Sena
tor from Oregon for attempting to per
suade the Senate and the Congress to
respond at least in part to" what he has
seen over the years to be a crying need.

I was struck, as was the. senator from
Oregon, by the points eloquently made

just now by the Senator from Oklahoma
[Mr. HARRIS]. -

A few minutes earlier I heard the Sen
ator from Massachusetts [Mr. KENNEDY]
contrast the settings in which he and I
found ourselves today. This morning we
were sitting with the Committee on the
Judiciary as we took up the antiriot bill,
and this afternoon there is the subject
under discussion in the Senate Cham
bers now, to beef up the Teachers Corps.

Law and order are e:;sential to the
survival of society, Nobody quarrels with
that. However, an antiriot b11l responds
to a problem produced by conditions and
it is the conditions, in part, to which the
Senator from Oregon is now asking us to
look.

Mr. President, nightsticks and riot
guns are pretty cheap; schools and ex
cellent teachers are not. Which do we
want?

One most important fact, which a
study of the District rioting must de
velop, is a precise profile of those who
were participants in the rioting. I think
the word is "profile." What I have in
mind is the age, residence, family, and
community record, education and em
ployment history of the participants.
Preliminary reports are that of some
5,000 youths who were involved in the
several federally sponsored poverty pro
grams in Detroit, only three were in
volved in the violence and lawlessness of
last week. Let those who chide the Fed
eral efforts run those figures around in
their mind. To me they have a very clear
message-and more fully supporting the
Teachers Corps is one part of it.

A great American city sees riot and
fire cause loss of a half billion dollars to
a billion dollars, in less than a week. We
could spend our money more prudently
in preventing than in reconstructing the
wounded city.

We have been tagged-the Senator
from Oregon and myself, among oth
ers-over the years as big spenders.

We tried to make the case that the
spending we were seeking Congress to
make was sound bookkeeping economics,
as well as the long term right thing to
do. I would hate to think that it took
the loss of part of a great city to make the
case we fumbled with around here for
so many years, but if it does at least
there is some worthwhile byproduct of
the violence in Detroit.

We can do as we think correct about
the antiriot bill, but the antiriot bill will
not stop riots in our cities. It does not
go to the causes. Beefing up the Teach
ers Corps does respond in part to condi
tions which produce the riots.

I see where a poll has been taken and
the majority of the people of this coun
try believe the riots are the product of
conspiracy. Apparently affluent, middle
class, white America-and that describes
us here-simply does not know what it
is like todaY to live in a ghetto and be
black. One of the problems is: How do
you come out of a home of darkness,
as the senator from Oregon described,
and go into a school that does not give
you as good a break as my children get
when they go to the schools which they
attend, and ever get out of the ghetto?
Society now requires excellent educa
tional equipment because. unlike earlier
ghetto generations the jobs are not there

for one whose qualification is just a
strong back. So education, quality edu
cation, early and regular, is a key to
get out of that ghetto. Without it
chances are good you would know you
are in a dead end street-with nothing
to lose. It does not justify or excuse riot
ing, but it makes it predictable.

It is the Teachers Corps and other
things on the list of the big spenders
which are essential, if we are to respond
to the alarms that ring in the cities across
the Nation during this summer. The
Senator from Oregon tried for years and
years to persuade the Congress that the
Federal Government had a responsibility
to aid primary and secondary education;
not the refinements of the Teachers
Corps, just to make the point that there
was a Federal responsibility in primary
and secondary education because the
quality of the product of that system
would determine the strength and sur
vival of this country. I supported him
when I came here in 1959. We ran short
of votes time after time in the Senate.
Finally the breakthrough came. Now we
get the same bookkeeper's attitude on re
finements in aid to education such as the
Teachers Corps. Not to question anyone's
motives in these attitudes, but the judg
ment which is involved, the incredible
distortion of priorities--we mumble
about authorizing $2 billion or $3 billion
to go to the moon and the next day argue
whether we can afford $150 million for
model cities, or boost the Teachers Corps
appropriation to the too low figure
Budget recommends.

The Senator from Oregon asks us to
provide more adequately support of an
imaginative and new instrument which
seeks to respond to an obvious and glar
ing need. The tools at hand with which to
respond to our national needs are limited.
At best, their results will be painfully
slow in maturing. I hope that the effort
of the Senator from Oregon to strengthen
this tool, limited though it may be, will
be supported. I thank him again for
giving us the opportunity to run the risk
of being tagged big spenders.

Mr. MORSE. I thank the Senator from
Michigan for the powerfUl support he has
given me. Whenever the Senator from
Michigan throws his infiuence behind a
bill, it is powerfUl support. I also appre
ciate the penetrating and unanswerable
arguments that he has offered. I am
pleased to be associated with him in this
cause.

Mr. CLARK. Mr. President, will the
Senator from Oregon yield?

Mr. MORSE. I am happy to yield to
the Senat()r from Pennsylvania.

Mr. CLARK. I thank the Senator for
yielding to me. I want to assure him of
my support in the effort he is making
to restore the all too small request of
the administration for funding the
Teachers Corps program. However, pre
liminarily, I join the Senator from Ore
gon in the kind words he said about our
mutual friend, the Senator from Ala
bama, who has been an inspired leader
of the Committee on Labor and Pub
lic Welfare. I know that he has labored
hard in the vineyard, not only for the
cause of health, which is so dear to his
heart, but also for the cause of educa
tion. I suspect that there is no man in
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the Senate who is as interested as the
Senator from Alabama in seeing to it
that gross inequities in our educational
system are remedied.

I commend the Senator from Oregon
for turning to the record which was
made in the Legislative Subcommittee
on Education, which he chairs, with
respect to the Teachers Corps. It is my
understanding, and I ask him whethel'
this is not correct, that after the wit
nesses had appeared before the educa
tion subcommittee, on which I have the
honor to serve, under the leadership of
the Senator from Oregon, after we went
to the markup of that part of the bUl
dealing with the Teachers Corps, we
found substantial unanimity in the sub
committee in support of the concept of
the Teachers Corps. The only disagree
ment we had-a relatively small one
was how much of the cost should be
funded by the localities and how much
by the Federal Government.

Mr. MORSE. That is a correct state
ment of fact. The record will support
it.

Mr. CLARK. So that the Republican
members of the Subcommittee on Educa
tion were in accord with the Democratic
members. My recollection is that the
same situation prevailed in the full com
mittee in the view that the Teachers
Corps was a most useful innovation to
remedy a glaring defect in the whole edu
cational system with particular refer
ence to poverty impacted areas; is that
not correct?

Mr. MORSE. The Senator is right. He
has refreshed my memory some, but I am
going to ask the Senator from New York
[Mr. JAVITS] to refresh my memory fur
ther in the statement I now make, that
we brought to the fioor of the Senate a
unanimous report so far as the Teachers
Corps was concerned; is that not true?

Mr. JAVITS. As well as I can remem
ber, it was tied up in the higher educa
tion bill.

Mr. MORSE. That is right.
Mr. JAVITS. But I do think that it fi

nally worked out that way.
Mr. MORSE. Remember, we got a

unanimous vote to report the bill With a
reservation guaranteed by the chairman
of the subcommittee to every member
that they could offer their amendments
on the fioor of the Senate and I would
join in urging a rollcall vote. But in re
gard to the Teachers Corps, there was
no plan to offer any amendments and a
unanimous vote was recorded for the
Teachers Corps in the bll1; is that not
correct?

Mr. JAVITS. That is my understand
ing; yes.

Mr. MORSE. Is that not the under
standing of the Senator from Pennsyl
vania as well?

Mr. CLARK. Yes, it is.
I should like to point out what the

Senator from Oregon knows, that while
the Teachers Corps is primarily an edu
cational measure, it has an overriding
and extremely important implication in
connection with the war on poverty be
cause the .work of the Teachers Corps is
done primarily in poverty-infested areas
to build up, as the Senator from Michi
gan has so well stated, equal educational
opportunities for every American boy

and girl regardless of race, creed, color,
or the income of the child's parents; is
that not correct?

Mr. MORSE. That is correct.
Mr. CLARK. Let me say what I think

needs to be said, that the intensive stUdy
of the Teachers Corps concept took
place in the legislative subcommittee
chaired by the Senator from Oregon, on
which I have the honor to serve. I have
just had the opportunity to look at the
record made in the Appropriations Com
mittee from which the recommendation
comes. I hold in my hands the 2 volumes
of the Senate hearings which were held
in connection with the appropriations
bill now before the Senate.

As I turn to volume 1 of the hearings,
I note that 1,570 pages of testimony were
considered by the committee in marking
up the bill. That, I say to my friend from
Oregon, is a gargantuan task. I do not
know, because I have not attempted to
check through the report of the commit
tee, how many separate items the sub
committee, under the distingUished
chairmanship of the Senator from Ala
bama, had to consider in coming to
the very important conclusions, with re
spect to the bill which, as we know, rep
resents an appropriation of some $13 Y2
billion.

Mr. President, I find now, upon exam
ining the record, that there is only one
page and a half with respect to the
Teachers Corps. I also see that there
are two volumes and 2,842 pages of the
record, but only 1 Y2 pages on the Teach
ers Corps.

Now, I am not being critical, because
the committee obviously had no time to
go into each of the items in great detail.
All we have on the Teachers Corps be
fore the Appropriations Committee is 1Y2
pages of testimony by John Gardner,
Secretary of HEW. Therefore, I say, it
is not extraordinary at all that the sub
committee which reported the bill could
not have had an opportunity to famil
iarize itself with the vital necessity of
the program in terms of education, in
terms of poverty, and in terms of re
habilitation, and bringing equal educa
tional opportunities to the minds and
hearts of millions of young American
boys and girls.

I call the attention-because it is
worth saying-of some of my dear col
leagues who come from relativelY rural
States, to what Mr. Gardner said.

From page 684 of the record, I quote:
Finally, on the question of whether the

Teacher Corps assists only large cities, I
would I1ke to make it clear that a significant
portion of the program is directed toward
impoverished rural areas. Of the school dis
tricts aiready involved, over 25 percent are
in rural areas.

The Senator from New York [Mr.
JAVITSl knows, as does his colleague [Mr.
KENNEDY], and the Senator from Cali
fornia [Mr. MURPHY], of the shocking
condition of inadequate educational op
portunities which we saw with our own
eyes in the delta region of Mississippi,
which we all know also exists in counties
of Appalachia, where there· are white
and not Negro children involved, and
which we also know exists all over the
country.

I remember very well a dear friend of

mine, and I suspect of the Senator from
New Hampshire who, I note, is looking
at me with somewhat of a quizzical gaze
on his face, the former Secretary of
HEW, now a distinguished judge on the
court of appeals-I believe it is the fifth
circuit in Ohio. I refer to Mr. Celebrezze,
former mayor of Cleveland, an office in
which the distinguished Senator from
Ohio [Mr. LAUSCHE] served before he
came here. The Senator from Alabama,
and I think the Senator from New York,
will remember that Mr. Celebreze came
into a meeting we had on the education
bill in the early days of the Kennedy ad
ministration. He said, with appealing
candor:

I want to see something done for the
school children of the lower Income families.
When I grew up in Cleveland, I was a child
of immigrant parents. There was not a book
in our house. My mother and father did not
speak very good English, but I went to school
in the first grade In Cleveland In competi
tion with the sons of doctors and lawyers
and businessmen and I was at a disadvan
tage.

He said:
I was able to make it. I was lucky. Many

kids did not make it because they were not
lucky. I want to do something for the chil
dren of poverty-stricken parents to see that
they get a better break than I did.

That is what the Teachers Corps is all
about.

Mr. CO'ITON. Mr. President, will the
Senator from Oregon yield to me, with
out losing his right to the fioor, to per
mit me to put a question to the Senator
from Pennsylvania?

Mr. CLARK. Will the Senator permit
me to finish my sentence?

Mr. LAUSCHE. Finish the phrase.
Mr. CLARK. The Senator from Ohio,

I think, believes I would be too long if I
finished the sentence, but he would like
me to finish the phrase.

This is what the Teachers Corps is all
about. The record before the Committee
on Labor and Public Welfare substan
tiates the position taken by the Senator
from Oregon. The record before the Ap
propriations Committee is necessarily
inadequate for the serious purposes
which we seek to obtain. I hope the
amendment of the Senator from Oregon
prevails.

I am happy now to yield to the Sena
tor for a question.

Mr. MORSE. Mr. President, I yield to
the Senator from New Hampshire to
ask the Senator from Pennsylvania a.
question.

Mr. CO'ITON. The Senator from New
Hampshire was interested in the state
ment of the Senator from Pennsylvania
when he indicated that the Committee
on Labor and Public. Welfare was· fully
versed in this matter and the Appropria
tions Committee was extremely ignorant.
. Mr. CLARK. I did not say that. I said
it did not have the same opportunity to
obtain the basic facts. .

Mr.CO'ITON.I did not quote the Sen
atoras saying "ignorant," but, if I un
derstand the English language, the Sen:"
ator said the legislative committee held
information which the· Appropriations
Committee.did not have. Therefore, I
wo~ld like some of that information: One,
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is it true, from what was told us in the
legislative committee, that all the mem
bers of the Teachers Corps except super
visors are at the same time either grad
uate or undergraduate students in col
lege?

Mr. CLARK. I think that is correct,
but the Senator from Oregon is much
more versed in that, and I leave it to him
to answer the question.

Mr. MORSE. Cadets. They are being
trained as teachers for the poverty
stricken areas. Until Public Law 90-35
became law all trainees held the bache
lor's degree.

Mr. COTTON. Is it true that up until
last June, when the Senator's commit
tee again acted on this question, they
had to be graduates of colleges, but at
the same time they were in the Teachers
Corps they were doing graduate study?

Mr. MORSE. Most of them were that,
but they C:iid not all have to be. Experi
lng, it has been possible for the Teacher
of whol):l had advanced degrees.

Mr. COTTON. The Senator from New
Hampshire had understood that, until
last June, juniors and seniors in colleges
as well as graduate students could be.

Mr. MORSE. Most of the experienced
teachers were practicing teachers prior
to the time they entered the corps. The
young education graduates may have had
experience as a so-called teacher aide.
Most as undergraduates who were going
'to school principally in the education de
partments of nearby universities did
practice teaching. Do not forget that we
have had a practice teacher training
program in connection with depart
ments of education in the centers of our
universities for many years. ~

Mr. COTTON. In that very tiny bit of
testimony before our subcommittee, it
was indicated that with the exception I
believe, of supervisors, all of the members
of the Teachers Corps were either doing
their 2 years in their junior and senior
years in college, working toward their
baccalaureate degree, or they were study
ing for a master's degree or a graduate
degree, and at the same time teaching in
the Teachers Corps. Is that true?

Mr. MORSE. That will be true of al
most all of them in the new programs
authorized in Public Law 90-35.

Mr. COTTON. Were not they called
supervisors?

Mr. MORSE. No, they were not called
supervisors; they were really experienced
teachers working with the trainees.

Mr. COTTON. Is it not true that these
students, either in their last 2 years
in college or working toward a graduate
degree, are getting their tuition paid
and $75 a week and teaching at the same
time?

Mr. MORSE. That is correct. Since the
signing of Public Law 90-35.

Mr. COTTON. After they stay there
2 years and have had their tUition
paid and have performed at least a part
of the time in teaching, they are per
fectly free. to leave teachinG- and go to
blacksmithing if they want to: they are
no longer obliged to stay in the slum
schools to give the benefit of their
training?

Mr. MORSE. They are not in any kind
of involuntary servitude.
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Mr. COTTON. That is a clever answer,
but I want the fact.

Mr. MORSE. Let us face up to the
selectivity of these individuals. Let us
face up to the record they make so they
are selected to do the work. We are deal
ing with dedicated young people. The
Senator from Vermont [Mr. PROUTY] is
present on the fioor, and he can go into
the details, but he feels that some for
giveness program ought to be extended in
connection with this training program,
too. I will have to tell the Senator that
we cannot guarantee that they are going
to stay on, but do not think for a moment
that they are not earning their money
and much more than the money spent
during their training period, just as
other teachers do. They go into the title I
schools and they are the ones who are
working closely with developing indi
vidual training of the poverty-stricken
students. They are going to spend the
time on duty, talking with the illiterate
stUdent, helping to bring him up to the
grade required for his age. The fact that
a corpsman mayor may not have a
teacher's certificate does not mean that,
under capable supervision, he is inca
pable of teaching. We are not wasting
any money.

Mr. COTTON. The Senator from New
Hampshire is not even intimating that
these people are not dedicated, and, even
though some of them are juniors and
seniors, training as teachers, that they
are not capable of rendering valuable
service-indeed, far from that. What the
Senator from New Hampshire is trying
to find out, from an abysmal ignorance,
and what he learned on the Appropria
tions Committee from those who know,
1S how much teaching service we get in
the slums and the other poor areas of
this country for the governmental dol
lar that we put in.

Mr. MORSE. A great deal.
Mr. COTTON. If the Senator from

New Hampshire may complete the state
ment so he Gan get the answer, it seems
to me, one, that the Senator from New
Hampshire, representing a rural area, is
familiar with some of the poorer areas
referred to by the Senator from Pennsyl
vania. Some of these areas cannot get
any of the services from the Teachers
Corps because there is not a college or
university near enough to them so that
students could do their work in an ad
jacent college or university.

So, unless they are in the neighbor
hood or within reasonable striking dis
tance from a college or university, then
those people are completely deprived of
the services.

In the case of those whose service is
rendered to the slums and to the poorer
places, the Government money spent, $75
a week in salaries, and funds to pay the
tuition, for part-time teaching, and
then, at the end of 2 years. they may go
out completely. I am just trying to find
out if we are actually getting the most,
for these poorer places, in teaching, from
this kind of compensation and this kind
of arrangement.

Mr. CLARK. Mr. President, will the
senator from Oregon permit me to make
an observation at that point?

Mr. MORSE. Yes.
Mr. CLARK. I think the Senator's

question is highly intelligent, and I do
not think that I, at least, have a cate
gorical answer to it; but I should like.
because I think it is pertinent, to read
to the Senator from New Hampshire a
part of the testimony on that point given
before the Appropriations Subcommittee
by the Secretary of Health, Education,
and Welfare, Mr. Gardner. That testi
mony is found on pages 683 and 684 of
the hearings:

One of the most promising approaches to
helping the deprived schoolchild is the
Teacher Corps. The major obstacle to edu
cating deprived children is getting an ade
quate supply of talented concerned teachers
to work in poverty areas.

Through the Teacher Corps, these schools
can make use of teams of experienced teach
ers and teaching interns who are well pre
pared and eager to teach in these deprived
areas.

Today, over 1,200 Teacher Corps members
are working in local schools. School districts
requested more than twice this number. The
corps has been successful in attracting young
people into teaching and in bringing former
teachers out of retirement. The program has
also proved attractive to Peace Corps mem
bers returning from their tours of duty. The
Teacher Corps has attracted talented people
Who might not otherwise have joined the
teaching profession.

And then this:
The key to the effectiveness of the Teacher

Corps is that It embodies one of our coun
try's most important values: the desire to
help other people. The Teacher Corps pro
vides a method for translating such personal
idealism into concrete action.

Then, skipping a portion of the testi
mony, Secretary Gardner continued:

As for the charge that the objectives of
the Teacher Corps can be met through other
programs, I would llke to point out that the
Corps Is the only teacher training program
In existence today that is specially tailored
to meet the needs of the underpriVileged. It
does this by making it possible for local
school districts to draw upon a national pool
of teachers and teaching interns. It would
be very dlIDcult for most economically dis
advantaged areaR to attract the kind of
teachers who have joined the Teacher Corps.
The Corps offers the flexiblllty and effec
tiveness of national recruitment without
impairing the local autonomy.

And finally:
. The large number of membership applica

tions, the significant interest shown by school
districts across the country, and the magni
tude of the problem of teaching the disad
vantaged lead us to propose an expansion of
the Teacher Corps, both in 1967 and 1968. I
am convinced that this program is worthy
of increased support from Congress.

I thank the Senator from New Hamp
shire for his unfailing patience.

Mr. COTTON. I thank the Senator
from Pennsylvania and the Senator from
Oregon.

I shall not take any further time, other
than to say this: I was seeking informa
tion only. I was not suggesting what the
Senator from Oregon referred to, I
thought rather glibly. as involuntary
servitude. I myself introduced and saw
through Congress and signed by the
President a bill providing that money
would be loaned to medical stUdents, and
that they would be forgiven the loan for
such period of time as they would prac
tice medicine in communities that badly
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needed the services of a doctor. That bill
was patterned on a teacher law with
which the Senator from Oregon is
thoroughly familiar-it helped teachers
obtain their education. and they were
forgiven some loans if they spent a little
time afterwards.

I was trying to find out if there is any
element of that sort in this Teachers
Corps; and the answer. I gather. is "No."

Mr. MORSE. The answer is "No" for
the trainees. when the Senator puts it
that way. But these interns, trainees. are
earning every dollar that they are paid
for their hours of teaching. Do not forget,
many schools are located near educa
tional institutions. The University of
Washington at Seattle, Portland State
University, the University of California
at Berkeley, New York University. Ohio
State University, all could have programs
if money was available and if the in
stitution applied. Existing programs are
connected with those universities as far
as all work on trainee advanced degrees
are concerned.

Teachers are under the sponsorship of
a teacher of experience who works in the
school, under the general supervision of
the superintendent of the school. The
quality of their work is reviewed. They
are working. It is not a question of a loan
where forgiveness is extended if they
come back and work for 2 years. The
school districts are hiring people to per
form a service for which the corpsmen
receive pay, through providing a team
service much more valuable than the
collective pay they receive.

Mr. NELSON. Mr. President, will the
Senator yield?

Mr. MORSE. I yield.
Mr. NELSON. I should like to reSpOnd.

in part, to the very good question of the
Senator from New Hampshire.

When this bill was drafted by Senator
KENNEDY and myself, we had in mind
several fundamental objectives. One was
to recruit college graduates who had no
intention of going into teaching. They
had obtained their degrees, but they did
not have their teacher's credentials. We
thought that this would be a challenge
that would attract college graduates with
bachelor's degrees into the teaching pro
fession, if they could have the challenge
of teaching in a deprived area. Second.
we had examined the challenge of helping
students in the deprived areas, who
needed assistance. Moreover. we had the
feeling-which I think was correct-that
if you take a youngster, and his first
experience in life is teaching in a de
prived area, and he is motivated enough
to go there to teach, then a good percent
age will stay in that area. where they are
needed very badly.

In respOnse to the question as to
whether there is any obligation for them
to stay, there is no obligation to stay,
but there is a very strong factor in favor
of their staying, because the reason they
came was to accept the challenge of
teaching in a deprived area.

In conjunction with that program, we
worked it out with the colleges and uni
versities that if the Corps members took
a certain number of credits. established
or set by the university. at the end of 2
years they would receive their master's
degrees in education.

So, therefore, they came in because
they wanted the challenge. and they
spent 2 years to get a master's degree in
education, which places them at a good
education level for teaching in our pri
mary and secondary schools.

Therefore the expectation is that if
they spend the time to get the master's
degree in education, a substantial per
centage will stay in the profession in
which they hold their degrees.

As to the teaching question, I have
read letters of the school principals in
volved. I know every Senator is busy;
I know how busy the Senator from New
Hampshire is. The reason I read the
letters from the principals was because,
as one of the authors of the bill, I was
especially interested. I read some 75 to 85
letters written by the principals of that
many schools where they had Teachers
Corps teams. They were universally en
thusiastic about the results achieved. I
recite for the Senator just one, to show
the way it worked in one of the Wis
consin schools-and I am sure the plan is
similar elsewhere.

The team of three Teachers Corps
teachers were assigned, in this particular
school, 11 students each. Those 11 stu
dents were fiunking three courses or
more. The principal of the school told
me that, furthermore, a substantial per
centage of those who were flUnking
three or more courses were very serious
disciplinary problems.

Previously when they were sent to him
every week or every other week with dis
ciplinary problems, he would discipline
them and nothing was accomplished.
However. now the students were selected
and sent to the Teachers Corps teacher.
and on a one-for-one-basis, the Teach
ers Corps teacher worked with the
students on the courses which they were
flunking.

I do not have the exact figure at hand,
but I will furnish it to the Senator later.
With respect to these 33 kids. the teach
ing effort was so successful in a matter
of months that 75 percent of them were
flunking one course or no courses at all.

The principal said that the discipli
nary problems of these children just dis
appeared and that for the first time they
had somebody who was interested in
them. The Teachers Corps teachers went
to the homes of the parents of the chil
dren with whom they were working and
became friends and acquaintances of the
parents.

For the first time. the parents saw
somebody from the school system that
had a teaching relationship with the
children they loved. And for the first time
these parents came to PTA meetings.
And they did not seek out the principal.
They sought out the Teachers Corps
teacher who had been helping their son
or daughter.

The principal said:
It is the finest thing that has ever hap

pened to me.

The program is producing marvelous
results. Unfortunately. they do not have
enough teachers to take the individual
students and deal with their problems
on a one-by-one basis. which is neces
sary with students who are flunking two
or three courses.

I think the results have been very
good. I think the fact that they have
been motivated to come to the private
schools and seek master's degrees gives
us some assurance that a substantial per
centage of them will continue in the
teaching profession where we need
them so badly.

Mr. MORSE. Mr. President. I yield to
the Senator from Vermont.

Mr. PROUTY. Mr. President. while I
continue to support the amendment of
fered by the distinguished senior Senator
from Oregon, I do feel that the distin
guished senior Senator from New Hamp
shire has raised a very important and
valid question in many respects.

I pOint out first that the average cost
per trainee. including tuition and teach
ing salary, is $7.500 a year. The average
cost for the supervisors is. I believe, in
the vicinity of $10,200 a year. Under the
National Defense Education Act, 100
percent loan forgiveness is granted for
those college students who agree to teach
in the poverty areas for a period of seven
years.

There is some incentive for them to
come into these areas. and they will prob
ably stay there.

Under the Teachers Corps, however,
there is no such incentive.

Also we must remember that the
youngsters for the most part-the jun
iors, seniors, and graduates-have had
no experience in teaching. Yet. we are
told that if we are going to have teachers
in the low income areas they must be
the most competent we ('.an obtain;

We are bringing these young people in
without any experience whatsoever. They
may acquire some ability and may learn.
But unless they are persuaded to stay in
these areas. they will not accomplish a
great deal. We are spending an inordi
nate amount of money to train them.

As I said before, I intend to support
the amendment. I did so in the commit
tee and in the subcommittee. However. I
do have serious reservations as to the
manner in which the program is being
conducted at the present time. I think
it should be strengthened and improved.

For that reason, I will support the
amendment.

Mr. PASTORE. Mr. President. will the
Senator yield?

Mr. MORSE. I yield.
Mr. PASTORE. Mr. President, there

are three programs that we have-and I
use the word advisedly~mbated with
over the past few years. It strikes me that
for some reason we have not been able
to convey the right concept and the right
purpose of these programs even to the
Members of Congress.

No. 1 is the foreign aid program.
No. 2 is the rent supplement program.
NO.3 is the Teachers Corps.
It has been my misfortune to be the

manager of all three.
When the matter of the Teachers Corps

came before the committee, I made It
my business to communicate with the
people at the grass roots to· find out
precisely what the answer was to the
question that has been raised by the dis
tinguished Senator from Vermont. "Why
couldn't we get experienced teachers to
do tWs job? Why was it necessary to
have special training?"
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All of that was explained, and it was

explained very explicitly. As a matter of
fact, this has been one of the most suc
cessful programs we have ever had-so
much so that all of the superintendents
of schools in my State, and an abundance
of superintendents of schools throughout
the entire Nation, have written in ap
plauding, complimenting, and congratu
lating Congress for having sent these
young men and women to these localities.

Apparently there is a group. a very
small group, of our children that for
some reason has not assimilated to edu
cation. For some reason, they are disin
terested.

It is because of the special training
that these teachers have had that they
have developed the talent and the train
ing to interest these people in securing
an education. They are doing a marvel
ous job.

No program has been more highly en
dorsed by the educators in this country
than has the Teachers Corps.

I merely bring this out at this point be
cause I have been in the thick of it. I
knew of the problems we had on the floor
of the Senate. I knew of the misunder
standing on the part of some-as sincere
as it might be-and I knew that a lot of
people said: "Why do we have to do this?
Why don't the communities do it?"

As a matter of fact, many communities
in the United States of America cannot
afford to do it.

A certain fragment of our young peo
ple for some reason have become drop
outs and will continue to become drop
outs unless we get someone who has the
innate talent and training to interest
these people in education. ,.

I have gone so far as to ask some peo
ple: "What do they do? Do they come
into the classroom and take care of a
whole classroom of young people?"

The answer is: "No. The regular teach
er recognizes within a short time certain
pupils who do not assimilate education
well."

It is not that they segregate them.
They keep them apart and the children
are given this special training.

They tell me that the children are later
allowed to go back to the regular classes.
They become acclimated to the whole
system of education, and it works out
very well. There are exceptions here and
there. We cannot create a program that
is perfect.

Some people learn quicker than others.
Some will never assimilate to education.
However, the fact remains, in answer to
the question raised by the Senator from
Vermont, that we have gone into this
matter in quite some detail.

This sometimes has frustrated me, be
cause I believe in this program so much
that sometimes I become impatient with
those who do not quite understand it.
And I think that this is a fault on my
part. It is only a case of a sincere
misunderstanding.

The same thing is true with respect to
rent supplements. We can come on the
floor and talk until we are blue in the
face, and we cannot convince more than
perhaps a small percent of Congress that
this is not a giveaway program. It is not
a giveaway program.

The same thing is true with respect to
foreign aid.

I have urged some Senators time and
time again that the foreign aid program
is a necessary program. The senior Sena
tor from Oregon is one man whom I can
not convince with respect to the foreign
aid. However, the fact remains that I
have had the hard task of being the man
ager of the foreign aid program. the
Teacher Corps program, and the rent
supplement program.

I can tell the Senate that they have
been the hardest nuts to crack in the
Senate.

Mr.. MORSE. Mr. President, I thank
the Senator from Rhode Island. He does
not· know how many pages will go into
the RECORD without being read by me be
cause in his very condensed statement
he has made my argument.

Mr. President, I yield to the distin
guished Senator from Vermont.

Mr. PROUTY. Mr. President, I could
also put many pages into the RECORD
from the hearings. However, I will not
do so because I feel that the program has
great potential and it has already done
a lot of good.

That is the reason why I will support
the amendment. However, we should not
assume that it is perfect. because it is
not. It is a long way from that.

Mr. MAGNUSON. Mr. President. will
the senator yield?

Mr. MORSE. I yield.
Mr. MAGNUSON. I am not as familiar

as I should be witt. this program, but we
have wrestled with it in the Appropri
ations Committee two or three times.
One of the things that some people were
worried about--not necessarily a criti
cism-was the number of so-called su
pervisors. Does the Senator from Oregon
know what percentage of the number
would be supervisors? The clerk thinks
it would be about 20 percent.

Mr. MORSE. I do not believe it is that
high. We must remember that the su
pervisors are also experienced teachers.

Mr. MAGNUSON. That was going to
be my second question

Mr. MORSE. A number of the student
aides are assigned to an experienced
teacher who carries the title of team
leader.

Mr. MAGNUSON. That is the second
question I was going to ask. A supervi
sor is not literally only a supervisor. A
supervisor is a teacher who supervises
perhaps eight or 10 of the student aides
and sort of steers the program.

Mr. MORSE. As the Senator from
Rhode Island has pointed out, the super
visors in a school system know where the
misfit little boys and girls are. The su
pervisors assign the little misfit boys and
girls to one of the trainees for individual
work. It does not mean that the children
are taken out of the classroom. Part of
the time they are out of the classroom.

I listened to a discussion of this pro
gram in the Philadelphia area, where
they are trying to deal with the behav
ior problem youngsters. As a result of
this program, what did they find in many
instances? The children came to the
school in the morning without a morsel
of food, and of course they misbehaVed.
It was found that by this individual work

and by bringing in some bran flakes or
corn flakes and some milk. to give the
children something to eat, in the matter
of a few days their behavior pattern was
completelY revolutionized.

More is done than simply teaching the
children reading, arithmetic, and spell
ing. They deal with the behavior prob
lems of the children. The corpsmen go
to the homes of the children. They work
with the parents and with the ministers.
They work with the leaders in the com
munities, to see what they can do about
the families that have the children with
behavior problems.

Mr. MAGNUSON. I wanted to clear
up that one point. The supervisors also
are teachers?

Mr. MORSE. They are experienced
teachers.

Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President, will the
Senator yield?

Mr. MORSE. I yield.
Mr. JAVITS. Mr. President, I am al

most in the same position as the Senator
from Rhode Island. I am the ranking
minority member of the Appropriations
SUbcommittee and the ranking minority
member of the Education Subcommittee.
as well as of the Committee on Labor
and Public Welfare.

I am absolutely convinced of the valid
ity and soundness of this program. I
believe it is an indispensable tool in deal
ing with the conditions which have
brought on riots and violence and which
are continuing them to this moment. It
is an answer to the idealistic striving of
American youth, shown in the Peace
Corps and in VISTA. My own daughter
is in VISTA, and I know a little about
that program.

I should like to present another mat
ter to the Senate. Let the Senate know
how serious this matter is. This is the
only place where what we are doing can
be done. There was no appropriation in
the House, because there had been no
authorization bill.

Mr. MORSE. The Senator is correct.
Mr. JAVITS. What we do here is it.

subject to bargaining in conference. So
if we do not increase the amount here.
that is the end of it.

The second point: I have been ani
mated by the fact that I did not want
to see the Teachers Corps become the
Senate's rat control bill. I believe the
other body has suffered very seriously
and its conscience must be its guide-in
having turned down that bill when it
did. I do not wish to see the Senate in
a similar position.

In the subcommittee, with the tre
mendous support of the Senator from
Rhode Island [Mr. PASTORE] in the prin
cipal committee, we did our utmost for
this program. I want the Senate to know
that.

You cannot flght without troops. and
the sentiment very sincerely held by the
distinguished members of our subcom
mittee and committee did not give us the
votes. We did extraordinarily well to have
brought the measure to the floor. I paid
my tribute to the heroism of senator
PASTORE. and I do it again. with the price
tag that is on the bill now-$18,100,OOO.

The point I should like to leave with
the Senate is this: Only the Senate can



21016 CONGRESSIONAL RECORD -. SENATE
do this. We presented the matter before
the subcommittee. Senator HILL was very
sympathetic to us. We knew, by that in
stinct which makes us what we are,
that the votes were not there. Yet, there
is the gravest danger that this will be
the Senate's rat control bill. So I can do
nothing, in the deepest conscience-al
though lowe the greatest loyalty to the
chairman and the committee, and I am a
part of its machinery-but support the
amendment. However, the Senate should
know that this is the only chance; and
at a time such as this, I hope that Sena
tors will understand the meaning of this
affirmatively as well as the danger of It
negatively.

I hope the amendment is adopted.
Mr. MORSE. I appreciate the com

ments of the Senator from New York.
I am not going to yield for awhile. The

Senator from Alabama has been very pa
tient with me. He knows, however, that
I am under an obligation and gladly ful
filled the obligati.on of yielding to other
Senators for a couple of hours. They have
made my case.

I say to the Senator from Alabama
that I am going to insert in the RECORD
the major speech that I had prepared for
this bill. Much of it, may I say to the
Senator from Alabama, highly commends
him for the great job he has done as
chairman of the committee, in increasing
the amounts for one educational program
after another above the recommenda
tions of the Bureau of the BUdget. In
this speech, I pay to him and to his com
mittee, in my interest as the chairman
of the Subcommittee on Education, my
very deep thanks. I told the Senator
earlier that I consider that I have a trust
and a duty, as the chairman of the sub
stantive legislative committee, to point
out my belief that the amount for the
Teachers Corps should be increased.

Mr. President, I ask unanimous con
sent that my full speech be printed in
the RECORD at the conclusion of my re
marks including excerpts from the "notes
and working papers" mentioned therein.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it is so ordered.

(See exhibit 2.)
Mr. MORSE. I am disappointed that

we do not have in this bill the full au
thorized amount of $33 million for the
Teachers Corps. As I said earlier, two of
the exhibits that I brought to the floor of
the Senate this afternoon are part of the
legislative record, the record of the legis
lative committee, which, as the Senator
from Pennsylvania [Mr. CLARK] pointed
out, was based on hearings.

We took the evidence on the policy.
We took the evidence on the proof of
need of the program. We took the evi
dence on how well it has been working.
Listen to the testimony of these educa
tors as to what these dedicated young
people are doing as they join in this
crusade. Somebody used the word
"crusade"-the Senator from Oregon
never hesitates to lead a crusade, when
it is a crusade that is in the public
interest. The Senator from Rhode Island
made that statement. I am proud to be
a part of this crusade. I am not its leader,
but I am certainly its follower.

This matter calls for a rededication

legislatively to human values, with re
spect to the ghettos of America, in an
hour of great crisis.

In addition, I ask unanimous consent
that some of the testimony of J. Graham
Sullivan, Deputy Commissioner of the
Office of Education and Welfare, be
printed in the RECORD, together with cer
tain other excerpts from the legislative
record before my committee on this bill.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it is so ordered.

(See exhibit 3,)
Mr. MORSE. I refer to the report that

I filed with the Senate and to which I
referred when I was managing the
Teacher Corps bill, for it deals with the
matter of the shortages of teachers. I
ask unanimous consent that the material
on page 4 of that repOrt, and such other
material that deals with the subject of
the shortages of teachers, be printed in
the RECORD.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection, it is so ordered.

(See exhibit 4.)
Mr. MORSE. Mr. President, in the first

paragraph of the subheading "Teachers
Corps," of Senate Report No. 363, there
will be found:

Last fall the nation was faced With an
unprecedented shortage of almost 170.000
qualified teachers. The shortage was most
acute in urban slums and depressed rural
areas.

There is no question about the great
need for teachers and teachers in the
slum ghetto areas. Here is a program
that seeks to train them, and while they
are being trained, as the testimony
shows, they earn OVEr and over again
every dollar that is paid them.

Therefore, I now send to the desk, and
then I shall be finished, an amendment
in behalf of myself, Mr. HARRIS, Mr.
CLARK, Mr. HART, Mr. NELSON, Mr. RAN
DOLPH. Mr. YARBOROUGH, Mr. CHURCH,
Mr. WILLIAMS of New Jersey, Mr. KEN
NEDY of Massachusetts, Mr. KENNEDY of
New York, Mr. MONDALE, Mr. HARTKE,
and Mr. GRUENING.

Mr. President, the amendment would
seek to raise the amount from $18.1 mil
lion to $33 million. That is the amount
that the administration seeks. I have
been advised by the Department today
that I speak the desire of the adminis
tration; that it strongly urges the $33
million because of the great ghetto crisis
we have at the present time for teachers
in order to do something to serve the
educational needs of the underprivileged
in the slum areas, city and rural, of the
country.

Mr. President, I ask that the amend
ment be stated, and then I would like
to have the privilege of asking for a
rollcall vote; then I shall yield to the
Senator from Minnesota [Mr. MONDALE]
who has told me he will have a brief
statement.

The PRESIDING OFFICER (Mr. BYRD

of Virginia in the chair). The amend
ment will be stated.

The assistant legislative clerk read
as follows:

The Senator from Oregon (Mr. MORSE]
proposes an amendment for himself and
others as follows:

On page 15, lines 11 and 12, delete "$18,-

000,000", ancl. inSert in lieU thereof the fol
lowing: "$33.000.000;"

Mr. MORSE. Mr. President, I ask for
the yeas and nays.·

The yeas and nays were ordered.
Mr. MORSE. Mr. President, I ask

unanimous consent that my amendment
containing the names of the distin
guished Senators who are joining me in
this effort be printed at the conclusion of
my remarks.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection it is so ordered.

(See exhibit 5,)
Mr. MORSE. Mr. President,I now

yield to the Senator from Minnesota.
Mr. MONDALE. Mr. President, I

thank the distinguished Senator from
Oregon. Once again I am proud to join
with him as he addresses the Senate in
connection with recommendations for
our educational system.

I am prOUd to speak in behalf of
adequate funding for the Teacher Corps
program, initially proposed by the Sen
ator from Wisconsin IMr. NELSON].

I speak in support of the amendment
proposed by the distinliuished senator
from Oregon to restore the appropriation
for Teacher Corps programs to the level
of the authorization. I am proud to be
listed as a cosponsor of the amendment.

Two institutions of higher education in
Minnesota are ready today to begin pre
paring Teacher Corps trainees for an
expanded program in the Minneapolis
public schools. Minneapolis is one of
those cities recently cursed by civil riots.
That program, like every proposed ex
pansion of this effort to bring better edu
cational opportunity to the children of
the slums, is at stake this after.noon.

In April I called the attention of this
body to a report on the Minneapolis
Teacher Corps program in the Minne
apolis Tribune.! would like to quote very
briefly from that article:

"According to Mrs. Edna A. Anderson, Har
rison (school's) principal. the (15 classroom)
centers have revolutionized the school's cur
riculum of the year '.' ."

"It's a very effective program In my judg
ment," said Superintendent John B. Davis,
Jr.

"School officials in many cities are reported
to feel the same way •••"

Mr. President, this Teacher Corps pro
gram i" supported by educational orga
nizations throughout the Nation, inclUd
ing those which typically oppose Federal
programs. It is beyond my understand
ing that such a small appropriation to
build on the universal success of the first
year's experiments should be cut from
the appropriation. .

I have mentioned the Minneapolis
schools, which I knowwell. Butthis mat
ter goes far beyond Minneapolis or Min
nesota and far beyond the narrow con
cern of education alone.

Mr. President, I want to read a segment
of a letter I received late last week
from a young man who wants to work
with the Minneapolis program if it can
operate next fall:

The Teacher Corps doesn't stop at the
end of summer. It doesn't abandon the Negro
When it gets too cold to riot.

Our cities have just been through a trying
period which, like the anvil. they have had
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to bear. But with programs like the Teacher
Corps they can become the hammer.

Minneapolis needs an expanded Teacher
Corps this year. Now is the time to strike.

That is what Edward Fashingbauer
told me about the Teachers Corps.

Mr. President,- the Teachers Corps is
another part of the national urban pro..;
gram aimed at compensating for the
deprivation of the slums ll,nd providing
an equal chance for a new generation of
young people to becomereal participants
in the society. '

I do not believe the Senate, wants to
let those young people down. I urge
adoption of the Morse amendment.

Mr, MORSE. I thank the Senator very
much. I believe the, evidence which he
has' placed in the RECORD relating this
problem to the situation in Minneapolis
and the Minnesota schools is very per
suasive and it should be given great heed
by senators.

Mr. President, I ask unanimous con
sent to have printed in the RECORD testi
mony given before the Appropriations
Subcommittee on Educational' Funding,
a part of which not only deals with the
Teachers Corps but also other aspects of
the educational funding programs.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without
objection,it is so ordered.

(See exhibit 6'>
Mr. MORSE. Mr. President, I yield the

floor.
EXHIBrr 1

PREPARED STATEMENT 01' RICHARD GRAHAM,
DIRECTOR, TEACHERS CORPS, OFFICE OJ' EDU
CATION, U.S. DEPARTMENT 01' HEALTH, EDU

, CATION, AND WELFARE

Mr. Cha'irman and Members of the Sub
committee, I am honored to appear before
you to tell how the Teacher Corps has fared
In Its first year.

The" Teacher Corps was created to help
poor chlldren In the core of the large cities,
In .small towns whose Industrial base has
been shot out from uIider them or never
existed, on Indian reservations where pride
and prejudice have kept youngsters hungry
and apart and Ignorant, In Immigrant and
migrant villages where the shifting of supply
and demand dictates the course of life.

But how do you teach a sullen, hungry
child who doesn't' care to learn? and how
do you begin to break through to him in
schools which many teaching Interns back
from Peace" Corps duty abroad have told me
are far worse than anything they saw In
foreign countries?

It's a tough job to break through the guard
of youngsters who have lived In slums all
thelr)lves, to get them not only to learn but
to want to learn. "The real thing," says one
of our veteran team leaders, "Is when a kid
comesup to you at the beginning of the year
and says: 'You're not going to teach me any
thing because I don',t want to learn', and
when, at the end of the year, he has learned."

To accomplish this takes special skills and
special training. Such special tralnlng
training for teachers In poverty nelghbor
hoods--Is a job few Individual schools or
universities can do alone, for none of us
knows a great deal about how this should be
done. But we-our universities and schools-
are learning.

The job of the Teacher Corps Is to help
make this learning posslble---and to help
universities and schools extend the skills we
are learning to new teachers so that the 8
million children of poverty In this country
can 100kf9rward to more than they have had
before. This year the Teacher COrps touched
a quarter ota milllon,children in..t.he schools

and communities of the inner cities and the
rural poor.

Often schools that most need specially
trained teachers can least alford to hire them,
let alone establish training programs of their
own. School superintendent after school su
perintendent from big and little systems
across the country have told us that only
Federal funds make the program financially
feasible for their poorer schools:

From Fannlndel Schools In Ladonia, Texas:
"My Echool's finances could not have made
possible the services of these teacllers except
for the Teacher Corps."

From a member of the school board of
Macy, Nebraska: "To get qualified people to
come to us just for the money Is pretty hard
for us to do because of the fact that we have
a limited amount of money and for us to go
out and try to recruit the teacher, the type
of people we need, it would cost us a lot of
money we could not afford."

From the Los Angeles area: "Dr. Siemer
from Jurupa stated the districts do not have
financial resources to do the Job. Mr. Dickey,
superintendent of Willowbrook, stated often
the districts with the greatest need are least
able to finance programs to take care of that
need,

Mr. Hodes, assistant superintendent at En
terprise, stated our district has been operat
Ing on a. deficIt bUdget for the last 5 years.
H the Federal Government would subsidize
farms, 011 depletion, and so on, why can't
human beings in urban areas be subsidized?

Dr. Seaton said we need the quality offered
by a National Teacher Corps intern program.
It Is dIfflcult to compete In the open market
for teachers, .."

In the past few weeks, we have received
our first tangible progress reports from the
field on how well we are doing that Job. I
would like to summarize for you what some
of these reports say about the Teacher Corps.

A recent NEA survey of superintendents
and principals working with Teacher Corps
teams found that 91 percent of all superin
tendents and 84 percent of the principals
want more. The average request is for three
times more Corpsmen than are now available.

A Southern Education Report teacher edu
cation survey In April showed that close to
97 percent of colleges and universities sur
veyed believe that teacher-education schools
have a special responsibllity to help Improve
the education of the disadvantaged. But only
16 percent have changed their methods of
training such teachers In the past five years,
and only 41 percent plan to do so In the fore
seeable future. About half of the 16 percent
that have made changes have Teacher Corps
programs.

The superintendent of Hattiesburg Public
Schools In Mississippi had this to say about
hIs Teacher Corps teams:

"The values of such a program are many
but I would like to mention some of the out
standing ones. Flrst--provldlng additional
teaching personnel to a regular faCUlty
which In turn gives more IndiVidual help to
children In disadvantaged areas. Second
providing a teaCher-training, on-the-job
program to better traIn young teacher In
terns to work with children who are in need
of more than just regUlar school help.
Third-the additional services to the schools
that the seventeen Corps members have
provided are too numerous to mention, but
these range from providing leadership In
establishing a new reading program to teach
Ing music, and art and working with parents
In a counseling sItuation where parents and
students are Involved In seeking better solu
tions to problems.

"Every principal In our twelve elementary
schools has requested a team for next school
session."

A Miami (FlorIda) principal told us:
"I only have One fear with regard to the

young Interns of the Teacher Corps, .. that
with their energy and talent and their special

training they will soon leave the classroom.
Some school system will try to make admin
Istrators out of them. And they are needed
so desperately In the classroom."

The Assistant Superintendent of Enter
prise City Schools In Compton, California
wrote us:

"I have worked with many educational
programs, and this Is the shining light. As
for the Corpsmen, their idealism has been
rekindled In us old cynics. They're so com
mitted they've recommitted some of us-
how do you like that?"

And the principal of a school In Memphis,
Teimessee told us:

"The Teacher Corps Is the best thIng that
ever happened to our school. Every day It
Is a delight to bEl wIth them. What's going
on here Inspires me to want to do more."

This kind of enthusiasm for the Teacher
Corps Is typical of the reports from the men
and women who know the Corps best--the
teachers and principais and superintendents
of the schools which are hosts to Teacher
Corps teams.

But the Corps Is now beginning to make
an Impact outside this inner circle. The Na
tional Advisory Council-Which recently vis
ited a sample of school districts where the
Corps Is operating-concluded that:

"The National Teacher Corps Is too badiy
needed and too promising to be eIther dis
continued or treated as a temporary stop
gap. Of all present Investments of public ef
fort, few are likely to yield so large a return."

Many, Including the National Advisory
Council, believe that the Corps' greatest Im
pact may be on the colleges themselves. "The
Teacher Corps", reads the report:

"Has proved itself a useful weapon In the
attack on the disadvantages under which too
many American children labor. The direct
elfect on the children with whom the COrps
members work would be justification enough
to continue that work, The COrps wlll quite
clearly have other effects as well. The most
significant of these may very well be Its In
fiuence on the capacity of the educational
systems of the universities to reach those
children who have been most grievously
neglected."

• •• •
What produces this enthusiasm from

superintendents, principals, teachers, and
teacher educators alike? We believe It Is the
simple, small, day-to-day things Corps In
terns and teachers try to do to tune In on
the homely problems bugging the chlldren
they work with.

In Chicago, three teacher-Interns are
tutoring In college subjects a group of former
"Lawndale Gang" members who are bright
eno.lgh to get in the Loop Junior College.

In El Paso, Texas on the Mexican border,
new materials created by Corps members are
being used with beginning readers In a pro
gram designed to eliminate the need for
remedIal reading later on.

A team working In Bell Junior High In New
Orleans helped lower the dropout rate by
getting parents Involved.

The work of COrps teams reaches far be
yond the classroom to establish new rapport
between school and community.

A "halfway house" has been opened in a
Honolulu store front to lure truants and
dropouts back Into classes.

In Phlladelphla, Interns Introduced evening
"arm chair" classes In the homes of semi
literate parents of some of their puplis.

In Pontiac, Michigan, Corps teams devel
oped home visits around a "cause", the need
for a Community Health Clinic. With help
from the community and a committee of
parents they found a bUilding to house a
health unit, obtained nurse and doctor serv
Ices, and brought in a mobile health unit.

None of these actiVities Is an end In Itself.
But to the stUdent-teacher they are the keys
to knowing and understanding the larger
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environment which shapes the lives and
habits of their pupils. And from this under
standing comes acceptance and what Frank
Riessman of N.Y.U. calls "contact," or con
necting with the style and interests of a
child. From this comes good teaching.

This is how Kathleen Rosentretter, an in
tern and former Peace Corps volunteer, ex
plains its value:

"When a boy falls asleep at his desk, I re
call the visit I made to an apartment house
without glass in the windows. At night, the
nine children sleep curled around the only
radiator. When the boy awakes in class, I
merely inform him of What. he had missed
and will have to make up oIl his own time.

"If the noise level rises during a class activ
ity, I no longer become alarmed, because I
know that noise is synonymous with city
ghetto ilfe and is more frequently an indi
cation that learning is taking place.

"But when I catch a student's blank stare,
I know that the same ghetto clamor has
now created a ditficult result. The student is
practicing a technique of escape he has per
fected after Ilving in a three room apartment
with ten people who shout, argue and cry a
great· deal. I attempt to change the tempo
of class activity to draw him back to the real
i ty of the classroom."

This kind of sensitivity we desperately
need in the teacher of the ghetto.

Why is such extensive and speciallzed prep
aration necessary for this job? One answer
is that too many teachers on their first as
signment are dropped into a classroom of
students whose life is utterly strange to
them; pupils whose existence is inconceiv
able to the recent college graduate; whose
behavior is conditioned by reward patterns
incomprehensible to the campus coed; whose
learning patterns are far removed from the
book-centered university. The new teacher in
such a situation undergoes a kind of cultural
shock.

So far, despite program uncertainties, the
dropout rate among Teacher Corps interns is
about half that of the national average. Be
cause with the Teacher Corps the job shock
comes before. and not after, graduation, far
more of the Teacher Corps graduates are
Ilkely to stay with teaching than is gen
erally the case--particularly among ghetto
teachers.

Working as part of a team, the young in
tern's morale is more easily Ilfted. There is
always someone to turn to when the going
gets rough. There is a group commitment
which keeps performance high. One teacher
intern told us recently: "I wish I was at least
three people so that I could do three times
what I am doing."

This is the kind of person Who is making
the Teacher Corps work. The Teacher Corps'
unique contribution is that it is able to at
tract bright, dedicated, imaginative, warm
young people to one of the toughest jobs in
the teaching profession.

The reasons are many, but one is pervasive.
The Teacher Corps represents a national
commitment to Improve education where it
is falling to do Its job. The Teacher Corps
means a chance to .work and stUdy with
others who really care and who are willing
to forego private advantage for the satisfac
tion of service.

"Its main value," in the words of the Ad
visory Council report, "Is that it Is an instru
ment for harnessing the idealism of an un
usual group of young people whO, but for
the Corps, would never have been drawn to
the teaching profession. In apparent contrast
to the majority of certified teachers, these
young people prefer to work With the special
challenge of disadvantaged schools. Through
the Teacher Corps, they can put their dedi
cation and their abilities to work in the
service of the Nation, the school and the
needy child. The Corps constitutes a way of
recruiting these people and deploying them
across the country to schools which badly
need them but which In the past have

lacked the time, the means, and perhaps the
imagination to seek and attract them."

This opportunity attracts college gradu
ates who had not preViously considered
teaching. It is helping to raise the sights
and stature of dedicated teachers who are
already working with the disadvantaged. As
signment to a slum school has traditionally
stigmatized a teacher as either a neophyte
or a reject.

The Teacher Corps is helping to show that
teaching the disadvantaged child can at
tract our best, most respected and most ded
icated young men and women.

It is helping to show these young people
that nothing is more rewarding than taking
part in this national effort to ellminate pov
erty of the mind In the schools of the poor.

Most of all, it is helping to show poverty
youngsters that they, too, can learn. One
little boy from a Miami inner city· school
where Corpsmen work put it this way: "I
Ilke to be here. I'm smart In here."

EXHmIT 2
HEW ApPROPRIATIONS, 1968

It I may have the attention of the distin
guished senior Senator from Alabama, the
Chairman of the Labor-HEW appropriations
subcommittee, I shOUld like to review With
him for a few minutes certain items in the
pending appropriations measure.

First, I wish to commend the Senator
and his associates for having brought to the
floor of the Senate a bl1l which is $108,900,
000 over sums appropriated to the Ofllce of
Education over the House allowance. I urge
the Senator and his colleague to be adamant
in conference committee to retain these in
creases.

I partiCUlarly further wish to commend
the committee for having exceeded the Presi
dent's bUdget by $15.5 million for elementary
and secondary educational actiVities, and by
$33.8 million for Federally impacted areas
funding, and by $5 mllllon for educational
improvement for our handicapped. I am
partlcuiarly grateful to the chairman of
the subcommittee and his colleagues for hav
ing added $41 m1l1ion for Title III NDEA
matching grs':lts and for having added, in
addition, $5 million to fund the supervisory
services of Title III of NDEA.

I think it is very important to stress in
the light of the comments recently made by
the President of the Senate and the Secre
tary of AgriCUlture, that the senate at least
can point to some areas where the PreSi
dent's bUdget for education has been ex
ceeded.

Having said this, in all candor, however,
I think we must go to the basic root prob
lem which faces every concerned citizen in
the field of educational financing, and that
is that the President, upon the advice of
the Bureau of the Budget, has not seen fit
to request funds which have been authorized
by the Congress and by overwhelming ma
jorities In the Senate. As the distinguished
fioor leader of the bl1l knows, I had occa
sion to present to the subcommittee fairly
detalled testimony concerning the .degree
to which program after program was under
financed in the budget estimates. The· Ad
ministration's requests In the field of edu
cational financing were half a loaf at best
and a heel of the loaf in many programs.

Let me recapitUlate.
Title I of the Elementary and Secondary

Education Act carries an authorization, of
about $2.4 bl1lion. The Administration re
quest was in the neighborhood for this title
alone of $1.2 bll1ion, roughly, 50 percent,
halt a loaf.

This despite the fact that on a perchlld
basis we have decreased the funding of pro
grams for chlldren who need It most in our
worst SIUIns from $210 per child to about
$150 per child. It is for this reason, that I
earnestly hope that the additional $137,590,-

000 provided for. Title IESEA progrronscan
be held in cpnference. As I said in my testi~

mony:". : ""
"One of the principles which has been em

phasized by the Ofllce of Education since "the
program was 1n1tiatedis tbatthere should
be a substantial investment of resources for
each child participating in the program. This
point has been emphasized as a means ,of
avoiding watered-down and ineffective pro
grams. The history of recent years is replete
With examples 'of education programs which
have blossomed successfully on an experi
mental basis of adequate resources and then
faded quickiy when the services and re
sources were spread too thin over the chUdren
to be served. It is now well established that
educationally. deprived chlldren require re
sources far in excess of those needed for the
average middie-class child. In recognition of
this principle, the author1z1ng legislation was
based on a principle of increasing the finan
cial resources available to educationally de
prived chlldren. This principle is being dis
carded at the very time that we are beginning
to see positive signs of success in our treat
ment of the needs of educationally deprived
children." ' .
~ I regret that the committee felt unable
under our. student assistance program.s of
Title n of the National Defense Education
Act, to provide IDore than $190 mll1ion even
thOUgh $225 million is authorized for this
purpose. I am pleased, however, ,that voca
tional work-study programs are to be funded
by $10 mil11on. "

I also commend the committee on funding
specifically the dissemination of "information
provided in Title VII of· ESEA, even though
I would have wished that more than $500
thousand could have been allotted for this
purpose.

Many of us w111 regret that, the financing
of the Teacher Corps was not at a higher fig
ure than the ,18.1 ml1lion carried in the bill.
Senators w111 recall that the authorizing
language for this splendid program was en
acted under extreme time pressures to assure
that the program could be maintained and
expanded. A recent ,television programdra
matlcally described the actiVities of the
Teacher Corps in one of our great cities. The
dedication of the young people participating
in that program was apparent to all .who
watched. it. It is a great pity that because
we Will not be appropriating to the limit of
the authorization; unless my amendment Is
adopted many eqUiValently dedicated young
men and women.will be foreclosed from pro-
viding services to slum chlldren., ., .' .•

I think it significant in the context of the
program I have alluded to that. its value was
such that the older men on the block where
the school was established quletiy gathered
to protect it when it 'was threatened by
would-be arsonists. I plead With the Senate
to amend the section of this bill to return to
$33 million budget request.

I turn now ,to one of the other disappOint·
ing aspects of the appropriations b111 .before
US. This is in the realm of higher., educa
tional actiVities and I would direct the at
tention of the Senate to .page 13 of Report
469. Last year we appropriated $1,176,602,308
for higher educational activities. The Admln
istratlon budget was some $3.4 ml1lion le88
for these activities. TheHouse allowance, was
a further reductl.on to. the, figure. which Is
contained in the Senate b1llof $1,158,194,000.
Yet the committee report itself on page 13
states that although the allowance for col
lege facilities construction grants represents
a decrease below the 1967 appropriations; the
Department estimates that actual construc
tion Will begin on 1,76,5 projects during 1968
as compared to· the 1;155 projects that ,were
under construction at the end of 1967. More
projects are being constructed yet less Fed
eral money is being made avallable to help
to meet tbecost through the up to one~thlrd

matching grants and the Federal loan funds.
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Total Federal allocatlon 138.334

Total Federal allocation toState 147.954

CALIFORNIA

The authorized State agency in Calltorn1a
is the Coordinating Councll for Higher Ed
ucation. It has approved the following com
munity service projects to be conducted by
institutions of higher education.

Institution and Federal allocation
california State College, Los

Angeles: Demonstration (pilot)
program for college and com-
munity involvement $63.997

Chico State College, Chico: Project
to assist local governmental units
in the implementation of new
programs for education. eco-
nomics. agriculture______________ 55.235

College of San Mateo: An educa-
tional television attack on com-
~Unity problems_______________ 7.500

Humboldt State College, Arcata:
A center for land use planning
and community service 58.463

Los Angeles City Junior College Dis
trict: Development of human re
sources through the communitycollege 3,450

sacramento State College: COntinu-
ing education for area commUnity
development speclalists_________ 18,750

san Diego JUnior College: Prob-
lems of senior cltlzens___________ 37,500

ARKANSAS

The authorized State agency In Arkansas
is the University of Arkansas. It has ap
prOVed the following community service
projects to be conducted by institutions of
higher education.

Institution and Federal allocation
University of Arkansas. Fayettevllle:

Conference on Fort Smith region
urban development.__________ $9.000

Conference on Little Rock region
urban development___________ 32.750

Westark Junior College. Fort 8m1th:
Program for development of a

mass transportation system___ 9.693
University of Arkansas. Little Rock_ 75.000

Institution and Federal allocation-Con.
Arizona Western College: Manage-

ment training for farm foremen__ $2.738
Northern Arizona University:

Workshop for home economicsteachers 6.333
Management instruction for gov

ernment leaders______________ 1.065
Economic instruction for govern-

ment leaders__________________ 1.065
Management instruction for non-

profit organization leaders - 1,065
Testing rehab1l1tatlon for Indians 8.475
Seminar on child neurological

Impairments 2.797
Language films for Indians______ 2.925

University of Arizona:
Workshops for lay leaders on com-

munity servlce________________ 8,565
Establishment of a nurse-tralningprogram 21.631

Workshop for local leaders in
formulating community goals__ 4,110

In-service training for elected
municipal officials_____________ 1.248

Publlc service seminars on the
value of community planning__ 1,357

ContinUing education for para
professionals in pUblic healthservices 14.079

HIGHER EDUCATION ACT OF 1965-TrrLE I.
FIsCAL YEAR 1966

Total program allocations 179.466
Administration of State plan______ 5, 264

Total Federal allocation to
State ----- 184,730

ALASKA
Institution and Federal allocation

University of Alaska: "Statewide
radio series on solutions available
to community problems·· $49.170

Administration of State plan______ 11,812

Total Federal allocation to
State -------- 60.982

ARIZONA

The authorized State agency in Arizona
is the Arizona State Commission for Higher
Education. It has approved the following
community service projects to be conducted
by instltutioIl3 of higher education.

Institution and Federal Allocation
Arizona State University:

Institute for 50 government om-
clals on interdepartmental co
operation ----________________ $3.458

Television broadcasts of servicesto the aged 22,918

Conference on problems of urban-
ization fOr 35 selected officlals__ 15.000

Forum on new posslbll1ties forprobleDl-aolving 12.000
Training In responsibll1tles for

new-elected city officials_______ 600

ALABAMA

The authorized State agency in Alabama
Is the University of Alabama. It has approved
the following community service projects to
be conducted by institutions of higher edu
cation.

Institution and Federal allocation
Auburn University:

Municipal recreation leadership
conferences $9.800

Introduction to physical planning
for local government officials__ 12.820

Public administration seminars
for the range of State and local
government personnel (In coop-
eration with the University of Total 131,429
Alabama) -----------_________ 26.350 Administrative costs______________ 6.905

Courses for small business opera
tors--human relations. fiscal
management. et cetera_________ 24.350

Tuskeegee Institute:
Public health instructor trainingcourses 4.909

Community planning seminar for
local leaders__________________ 5,137

PUblic administration seminar for
local leaders__________________ 1.750

University of Alabama:
Leadership training for isolated

groups (aged. poor. minOrities) 26.800
Courses for small business opera

tors--human relations, fiscal
management. et cetera (In co
operation with Auburn Univer-sity) 24.350

Public administration seminars
for the range of State and local
government personnel (in 10
cities cooperating with the Ala- Total program alloactiollS 126.443
bama League of MunicipaUties) 43,200 Administrative costs_______________ 21.511

have been made in some of the programs, the
Appropriations Committee has shown that it
need not feel itself bound to take the Bureau
of the Budget requests as gospel.

As one Senator. I am sorry that they did
not demonstrate by affirmative action this
independent jUdgment in more areas but I
am a reaUst enough to know that it Is very
difficult to exceed to any real degree the
dollar amounts which have behind them the
force of the Bureau of the Budget recom
mendations.

If my memory serves me correctly. the
testimony before the legislative committee
indicated that sums in the neighborhood of
three to four blllion dollars wlll be needed
every year. While this would not all come
from the Federal source, it was pointed out
to us that It was becoming increasingly dif
ficult to raise funds for these necessary pur
poses from the private sector and from reve
nues available from State sources.

I have another comment that relates to
action of the Senate "committee in acquiesc
ing in the curtailment of Title IV NDEA
fellowships; If I am correct, the subcommit
tee decreased by $10 m1llion fellowship funds
while making a concomitant increase in $10
mlllion in junior and community college
construction funds. This wlll curtail the
fellowship program under Title IV NDEA by
a considerable number of college teachers.

I do not want the Senator to misunder
stand me-I fully approve of increased con
struction funds for the junior and commu
nity college segment of higher education. I
would have preferred to see a far greater
increase In all college construction. but I am
happy that at least one segment which needs
it badly will have an increase. But I am con
cerned that the fellowship provisions which
have been in the act since 1958 and Which
were expanded subsequently. are to be cur
tailed since this wlll lmpair the attainment
at an early date of an objective which is
shared by many of us. to strengthen our
'graduate schools and to make sure that they
are geographically distributed throughout
our nation.

There is one other area Which ell.uses me
concern and that is the funding of pro
grams described on page 14 of the report
under the heading of "Library and Com
munity Services."

First. let me applaud the action Of the
SUbcommittee in making avallable $1 mil
lion to the Library of Congress above the
House allowance for the necessary catalog
ing activities.

I am concerned. however. that Title -I of
the Higher Education Act, Which provides
for university extension and community
service programs. was held to the $10 million
level of last year. This is a program which
is of immediate benefit to indiViduals in
communities of every size throughout our
nation. At this point, I ask unanimous con
sent that I may insert excerpts from the
committee print· entitled "Notes and Work
ing Papers on the Administration of Pro
grams Authorized under PL. 89-329",
which gives a breakdown of the kinds of
projects that have been funded in the states.
The materials may be found on pages 15
through 43. of the committee print. I am
particularly prOUd of the work that has
been done by Vice Chancellor Sherburne
of the Oregon state System of Higher Ed
ucation under Whose authority falls the
operation of Oregon's university extension
program. I regret that he and his associates
in all of our colleges and universities in
Oregon during this fiscal year will be un
able to expand to any extent the scope of
their operations as the result of the. in my
judgment; underfunding that we are asked
to approve in this b111.

In conclusion. as far as educational actiV
ities and programs adm1n1stered by the Of
fice of Education are concerned. the b111 be
fore us is a miXed bag. There are a number
of increases which we should hall; there are
decreases Which I can but deplore. But the
responsib1llty for recommending to the Con
gress current financing of programs author
ized by the COngress is baSically and pri
marily the responsiblI1ty of' the executive
departments. the Bureau of tl1e Budget. and
the President of the United States. The COn
gress cannot be held completely responsible
for the 1lnderfunding of educational pro
grams If the executive branch refuses to send
up adequate estimates. In the increases that
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Institution and Federal allocatton-Con.

San Fernando Valley State College.
Northridge: COmmunity deVelop-
ment and training lnstltute $59,319

San Francisco State COllege:
Community development and

training institute_____________ 11, 149
Community stabilization through

educational innovation________ 39,986
University of California at Berkeley:

Rural environment and Interrela
tionships With urban areas____ 39,169

Statewide programs on urban
planning in relation to the
State planning otnce's state de-
velopment program 111,355

University of Southern Callfornia:
Community relations seminars;
behavioral science perspectives-_ 29,599

1rotal 535,472

Administrative cost_______________ 11,498

1rotal allocated funds 546,970

COLORADO

1rhe authorized State agency in Colorado
is the Colorado Commission on Higher EdU
cation. It has approved the folloWing com
munity service projects to be conducted by
institutions of higher education.

Institutions and Federal allocatton
University of Colorado: Leadership

training pilot projects in 1 metro
politan area and 1 2d class city to
be extended to other communi-ties $72,498

Colorado State university: Im
provement of local governmental
services by conducting a series of
educational conferences for gov
ernmental personnel at all levels
on a statewide basis_____________ 72,357

1rOtai program allocations 144.855
Administration of state plan______ 3,000

1rotal Federal funds allocated
to State_~ 147,855

CONNECTICUT

The authorized State agency In Connecti
cut Is the Commission on Cooperation With
Federal Authorities In Matters Pertaining to
Higher Education. It has approved the fol
loWing community service projects to be con
ducted by institutions of higher education.

Institution and Federal allocation
Danbury State College: Conferences

for local community leaders and
Government otncers on area re-
source development " $6,652

New Haven College: Area confer-
ences on the pressing communityproblems 8,080

Fairfield University: Development of
cultural and recreational re
sources with governmental agen-
cies in the.area_________________ 4,756

Rensselaer polytechnic Institute: A
series of conferences with local
community and government lead-
ership for improved resource use_ 2, 500

University of Connecticut:
Conferences and consultations on

sanitation, water pollution, land
use; courses for governmental
otnci3.ls. and wi: l'king With theaged 15,420

Information technology for the
management of urban and sub-
urbim area (2-year project):1966 54,363

1967 49,266

Willlmantic State College: Confer
encesWith local leadership on a
Wide range of community prob-lems 2.850

Institution and Federal allocatlon--Con.
Yale University: A series of confer

ences and consultations With pUb
lic schOOl systems in the greater
Hartford area to improve the pro-
gram for disadvantaged $19,940

1rotal program allocations 163,827
Administration of State plan______ 5, 000

Total Federal funds allocated
to State 168,827

DELAWARE

The authorized State agency in Delaware
is the University of Delaware. It has ap
proved the follOWing community service pro
jects to be conducted by institutions of
higher education.

Institution and Federal allocation
Delaware State College:

Opportunities and services avail-
able to disadvantaged citlzens___ $4,275
Training recreation leaders for

low-Income nelghborhoods____ 12,586
University of Delaware:

Program on human relations in
family life____________________ 1,500

Professional seminar on family
Interaction and human change_ 6,000

ContinUing education program In
law enforcement-_____________ 3. 000

Professional development for
State and metropolitan police
administrators 2,500

Professional development for wel-
fare workers__________________ 2, 000

Leadership and communications
training for neighborhood cen-
ter workers___________________ 4.000

Professional development for
municipal otncials____________ 2,000

Professional development for
municipal clerks and financeotncers 1,500

Public administration courses for
Government employees________ 2,000

Social work methodology for pUb-
lic welfare personneL________ 2,500

Educational counseling services
for unemployed women________ 8.000

Management techniques for
municipal otnclals____________ 30.300

Information and communications
program for State urban of-ficials 22,456

Wesley College:
Seminar to prepare substitute

teachers 900
Conference on information and

communications 3,000

Total program allocatlons 108,517
Administration of state plan______ "3.750

Total Federal allocation toState 112,267

DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

The authoriZed state agency in the District
of Columbia is the COnsortium of Universities
of the Metropolitan Area. It has approved the
following community service projects to be
conducted by institutions of higher educa
tion:

Institution and Federal allocation
COnsortium of Universities: Con

tinuing education for the urban
publlc service ---- ,. $39.000

Catholic University: Allocation of
education technology to the prob-
lems of disadvantaged youth____ 9,000

District of COlumbia 1reachers' COl-
lege: Institute in group relations
for pUblic otncials ,.,.________ 7,500

George Washington University:
Training of staff of public and pri
vate institutions in problems of
children 9.750

Institution and Federal allocation-Con.
Georgetown University: Improving

the skills and effectiveness of com-
munity leadership $32,250

1rotal program allocations____ 97,500
Administration of state plan______ 7.500

Total Federal allocation toState 105,000

FLORIDA

The authorized State agency in Florida is
the State Board of Education ... Florida. It
has approved the follOWing community serv
Ice projects to be conducted by institutions
of higher education.

Institution and Federal allocation
Brevard Junior College, Cocoa:

Courses in citizenship and family
responsibl11ty $10.000

Florida State University, 1rallahas-
see:

Field service for graduate students
in urban planning____________ 35,000

Employment training for mature1!lomen 15.000

Civic education for communityleaders 7.138

Indian River Junior COllege, Fort
Pierce: Courses for aged in em
ployment and attitudes towardsage 20.000

Marymount College, Boca Raton:
Encourage mental well-being in1!lomen 10,350

University of Miami, Coral Gables:
Civic education for adults_______ 45,000
PUotprogram in Cuban CUlture;

vocational refugee programs___ 661
PUot program in personal con-

tinuing education for wolIien__ 3,235
University of Florida, Gainei3vllle:

. Educational experience in urbanplanning 18.750
Service and research center for

small communlties _
Workshops and, counsellng for

senior citJzens________________ 17,025
University of South Florida, Tampa:

Kindergarten-nursery school
teacher training ,._______ 3,937

Consumer educatlon .:._______ 3, 000

1rotal program allocation ... 214.096
Uncommitted 'funds " 636
Administrative costs -'_:..:..-'_"__ -'_ 25.000

1rotal Federation allocation__ 239, 732
GEORGIA

"The authorized State agency In Georgia Is
the University of Georgia, It has approved
the following community service projects to
be conducted by institutions of higher edu
cation.

Institution and Federal allocation
Abraham Baldwin AgriCUltUral .Col-

lege: Community development for
community leaders______________ $3.000

Armstrong State College of savan-
nah: Professional development for
local government personneL_____ 2, 703

Berry College: Continuing education
for the Goose Valley area________ 3,060

ColUlnbus College: '"
Seminar in group communica-tions :.. .:._" 1,134

Improving instructlon.tn adulteducation 2,888

Georgia Institute of .1rechnology:
Workshops for planning agency

personnel_-' -_______ 3,280
Community workshops In indus-

trial developmenL ... 15.203
Institute for planning aids______ 9,498
Instruction In the handling of in

formation to suppOrt commu~

nlty development programs ,. 16,985
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Total Federal allocation 155,077

KENTUCKY

The authorized State agency in Kentucky
is the University of Kentucky. It has ap
proved the following community service proj
ects to be conducted by institutions of hIgher
education.

Institution and Federal aUocation
Bellarmine Oollege: Education in

civic alfairs to increase participa-tion '-_______________ $6,554

Institution and Federal allocation
Drake University:

Workshop for nelghborbood lead-
ership through communication
and group identifiCation wItb
community problems__________ $6,840

Workshop in tbe techniques of
municipal administration______ 5,310

Law enforcement seminar________ 6,435
Iowa State University:

Short course for social welfare
workers on growth and develOp-
ment of cblldren______________ 1,567

State coordination center of con-
sumer education______________ 23,308

Short course for social welfare
workers on care of famlly in
the bome_____________________ 1,213

Information dissemination pro-
gram for school bUllding andplanning 7,876

Water pollution control and sani-
tation program________________ 6,491

Job instruction training for mu-
nicipal administrative person-nel 1,470

Human relations of management
for municipal administrative
personnel -'__ 1.470

Basic pnnciples of managing for
munlc1paladmlnistrative per-sonnel 1,470

Urban planning; administration
of plans; urban design, esthetic
responsibUity 17.302

University of Iowa:
Training program for community

leaders and persons on tbe job
in local governments ~______ 31,078

Development ,of an integrated
senes of short pollce courses_~_ 12,081

Oommunity alcoboUsm program__ 20,597
Community theater regional work-shops 12,437

Projected park and recreation con-ference 1,615

Therapeutic recreation workshop_ 960

Total program allocation 159,520
Administration of State plan_______ 8,763

Total Federal allocation toState 168,283

KANSAS

The authorized State agency in Kansas is
the Kansas Higher Education Facilities Oom
mission. It bas approved the following com
munity service projects to be conducted by
institutions of higher education.

Institution and Federal allocation
Kansas State University, Manhat

tan: Oourses and conferences in
regional planning and develop-ment $37,386

University of Kansas, Lawrence:
Oonsultation on resource mob1l1
zation, cultural programs, and
communications 44,235

Wichita State University, WIchita:
Conferences in government prob
lems, fiscal problems of urbaniza
tion, bigh school curriculum, po
Uce administration, and firescience 71,409

Total 153,030

72,815 Administrative costs_______________ 2,047

Total Federal allocatlon 117,015

Total Federal allocatlon 360,743

IOWA

The autborIzed State agency in Iowa is
the State Board of Regents. It has approved
the following community service projects to
be conducted by Institutions of blgher ed
,ucation.

170tal 350,930

Administrative costs_______________ 9,803

ILLINOIS

The authorized State agency In Illlnois is
the I111nols Board of IDgher Education. It
has approved the follOWing community serv
ice projects to be conducted by institutions
of bigher education.

Institution and Federal' allocation
Barat Oollege, Lake Forest: Volun

teer school social worker trainingprogram $7,342
Bradley University, Peoria:

Volunteer social agency, board
member training program_____ 3,945

Clergy humsn relations skillstraining -'______ 3, 300

Peoria officials training in mUnic-
ipal administration "_______ 3, 600

Seminar for Negro leadership in
Peona 3,300

Dlinois State University, Normal:
Normsl/Bloomington community
relations improvement___________ 9,322

Loyola University, Ohicago: Semi-
nars in urban problems for Ohi-
cago civic leaders_______________ 22,034

Northern DUnols, Dekale: Training
program-internship for Puerto
Rican social workers____________ 18, 752

Southern Illinois University, Oar
bondale:

Training program for local taxassessors __~ 10,416

Oommunity services surveyor
training 5, 935

Workshop in buman relations for
teacbers and ministers_________ 22,178

Indigenous personnel training in
community action projects_____ 51.974

Training program for human rela-
tions commission members_____ 11, 125

University of Ohlcago: Workshop for
welfare service center personneL_ 85,872

University of Dlinols at Urbana:
Worksohp for university personnel

in community consultation____ 19,020
Field service for future teachers in

problem schools _

Total 108,000

Administrative costs_______________ 9,015

tion Fac1l1ties. It has approved the following
community service projects to be conducted
by institutions of blgher education.

Institution and Federal allocation
Idaho State University: Appllcation

of State study on air transport $36,000
University of Idaho:

Oonferences on land use for com-
munity leaders________________ 10,000

Training of community recreationleaders ~ 10,000

Education of youtb counselors at
tbe COInnlunity level__________ 8,000

Seminars on urban transportation
problems for local and State
officials 8,000

Establishment of Idaho Safety
Oenter to provide consultationservices 16,000

Training program in civic duties
for neWly elected city council-men ~ 10,000

Training program for new county
commissioners 10,000

GUAM ~

The authonzed State agency in Hawal1 is
the State Department of BUdget and FI
nance. It has approved the following com
munity service projects to be conducted by
Institutions of higher education.

Institution and Federal allocation
College of Guam:

Continuing education and com
munity service program for the
island of Guam $25,096

Administration of State plan____ I, 606

Total program allocations 181,196
Administration of State plan______ 25,000

Total Federal allocation to
State 206,196

Total Federal allocatiorJ to
~tate _~~~~_--------------117,000

,IDAHO:

The a,uthorized State agency in Idaho is
Idabo State Oommisslon for mgher Educa~

HAWAII

The authorized State agency in Hawal1 is
the State department" of bUdget and fi
nance. It has approved the following com
munity service projects to be conducted by
institutions of higher education.

Institution and Federal allocation
University of Hawal1:

In-service training project for
community planners $31,500

Statewide Hawaii Lyceum series__ 13,000
StateWide discussions of publlc

polley Issues__________________ 13,000
TraIning institutes for labor edu-cators 22,510

Interagency pilot projects to train
correctional p.ersonnel_________ 34,500

Total program allocations 114,510
Administration of State plan______ 3,000

Total Federal allocation toState 26,702

Institution and Federal aUocation-Con.
Middle Georgia Oollege:

Business law for small businesspropnetors ~ $1,093

Workshop on traffic. and ,safety
problems in middle Georgia____ 1,463

SOuth Georgia College: Seminar on
handllng the social envIronment__ 2,625

West Georgia OOllege:
Workshop on integration of pUbllcfacUlties __~__________________ 1,154

Workshop for foster parents______ 1,872
Inservice education program for

law enforcement personneL___ 2,758
Oounselor training programs for

community leaders____________ 4,066
Oourse in community develop-

ment, phase 1.________________ 1,404
Oourse in community develop-

ment, phase 11._______________ 4,725
University of Georgia:

Local government fiscal manage-
ment courses ~_______ 32,704

Local government personnel ad
ministration courses___________ 6,330

Local government supervisory
methods course_______________ 3,519

Pilot project: Testing and Intro
ductory community develop
ment courses in two, commu~nlUes __ ~ ~_____________ 4,350

Workshop for community adult
educaUon leaders______________ 5,750

The act of growing old-an inter
disciplinary course____________ 15,000

Institute for pollee training of-ficers 5,703

Introductory course in community
development in 10 commu-nities 28,929
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Institution and Federal allocation--Con.

Eastern Kentucky State University:
Consultant service to 15 counties

to establish drtver educationcourses $8,625

Demonstration workshop in offer-
ing and coordinating cultural
affairs ----------------- 5,568

ConsUltant service to 21 counties
to Increase recreation fac1l1ties 10,845

Workshop to develop management
skills in local omcials elected, and appointed 4,932

Pilot consultant service to 6 coun-
ties to improve cooperation be-
tween local and State agencies
and civic groups______________ 10,733

Lees Junior College: Pilot project to
recruit and train social workers
especially suited for Appalachia_ 11,103

Paducah Junior College: Leader-
ship seminars on community prob-
lems in Paducah________________ 2,457

University of Kentucky Research
Foundation:

Pilot project to develop and util
ize the talents of older citizens
in solving community problems 11,422

Demonstration film for TV on
safe drtving practices__________ 41,149

seminar workshops, and a publica-
tion to foresee growth in Ash-
land, Ky______________________ 18.007

University of Louisville:
Pilot project for education in

municipal government policy-making 6,617

Workshops for managers and per-
sonnel on publlc recreation____ 4.190

Western Kentucky State University:
Demonstration project for 21
counties on cultural affairs______ 15. 405

Total 157.607
Admlnlstratlve cost 20,544

Total Federal allocation 178,151
LOUISIANA

The authorized State agency in Loulsiana
Is the Louisiana Commission on Extension
and Continuing Education. It has approved
the following community service projects to
be conducted by institutions of higher
education.

Institution and Federal allocation
F. T. Nicholls State College: Hospital
. administration courses__________ $3.600
Grambling College: Family life insti-

tutes in principal north Louis.lanaparlshes 15,425

Louisiana state University (Baton
Rouge) :

Workshop for school board mem-bers 7.320

Series of workshops (7) in govern
mental leadership and manage-
ment (stateWide) 53.610

Northwestern State College: Improv-
ing schoolplant faclllties and serv-
ices for Natchitoches Parish snd
immediate area_________________ 16.900

Southern University (New Orleans
branch): Community leadership
conferences In five target areas In
lower income areas of New Or-leans 27.360

Tulane University: Seminars on
community problems for estab
lished leadership In New Or-leans 3,245

University of Southwestern Louisi
ana: Workshops for newspaper re
porters on the government andcommunity 2.730

Loyola University: Training of ele
mentary teacher to work With
modified Montessori techniques
with low income fam1l1es______ 31,810

Total program allocations 162,000

Institution and Federal allocation-Con.
Administration of State plan (in

cluding $15.570 for research on
community problems) $24,214

Total Federal allocation toState 186,214

MAINE

The Authorized State agency in Maine Is
the University of Maine. It has approved the
following community service projects to be
conducted by Institutions of higher educa
tion.

Institution and Federal allocation
Bowdoin College: A 2-phase program

for improved land use along
Maine's seacoast; model programs
and relevant conferences $45.900

University of Maine: Training pro- .
gram for guidance counselors In
schools and community agencies;
in cooperation With Aroustook
State College and St. Francis
College-ll programs____________ 69,684

Westbrook Junior College: Course
on "Parent and adolescent; a
stUdy in communlcatlon"________ 3.225

Total 118.809

Administrative cost_______________ 5,650

Total Federal allocation 124,459

MARYLAND

The authorized State agency in Maryland
is the University of Maryland. It has ap
proved the folloWing community service
projects to be conducted by institutions of
higher education.

Institutton and Federal allocation
Allegany Community College. Cum

berland:
Medical secretary tralning_____ $2,534
Workshop in management tech-

niques for county leaders____ 12,254
Charles County Community COllege,

La Plata: Regional civic educationprograr.n 20,459

Coppin State College, Baltimore:
Conference for mutual under
standing; public olllciais. labor
and Industry heads, communityleaders 11.096

Essex Comr.nunity College, Essex:
Civic education for problemsolv-
Ing technlques__________________ 20.825

University of Maryland. College
Park: .

Regional ser.nlnar of the Con
stitutional Convention_______ 63.651

Leadership seminars In com-
munity needs. structure. and
resources-regional _. ~__ 29.816

Total ~__ ~_ 160.135
Administrative costs______________ 24,966

Federal allocation totaL~ 185, 101

MASSACHUSETTS

The authorized State agency in Massachu"
setts is the Massachusetts Higher Education
FacUlties Commission. It has approved the
following community service projects to be
conducted bY,institutions of higher educa
tion.

Instttution and Federal allocation
Babson Institute: A 15-sesslon semi

nar for local urban redevelopment
committee in eastern Massachu-setts $3,750

Boston University: A series of con
ferences for representatives' of
civic and professional organiza
tions. governmental agencies and
Institution for more effective re-
source allocation________________ 17,006

Instttution and FederaialZOCaHon-Con.
Bridgewater State College: A series

of conferences and der.nonstra
tions for mUJ?iclpal commissions
in relation to water pollution con
trol in southeastern Massachu-setts _~ ~ $9,000

Clark University: Conferences and
seminars for parents and teachers
to overCome reslstance to new
content and methods in public
schools 13,500

Harvard University:
A series of conferences for attor

neys with regard to mental
health information by Harvard
Medical School faculty________ 21,000

Experimental research project
with the community serving as
a laboratory for relationships
betwen race relations and leam-
ing problems .. 77,500

Dean Junior College: 4 sets of semi
nars for municipal admlnlstrators,
school committee members. budg
etary and charter revlsion person-nel __~ 11,790

Greenfield Community College:
Education of community leader-
ship in a semlrural communlty__ 9,000

Lowell Technological Institute:
Seminars to increase the impact
of technological resources to city
omcers, teachers, and the busi-
ness community 22.050

Massachusetts Institute of Tech
nology: Seminars for teachers,
settlement workers. parents with
regard to motivating the disad
vantaged to continue their edu-cation 5,250

Northeastern University:
Seminars on urban problems and

social change for clergy of allfaiths 15,375

Program in alcohol education for
professional, volunteers, and
service groups acting in a so-
cial service role_______________ 15,000

North Shore Community College:
Conferences With local leadership
on returning post-high school
population to the labor market___ 4.500

Radcliffe College: Conference for
women In volunteer agencies on
the process of social change_____ 900

Springfield College:
Course for youth serving individ

uals, parents, and teachers to
work more effectively With dis-
advantaged youths ;".:._____ 4. 148

'Pollce tralnlng__________________ 3,578
Tufts University:

Demonstration project to improve
educational opportunities for
the disadvantaged In an urbanarea 8,509

A yearlong seminar for indigenous
local leaders to deal with prac
tical problems of the urban
setting .------- 6,375

University of Ma~sachusetts: The
appllcatlon . of 'intercommunity
problem solving meaIiS toalr and
water pollution by courses for
clVl1 servants, workshop tor edu-
cators and consUltation services__ 45,000

Wentworth Institute: Conferences
and seminars for recruiters of po
tential employees from dlsadvan-
taged. areas_____________________ 6.000

Total program allocations 229.111
Administration of State plan_____ 2,163

Total Federal funds allocatedto State ~ 231.274

MICHIGAN

The authorized State agency In :MIchigan
Is the State Department of Education. It
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has approved tlie fol1owing community serv
Ices projects to be conducted by institutions
of higher education:· . ... .

Institution.and Federal allocation
Michigan State University:

Leadership cofit'erence for city of-
ficials ~~.~_~ ~ $13.436

Criminal justice In Michigan
communities ~~ c__ ~ 7.300

Statewide race relations programpilot project 3,064

Michigan Technological University:
Health education program for
Upper PeninSUla _~ ~ ....__ 26,387

Northern Michigan University:
Health education program for

Upper Pewnsula. 13.490
Leadership training program for

Upper PeninsUla 30.538
Oakland University:

Workshop on poverty for com
munlty_______________________ 2.967

Orientation to poverty program__ 3,580
University of Michigan:

Program for community counclls
on community problems_______ 26,267

Planning for. urban renewal com-
millslons 14.362

Program to combat adverse effects
of economic migration (pllotproject) 14.110

Wayne State University:
Demonstration project In Ubrary .

facilltles for southeasternMichigan 28.234

Conferences and. workshops for
pollee officials 10.677

Kalamazoo· College: Coordination
program for Kalamazoo Countyofficials 13.616

Madonna COllege: Reading improve-
ment program for post-secondary-
level adults c .... _ 7.126

Marygrove College: Community con
ferences serles for changing
minority neighborhood groups____ 5.000

University of Detroit: Commuplty
leaders seminars conferences on
selected urban problems_________ 12,619

FUnt Community Junior College:
Meeting the. needs of working
women and mature women______ 27,059

Oakland Community College:
Program for senIorcltlzens______ 18,000
Youth opportunities program____ 16.000

Total program allocatlon 292.830
State plan adminlstratlon_________ 8.806

Total Federal allocation toState 301,636

MINNESOTA

The authorized State agency in MInne
sota Is the Minnesota Liaison and FacUities
Commission. It has approved tho following
community service projects to be conducted
by institutions of higher education.

Institution and Federal allocation
Augsburg Col1ege: Academic town

meeting committee to discuss
community problems $56,906

Bemidji State College: Northern
Minnesota. leadership develop-ment ~______ 2.316

Mankato State College: Community
development in the urban Man-
kato area_______________________ 5,460

Moorehead State Col1ege: Develop-
ment of a community social serv-
Ice program_____________________ 8,162

St. John's UnIverBlty: Programs for
education of present and future
community leaders______________ 25.885

University of Minnesota:
Governmental in-service train-

Ing ---------- ·29,000

Institution and Federal allocation-Con.
University of Mlnnesota-ConUnued .

Statewide coordinated counseling
for women; operation secondchance $23,775

Impact of alternative choices of
urban developmenL__________ 26. 242

University certificate program in
assessing and appraisal________ 8, 276

Total program aiIocatlon 185,771
Administration of State plan______ I, 407

Total Federal allocation to. State__ ~ 187. 178

MIsSISSIPPI

The authorized State agency in Mississippi
is the Mississippi Board of Trustees of the
Institutions of Higher LearnIng. It has ap
proved the following community service
projects to be conducted by institutions of
higher education.

Institution and Federal allocation
Jackson State College:

Seminar for the development of
community leaders $5,650

Institute for In-Service Teachers_ 5, 000
Teacher Institute In. Aerospace

Education ~________ 2.220
Teachers workshop In modernmatheOlatlcs 3.376

Guldance seOlinar for coun-selors 3.600

Mississippi state University: Pro-
grams for cooperative communitydevelopment 40,000

University of Mississippi:
Series of conferences of agIng____ 16,500
Adult. education institutes on

probleOl solving 35,289

University of Southern Mississippi:
Workshop and seminars for coun-

selors on family problems_____ 9. 051
Improving community recreation

program in south MIssissippL__ 5,000

Total programallocatlons 125,685
Administration of State plan_______ 9.580

Total Federal al1ocation to
State 135,265

MISSOURI

The authorized. State agency in Missouri
is the Office of State and Regional Planning
and Community Development. It has ap
prOVed the following community service proj
ects to bo conducted by institutions of higher
education.

Institution and Federal allocation
Central Missouri State College, War

rensburg: Conference of pollce and
and law enforcement for policeand COInInlInity $16.538

Drury College, Springfield:
College courses in social sciences

for policemen_________________ 6.900
Regional seOlinars In COInInunityplanning 6.450

Park COllege. Parkvllle:
Seminars in problems of Platte

County for mayors, judges, andclerks 600

Institute to assess role of sxnall
community in a metropolltanarea 900

St. LoUis University:
Research on metropoUtan prob-

lems; conferences with local
admlnlstrators--eOlphasis on
bullding Inspectlon____________ 21,605

Instruction for voluntary leader-
ship: board members; confer-
ence on ph1lanthropy; urban de
cislonmaklng; role of clergy____ IS, 626

Institutes in nurse administration
and pedagogy_________________ 9.345

Institution and Federal allocation-Con.
University of Missouri at COlumbia:

Conference for local officials for
improved awareness and skllls__ $26.000

Conference on Federal programs
for small communities; training
In fiscal management__________ 11,803

Conferences for local officials on
administration of public works
and technical problems of pUb-
lic facllitles~__________________ 9,228

University of Missouri at Kansas
City: Management and planning
clinics in total administration for
communities of all slzes__________ 11,000

University of· Missouri at Rolla:
Courses in land use for adminis
trators of urban fringe communi-ties 21,380

University of Missouri at St. Louis:
Symposia on publlc schools for
policy and administrative cUen-tele 14.387

Washington University, st. LoUis:
I-year certificate training program

for community leaders of disad-vantaged 13.743

Urban housing specialist as consul-
tant for st. Louis area_________ 22,377

Human relations institute and a
course on minority status in
American life_________________ 2.341

Total 207. 123

Administration costs__~----------- 3,500

Total Federal allooatlon 210,623

NEBRASKA

The authorized State agency in Nebraska Is
the UnIverBlty of Nebraska. It has approved
the following community service projects to
be conducted by Institutions of higher edu
cation.

Institution and Federal allocation
Kearney State College: Developing

new solutions to community prob-leOls $8,598

University of Nebraska:
Training local leaders for commu-

nity plannIng ~_.: ~-- 13.008
TrainIng and consultation pro

gram for the development of
community recreation potentials
in southeastern Nebraska______ 55.770

Economic education program for
Nebraska communities_________ 46.000

University of Omaha: Statewide law
enforcement and security seminarsfor officlals ~ 10,116

Totai program allocatlons 132.492
Administration of State plan_______ 3.863

Total Federal auocation toState ~ 136p55

NEW HAMPSHIRE

The authorized State agency in New Hamp
shire is the University of New Hampshire. It
baa approved the following communityserv
ice projects to be conducted by institutions
of higher education. .

Institution and Federal allocation
Dartmouth:

Economic and communitydevelop
ment education through re-corded lectures $25.500

Community official and leader
training in improved commu-
nity declsionmakIng___________ 46,750

University of New Hampshire:
Beautification conservation______ 11,250
Regional and community develop-

men' and economic growthcourse 4.825

'rotal program allocatlons____ 88.325
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Total program allocations 108.292 Total ---------------------- 534.550
Administration of State plan_______ 16. '161 Administrative costs .;________ 7.399

Institution and Federal allocation-Con.
Uncommitted funds $26.075
Administration of State plan_______ 1.898

Total Federal allocation toState 116,298

NEW JERSEY
The authorized State agency in New Jersey

is the New Jersey State Commission for the
IDgher Education Facilities Act. It has ap
proved the following community service proj
ects to be conducted by institutions of higher
education.

Institution and Federal allocation
Fairleigh Dickinson University:

Volunteers and governmentalcorps projects $20.000
Program to upgrade the knowledge

among health workers concern
ing special and environmental
impact on health______________ 21.150

Pollution control education. airand 1!Iater 33,210

Leadership training program for
community recreation_________ 14.835

Middlesex County College: To pro-
vide employment opportunlties___ 7,695

Montclair State College: Health.
adult education. and aglng_______ 43.587

Newark College of Engineering:
Upgrading government personneL 4.500
Water supply and pollution con-trol 12.000

RutgersState University:
Improved government personneL_ 35, 000
Community problem Of the aglng_ 3.433
Municipal. air and water resources

management __"' -'_____ 55.000
Community problem of unemploy-ment 11.400

Total program allocations 261,810
Administration of State plll.n_______ 3.000

Total Federal allocation toState 264.810

NIl:W MEXICO

The authorized State agency In New Mexi
co is the University Of New Mexico. It has
approved the following community service
projects to be conducted by .lnstltutlons of
higher education:

Institution and. Federal allocation
The University of New Mexico in co

operation with Eastern New
MeXico University. Highlands
University. New Mexico Insti
tute of Mining & Technology.
Ne1!l Mexico State University.
University of Albuquerque. Uni
versity of santa Fe. Western Ne1!l
Mexico University: .

Conferences for public officials and
community leaders on poverty.
housing and youth opportuni-
ties ------------------- $42.667

Orientation and training of ,local
government offilllals ,_.:..:.___ 44.000

Program on the stimuli and Ob-
stacle to econoInicgrowth,.---- . 21.625

Total Federal.allocation to ,State 125.053

NE1!I YORK
The authorized State agency in New York

is the Board of Regent." of the University of
the State of New York. It has approved the
follOWing community service projects to be
conducted by· institutions of· higher .' edu
cation.

Institution and Federal allocation
Bank Street College of Education

Ne1!l York City: "Crisis Films" on
Adolescence $30. 747

Barnard College. New York City:
Workshop for community servicefor wOInen 15.000

City University of Ne1!l York. Ne1!l
York City Community College:
Training prograIn for departInent
of buildlngs_____________________ 49,527

Columbia University. Ne1!l York
City: Intergroup relations train-
Ing in community servlce________ 35.000
Speakers' bureau on drug use
(College of PharInacy) 30.000

Cornell University. Ithaca: PrograIn
for government-eInployer-em-
ployee cooperatlon______________ 67.030

Fordham University, New York City:
Leadership in perretlreInent pro-grams 19.604

Hofstra university. Hempstead:
Community agency research train-
ing for women 24.336

Hunter College. City University of
Ne1!l York: SeIninars on com
Inunlty service and cOInmunity
government ,.-- 10,000

Mount St. Mary College. NeWburgh:
SeIninar on hUInan relations for
community agencles "'_"' _

Ne1!l School for Social Research. Ne1!l
York City: Demonstration pro-
graIn for borough planning boards 6. 290
TV film series on city government 17.410

New York University, New York
City: Seminars on civil liberties
and civil disobedlence__________ 19.928
Class in consumer problems for
disadvantaged 28.455

Pratt Institute. Brooklyn: Leader-
Ship training for Brooklyn civic
leaders --------.:----.:."_- __ -_ 15. 000

State University of Ne1!lYork at Al
bany: Seminar for government.
labor. and industry in urban prob-lems ~___________ 5.000

State University of New York at Buf
falo: Center for leadership train
Ing and planning for Niagara fron-tier 30,000

State University of New York Agri
cultural & Technical College at
Cobleskill: Workshop in manage-
ment skllls · ~~~ __ c ~_c 3.475

State University of Ne1!l .York Agri
cultural & Technical College at
Farmingdale: Community work
shops for elderly and mature
WOInen . ~~ .; 12.000

Suffolk County Community Col~.

lege, Seldon: Program in higher
education for Negro youth_______ 14.748

Syracuse University. Syracuse:
Political science course for urban

officials 25. 000
Seminar on county problems for

officials and citizens___________ 58,000
Westchester Community College.

Valhalla: Program for associate's
degree in fire science____________ 8.000

Total Federal allocatlon,.----- 541.949
NORTH CAROLINA

The authorized State agency In North
Carolina 15 the North Carolina Board of
Illgher Education.

Institution and Federal allocation
Agricultural & Technical College:

Training lay leaders of econoIni-
cally depressed communities___ $6,132

'Imtitution and Federal aUocation-o-con.
East' Carolina College:. EInployment

and Job training Infonnatlon $26.395
North Carolina State University:

Community service center_;.... 32.805
Professional counseling center___ 13.130
Orientation to job opportuni-

ties ~ -----------'----._ 12.020
Education of recreation leaders_.; 11.610
Police science general curricu-lum 15.451

Prison emigrant counseling serv-Ice _c.;_______________________ 8.993

Rockingham Community College:
Public health improvement pro-gram ... 11.781

University of North Carolina. Chapel
Hill:

Radio seminars for physicians___ 1.000
Community problem-solving in-

formation 29,314
SUInmer teacher Institutes______ 15,750
Education for recreational person-nel ~~_______ 4.400

University of North Carolina.
Greensboro: Workshop for .inter-

group relations ~_____ 6.070

Total Federal allocation to
State .; .; 220,046

NORTH DAKOTA

The authorized State agency in North Da
kota is the North Dakota Higher Education
Facilities Cominisslon. It has approved the
~9ll01!ling community service projects to be
conducted by institutions of higher educa
tion.

Institution and Feaeral allocation
University of :tiorth Dakota:

Continuing legal education $22.500
Business management for hOInes

for aged______________________ 11.250
Continuing public adInlnistration

(cooperative program: North
Dakota State Unlversity.'and
University of North Dakota) 30.000

Inventory and identification of so
lutions to problems of youth
(sponsored by University of
North Dakota in cooperation
with other institutions of higher
.education in North Dakota) 7.600

North Dakota State University:
Extension program in pharmacy

for hospital and nursing home
pharmacists 7.500

Special course program In basic
business Inanagement_________ 7,500

Special program InacroeconoInists_ 8.000
StateWide seminar program in hu-

Inan development (family and
individual development) 2,400

Assumption College: Seminar pro-
gram in historical and politicaldevelopment 4,600

Bismarck Junior. College: .Uniform
and commercial COde instruc
tion (in cooperation with other
institutions and professional or-ganizations) 9.375

DicklnsonState: Institute in crea-
tive problem solvlng___________ 5, 000

Total program allocations 110.525
Administration of State plan .. 5.650

Total Federal allocation to
State ~~ 116.075

OHIO
The authorized State agency In Ohio is the

Ohio Board of Regents. It has approved the
follo1!ling cOInmUnlty service projects to be
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JOINTLY SPONSORED PROJECTS

Education for municipal employ-ment 21,000

Institution and Federal allocation--Con.
The El Reno College:

Courses and seminars on art as a
means of recreation at El Reno,Okla $1,500

Courses' and seminars on art as a
means of recreation at Yukon,Okla 1,500

Leadership education in munici-
pal, county, and State govern-
ment In El Reno, Okla_________ 3,250

Leadership education in munici-
pal,· county, and State govern-
ment in Yukon, Okla.________ 3,250

Murray State Agriculture College:
Cooperation, government agencles_ 5, 100

Northeastern State College:
Leadership education on long

range planning for community
growth ~__________________ 3,300

Leadership education on discover-
ing community resources______ 3,300

Northern Oklahoma Junior College:
Adult education courses on men-

tal health for Blackwell, Okla__ 3,283
Adult education courses on men-

tal health for Black1!iell, Okla__ 3,283
Northwestern State College:

Community education to increase
participation in public recrea-
tion in Waynoka, Okla_________ 2,000

Community education to increase
participation in publlc recrea-
tion in Alva, Okla_____________ 2,000

Panhandle A: & M. College:
Training project for youth oppor

tunity leadership in Qoodwell,Okla 1,200

Training project for youth oppor
tunity leadership in Quymon,Okla 1,200

Potean Community College: TraIn
ing project for health, medical,
and paramedIcal personneL_____ 3,000

Sayre Junior College: Leadership
education for publlc recreation de-
velopment ---------------- 1,500

Southeastern State College: Leader-
ship education In community
housing needs 6,400

Southwestern State College:
Community education in the na

ture and origin of poverty in
Contor, Okla__________________ 3,575

Community education In the na-
ture and orIgin of poverty in
Cllnton, Okla_________________ 3,575

The University of Oklahoma: Regu
lar seminars for specialists and
community leaders in communityprobleInS • 12,858

Northeastern Oklahoma A. & M.:
College and civic conference on

community recreation fac1llties_ 2,658
Youth opportunity discoverygroup 2,658

Total Federal allocation toState -' 160,864

.JOINTLY SPONSORED PRojECTS--COntlnued

Oklaboma State University:
Professors for the city of Tulsa,Okla $25.799

5,733
5,733

14,333
135,864
25,000

OREGON

The authorized State agency in Oregon 'Is
the Educational Coordinating Councll. It
has approved the following community serv
ice projects to be conducted by institutions
of higher education:

Institution and Federal allocation
Ea.stern Oregon College (La Grande) :

School board conferences on fi
nance, organization, curriculum,
and personneL__________________ $5,905

Oregon State University (CorvaIlls):
Action programs for small to1!in
local leadership -' 35,656

Portland State Colll!ge: .
Program in community planning

for mental health______________ 20,209
Urban studies' center for overall

planning and communication__ 28,472
University of Oregon (Eugene):

Community field service traIning
program for future communityleaders 24,000

Civic training for neWly eiected
mayors, councllmen, and com
missioners in Oregon__________ 10,009

Development and distribution of
comprehensive annotated bibll
ography of community problems
in Oregon_____________________ 7,476

University of Oregon-Qr.egon State
University-Portland State: Con
ferences in urban planning for
pllinnlng commissloners__________ 8,022

Total program allocatlons 139,749
Administration of State plan_______ 6,746

Total Federal funds allocated
toState -' 146,495

PENNSYLVANIA

The authorized State agency In Pennsyl
vania is the Department of Publlc Instruc
tion. It has approved the fol101!iing commu
nity service projects to be conducted by In
stitutions of higher education:

Institution and Federal allocation.
Pennsylvania state University:

Development for urban planners__ $26,250
SeIninars for trade urban mem-bers 30,426

Develop videotapes on school-com-
munity relations______________ 22,500

AgriCUlture extension courses for
agriculture teachers___________ 7,962

Olf-farm business management
courses for agriculture teachers_ 7, 082

Wllkes College:
Seminars for county planning

commissioners 1,275

8eIninars on municipal purchas-ing 1,350

Lectures on community and gov
ernmental development________ 3,750

Improvement of local communica-tions 2,902

Temple University: Development of
better services for disadvantagedgroups 47,670

Lycoming College: Courses for social
1!ieUare 1!iorkers_________________ 3,750

Project L _
Project 2 _
Project 3 -' _

Total program allocations _
Administration of State plan _

9,000

4,000
4,000
4,000
4,000
5,000

1,800
1,800
1,800
1,800
1,800

Central State College _
Langston Unlversity _
Oklahoma City University _
Oklahoma State University _
University of Oklahoma _

Central State College _
Langston Unlverslty _
Oklahoma City Universlty _
Oklahoma State Universlty _
University of Oklahoma _

Community education for better
understanding of municipal gov-ernment _

Total Federal allocation 351,023
OKLAHOMA

The authorized State agency in Oklahoma
is the University of Oklahoma. It bas ap
proved the. following community service
projects to be conducted by Institutions of
hIgher education.

Institution and Federal allocation
Cameron Junior College: SeIninars

on transportation, mental health,
and' youth opportunlties_________ $5,775

Connors State Agricultural College:
Seminars for community officials

and laymen on public health__ 1,950
Leadership education for commu-

nity recreation officials ~___ 1,950

Total 344,167
Administrative costs 6,856

conducted by Institutions of higher educa
tion.

Institution and Federal allocation
Case Instltute of Technology: Sta

tistical analysis of juvenile delln
quency. in Cleveland, to improveplanning $12,295

Cleveland. State University: In-
stitutes .on the sociological and
psychological aspects of housIng
problems for housing offilcials____ 3,850

Cuyahoga Community College: A
voatlonal and educational counsel
ing and referral' center for mature1!iomen 32,535

Kent State University:
A lecture-1!iorkshop series for

senior level officials in publlc
and private transIt agencles____ 16,420

Research project and conferences
on land use in urban fringeareas 25,563

Ohio State University:
A clinIc on air and 1!iater pollu-

tion for municipal officlals_____ 21,564
Instructor training project for In

structors of 1!iater and 1!iaste
1!iater plant operatlon__________ 2,925

Workshops for officials and attor-
neys on new zoning techniques_ 2, 590

Management development project
for high-level state administra-tors 62,550

Ohio University:
A mayors' conference for 54 may-

ors on community problems____ 4,831
A 5-county planning education

program for Ohio Appalachia
communiMes ~ 21.802

University of Akron:
. A training conference for sub

professional social 1!iorkers_____ 5,864
A seminar of officials to improve

Interagency cooperation 10,223
University of Cincinnati: A census

tract data center to lmprove
community information __ .;,~__ 24,192

University of Dayton: A consumer
education program for the dis-advantaged 8,658

Western Reserve University: A train-
Ing and recruiting project to de,
velop probation officers________ 48,296

Wittenberg University: A manage-
ment development project for
community service agencies____ 33, 593

JOINTLY SPONSORED PROJECTS

Antioch College, Central State,
University of Dayton, Wright
State:

An inservice training project for
nursing home directors andmanagers 3,124

Pllot training project for juvenlle
dellnquency social 1!iorkers_ ___ 3, 292
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TEXAS

The authorized State agency in Texas Is
the Coordinating Board, Texas College and
University System. It has approved the fol
lowing community service projects to be con
ducted by InstItutions of higher education.

Institution and Federal allocation
Baylor University:

Establishment of legal services for
the poor in McLennan Countyarea $1,246

Preparation of teachers of the
functionally illiterate__________ 8, 333

North Texas State University:
Joint university center for com-DlUnity servlce 37,600

seminars in public administration
and urban affairs ~_ 9,410

Southern Methodist University:
Urban and regional planning sem-

inar --------------------- 3,375
The metropolitan problem-an

urban polley seminar_________ 5,026
Texas A. & M. University:

Community services program in
transportation 38,084

Community service seminars____ 20, 100
Education in local law enforce-Dlent 20,100

Educational programs for youths
in correctional Institutlons____ 53, 901

Texas Christian University:
Institutional appralsal.andanaly-

sis of community needs________ ·7,938
Seminars on utilization of govern-

mental programs for community
development 8,373

Texas Woman's University:
Consultative services to social

welfare agencies In the Dallas-
:Fort Worth metropolltan area_ 6,083

Community. service and continu-
ing education program in nurs-ing 5,676

Texas Technological College: A pilot
program for urban parks In metro-
politan communities____________ 31,866

Unlversity of Houston: Workshop
for executive personnel in city and
county governments 16,000

University of Texas:
Executive development short

courses for urban and regional
plannlng omcers______________ 15, 791

Professional development trainlng
of urban administrators and
comDlunity leaders 17,454

Community employee trainlng___ 8,800

Institution and FederalaZlocation-Con.
University of Tennessee-Contlnued

Economic education In 10W~In-

CODle familles_________________ '7,600
Cooperative continuing education

for public health In medicine,
dentistry, pharmacy, and nurs
ing (jointly With Vanderbilt
Medical School, Meharry Medi
cal College, and the university
research center and hospital) 16, 000

Publlc dental health education
by televislon_________________ 9,000

Field 'consultation with omclals
solvIng urban and suburban
problems -_ 18,760

Total program allocatlons 175,866
Administration of state plan______ 18,088

Total Federal funds allocatedtoState 193,954

Total Federal allocatlon 356,959

Total committed funds 313, 043
Uncommitted funds_______________ 18,916
AdministratIve costs 25,000

Total Federal allocations toState 162,373

TENNESSEE

The authorized State agency in Tennessee
is the Unlversity of Tennessee. It has ap
proved the following community service
projects to be conducted:

Institution and Federal allocation
Austin Peay State College:

A pilot county-city leadershipconference $1,875
A pilot business and economicforum 1,200

Bethel College: LeadershIp educa-
tion in economic development andneeds 6,750

East Tennessee State University:
Leadership education In the eco

nomic development of east Ten
nessee, western North Carolina,
and southwestern Virginla_____ 2,979

Training course In &wlmming poolsanitation 1,340

Workshop for specialists in the
rehabilitation of multihandi-
capped chlldren_______________ 1,376

Knoxville COllege: A course to de-
velop leadership skllls___________ 6,260

Lambuth COllege: A project to de-
velop a county family services bu-reau 6,600

Lemoyne College: A continuing race
relations conference_____________ 1,876

Meharry Medical College: An insti-
tute on pharmacological therapy
for rural physicians_____________ 4,658

Memphis state University:
An institute of urban develop

ment. education and traInlng to
meet community problems_____ 6,438

Training and instruction for· law
enforcement omclals___________ 6,260

Southwestern College of Memphis:
Leadership education In local gov-
ernment ~ ~______ 2,250

Tennessee Technological University:
Public education In sanitary en

vironments _~________________ 2,700
An engineering counseling service

for industries and communi-
ties 6,175

University of Tennessee:
(Coordinating) demonstration re

search project on the IdentIfica-
tion of community needs_____ 26, 250

(Coordinating) training in re
sponsibilities for school board
members throughout Tennes-see 45,750

Total program allocatlon 169,467
Administrative cost_______________ 2,906

Institution and Federal allocation-Con.
Furman University: Collegiate edu-

catIonal service corps for. work in
community development________ $8,384

University of South Carolina:
Community leadership develop

ment tor neighborhood settle-
ment houses__________________ 3,866

Child development program for
preschoolers in slum areas_____ 21,389

Educational program in local re-
sources and community devel-opment 26,320

Program fOr community leaders in
problems of economic develop-
ment, and housIng and trans
portation problems____________ 73,892

Training program for community
action among city leadershlp___ 16,200

Leadership conference on prob-
lems and prospects for adult
education In South Carollna___ 2,000

Total Federal allocation toState 122,407

SOUTH CAROLINA

The authorized State agency in South
Carolina Is the State BUdget and Control
Board. It has approved the folloWing com
munity servIce projects to be conducted by
institutions of higher educatIon.

Institution and Federal allocation
Benedict College:· Program to relieve

critical shortage of recreational
leaders for afterschool programs
In culturally deprived areas______ $8,416 .

Total program allocatlons 372,460
AdminIstration of State plan_______ 11,738

Total Federal allocation to
State 384,188

RHODE ISLAND

The authorized State agency in Rhode Is
land is the University of Rhode Island. It
has approved the tollowlng community serv
Ice projects to be conducted by institutions
ot higher education.

Institution and Federal allocation
University ot Rhode Island:

Adult education program in com-
munity problem solvlng $66,778

Training Program for MunicipalLeaders __~___________________ 48,000

Bryant College, Providence College,
Rhode Island College: Tralnlng
Program In Adult Educatlon___ 16,629

Total program allocatlons 121,407
Administration ot State plan______ 1,000

Institution and FederalaZlocatfon--.-Con.
Carnegie Institute ot Technology:

Research on local transportation__ ·'20,~
Community development courses

for civil engineers_____________ 23,274
Seminars for high school coun-selors 6,140

PMC Colleges: Counseling local gov
ernment omcials on urban atfam_ 10,686

Indiana University of Pennsylvanla:
seminars for labor 1eaders________ 6,675

Immaculate College: Extension edu-
cation courses for lOW-incomepeople 2,718

cannon College:
Research and consultation on land

use and houslng_______________ 6,396
Research for the Improvement of

the local administrative sys-tem 10,376

La Salle College: On-campus train-
ing in communlty development___ 4, 600

University of Pittsburgh:
Survey for the improvement of in

formation and communica-tions 7,273

Courses to Increase competence of
local omc1a1s in dealing with
emergency problems 12,710

Courses on health and welfare for
social welfare executlves_______ 27,708

Development of criteria for use in
the selection and trainIng for
municipal police omcers_______ 32,724

Unlversity of Pittsburgh School of
Pharmacy: Seminars for personnel
in the health professlon_________ 3,462

Bucka County Community College:
Workshops for teachers of retarded
chIldren________________________ 3,750

Clarion State College: Data collec-
tion to improve information andcommunication 29,761

Cheyey State College: Development
of methods for providing commu
nity service through means other
than course offering 9,000
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UTAH

The· authorized State agency in Utah is
the Utah Coordinating Council of mgher
Education. It has approved the following
community service projects to be conducted
by institutions of higher education.

Institution and Federal allocation
University of Utah':

Study of college 'and university ex
tension services In relation toState needs ~ $7,243

Data compiling on student abll1
ties, educational services, and
occupational specialties in theState ~ 15,582

Conventions of faculty and offi
cials, deallng With municipal
government problem analysis
and solutlon__________________ 11,250

Seminars for selected communi
ties in leadership training, prob
lem identification, citizen in-
volvement, planning 11,250

Training for planning officials and
board members :.___________ 7,500

Instruction for newly elected offi
cials concerning legal, Intergov
ernmental, and social frame-works 9,225

Documentary films on community
problems____________________ 9,000

Conferences on resource alloca-
tion ~________________ 2,250

Conferences on land use_________ 1,500
Utah State University: Training for

leadership tra.1ning,adminlstered
to community resource develop-ment councils 14,625

Weber State College: Course work in
job skills for municipal offlclals__ 18, 000

Total 107,425

Administrative costs______________ 16,639

Total Federal allocation 124, 064

VERMONT ~

The authorized State agency in Vermont
is the University of Vermont and State Agri
cultural College, It has approved the follow
Ing community service projects to be con
ducted by institutions of higher education.

Institution and Federal allocatiOn

Goddard College: Cooperative com
munity service programs to attack
community development prob-lems ~__~__~ $14,605

University of Vermont:
Urban specialist in Burington

community to attack problems
in housing, health, reha.b1llta
tlon and others related topoverty __~_~ ~ 14,997

Assistance to the grea.ter Burling
ton community in expanding
opportunities for disadvantagedyouth 14,993

Improvement of community
health aud employment oppor-
tunities through a program in
institutional adminlstration___ 9, 184

The use of two-way television for
community service and continu-
ing education programs________ 21,600

Expansion of community health
service through continuing edu
cation for the registered profes-
sional nurse___________________ 8,261

A program to enlighten communi
ties in the effective use of educa
tional television for community
enrichment 16,582

Total program allocations 100.222
Administration of State plan_~,,:-:___ 9,572

Total Federal allocation toState :.:. 109, '194

VIRGIN ISLANDS

The authorized territorial agency In the
Virgin Islands Is the College of the Virgin Is
lands. It has approved the following com
munity service projects to be conducted by
institutions of higher education.

Institution and Federal allocation
College of the Virgin Islands:

Community development confer-
ences for community leaders $9,354

seminar l>n human relations andpoverty 6.300

Community leaders seminar onpoverty 9,450

Total program allocations 25,104
Administration of territorial plan___ 900

Total Federal allocation to ter-
ritorial plan 26,004

VIRGINIA

The authorized State agency In Virginia 18
the University of Virginia. It has approved
the following community service projects to
be conducted by Institutions of higher edu
cation.

Institutil>n and Federal allocation.
College of W1l11am and Mary, Wll

llaxnsburg: Training for school
guidance counselors, and teachers_ $9, 093

Ferrum Junior College, Ferrum: In
struction for recreational leaders_ 7,860

Hampton Institute, Hampton:
Seminar for part-time welfarepersonnel 5,793

Training of practical nurses for
social work____________________ 5.766

Medical College of Virginia, Rich-
mond:

Video-tapes-medical education
for hospitals and community__ 15,000

Physician continuing education in
problexns of disadvantaged_____ 7, 500

Richmond Professil>nal Institute,
Richmond:

Workshop in human relations for
subprofessional recreation lead-
ers 6,785

Telecasts for teachers of problemchlldren 9,000
University of Richmond, Richmond:

Workshop for higher educatlon
community service planning_____ 8,931

University of Virginia, Charlottes-
vllle:

Cl>ntinuing education for opthal-mologists 7,057

Continuing educatil>n for medicalpersonnel 22,500

Workshl>p in "recreation for the
handicapped chlld" 1,861

Virginia Polytechnic Institute,
Blacksburg, Va.:

Civic workshop for neighbl>rhood
workers; problem solving sem-
inar for community leaders 13, 500

Continuing education in home
eCl>nomics 20,156

Virginia State College, Petersburg:
Consultation In human rela-
tions and development________ 19,500

Virginia State College, Norfolk: Bo-
clal action experience for' wel-
fare clientele__________________ 23, 194

Virginia Union University, Rich-
mond: Education in Federal
prl>grams for disadvantaged___ 18,458

Total 201,954

Administrative Cl>Sts_______________ 6,048

Total Federal allocatloIl.. 208,002

WASHINGTON

The authorized State agency in Washing
ton Is the Department l>f Commerce and
Economic Devell>pment. It has approved the
fl>l1l>W1ng service projects to be conducted
by institutions of higher educatil>n.

Institution and Federal allocation
University of Washington, Seattle:

Inservice training for city offi-
cials $5,479

Conference to review the prob-
lem of legal counsel for theIndigent 7,751

Citizens conference for imprOVedgovernxnent 6,978

Imprl>ve legal knl>wledge of mag-istrates 3, 654

Conference of juvenlle court
jUdges, to devell>p uniform
court prl>Cedures______________ 3,611

Inservlce training on conservation
and beautification to highwayplanners II, 160

Western Washington State College,
Bellingham:

Publlc service TV broadcasts on
water pollution_______________ 4,830

Counsellng to State on long-
range economic planning______ 8,260

Publlc education for teachers and
parents to prevent dropouts___ 11,734

Washingtl>n State University, Pull-
man: Inservlce training fornurses 19,498

Eastern Washington State College,
Cheney:

Conferences on Government op
erations-c1ty and county inthe Spokane area 17.450

Community leadership tralning
on metropolltan problems_____ 24, 113

Everett Junior College, Everett:
Seminar serles on sanitation,
housing. traffic control, and racerelatll>ns 9,044

Gonzaga University, Spokane: Semi.
nar series on accelerating eco-noInlc growth 25.828

Tacoma Cl>mmunity Cl>llege: Train-
ing program in law enforcement_ 5,587

Total 164,977

Administrative costs______________ 8.401

Total Federal allocatlon 173,378

WEST VIRGINIA

The authorized State agency in West Vir
ginia is the Bl>ard of Governors, West Vir
ginia University, It has approved the fl>llow
ing community service projects tl> be con
ducted by instltutlons of higher education.

Institution and Federal allocatiOn
West Virginia University. Morgan

town, Bethany College. Wheeling
College:

Training for citizens and l>ff1cials
for better governxnent:Prl>ject 1 $48,896

Prl>ject 2______________________ 3.420
Project 3______________________ 3,600

West Vlrglnia University. Wheellng
College:

Training for government officials
in the technique and relevance
l>f planning:Prl>ject 1 13,369

FToject2______________________ 1,242
West Virginia University. Bethany

College:
Imprl>vement l>f intergovernment

cooperatil>n in community
problem solving:Project 1 35,297

Project 2______________________ 3,897
West Virginia University: Research

and workshops in the University,
businesses, schools, labl>r, and gl>V
ernment agencies, to explore new
posslbUlties l>f community service_ 24,443

Tl>tal 134,164

Admlnlstratlvecosts_______________ 10,946

Tl>tal Federal aJIocatlon 145,110
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Total Federal allocation 108,359

Total 83,359
Administrative costs______________ 25,000

EXHmrr 3
PREPARED STATEMENT OF J. GRAHAM SULLIVAN,

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF EDUCA
TION, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCA
TION, AND WELFARE

Institution and Federal allocation-Con.
University of Wyoming, etc.-eontinued

Educational programs in local
government responslbll1ties andtechniques $27,366

Conferences and visits for de
velopment of mass communica-
tion media___________________ 26,408

Ity applicants for the Teacher Corps exceeded
authorized positions by more ethan 8 to 1.
Ten thousand applicants sought the job of
helping raise the ,educational level of disad
vantaged children.

Although we are doing much through Title
I of the Elementary and Secondary Education
Act to assist local school districts Is support
Ing teacher specialists and aides and en
riched remedial classes, the Teacher Corps
is a necessary complement to that program.
It taps a vast rellervoir of talent from all over
the country to be channeled to the areas of
greatest need. The fact Is that schools in
poor areas face the almost impossible task of
attracting and retaining good teaching staff.
As teachers originally assigned to schools in
disadvantaged areas acquire seniority. they
all too often transfer to other schools with
better working conditions and a stUdent
body easier to teach. The Teacher Corps
through its nationwide recruitment of college
graduates commits teacher-Interns to at least
2 years of service in schools with 60 percent
or better of the stUdent population coming
from low-Income famllles. In fact, the
Teacher Corps has recruited such dedicated
people that a recent National Education As
sociation survey pointed out 81 percent of the
volunteers planned to continue teaching
children In poverty schools.' After recruiting
this raw talent, the Teacher Corps In co
operation With State educational agencies
and universities made arrangements for pre
service training. The experienced teacher
volunteers worked alongside the college grad_
uates In developing and refining their knowl
edge of how to reach and teach the poor
child.

When preservlce training was completed,
277 teams under the continued guidance of
268 team leaders were ready for action In the
field.

During the past school year, these Teacher
Corps members have been at work In 275
schools In 111 school districts located In 29
States, the District of Columbia and Puerto
Rico. Each team has served only at the re
quest of a local school system. Nine hundred
and forty-five of the members are teacher
interns receiving advanced training at 60 col
leges and universities. They spend part of
every week working in an elementary or
secondary school and part at, a nearby uni
versity working toward their Master's degree.
The interns come' from a wide variety of
background-,-gome volunteered immediately
after completing college--others worked for
a few years first. They include Peace Corps
'vOlunteers, secretaries, VISTA workers,
writers, artists, and others. More than 75 per_
cent majored in SUbject fields other than
education.

The team leaders represent a different
facet of the Corps. For the most part, they
were nominated for the Corps by their prin
cipals and superintendents because they were
the most talented teachers In their . own
schools. They are certified, usually have a
Master's degree, and have taught In slum
schools for about 5 years. The responslbllity
for the Corps'steady progress depends on
them. The team leaders' classrooms are often
used as learning laboratories for interns and
for any regular teachers who wish to observe.
They supervise three to ten' teacher-Interns.
During both preservice and inservice train
Ing It Is their job to share the lessons they
have learned frc;>m previous years of teaching
youngsters from deprived areas.

Among the school systems that requested
Teacher Corps teams are 20 of the Nation's
25 largest cities: New York, Chicago, Detroit,
Houston,New Orleans, Cleveland, San .Dlego,
Buffalo, Memphis, and others. Corps members
are,also teaching in the rural sChools of Ap
pa1acllia ~ndt1).e Ozarks, andin the Spanlsh
speaking communities of Florida, California,
and the Southwest., They are working With
the children of migrant laborers, Indians, and
Spanish-Ainerlcan imniigrants. Seventy per
cent of the teams are engaged In preschool

••••
We have proposed inclusion of the entire

Teacher Corps authorization In this title be
cause we think that the corps has proven it
self a significant part of the Nation's arsenal
In the war against Illiteracy and educational
deprivation, a war In which Title I Is a major
weapon.

Last fall, during the early weeks of the
school year, the Nation faced With an un
precedented shortage of almost 170,000 quali
fied teachers. Some of our major cities were
short as many as 2,000 teachers on the open
ing day of school. As expected, these teacher
shortages were most acute in the urban
slums and depressed rural areas. In the ele
mentary schools of Philadelphia's ghettos,
the teacher vacancy rate was apprOXimately
20 percent or almost twice as high as the
vacancy rates of other schools In the district.
Moreover, It has been concluded through
various reports and studies that simply filling
such teacher vacancies wlll not solve the
problems of education In ghetto schools. The
January report of the National Advisory
Council on the Education of Disadvantaged
Children stressed the need for-

(1) Adapting academic content to the spe
cial problems of the disadvantaged child.

(2) Improving and expanding Inservlce
training of teachers.

(3) Involving parents and the communlty
at-large In school programs.

These fundamental points are embodied In
the Teacher Corps Training program which
combines the follOWing elements:

Graduate training aimed at preparing
teacher-interns to develop academic mate
rials and techniques relevant to the deprived
students;

Supplementary teacher-related responsi
billtles, in pUblic school classrooms which
constitute an unprecedented two-year Inserv
Ice training period;

Community participation through which
the Intern not only becomes famlllar with
the sociology of poverty, but also becomes in
timately acquainted with the community in
Which he Is serving.

The Teacher Corps stands as the only na
tionwide effort specifically designed to at
tract and prepare men and women for highly
skllled professional performance in serving
disadvantaged children In our urban and
rural schools.

From its Inception, the Teacher Corps has
appealed to men and women who conscien
tiously desire to teach youngsters for whom
education has often missed the mark.
Through the vehicle of nationWide recrUit
Ing, it has been possible for the Teacher
Corps to attract recent college graduates who
would never have been reached through local
recruitment efforts alone--men and women
who have become committed to developing
a skillin teaching disadvantaged children. It
'has evoked the pride of experienced teacher
volunteers Who specifically sought the chil
dren. It has evoked the pride of experienced
teacher-volunteers who specifically sought
the challenge of this difficult task most peo
ple shun. In fact, the number of high qual-

Institution and Federal allocation
University of Wyoming, Casper Col

lege, Goshen County Com
munity College, Northern Wyo
ming Community College,
Northwest Community College,
Western Wyoming Community
College:

Conferences and visits to combat
migration of the young $29,684

Total program allocatlons 195,671
Administration of State plan_______ 5,950

Total Federal funds allocatedtoState__c 201,621

WYOMING

The authorlzeC: State agency In Wyo
ming Is the Board of Trustees of the Uni
versity of. Wyoming. It ha,s approved the
following community service projects to be
conducted by institutions of higher educa
tion.

WISCONSIN

The authorized state agency In Wiscon
sin is the Board of Regents of the University
of Wisconsin. It has approved the folloWing
community service projects to be conducted
by Institutions of higher education.

Institution and Federal allocation
Marquette University:

SuperVisory development training
program for Metropolitan Mil-
waukee police personneL______ $4,965

Leadership training In youth rec-
reational programs____________ 862

Universities community educa-
tional services for metropolitanareas 18,819

Milwaukee Institute of Technology:
The world of work-vocational

guidance through televlslon____ 8,000
Wisconsin State University (Osh

kosh): Fox River Valley Career
Development & Resource Cen-ter 35,800

Wisconsin State University (Platte
Ville):

Problems of law enforcement In
rural areas___________________ 3,124

Rural local governments' admin
Istrative problems, regional
planning, and cooperatlon_____ 2,000

Wisconsin State University (Superi
or) : Punched card data processing
for community administrativepersonne: 492

Wisconsin State University (Stevens
Point): Stevens Point area plan-ning project ~ 3,000

University of Wisconsin-Center
(Green Bay): Development of
children's drama program In 10
northeast Wisconsin communi-ties 17,763

University of Wisconsln-eenter
(Wood County): Compilation and
dissemination of cultural Infor-
mation In Quad City area_______ 6,000

University of Wisconsin Extension:
Medical audiOVisual Instructionalprograms 12,942

Residential seminar of local gov
ernment admlnistrators________ 7,441

Family Financial Counseling Cen-
ter of Metropolitan Milwaukee__ 23,970

Clergy urban reorientation effort-_ 11,850
Paint Box Art Center-.,.Nelghbor-

hood art center demonstratlon__ 10,343
Developing an extension course for

libraryalds ------------ 5, 172
Study of higher education commu-

nity service and continuing edu-
cation processes_______________ 6,525

University of Wisconsin (Mil
waukee) :

School boards and school prob-
lems: A clinical approachc_____ 9,002

Continuing education for deafadults 8,601
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and elementary school projects; the re
mainder deals with secondary school
children.

The Teacher Corps is this country's first,
full-scale teacher internship program. The
two-year combined Ilreservice and inservice
program incorporates year: round academic
instruction with, practical' classroom experi
ence. It develops a competency and interest
on the part of trainees which eives them the
incentive' to continue tea.ching and reinforces
the conviction that the disadvantaged can
be educated.

The Teacher Corps' program is also gen
erating new insights into teacher prepara
tion. The most recent report of the National
Advisory Council on the Education of the
Disadvantaged dated April 20, stated that-

"Of the 11 universities visited, 6 had modi
fied their courses to include some special
material on the education of disadvantaged
children. Ten were reported as having the
enthusiastic support of the university fac
Ulties associated with them for the training
programs...

The report also stated: "The practical ex
'perience of Corps members is providing use
'ful substance for the university seminars and
'is having a beneficial effect on other courses."

These changes have been brought about
because colleges and universities are intro
ducing into the regular teacher education
programs promising innovations learned in
the Teacher Corps training centers.

Concerning these training programs, let me
again quote from' the Advisory Council Re
port:

"The National Teacher" Corps has proved
itself a usefUl weapon in the attack on the
disadvantages under Which all too many
American children labor. The direct effect on
the children with whom the Corpsmembers
work would be justification enough to con
tinue that work. But the' Corps w1ll quite
clearly have other effects as well. The most
significant of these may very well be its in
fiuence on the capacity of the educa
tional systems of the universities to reach
those children who have been most grievously
neglected"~ ,

Let me emphasize that the, distinctive
characteristic of the Teacher Corps Is that
the training programs are diverse and are de
veloped along with service aspects so as to be
'truly responsible to local needs. The resources
of the community and the particular needs
of its schools are brought to bear, on the
kinds of teacher training programs which the
Corpsmembers are receiving. ,

I have touched on some of the educational
reasons which I' believe make the Teacher
Corps at present a unique program worthy of
expansion. • • •

But even with the tripling of the program,
the Teacher Corps will not solve the teacher
shortage nor will it find all the solutions to
the problem of educating the disadvantaged.
But it will help. It is already having a healthy
influence on teacher education programs in
our institutions of higher education. It will
bring new people into poverty schools who
otherwise woUld not have prepared for a
career in education. It will offer these schools
supplementary presonnel during the two
year traIning period, and many wUl be in
terested in continuing to teach disadvan
taged children who' would not have made
that commitment Without the Teachers
Corps experience. It will reduce the burden
upon the regula.r classroom teacher. It wlll
prOVide an apprentice teacher who can give
youngsters the individual instruction and
attention they need. And, the Teacher Corps
will provide anew source of superbly trained
teachers to those schools which need them
the most but have the least.

Finally, I support the stateInentof Presi
dent Mered1th Wilson who chairs the Advis
ory Council to whose reports I have so often
referred: ,: '

"The National Teacher, Corps is too, badly
needed and too promising to be either dis-

continued or treated as a temporary stop
gap. Of all present investments of pUbUc
effort, few are likely to yield so large a re
turn."

If it meets with the pleasure of the Com
mittee Mr. Chairman, I would like at this
'time to ask Mr. Richard Graham to elaborate
upon the operation of the Teacher Corps and
its first year in action.

PREPARED STATEMENT OF!lAROLD HoWE U, U.S.
COMMISSIONER OF EDUCATION, DEPARTMENT
OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE

• • • • •
EXTENSION OF THE TEACHER CORPS

I have already appeared before this Sub
committee on May 25 in support of the
Teacher Corps and its extension, with amend
ments, beyond the end of this fiscal year. I
would like to reemphasize the significance Of
the Teacher Corps as a part of the Nation's
arsenal in the war against Illiteracy and
educational deprivation. This is a promising
program; it should be continued.

The need for this program has been well
documented. Last fall, the Nation faced an
unprecedented shortage of almost 170,000
qualified teachers. Our urban slums and de
pressed rural areas felt the greatest impact
of this shortage. Many educators have
strongly supported an increase and improved
program of support of this program by the
Federal Government, designed to attract and
prepare men and women for teaching in
schools serving disadvantaged children.

The Teacher Corps was not funded in its
first year of existence. A relatively small sup
plemental appropriation for fiscal year 1966
enabled it to become a reality.

1,213 Teacher Corps members are teaching
inlll school districts serving 275 schools
across the Nation.

They are teaching in 29 States, the Dis
trict of Columbia, and Puerto Rico.

More than 900 of these Corps members are
teacher-interns receiving advanced training
at 50 colleges and universities.

The House Committee on Education and
Labor only three days ago reported H.R.
10943, Which would extend the authorization
for the Teacher Corps for three years, through
fiscal year 1970, and would make the follow
ing major changes:

(1) Local educational agencies would be
given the responsibUlty to recrUit, select, and
enroll Teacher Corps members.

(2) The State educational agency would
be required to approve a local educational
agency's request for Corps members and the
arrangements for their training.

(3) Federal contributions for Teacher
Corps salaries would be based on the local
educational agency's ab1l1ty to pay. The Fed
eral share would be limited to 90 percent,
except in exceptional cases.

(4) Teacher-interns would be paid at the
rate of $75 per week plus $15 per dependent.
or at the lowest rate for teaching full-time
in the school system in which they teach,
Whichever is less.

(5) StUdents in their third and fourth year
of undergraduate study would be eligible to
become teacher-interns.

(6) The name of the program would be
changed from the National Teacher Corps to
the Teacher Corps.

(7) Tea.cher Corps teams could be assigned
to a migrant group whose children are not
enrolled in a regular school.

(8) Teacher Corps teams could be assigned
to schools for Indian children operated by
the Bureau of IIidian Affairs.

Certain other amendments to the Teacher
Corps program are also contained in H.R.
10943. These include a revision in the method
of allocating the program throughout the
States and a prohibition against participa
tion by Teacher Corps members in the NDEA
student loan program and the educational
~OPPOrtun1ty grant program during the time
in Which they are enrolled in the Corps. For
these purposes, H.R. 10943 authorizes an

appropriation of $33 mUlion for fiscal year
1968, $46 million for fiscal )'ear 1969, and $56
milUon for fiscal year 1970.

Without this legislation, the Teacher Corps
would die at the end of this fiscal year. The
time and effort which have been put into
recruitment, "training, and placement of
Corps members would be wasted. Even worse,
the promise of better education made to the
children of the ghetto and, of remote rural
a.reas would be broken. This must not
happen.

The OIDce of Education has carefully
stUdied the changes in the Teacher
Corps proposed in HE. 10943. Several are
identical to those contaIned in S. 1125.
Others were developed by the House Com
mittee on Education and Labor with my
cooperation and with that of Mr. Graham.
I believe they are, in every case, consistent
with the original objectives of the Corps, as
conceived by the Congress in 1965. With these
amendments, the Teacher Corps wUl continue
to be an effective instrument, both for
strengthening educational opportunity in
depressed urban and rural areas and for
broadening and improving teacher prepara
tion programs thOUghout the Nation.

In summary, these proposals represent
significant additions to and refinements of
existing legislation. The programs contained
in this legislation do not call for dramatic
new levels of funding, but they do promise
more effective use of existing authorizations.
They do not in every instance possess the
glamor of innovation, but they do promise
the benefits of consolidation. They are most
worthy of your consideration, and I urge
their approval by this Subcommittee and the
Congress.

I appreciate the opportunity to appear
before you this morning. I will be happy to
answer any questions you may care to ask.

NEED Foa ADDITIONAL NUMBER OF TEACHERS
(OFFICE OF EDUCATION)

The current shortage of teachers makes
it imperative that we accelerate our efforts
to increase the supplY of elementary and
secondary school personnel. Research stUdies
show that the elementary and secondary
education teacher shortage is grave and
likely to continue, especially in selected criti
cal fields.

It is expected that the public schools of
the United States will continue to expand
their enrollments at the rate of approxi
mately one million students per year. This
will necessitate an increase of about 50,000
new teachers each year to accommodate this

, increase. We must aiso be prepared to train
enough new teachers to replace those who
will be retiring each year and those who
leave the profession for various reasons. This
figure is estimated to be about 175,000.
Approximately 30,000 new teachers are
needed to relieve overcrowding and elimi
nate part-time sessions. If we are to provide
for desirable instruction and services not
now prOVided we would need to add about
20,000 additional teachers. A serious effort
should also be made to replace those per
sons now teaching win a substandard certif
icate. Approximately 10,000 such teachers
are now employed.

On the basis of the above figures it appears
that apprOXimately 285,000 new teachers will
be needed each year if we are to meet the
current teacher shortage. This is far more
than is currently entering the profession
each year.

The greatest shortage of teachers is in
the elementary schools. This condition is
likely to continue. The preponderance of
the instructional task is centered in the ele
menta.ry school and is likely to increase in
size and scope as the demand for nursery
school and kindergarten increases. It has

.prov&i to be more diIDcult to encourage
students to prepare for elementary school
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ITEM 1. TEACHER CORPS OBLIGATIONS

teaching than for secondary school teach
Ing.

Sincerely yours,
J. GRAHAM SULLIVAI'i"

(For Harold Howe, II,
U.S. Commissioner of Education) •

I Fiscal year 1967 payments to Corps members for travel
expenses and the costs of moving household goods and de
pendents are not included in the Stale distributions. Addition
of lhese items will raise estimated 1967 obligations to $7,500,000.

ITEM 2

Macy, Nebraska, is the home of the Omaha
Indians. In Macy, four Interns and their

can be funded through the local· school's
Title I funds. This amendment merely allows
local schools to utilize Teacher Corpsmen in
the same manner.

ITEM'"
Comments on the Teacher Corps

I belleve tha.t the. National Teacher Corps
is one of the very best of all the new pro
gra.IIllI In education. I am constantlyobserv
Ing the fine fruits of this organization-Jack
J. Efurd, Superintendent, Gentry Publ1c
Schools, Gentry, Arkansas.

There is no aspect of our society that needs
more serious attention than that of edu
cation. There Is no aspect of education that
needs more serious attention than teacher
training. There Is no aspect of teacher train·
Ing that needs more attention than the en
couragement of young people to enter the
teaching profession. The National Teacher
Corps is an exciting new attempt to provide
the encouragement needed for young people
to enter teaching.-William N. McGowan.
Executive Secretary, Cal1fornla Association
of Secondary School AdIninlstrators, Burlin
game, California.

For the past four years my principal as
signment has been working with and de
veloping projects that have either been
funded through Federal or State sources. I
have seen many projects in operation, but
as far as I am concerned the Teacher Corps
stands far in the forefront as an excellent
example of a joint partnership between the
local school district, the University and the
Federal government. The dedication and com
mitment on the l>art of the Corps members
is truly outstanding. The Corps is a beacon
light for those of us who have worked for
many years in disadvantaged areas. Don't
allow thisllght to burn out.-Don Hodes,
Assistant Superintendent, Enterprise City
School District, Compton, Callfornla.

Teachers and residents of the Willowbrook
School District are requestingadditlonal
teaIns of National Teacher Corpsmen. Their
abiUty to work with teachers, parents and
pupils has strengthened the total educational
program. We have never witnessed such radi
cal changes in a school district in such a
short period of tlme.-'-Thurman C. Johnson,
Assistant Superintendent, Special Projects,
Willowbrook School District, Los Angeles,
Cal1fornia.

The program Is an excellent one, for it has
brought into the field of education people
who are very much interested in the educa~

tlonal program for the disadvantaged. In
order to really evaluate the success or failure
of the program, it should be extended.

I would recommend· that the school dis
trict be brought in to aid in the program of
the interns' university work. There Is a need
for much closer communication with the
university and also to strengthen the role
of the team leader.-Robert L. Seaton, Di
rector, Special Projects, Jurupa·· Unified
School District, Riverside, California.

The National Teacher Corps offers an out
standing opportunity to use a full year or
more of Intensive traJnlng or internship for
potential teachers. ThIs method of develop
ing creative young people into profeSsional
educators to meet 'one of our country's great
needs is il1li'erative.

Unfortunately Colorado 'does not, have a
program operating by which.direct compari
son can be made.-earl E. Slatt, Director Spe
cial Services,' Sheridan Publ1cSchools, Fort
Logan, Colorado.

My major reason for writing this letter Is
to suggest that as your program expands you
Inight· find members of the Teacher' Corps
who Inight be interested In coIning to Hart
ford. When and it this occurS'· we will co
operat9 in every way. Perhaps as l>eople leave
the Teacher Corps they maybe looking for
permanent positions. It they are, I hope you
will place Hartford on your llst, for we will
be Interested in people who have warmth,

team leader were asked to serve a school of
299 pupils staffed by 13 teachers, Oniy six of
Whom held B.A. degrees. They discovered
that the nearest library was In Sioux City,
Iowa, some 30 miles west, and that Nebraska
residents weren't eligible to take out books.

The Macy community itself Is not unilke
many reservation towns. Sixty-seven percent
of its popUlation Is unemployed. Most of
the families llve on Incomes of less than
$2,000 annually. Many of the households
have no electricity. Few of the streets are
paved; roads turn to mud at the mention of
rain.

Dropout rates after eighth grade were
astonishingly high. Only 70 pupils from Macy
were commuting the ten Iniles to the near
est high school. Youngsters who earn their
high school diploma are the exception. For
most of the young, this is the Indian cycle
of poverty: After eighth grade, (all that is
required by Nebraska law) , the dropout wan
ders into one of the nearby popuiation cen
ters. Lacking sk111s, he finds no employment
and cannot apply for welfare because he
is not a resident. Eventually he returns to
the reservation to spend the rest Of his llfe
listless, unemployed, a ward of the U.s.
Government.

The Teacher Corps team, under the lead
ership of veteran teacher Steve Larsen, set
up shop at Macy in a burned-out and aban
doned Tribal Council building. They painted
and refurnished one wing.

They raised funds to bUy 700 books, the
nucleus of a llbrary-Macy's first. They kept
the building open evenings as a stUdy center.
Now, chlldren from homes without lights
come to stUdy, and to read the new books.

Larsen, a speech tl:erapist, began working
with small groups With reading problem~

a program Vital to any isolated Indian com
munity. Corps members also worked towards
establlshlng rapport with the children and
their parents. A new experience for many
Indian famUles was to have a teacher visit
their hOlIIes, not to punish the pUPil, but to
help him. Equally novel was the pupil's visit
to the home of the Corpsman. Many chlldren
saw as much of the Corpsmen outside of
school as Inside.

Have they any measurable results? How
have the Corpsmen been accepted?

Victor Robinson, former member of all
Indian Macy Board of Education said, "It is
such a big help. I think all reservations In
the United States should have (Teacher
Corps) teams." Mr. Eddy CUne, also member
of the Macy Board of Education, "I am sure
that it we would choose to do so, we could
go out and get 99% of the parents in our
community to sign a petition that the Na
tiOlial Teacher Corps should be continued."
Bureau of Indian Affairs officers in Washing
ton are quick to add their approval for the
Corps. Bureau Commissioner Robert L. Ben
nett says, "There is a need for dedicated
people sympathetic to the special needs of
Indian children to be trained to work In the
local schools." As the Bureau transfers its
educational responslblUtles to local school
districts, the need for especially trained
teachers will be intensified. "At Macy, and
in other schools serving Indian chlldren,
those involved In Teacher Corps prograIns
are demonstrating a desire and an abiUty to
help meet our needs and to do so at low
costs."

ITEM 3

The purpose of Including an authority for
the Teacher Corps to work with "private
agencies" 1 Involved in education of children
of migrant workers is to bring Teacher
Corps into llne with present Title I author
ity. Under Title I a local school can provide
teachers to a private agency which has a
migrant project and this cooperative effort

1 The term "private agency" does not refer
to private schools.

Fiscal year
1967,1

estimated

Fiscal year
1966
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.- .._------- .- .._--- .. _---
-_._-------- ... -- --i3;565
···'·i3j;484 98,216

517,406 176,708
237,614 155,100

--'--305;8i1 · ..···342;i38
37,500 51,168

138,445 164,337
405,828 484,482
121,767 170,662
91,794 64,704

----·i04;955 """Ui;94i
386,468 437,965

--._---_ ...- .......... ---_.
·····lS9;m ·······si;45i
'----1io;ii61 '··-·'i8S;Oj3

133,016 173,484
------.- ..... ..._ ....... --- ..
.._---.- ..... .- ...... _-_._.
. __ ...._... - --.._-_. __.- ..
'--·'1iii;30i ··-"-'86;399
------.----- --------_ .....

6,324,937 7,385,311

State or area

Alabama...•.....•.........•
Alaska ..................•..
Arizona _.. _ _.
Arkansas.•.• __ _ _.
California. _ _ .
Colorado _ _.. _..•.•
Connecticut. .. _......•......
oelaware_ .. , __
District of COlumbia.......• _.
Florida _.._•.... _ .

~:O::ii~·..~.-:::::::::::::::::
Idaho_ .....__ _. __ .• _.•..
Illinois...•.,. _ _...•.•...
Indiana.••.""" _.. _......•
lowa _ _. _......•..
Kansas•......."""""'"
Kentucky........•_ .
Louisiana _...•......
Maine..................•..•
MarYland...•....•...... __ ..
Massachusetts _. __ . _ .
Michigan...•,_ , ..•..•..•
Minnesota .•_.••.•_ .
Mississippi.. .......•......._
MiSSOUri _ _... _....•..
Montana '_"""'"
Nebraska...••...._.. _.....•
Nevada.....•...............
New Hampshire.. __ .. _ .
New Jersey................•
New Mexico_.__ ............•
New York_. .._ .
North Carolina..•.. _ .
North oakola ._._ .
Ohio.•• _.. __ .
Oklahoma._.__ . _ _
0regon- . __ . _ __ .
Pennsylvania._. _. ._. _..
Rhode Island __ _...•
South Carolina_ _..•.
Soulh oakola._ _....•
Tennessee...• ._ .
Texas_. ... _............•
Utah. _. __ ....••__ _._ .•._
Vermon!.._••.•.. _._ _._
Virginia __ ._..•. _. __ _._._
Washington_._. _. _. __ .. _ .
W~st Vi~ginia .•.. --- ... - -
WlsconSln_.•_ .. ' _ _.
Wyoming.-_ .....•.••
U.S. service schools_._ .
Canal Zone_... .• _._•••••
Guam..•• __ • ... •.. _
Puerto Rico_._._. __ ....••.• _
Virgin Islands ._._ .•...

Total..•....... __ ...._

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCA
TION, AND WELFARE, OFFICE 01'

EDUCATION,
Washington, D.C., May 15, 1967.

Hon. WAYNE MORSE,
U.S. Senate,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR SENATOR MORSE: On the basis of dis
cussions held on April 5, 1967, between your
educational staff specialists, Charles Lee and
'Jack Forsythe, and Office of Education per
sonnel, it gives me pleasure to forward all
information requested concerning the Teach
er Corps.

Requests regardlng information concerning
Teacher Corps financial obllgations, Corps
activities among Indians, Corps operations
within the Migrant Amendment to Title I,
and unsollcited testimonials concerning the
Teacher Corps are enclosed.

If clarification of any information is de
sired, we shall be glad to be of further assist
ance.
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concern, and a. special love for kids.-Medlll
Blair, Superintendent of Schools, Hartford,
Connecticut.

We believe the National Teacher Corps is
serving several needs in education. 1. Many
who would not otherwise enter teaching, are
enrolled and are getting very fine training.
2. Children are receiving more individual help
and direction which is alreadyprovlng worth
while in our schools here in Centralia. 3. The
use of Corps teachers is causing services to
be given to· students and teachers which
could.l1ot be given in the past for lack of
personnel. The value is now obvious· and
Boards·· of .Education. will provide some· of
these services to their schools in the future.
4. By having 21 Corps members in our
schools, we have seen orientation and inno
vation· really in operation. This is good, I
belleve, .since we're prone to continue ex
actly the same year after year. Teachers who
hardly knew how to use assistance are def
initely expanding their room· programs, to
the good of the youngsters.-W. E. McAlllster,
Superintendent, Centralia City School, Cen
tralia, Illinois. .

The AFT is stlll keenly interested in the
National Teacher Corps and we wlll do every
thing possible to help make the NTC a vital
force in American education. • • •

Confusion regarding the purpose of the
Teacher Corps has been responsible for much
of the opposltionto it. Teacher professional
ists have feared that poorly trained young
sters trying to teach on enthusiasm alone
wlll be put into positions which should be
filled by. fUlly certificated teachers. • • •
Other opponents. have claimed that the
Corps takes teachers· out of the classroom
instead of putting more teachers to work.

• • • The NTC should not be in the busi
ness. of supplying "cannon fodder" for the
high casualty sectors of the educational wars.
Instead, the Corps shOUld be a training
ground for highly motivated and specially
prepared new teachers who could not only
survive but could also succeed in their edu
cational missions. • • •. The NTC wlll begin
to inject better prepared additional teach
ers into the nation's teaching force beginning
with the 1968--69 school year, and the Job
cannot be done in any less time. Teacher
Corps graduates can be expected to be more
likely to make teaching their career than
would teachers who have not had the' ben
efit of such. training. Thus teacher turnover
would be reduced, and the total number of
active teachers would be increased.

Experience has shown that it is wasteful
to send beginning teachers with only a term
of practice teaching into the schools on a
:link-or-swim basis. The National Teacher
Corps can perform a function not now being
done adequately by our teacher training
institutions. Furthermore, this is the proper
function of the Corps, a function which filis
a great and pressing national need.-Charles
Cogen, President, American Federation of
Teachers, Chicago, Illinois.

The Citizens Schools Committee voted at
its board meeting of January 4 that it "af
firm continuation. of the National Teacher
Corps," and that a committee be appointed
to plan procedures toward this end.-Robert
J. Ahrens, President, Chicago Citizens SChools
Committee, Chicago, Ilunois.

As an administrator in charge of two
(Teacher Corps) teams functioning in our
school district, I am not Just a casual ob
server. The work of the interns has been well
accepted by the children and teachers in our
schools.

The head-teacher (team leader) consti
tutes a weak link in the program.-H. T.
Peterson, Special Assistant to the Superln
tnedent, Maywood Public SChools, Maywood,
Illlnois.

Wolfe County School System was denied
the N.T.C. for school year 1968--67 because
of no housing. We are very sorry, for we need
the program badlY.-:-Frank Rose, Superln-

tendent,. Wolfe County Schools, Compton,
Kentucky.

It is a little program that is making a big
difference in our system.-John W. Ambrose,
Acting Superintendent, Lexington City
Schools, LeXington, KentUCky.

The Teacher Corps has every mark of being
an effective and etncient means of solving
one of our most serious national problems.
It brings the university, the local education
agency, the teachers in service, and corps
men to grips With the real situation. Things
wlll never be the same once the Corps has
been there. We are all growing because of
the Teacher Corps.-8ister M. LOYOla, Direc
tor, Teacher Education, Xavier University,
New Orleans, Louisiana.

There are no National Teacher Corps per
sons in the State of Maine. We had applled,
but were refused because none were trained
for this area. We feel that the National
Teacher Corps could perform a definite serv
ice in our system and we hope that the pro
gram wlll be continued so that our children
wlll benefit.-Raymond Brennich, Superin
tendent of SChools, Madawaska, Maine.

I am writing this letter to you as a general
plea for the continuation of the National
Teacher Corps established under the Higher
Education Act of 1965. As a counselor to
stUdents in their. senior year of college, I
have an excellent opportunity to discuss
their career choices with them. As you may
realize, a significant portion of them are
interested in a teaching career. What may
interest you even more is that many of these
students want to be able to combine the
teaching experience with the more general
aspect of social service to the people in un
derdeveloped and impoverished areas. As the
federal programs stand presently, students
interested in such a program are forced to
go into the Peace Corps.

However, many stUdents feel that in addi
tion to the opportunities provided by the
Peace Corps, there are many places in the
United States (e.g.; Appalachia) which would
provide Just such an opportunity. At its in
ception, the National Teacher Corps satisfied
the need for this type of program. It com
bined all the good aspects of the teaching
profession with the needs of the impover
ished areas in this country. Students were
interested in the program when it was orga
nized and, if anything, they are even more
interested in it now. I hope that as the year
progresses, the need for the continuation of
this program will be realized and that it will
receive the support from the Congress that
it so rightly deserves.-Lawrence F. Stevens,
Assistant Director, Otnce for Graduate and
Career Plans, Harvard University, Cambridge,
Massachusetts.

Our participation in a program With the
National Teachers Corps has provided a new
avenue in which we might mutually attack
problems inherent in disadvantaged areas.

In the opinion of those of us working
closely with these problems, Corpsmen have
made a very vital contribution toward mak
ing life richer for the children of poverty.

I suggest (1) that during the two-year
period, a well structured, formalized practice
teaching period be incorporated; and (2)
that a much closer working relationship be
tween the local education agency and the
participating college be effected.--John E.
Deady. Superintendent of Schools, Spring
field Public Schools, Springfield, Massachu
setts.

We have some great people in our Teacher
Corps and I hope to find similar competence
in Minneapolis.--John B. Davis, Jr.; Former
Superintendent of SChools, Worcester Pub
lic SChoois. Worcester, Massachusetts; Su
perintendent of SChools, Minneapolis, Min
nesota.

We had the opportunity of having four
members of the National Teachers Corps
Join our staff in September of 1966. We have
found their sernces to be extremely helpful

and beneficial to the students with whom
they have been working.

The members of our team have a sincere
dedication to their work and their contribu
tions have been many.

They have worked with children with read
ing disablllties, offered opportunities in
creative dramatics, provided individual help
to students in Language Arts, participated
in an after school stUdy center, cooperated
with Head-Start teachers in creative dra
matics, worked with individuals and small
groups in elementary science projects and
given help to students in creative writing
activities.

We have found our Teacher Corps mem
bers to be very interested in this program
and have devoted many hours over and
above that normally expected in helping
stUdents they service.

As stated above, their contributions have
been many. We are prOUd to be a part of the
National Teacher Corps program and have
witnessed the progress children can make
under the guidance and Infiuence of people
in this program.-Robert E. Bailey, Assist
ant for Instruction, Oak Park School Dis
trict, Oak Park, Michigan.

The work of the three Teacher Corps teams
in the Pontiac area has been outstanding. As
a method of teacher training and commu
nity service it is one of the most useful in
novations implemented by the federal gov
ernment.-B. C. VanDoughnett. Director,
Community Action Programs, Pontiac School
District, Pontiac, Michigan.

I think the N.T.C. is a very fine program
and can do lots of good in our schools. It will
help train people to go into the teaching
profession that are needed so badly now. The
team we have in our county is doing a won
derful Job. I hope there will be money ap
propriated to continue this worthy pro
gram.-Carl Loftin, Superintendent, Marion
County Schools. Columbia. Mississippi.

The National Teacher Corps is the bright
est beam of hope the children on the (In
dian) reservation have yet seen. Our remote
locale and the low salaries we pay have im
peded our attempts to get qualified teach
ers.-Alfred Gilpin, President of Tribal Coun
cil, Member of the School Board, Macy, Ne
braska.

The Teacher Corps is one of the most
practical ways of training teachers specifi
cally for poverty and under-privileged chil
dren that I have encountered. It takes de
greed people who desire to serve in this
capacity and places them in situations where
they get practical experience in methods and
further attitude development. The Corps is
essential to metropolitan school districts be
cause no other agency is adequately facing
this problem in this time of teacher short
age. This work, which supplements the work
done at the colleges and universities, must
continue if we are to face the problem of
educating children in poverty area schools
at this time.-Paul J. Turnquist, Assistant
Superintendent, Omaha Public SChools,
Omaha, Nebraska.

I am most pleased to endorse the concept
of the National Teacher Corps. While we have
had a number of problems with the program
this first year in Trenton, we have been gen
erally pleased with the progress being made.
The inner city school today needs assistance
from the federal level in many ways, and the
National Teacher Corps is a dramatic way of
expressing federal concern for our problems.
The Teacher Corps team at our Jefferson
SChool is beginning to make a significant
contribution. We have recently set up a plan
ning committee in this school to assist this
team in learning better ways of meeting the
needs of the inner city child and in carrying
out a number of innovative programs.

My only suggestion is that there should be
more participation in the early staglll by the
public school personnel before a Teacher
Corps team is sent to a community.-Richard
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T. Beck, Superintendent of Schools, Trenton,
New Jersey.

The Teacher Corps team assigned to our
school district has been of outstanding help
In working with low-Income, Spanish-speak
Ing chlldren who are In need of extra help
and encouragement In school work. Addi
tionally, we view the Corps as an exception
ally practical way to prepare teachers who
have both the techniques and understanding
needed to work with such chlldren.

We feel that the team leader's salary Is set
too high. For example, our team leader is
paid more than the principal of the school
In which he works. Let me emphasize, how
ever, that the program has been very worth
whlle, and that our principal In this situation
would not for one moment give up his team
because of the compensation factors. It Is my
feellng that he Is being dealt with unfairly
when he contributes freely so much time and
effort on behalf of a group whose leader Is
being paid more than he Is for doing a much
smaller job.-James P. Miller, Assistant
Superintendent, Gadsden Independent
School District, Anthony, New Mexico.

We feel that the Teacher Corps team at
Hatch Valley Municipal School, Hatch, New
Mexico. Is fuifilllng the expectations we had
In requesting It.

.m personal qualities and professional dedi
cation the interns are the kind of prospec
tive teachers we are happy to employ.-M. E.
Linton. Superintendent, Hatch Valley Mu
nicipal School District No. 11, Hatch. New
Mexico.

I know an arithmetic teacher named Mr.
Fenton Strickland, Who is a Teacher Corps
Intern. He is a nice man. I llke when he
comes to get me to go With him. He never
scolds me, so I am gOOd with him. I am good
all the time and also I do my homework. He
only helps me with the problems. I do all the
rest. I hope that I can go to arithmetic with
him every day.-Anthony Strickland (no re
latlon), Sixth Grade, School 8. Buffalo. New
York.

Numerous Columbia students are Inquiring
at this otllce about the National Teacher
Corps. but we have been able to give them
little current Information. They are inter
ested In applying. but when I telephoned
headquarters last week they said the future
Is uncertain.

As far as Columbia University goes, the
uncertainty of your future programs Is a
shame, since National Teacher Corps appeals
to many here as a first-class Introduction to
teaching and service together. There is so
much enthusiasm for the program among
some of our best stUdents that we would hate
to see It founder. With what they could offer
the program and What the program could
offer them, we hope the kinks get ironed
out. Please keep us posted.-Rlchard M.
Gummere, Jr., Director, Career Planning DI
Vision, Columbia University, New York, New
York.

One of the most encouraging aspects of
education today Is the Interest Which both
professional teachers and enllghtened mem
bers of the community are taking In finding
better approaches to the solution of our
problems. It Is only natural, therefore, that
we shOUld be Interested In the National
Teacher Corps and What It Is trying to do not
only to Increase the supply of competent
teachers but also to stimulate further im
provement in those who are already teach
Ing.-Harry N. Rlvlln, Dean of the School of
Education. Fordham University, New York,
New York.

We have been pleased and Impressed with
the manner In which the National Teacher
Corps program Is operating at the present
time. Not only are the corpsmen being grad
ually Inducted Into the teaching profession.
but they have been getting fine training In
successful ways In Which to teach disad
vantaged children. Moreover, they have been
rendering valuable community service work-

ing directly with chlldren from the schools
to which they are assigned. We feel con
fident that at the end of their training pe
riod the corpsmen wlll develop into out
standing teachers of disadvantaged youth.

We suggest that the program be short
ened to consist of an Initial preservlce sum
mer program, a fUll schOol year of Intern
ship. and a second summer of course work.
At the end of this full calendar year the
corpsmen should be ready to take over full
time teaching asslgnments.-Theodore H.
Lang, Deputy Superintendent of Schools,
New York City, New York.

I should llke to call your attention to the
outstanding service the Teacher Corps Is
performing at our school. Not only are they
doing very effective work In their small
group Instruction, but they also help out In
time of special need or emergency situations.
They have been most helpful and coopera
tive. They have become good teachers and
are performing an essential service to the
school.-Joseph Strell, Principal, Publlc
School 155, New York, New York.

Whlle It Is too early to base support of
the National Teacher Corps on actual per
formance, there Is no doubt whatever as to
the usefUlness and the value of this pro
gram. Because of uncertainties over fund
Ing, ditllcultles were encountered In New
York City last summer but those teachers
who were trained and placed according to
preliminary reports. are living up to the
high expectations that accompanied the
plan.

NTC can make a tremendous contribution
to the Improvement of the education and
well-being of chlldren In the disadvantaged
areas of New York and other large cities
and It Is our fervent hope that Congress can
be brought to understand the Importance of
this project and to arrange for adequate
long-term support.-Frederick C. McLaugh
lin, Director, PUblic Education Association,
New York, New York.

We have the Teacher Corps In our school
system and It Is doing a wonderfUl job for
us. Corpsmen are helping the minority
groups In our school develop a better self
Image of themselves and also their work has
Improved Immensely with the aid of the
Corps. We have been able to offer many
things for these stUdents which we were un
able to do before this time.

I think It has been handled very well this
year. The only thing wrong was the delay
In funding the program Which caused a de
lay In our plans. However. I realize that It
was not your fault In this manner.-Marvln
Stokes, Superintendent of Schools. Byng
School, Ada, Oklahoma.

The team from the National Teacher Corps
that has been working In our school during
the 1966-67 school year Is doing fine work.
Corpsmen have assessed the school situation
here well and In most Instances have coop
erated In an excellent way with our school
faculty, students, parents. and other citi
zens of this community. I feel that It Is a
very worthwhlle program.-A. W. Barrett,
Superintendent, Konawa Public Schools.
Konawa, Oklahoma.

What we are doing at the college Is learn
Ing from National Teacher Corps. Oh, we are
teaching. We have some very good teachers
working with the Corpsmen. No dOUbt! But
more than that, we are learning. What Dr.
Sorber said about the already visible effects
of NTC upon our programming Is truer than
even he knows. Truer, perhaps than even I
know, but I do know that we are even now
planning to revise our total undergraduate
and graduate teacher education program.
The kinds of things we are learning through
NTC about Involving potential teachers with
people In the community-the kinds of
things we are learning about Involving po
tential teachers With other teachers In the
school In which these potential teachers are
working, and With administrators and stu-

dents in these schools, the kinds of things we
are learning about giving these people an
opportunity to use their own creative abUi
ties and intelligences instead of constantly
tell1ng them preciselY what it is that they
ought to do so that they can be made In our
mold. It is teaching us what we need to do in
teacher education. I think it's very safe to
predict that the fringe benefit of the NTC
money wlll be to revitalize teacher education
throughout the United States.-Leon Osview.
Assistant Dean, College of Education. Temple
University, Phlladelphla, Pennsylvania.

I can assure you that my staff and I shall
lend you our wholehearted support in your
efforts to make the National Teacher Corps a
program of excellence.-J.R. Rackley. Super
Intendent, Department of Public Instruction.
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. .

I have had the pleasure of seeing several of
our Teacher Corps teams In operation during
the past four months.

I have been delighted with their services to
the school, and especially their services to the
community.

I would very much like to see this program
not only continued but expanded greatly be
cause of What It Is doing to help disadvan
taged chlldren.-Thomas C. Roslca. Director
of Federal Programs, Board of Education, The
School District of Phlladelphla. Pennsylvania.

If the Corps should end tomorrow, the
College of Education at Temple would never
be the same. We are constantly Incorporating
the new techniques we've learned With
Teacher Corps Into the regular curriculum
for all education majors.-Dr. Evan Sorber,
Assistant Professor of Early Chlldhood and
Elementary Education. Assistant Director.
Teacher Corps Project, Temple University,
Phlladelphla, Pennsylvania.

Whlle the National Teacher 'Corps has been
plagued with a variety of problems. I am
one who stlll stands strongly,. behind the
program. It Is a fine beginning toward Im
proved practices of recruiting and training
of teaching personnel for schools In our
country serving substantial numbers of dis
advantaged boys and girls. I stlll look for
this program to change for the better but
I think It would be a mistake to stop what
we have begun.

You might well borrow the Presldent'3
phrase which he used Shortly after taking
otllce. "Let us continue,"-Phll1p Eby Mc
Pherson, Director of Development, Pitts
burgh Public Schools. Pittsburgh. Pennsyl
vania.

The Teacher Corps has been a boon In the
Moore Elementary School. Small groups work
Ing with the Interns have been provided with
Individualized Instruction In art, science and
reading. Teachers are delighted with their
competence and cooperation.

We hope that this Innovative program w1l1
continue and that we can secure the services
of more Interns.-Wheler Matthews, Princi
pal, Moore Elementary School, Sumter School
District #17, Sumter. South Carolina.

We are pleased to have a Teacher Corps
program In operation In our school district
and hope that the program will be con
tinued and, If possible, expanded.-Morgan
E. Evans, Superintendent, Galveston Inde
pendent School District, Galveston, Texas.

My school was fortunate In being able
to secure the services of two teachers from
the National Teacher Corps program. These
two teachers are working In our elementary
schools with chlldren from 'low Income fam
lIles. Marked' Improvement, after four
months. Is noted In the attitudes and learn
Ing processes of these chlldren as a result
of the work of these two Corps members.
My school's finances could not have made
possible the services of theSe teachers except
for the Teacher Corps.

I need one more teacher from the Teach
er Corps for high school work, especially
In· the field of choral music and speech.
F. C. Burnett,Superintendent, Fannlndel
'Schools, Ladonia, Texas.
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Our school has one Corps teacher. He is

working with seven teachers as a trainee
which relieves them for a few minutes each
day and helps over two hundred students
from grades one to six. The Corps makes this
possible. Just arrange for more.~John R.
Meadows, Superintendent, Simms Common
School District #6, Simms, Texas.

Staff members from two school systems
where the NTC members are employed have
stated that these new employees have en
riched their curriculum and express the de
sire to continue .the empioyment of Corps
members.-Rex Smith, State Superintendent
of Schools, West Virginia.

The National Teacher Corps as I know it
in my district has made a definite contri
bution to the education of educationally dis
advantaged children. An investment i,n edu
cation is' certainly not money misused.
Henry A. Ray, Assistant Superintendent,
'Wayne county Schools, Wayne, West
Virginia.

As principal of an inner city elementary
school, 1 have greatly appreciated our Teach
er Corps team and their efforts this year.
Being able to have greater individualization
of Instruction, starting community school
activities for our chlldren, and enriching the
experiences of disadvantaged youth are just
a few of the present benefits. The greatest
good wlll w1ll be realized when these specially
trained personnel become inner city teach
ers.-Roger M. Jones, Principal, Harfield
Elementary School, Racine, Wisconsin.

The Corpsmen come prepared to accept
the situation. They have a very realistic ap
proach to teaching, and their work on a one
to-one basis has lessened the demand on the
students who are beginning to think of the
school In a new. light--one of helpfulness.
The Corps is very important to this school.
Kenneth Place, Principal, Vieau School,
Milwaukee, Wisconsin.

ITEM 5

More comments on the Teacher Corps
Our Teacher Corpsmen have. made tre

mendous progress in remedial work and
speech therapy. They are providing services
in the community that could not have been
accomplished through regular school
finances.-T. O. Adams, Superintendent,
Nemo Vista Public School, Center Ridge,
Arkansas.

Our district feels the National Teacher
Corps is of great value to our students and
to our community as a whole. This group is
able to get to the heart of many problems
but better still-they are able to use preven
tive methods and prevent many things from
even becoming problems. Our regular teach
ing staff have great praise for these people,
as do our parents and community leaders.

These programs should always be set up on
a two year basis-giving both the school dis
tricts and National Teacher Corps a chance
for better planning and removing the un
certainty attached.-Arlene M. Bitely, Mem
ber, Garvey Board of Education, 1\10nterey
Park, California.

Should the Teacher Corps need affirma
tion of the continuing need for its existence
for endorsement of its merit and valuable
assistance to local education agencies pro
vided In the first year of operation, please do
not hesitate to call on me at any time.
Thomas J. Pollino, Director, Instructional
Development, Monterey County, Monterey,
California.

The ten corpsmen and the three team
leaders currently assigned to our school sys
tem are rendering significant educational
and community services to the high schools
where they are assigned. The principals have
expressed their Interest In the continuation
of the program and their appreciation of the
services renderd.

It would be helpful if the administrative
and fiscal arrangments could be settled
prior to the beginning of the program each

year. We realize that there were many exig
encies beyond the control of the Teacher
Corps staff and that you did the best you
could under difficult clrcumstances.-George
F. Osthelmer, General Superintendent, In
dianapolis Public Schools, Indianapolis, In
diana.

It is one of the greatest training pograms
I have ever witnessed because it gives the
trainees experiences that they would never
have gotten in a normal training program.
The Teacher Corps has helped to interrelate
the various communities. We have six dis
tinct types who have only these things in
coIrimon: one parent, distrust and aggressive
behavior.

Corpsmen have organized many additional
after-school clubs (Corpsmen carry from
two to three clubs per week) and taken over
the noon lunch program where they have
introduced a variety of activitlell to break
the routIne of that program.-Robert Wag
ner, Principal, Heinhold Junior High School,
Cincinnati, Ohio.

Lincoln Heights Local School District in
Cincinnati should be saturated With Corps
men.-Dr. William L. Carter, Dean, School
of Equcation, Teacher Corps Program Direc
tor, University of Cincinnati.

I wish that I had about 10 more Corps
members just like the ones I have. Then I
would have the most swinging program in
the state.-Wllliam Smith, Principal, Patrick
Henry Junior High School, Cleveland, Ohio.

The Corpsmen have exhibited "staying
power" through very trying circumstances
and we hope to keep them in our system.

Let us examine our school and community
activities and see if we can broaden these.
Let's make sure these interns get a chance
to work in every area of a IIchool day and
become more involved in the community.
Principals, teachers and Corps team leaders
in the Cleveland Public Schools.

We are pleased to be a part of the efforts
being made through the Teacher Corps and
hope that we shall be able to continue in
this outstanding endeavor. We are thor
oughly convinced that it is a practical and
effective type of program.-F. H. Gorman,
Dean, College of Education, MunicIpal Unl
vertlty of Omaha, Omaha, Nebraska.

The five young people sent to me are ex
ceptional. You have to realize that I had
four classrooms from September to Christ
mas without qualified teachers. I placed
Teacher Corpsmen in these schools to help
with remedial work in Language Arts, to
help with better relationship between the
schools and the parenti;, and they have done
a magnificent piece of work.

I am writing to all the Congressman from
this region to help make the Teacher Corps
a broader and bigger project because the
professional personnel problem is predicted
to get much worse. These young people are
enthusIastic, prepared, and w1lling to work
with underprlvlleged children and we are
in dire need of their help.-R. A. dela Garza,
Superintendent of Schoolll, Rio Grande City
Consolidated Independent School District,
Rio Grande City, Texas.

Phyllis Strick, the team leader, is help
ing me to get ready for my high schooi
equivaiency test. I didn't even know I could
take a test.-Lydia Gonzales, Ben Bolt,
Texas.

Our teachers see these Teacher Corps kids
here till 5:30, 6 o'clock ... They are begin
ning to get competitive, now nobody runt
out when the bell rings, all doing a better
job.-Principal, A Chicago Public School.

There Is no question, in our minds, that
the National Teachers Corps is doing a fine
job and w111 serve a real need in prm'iding
qualified teachers of a caliber never before
equaled. Keep up the good work-we need
more forward-thinking people to get educa
tion to those who need it--to get education
to them in a way that they will under
stand.~harlesE. Skidmore, District Super-

intendent, Santee School District, Santee,
California.

They (the Corpsmen) have an entirely dif
ferent attitude-they are not always right-
but they bring us something we need.-Miss
Maude Carson, Principal, Jensen SChool, Chi
cago, Illinois.

One Assistant Principal bluntly said, "I
really don't know how we would have sur
vived this year without the National Teacher
Corps. They have really helped us out, espe
cially in problem cases. When problems get
tough I frequently go to them (the Teacher
Corps) for help."-Assistant PTincipal, North
ern High SChool, Detroit, Michigan.

The National Teacher Corps at New York
University has prOVided the School of Educa
tion with unusual opportunities to attempt
innovations in Its teacher education pro
grams. It has also enabled us to develop
viable ways of improving our working rela
tionships with local education agencies to
make the teaching experiences Of our stu
dents more meaningfuI.-Daniel E. Griffith,
Dean of School of Education, New York
University, New York, New York.

The Corpsmembers have been most useful
in implementing school curricula designed
especially for the culturally deprived pupils
in Dade CountY.-Terrence T. O'Connor,
Ph. D., Director of Inservice Education, Dade
County Public SChools, Miami, Florida.

In summary, I should like to r~.emphasize

the fact that I endorse the program on the
ground that it Is valuable to the interns, to
the community, to the school system, and
most particularly to those Individual stu
dents who have profited not only academic
ally, but socially in having their opinions of
themselves altered.-Mable E. Ray, Supervisor
of Elementary Education, Worcester, Massa
chusetts.

Basically, Teacher Corps Is a good idea and
can render a great service in areas s1m11ar to
ours. We are in the lower part of the Ap
palachian Area and some might think of this
area as not applicable as West Virginia and
other places further North. This small moun
tain county has a high percentage of drop
outs. The folks are in what might be thought
of as a cut-off area far from any cities, and
many have not gone out of the county. We're
trying to help the situation.

The 1960 Census shows that 39 % of our
puplls come from homes with less than $2,000
income. Our recent survey shows this same
condition with income rate at $2,500. Infla
tion and higher costs put these folk in about
the same condition.

In the Western part of Macon County, over
a mountain about 3,400 feet, roads Impass
able in winter; at least not safe for bus travel,
and 30 miles away; we have Nantahala School
where the percentages of deprived is 55%.
We'd like to get a Teacher Corps team next
year that would work there and in the Cowee
SChool which Is closer but has the need. A
team that could go live with these folk could,
in our opinion do a lot of good.

Give me some idea Of the prospects. We
have not made any effort through Western
Carollna College which directs our present
team, but would like to begin some plans.
What encouragement can Teacher Corps give
us.-Berry Floyd, Administrative Assistant,
Macon County Schools, FranklIn, North Caro
lina.

We feel this program has been very bene
ficial for our school and community. We
hope that this program can continue In our
community.-PTA PTesident, Willard SChool.

Be It resolved that Title V-B of the Higher
Education Act of 1965 created a National
Teacher Corps and whereas the National
Teacher Corps is helping to revitalize edu
cation in low ir:.come areas by prOViding fi
nancial incentives for local school districts
to hire teaching personnel and whereas the
authorization for the Teacher Corps expires
June 30, 1967 and whereas the Teacher Corps
has been hampered by a meager appropria-
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tion of only $7.5 mulion during 1I.scal
year 1967 and whereas President Johnson has
requested legislation to strengthen and ex
pand the National Teacher COrps. therefore
be it resolved that the Young Democratic
Clubs of America urge COngress to renew
the authorization of the National Teachers
COrps and to make substantial increases in
its appropriation.-Adopted by the National
COmmittee of the Young Democrats. Salt
Lake City. Utah.

In spite of the complications Which we
encountered here at the university of Wis
consin-Milwaukee in the initiation of our
program. and its funding. we have been de
lighted to be associated with this important
project. Of particular significance, in my
jUdgment. has been the opportunity which
our Teacher Corps program. has provided for
close Unlversity-Publ1c SChool System co
operation. Our present program. includes in
terns working In both the Mllwaukee PubUc
SChools and the Racine Public SChools. The
program has provided a means by which a
number of our faculty members could work
closely wtih representatives of the pubUc
schools in a common effort to improve the
education of boys and girls. In the case of
the Mllwaukee Publ1c SChools such coopera
tion has developed to a point where the di
rector of our program is on a joint appoint
ment with the Public Schools. Further, a
key member of the Public School staff, re
cently retired hall joined our staff and has
greatly fac1l1tated the relationships between
SChool System and University.

Another important contribution of the
Teacher Corps program can be found in its
emphasis on the designing of teacher edU
cation programs to meet local school needs.
Rather than detaching preparation programs
from the realty of school and community as
is too often the case at many institutions,
this program haa emphasized efforts to bulld
in prospective teachers a sensitivity to com
munity problems and school needs and to
design their training programs to effectively
meet those problems and needs.

Much more could be said in support of the
Teacher Corps program but let me simply
conclude with reaffirmation of our enthusi
asm for the program and our sincere hope
that it will be continued and expanded in
the years ahead. If there are ways in Which
this office can be of assistance to you in sup
port of the National Teacher Corps please
feel free to call upon us.-George W. Dene
mark, Dean, University of Wisconsin-Mll
waukee, Mllwaukee, Wisconsin.

The Teacher Corps is the best thing that
ever happened to our school. Every day it is
a delight to be With them. What's going on
here inspires me to want to do more.~Isaiah

Goodrich, Principal. Ford Road School, Mem
phis. Tennessee.

They (Corpsmen) are a godsend. We have
always wanted to devote more time to the in
dividual problems of our children. We can
do it now through the Teacher Corps team.
I just wish we had more of them.-A class
room teacher, Ford Road School, Memphis,
Tennessee.

In the process of learning and of watch
ing these young interns learn. we are all un
dergoing a creative process. We older teach
ers learn from the interns by seeing in a
fresh Ught the relationship between teacher
and child ... The hardest thing to put over
to young teachers is the need to be patient-
With both the children and his profession.
At the same time that we stress this, we try
to be careful not to destroy the creative spirit
or sense of urgency and need for accomplish
ment. I think these interns are well bal
anced in their perceptions about teaching.
Mrs. Bertha Johnson, Teacher Corps Team
Leader. Ford Road School. Memphis. Tennes
see.

The Teacher Corps program which you di
rect has, I feel, tremendous growth potential,
and I am, indeed, very much interested in

doing whatever I can to help you achieve
its goal of excellence.-John M. Hyams. Di
vision of Compensatory Education. ESEA.
Title I, Harrisburg, Pennsylvania.

We feel that the National Teacher Corps
is a highly successful program and that it
wUl be a great help in alleviating the teacher
sllOrtage.~.R. Dale, Assistant Superintend
ent, Haywood COunty Schools, Waynesv1lle.
North Carolina.

ITEM 6

still more comments on the Teacher COT'ps
I am writing to you in the hope that the

program is to be a continuing one, for it
has indeed been successfUl thus far at Roger
Williams. The services rendered by the in
terns, under the direction and gUidance of
Miss Fee, have been of inestimable value
to the stUdents, the faculty, and to me per
sonally, and I should be disappointed to lose
such fine and innovative, educational as
sistance.-Donald W. Oliver, Principal, Roger
W1lliams Junior High School, Providence.
Rhode Island.

I am a strong supporter of the principles
of the National Teacher Corps and I would
like to see it expanded.

This is the kind of work Which many vet
erans of the Peace Corps, having completed
their work with that organization, may well
be willing to tackle.

While we shall have to move cautiously
and check as we go along, I believe the NTC
program is going to show that its benefits
are well worth the mUlions of dollars to be
spent.-Wllliam G. Saltonstall, Chairman.
State Board of Education. Massachusetts.

We have had some adjustments to make,
of course, but I think the overall program
Is very good, the idea behind it very good.
We are certainly going to ask for more units
again next year.-Dr. J. M. Hanks, Super
intendent, Ysleta Independent School Dis
trict, El Paso. Texas.

This is one of our finest programs. But
we could not have attempted it without the
help of the Corpsmen, for we lacked ·the
personnel and local finances that were neces
sary.

We are very definitely going to make fine
teachers out of the interns and we think
we are going to be able to keep them all in
Laurel When they are through with the
Teacher Corps.-Mrs. J. M. Caughman,
Superintendent. Laurel Municipal Separate
School District, Laurel, Mississippi.

We hope the program wUl be financed and
financed well. For it is one of the better pro
grams that we have. Many others don't meas
ure up to Teacher Corps. It was handled
through the proper educational channels
and there was never any confusion as to
its objectives. It had its stops and starts
and its bad days. but throughout it was a
program to give an educational boost to kids
who really need it.

We started with good people and they have
gotten good instructions from Memphis
State University. And in the schools they
have gotten close supervision from their
team leaders, cooperating teachers and from
the principals. And as a result of all this,
we are going to produce a group of superior
teachers.-Mr. Walter S. Carter, Jr., Super
intendent. DeSoto County SChools, Her
nando. Mississippi.

If anything should happen to the Teacher
Corps we would be willing to hire everyone
of the interns as regular teachers. They are
wonderfUl people.

Some of the principals were a little leery
in the beginning. But in recent meetings
with them I've noticed that every principal
with a team in his bullding now wants them
back next year ... either as interns or as
regular faCUlty members. And the principals
that haven't had them yet tell me that they
want a team for next year.-Dr. Sam L.
spinks. Superintendent, Hattiesburg Munici
pal Separate School District. Hattiesburg.
Mississippi.

The Teacher Corps has been an effective
tralning ground for teachers (interns) in
the Hood River School District. The interns
have been cooperative and intensely inter_
ested in improving their skills as teachers
and working for the benefit of youth.
Jack C. Jensen, Project Coordinator, Hood
River County School District Number l-R.
Hood River, Oregon.

As a gratefUl principal, I feel that the Na
tional Teacher Corps represents some of the
most economically sound. best-spent dollars
aimed at helping urban-centered chlldren
Elliot G. Jacoby, Principal, Pratt-Arnold
Elementary School, Phlladelphia, Pennsyl
vania.

These young teachers are getting more ex
perience than the average sta~t1ng teacher
gets. This assignment is good for them be
cause they can get acquainted with different
grade levels and with the ways of doing
things in the classroom and around the
school before becoming full-time teachers.
John J. Anthony, Principal, Aog Elementary
SChool, El Paso. Texas.

They've got zeal! I'd give every drop of
blood I've sweated over this project again
if I had to get the people to work with our
kids.-Thomas J. Poll1no, Curriculum Di
rector, SaUnas Intermediate Education Dis
trict, SaUnas. CaUfornia.

At first, I was very much concerned that
the teachers assigned would be misfits and
castoffs from other school systems. I have
found this not to be the case. They take their
work seriously and actually have been an im
mense help to our educational program.
They spend time. even beyond the required
hours, trying to help these children ralse
their educational and social levels.

I wish we could double the number of
teachers that had been assigned to us.
Gene C. Farley, Superintendent, Hopklnsvllle
School District, Hopkinsvllle, Kentucky.

It is our impression. and that of visitors
from school systems throughout our state,
that as a result of National Teacher Corps
aid, the chUdren are far more responsive,
more verbal and also more responsible. We
believe specifically. that the functional intel
Ugence level of the preprimary group may
well be raised over a three year period, by an
average of 20 IQ points, to a level equal to the
national average.

We unequivocally endorse this program
and request that the number of persons
assigned to Sumter be tripled.-Dr. L. C. Mc
Arthur, Jr., Superintendent, Sumter School
District #17. Sumter, South Carolina.

In summary. I should Ilke to re-empha
size the fact that I endorse the program on
the ground that it is valuable to the interns.
to the community. to the school system. and
most l?articularly to those individual stu
dents who have profited not only academi
cally, but socially in having their opinions of
themselves altered.-Mabel K. Ray. Super
visor of Elementary Education. Worcester,
Massachusetts.

We in the Boston public schools are hop
ing that the present efforts of the Johnson
administration to expand the National
Teacher Corps program w1ll make it possible
to carry out the original goals in this legisla
tion.-William H. Ohrenberger, Superin
tendent. Boston SChool System.

We all share the feeling that the Congress
can be persuaded to act favorably on the
President's request that the limited Teacher
Corps resources currently avaUable be aug
mented to the extent that we can enlarge
and improve upon our current operation.
Alfred Russo. Coordinator. Department of
Public SChools, Providence, Rhode Island.

"For some people." sald a friend of· the
Corps. "going into an area like that is like
going to Nigeria. They have the Peace Corps
spirit, and the Teachers Corps gives them a
chance to play the national game of help
ing people,"

The hope is that Congress will allow many
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more players.-Mary McGrory, Synd1cated
Newspaper Columnist.
- At these priCes, It remains the best bar
gain In the federal education program.-Lile
Editorial, March 17, 1967.

We have an NTC (National Teacher Corps)
organization. which I appreciated because I
know this Is being done In order to better
my school and its surround1ng conditions.
Thls organization has helped to promote a
small newspaper, which will be known as the
Crusader (our school symbol) to be pub
lished in February and another in May.

The NTC ls really a great organization and
we the members of Andrew J. Bell would
like to have more interns llke this in our
school.-Pamela Ann Dickerson, 9th Grade
StUdent, Andrew J. Bell Junior High School.
New Orleans. Louisiana.

We are so happy with these young people
from the Teacher Corps. They are really tak
ing charge of problems we have been unable
to do a thing about before they came.
T. O. Adams. Principal. Center Ridge School,
Center Ridge, Arkansas.

We. of the New York City Board of Edu
cation. have been greatly impressed both
with the qUality of the training they are
receiving and with the effectiveness of their
work. We are most anxious that this Na
tional Teacher Corps program be continued
for the coming school year and urge that ybu
support Congressional action which w1ll pro
vide the. necessary funds.-Bernard E. Dono
van. Superintendent of Schools, Board of
Education. City of New York.

Because the Corps members are selected
from those who had not preViously prepared
for teaching, they represent an additional to
the number of highly quallfied teachers. At
the same .tlme. their academic programs are
developed specifically for teaching disadvan
taged children, and have proven to be an
Important means in improving teacher edu
catlon.-"Memogram". National Congress of
Parents and Teachers.

The Bureau of Indian Affairs strongly en
dorses the work of the Teachel'- Corps. On
the Omaha Indian Reservation at Macy. Ne
braska the Corps members have demonstrated
the sensitivity, the commitment and the
teaching ab1l1ty that Indian children deserve
and must receive. if they are to have an equal
opportunity in America.-Commissloner
Robert L. Bennett. Bureau of Indian Affairs.

The Teacher Corps program prOVides an
excellent prOVing ground for what can be
come a regular Master of Arts in Teaching
program. The two-year Corps program Is
unique in prOViding extenSive opportunity
for community involvement of the intern~

While they are actually Involved in teach
Ing/learning actiVities in the schools. This
part or the program Is based on the assump
tion that the teacher must get into the com
munity In order to understand the culture
of poverty.

Interns have Influenced classroom teachers
to change their attitudes toward disadvan
taged children and to try new. less text-book
oriented techniques. Interns are being rec
ognized and accepted by parent and com
munity groups as Individuals sincerely con
cerned with understanding and improving
their cond1tlon of life.--earyl G. Hedden,
Director, National Teacher Corps Center,
State University College. Buffalo, New York.

The Teacher Corps is a better way of train
Ing teachers than most present programs at
colleges and universities. These programs
have not been preparing teachers to meet
the needs of low-Income children. Conse
quently the teachers who come out of such
programs often do not know how to reach
the youngsters who most desperately need
help.

We have been pleased with (,Iur Corpsmen
because their internship in the school focuses
on the needs of children. Daily contact with
children molds the idealism of the Corpsmen
Into realistic channels of service. I want to

emphasize this reaUsm. It is Important.
W1llard Fletcher, Director of Elementary
Education, Portland Public Schools. Portland.
Oregon.

.The Inner city school today needs assis
tance from the federal level in many ways.
and the National Teacher Corps is a dra
matic way of expressing federal concern for
our problems. The Teacher Corps team at
our Jefferson SChool Is beginning to make a
significant contribution. We have recently
set up a planning committee In this school
to assist this team in learning better ways
'of meeting the needs of the inner city chUd
and In carrylDg out a number of Innovative
programs.

My only suggestion Is that there shOUld
be more participation in the early stages by
the public school personnel before a Teacher
Corps team is sent to a communlty.-Rlchard
T. Beck, Superintendent of Schools, Trenton,
New Jersey.

I must admit that I had some reservation
regarding the effectiveness of a National
Teacher Corps.... However, my apprehen
sions proved to be groundless, and the Teach
er Corps team, under the capable direction
of its team leader, has proven to be a valua
ble asset to the school and to Its instruc
tional program.-John Schertzl, Principal,
Wells Street Junior High School, MUwaukee,
Wisconsin.

We have seen positive reSUlts educationally
for many children because of the Individual
help the team has provided.-Roger M. Jones,
Principal, Garfield School, Racine, Wisconsin.

It is my sincere hope that the National
Teacher Corps program will be continued In
our school during the coming terms. It is
my feel1ng that the efforts put forth by the
members of the team In working With these
chUdren who have avaUed themselves of their
assistanCe will be felt more and more as the
program contlnues.-Joseph Leonelli, Princi
pal. Oliver Hazard Perry Junior High School,
Providence, Rhode Island.

The Teacher Corps is the shining Ught. I'm
committed to it 100 per cent. (Corpsmen's)
Idealism has been rekindled In us old cynics.
They're so committed they have recommit
ted some of us. How do you l1ke that?-Don
aId Hodes, Assistant Superintendent. Enter
prise City School District, Compton, Cali
fornia.

Since the Corps has only been operating
for such a short time, there is no doubt In
my mind that Its fUll potential has hardly
begun to be realized despite the mark already
being made on the education of the children
here.-Martin Kesselman, Principal, Will1am
McIntyre School, PhUadelphia. Pennsylvania.

All of us are having difficulty keeping the
most able, the most competent teachers with
in the target areas of deprivation. Requests
for transfers out of those areas Is, In our dls
rict, four or flve times the numbers who re
quest transfers in. In fact, it is hard to get
people to go into those areas. So there is a
need for stimulating the preparation of peo
ple with those understandings, attitUdes, hu
man relations, to go into those schools. I
think the Teacher Corps does strike at a very
specific need of the schools In deprived
areas.-Dr. Ralph DaUard, Superintendent,
San Diego School, San Diego, California.

Our Teacher Corps people sparks up the
regular staff.-Mr. Chaimer, Principal, P.S.

They bring Ufe to us all.-Mlss W1lliams,
Principal, P.S. 32, Buffalo. New York.

ITEM 7

Southern schoolmen comment on the
National Teacher Corps

The Teacher Corps has rendered a tre
mendously valuable service in the Atlanta
PubUc Schools. I am more convinced every
day that "business as usual" will not solve
the extremely d1fficult educational problems
involved in teaching CUlturally deprived chU
dren. The Teacher Corps offers a resource
that can be utllized as local school systems

feel most approprIate and profitable in solv
Ing these most complex problems.-Dr. John
Letson, Superintendent. Atlanta Publ1c
SChools.

The National Teacher Corps has been most
successful and helpful to this school system.
We have complete control of the program
from the selection of personnel to definlng
and assigning duties and responslb1l1tles.

The values of such a program are many
but I would l1ke to mention some of the out
stand1ng ones. Flrst--provldlng add1tlonal
teaching personnel to a regUlar faCUlty which
In turn gives more Individual help to children
In disadvantaged areas: second-providing a
teacher-training. on-the-job program to bet
ter train young teacher interns to work with
chlldren who are In need of more than just
regUlar school help; third-the additional
services to the schools that the seventeen
NTC members have provided are too numer
ous to mention, but these range from pro
viding leadership in establ1shing a new read
Ing program to teaChing music, and art and
working with parents in a. counseling situa
tion where parents and stUdents are involved
In seeking better solutions to problems.

Every principal In our twelve elementary
school has requested an NTC for next school
sesslon.-Dr. Sam Spinks. Superintendent,
Hattiesburg Publ1c Schools, Hattiesburg.
Mississippi.

This is one of our finest programs. But we
coUld not have attempted it without the
help of the Corpsmen, for we lacked the per
sonnel and local finances that were necessary.

We are very definitely gOing to make fine
teachers out of the Interns and we think we
are going to be able to keep them all In Laurel
When they are through With the Teacher
COrps.-Mr. J. M. Caughman, Superintend
ent, Laurel MuniCipal Separate SChool Dis
trict, Laurel, Mississippi.

The Teacher Corps has been a boon in the
Moore Elementary SChool. Small groups
working with the interns have been prOVided
with Indlvldual1zed Instruction In art, sci
ence and reading. Teachers are del1ghted
with their competence and cooperation.

We hope that this innovative program will
continue and that we can secure the ser
vices of more Interns.-Wheler Matthews,
Principal, Moore Elementary School, Sumter
School District # 17, Sumter, South Carolina.

My school was fortunate in being able to
to secure the services of two teachers from
the National Teacher Corps program. These
two teachers are working In our elementary
schools with chUdren from low income fam
ilies. Marked improvement, after four
months, is noted in the attitUdes and learn
Ing processes of these children as a result
of the work of these two Corps members.
My school's finances could not have made
possible the services of these teachers except
ror the Teacher Corps.

I need one more teacher from the Teacher
Corps for high school work, especially In
the field of choral music and speech.-F. C.
Burnett, Superintendent, Fannlndel Schools.
Ladonia, Texas.

It is our impression, and that of Visitors
from school systems throughout our state,
that as a result of National Teacher Corps
aid, the chUdren are far more responsive,
more verbal and also more responsible. We
believe specifically, that the functional
Intelligence level of the preprlmary group
may well be raised over a three year period,
by an average or 20 IQ points, to a level
equal to the national average.

We uneqUivocally endorse this program
and request that the number of persons
assigned to Sumter be trlpled.-Dr. L. C. Mc
Arthur, Jr., Superintendent, Sumter SChool
District #17, Sumter. South Carolina.

I only have one fear with regard to the
young interns of the Teacher Corps • • •
that with their energy and talent and their
special training they will soon leave the
classroom. Some school system will try to
make administrators out of them. And they
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RUFUS KING HIGH SCHOOL,
Milwaukee, Wis., February 17, 1967.

Hon. GAYLORD NELSON,
Senate Office Building,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR SENATOR NELSON: I am very happy to
restate my sentiments, concerning the Na
tional Teacher Corps.

Here at Rufus King High School we have
seen the results of a remarkably happy mar
riage between an Ingenious plan and a team
of IntelUgent, sympathetic. energetic, and
devoted, young Corps members. There has
been a lessening of the work load for all; a
marked Increase In teacher morale; and,
most Important, an abrupt about face In at
titude toward citizenship and scholarship on

- the part of some of our most difficult pupils.
We have exposed the Corpsmen to the en

tire scope of school experience, and they
have passed each test admirably. SOlutions
for many of the problems they have tackled
are not readily apparent. However, their
ideas are fresh, and their concepts are new.
They are not tied down to Old, worn-out
practices. We have every reason to hope that
In the foreseeable future the National
Teacher Corps will contribute valuable In
sights Into methods ot deallng with deprived
youngsters.

Very truly yours,

are needed so desperately in the classroom.
Cleaophus Allgood, Principal, Dorsey Junior
High SChool, Miami,· Florida.

We hope that the Teacher Corps program
wlll be financed • • • and financed well,
for It ls one of the better programs that we
have. Many others don't measure up to the
Teacher Corps. It was handled through the
proper educational channels and there was
never any confusion as to Its objectives. It
had Its stops and starts and Its bad days,
but throughout, It was a program to give
an educational boost to kids who really need
It.

We started with good people and they have
gotten good Instruction from MemphiS State
University. And In the schools they have
gotten close supervision from their team
leaders, cooperating teachers and from the
principals. As a result of all of thls, we
are gOing to produce a group of truly supe
rior teachers.-Mr. Walter S. Carter, Jr.,
Superintendent, De Soto County Schools,
Hernando, Mlsslsslppl.

Our Teacher Corpsmen have made tre
mendous progress In remedial work and
speech therapy. They are providing services
In the community that could not have been
accompllshed through regular school fi
nances.-T. O. Adams, Superintendent, Nemo
Vista Pub11c SChool, Center Ridge, Arkansas.

The Teacher Corps Is the best thing that
ever happened to our school. Every day It
Is a dellght to be with them. What's going
on here Inspires me to want to do more.
Isaiah Goodrich, Principal, Ford Road
School, Memphis, Tennessee.

I belleve that the National Teacher Corps
ls one of the very best of all the new pro
grams In education. I am constantly observ
Ing the fine frUits of thls organlzatlon.
Jack J. Efurd, Superintendent, Gentry Pub-
11c Schools, Gentry, Arkansas. ,

Wolfe County School System was denied
the NTC for school year 1966-67 because of no
housing. We are very sorry, for we need the
program badly.-Frank Rose, Superintendent,
Wolfe County Schools, Compton, Kentucky.

It Is a llttle program that Is making a
big difference In our system.--John W. Am
brose, Acting Superintendent, LeXington
city Schools, Lexington, Kentucky.

The Teacher Corps has every mark of being
an effective and efficient means of solVing
one of our most serious national problems. It
brings the university, the local education
agency, the teachers In service, and Corps
men to grips with the rea'l situation. Things
wlll never be the same once the Corps has
been there. We are all growing because of
the Teacher Corps.-8lster M. Loyola, Direc
tor, Teacher Educatlon, Xavier University,
New Orleans, Louisiana.

I think the NTC Is a very fine program and
can do lots of good In our schools. It will help
train people to go Into the teaching profes
sion that are needed so badly now. The team
we have In our county Is dOing a wonderful
job. I hope there will be money appropriated
to continue this worthy program.-Carl Lof
tin, Superintendent, Marlon County Schools,
Columbia, Mississippi.

We have the Teacher Corps In our school
system and it ls doing a wonderful job for
us. Corpsmen are helping the minority
groups In our school develop a better self
Image of themselvea and also their work has
Improved Immensely With the aid of the
Corps. We have been able to offer many
things for these stUdents which we were un
able to do before this time.

I think It has been handled very well this
year. The only thing wrong was the delay In
funding the program which caused a delay
in our plans. However, I rea11ze that It was
not your fault In this matter.-Marvln
Stokes, Superintendent of Schools, Byng
School, Ada, Oklahoma.

The team from the National Teacher Corps
that has been working In our school during
the 1966-67 school year Is doing fine work.

Corpsmen have assessed the school situation
here well and In most Instances have cooper
ated In an excellent way with our schOOl
faculty, students, parents, and other citizens
of this community. I feel that It is a very
worthwhile program.-A. W. Barrett, Super
Intendent, Konawa Publlc Schools, Konawa,
Oklahoma.

We feel that the National Teacher Corps
Is a highly successful program and that it
will be a great help in alleviating the teacher
;shortage.--e. R. Dale, Assistant Superintend
ent, Haywood County Schools, Waynesville,
North Carolina.

In the Western part of Macon County, over
a mountain 3,400 feet, roads Impassable In
Winter; at least not safe for bus travel, and
30 miles away; we have Nantahala School
where the percentages of deprived is 55%.
We'd 11ke to get a Teacher Corps team next
year that would work there and In the
Cowee School which Is closer but has the
need. A team that could go live With these
folk could, in our opinion do a lot of good.

Give me some Idea of the prospects. We
have not made any effort through Western
Caro11na College which directs our present
team, but would 11ke to begin some plans.
What encouragement can Teacher Corps give
us.-Berry Floyd, Administrative Assistant,
Macon County Schools, Franklln, North
Carolina.

VIEAU SCHOOL,
OFFICE OF THE PRINCIPAL,

Milwaukee, Wis., February 17, 1967.
Hon. GAYLORD NELSON,
Senate Office Building,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR SENATOR NELSON: Last June three In
terns of the National Teachers Corps and a
supervisor were asSigned to Vieau for the
summer session. Since the administrator of
the summer school was my vice prinCipal, I
received a fine briefing on their performance
and thereby had a good Idea of what could be
expected of them In fall. Then, too, I attended
an orientation meeting In late summer which
served to acquaint me fully with the program.

My expectations have been more than ful
filled. With the addition of two more Interns
(In January) we have a fine team of alert,
conscientious and energetic young people In
the process of learning and practicing the arts
of teaching.

These Interns, under the excellent Immedi
ate supervision of Miss Mary McLaughlln
have been a boon to our school and com
munity.

They have done some excellent work In
small group and "one-on-one" Intensive tu
toring and counseling. They have taken "class
disturbers" and have given these children a
wllllng ear In Which to pour their attention
needs. They have Increased the self concept-
the sense of Importance of our love starved
problem children, and thereby alleviated the
regular classroom teachers' frustrations on
this score.

Our Interns have organized and rehearsed
various groups of children for school pro
grams In connection With spedal projects
and holiday recognition. They have refereed
scheduled Intramural athletic contests.

They have gone Into the community, vis
ited parents and have Improved the school
home rapport.

In a word, they have been invaluable to our
school and community.

Currently, they are engaged In fUll scale
"practice" teaching. Each Intern works under
the classroom supervision of a master teach
er. While It Is impossible to continue the di
verse actiVities afore .mentloned while In
tensively engaged In student teaching, many
of the Individual tutoring programs are still
maintained where there ls a need.

In closing let me say that we at Vieau feel
very fortunate In haVing the NTC with us.
Their dedication, their fiexlbUlty (Which Is,
perhaps, one of their greatest attributes) and

their cooperation,· have meant much to our
school and community. They are valuable
members of the team; we hope their train
Ing here will make them valuable members
of our teaching profession.

Sincerely,
K. G. PLACE,

Principal.

J. A. POWERS,
Principal.

WELLS STREET JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL,
Milwaukee, Wis., February 15,1967.

Hon. GAYLORD NELSON,
Senate Office BUilding,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR SENATOR NELSON: As· we enter the
second half of the school year which offered
our first experience with the National
Teacher Corps, I should llke to take this op
portunity to report to you on the progress
of our Teacher Corps Team.

Wells Street Junior High School ls a cen
tral City school With a non-White enroll
ment of apprOXimately 60% !lnd a large num
ber of culturally disadvantaged pupils of
various social and ethnic groups. Our total
enrollment is 1068. Our Teacher Corps Team
consists of four young Interns, two men and
two women, and a very competent team
leader who has had teaching experience at
this school.

I must admit that I had some reservation
regarding the' effectiveness of a National
Teacher Corps when I was first approached
regarding the assignment of such a group to
this schoOl. I questioned the administrative
and teaching time hivolved and the facllltles
required In relation to' expected· reSults.. I
also considered the matter of relations be
tween the team members and our regular
teaching staff. However, my apprehensions
proved to be groundless, and the Teacher
Corps Team, under the capable direction of
Its team leader, has proven to be a valuable
asset to the school and to .Its instructional
program. Corps members have Involved
themselves In community actlvltles and home
contacts. They have offered valuable asslst
ance In our attempts to Improve attendance
and tardiness, both of which are severe prob
lems at this school. They have offered 'aca
demic help to pupils IndiVidually and. in
small groups and have Involved themselves
hi counseling on a one-to-one basis with
problem pupils. They have acquainted them
selves with pupil control problems by assist
Ing our regUlar staff in the supervision of
corridors and cafeteria.



August 2, 1967 CONGRESSIONAL RECORD - SENATE 21037
The one problem which presented Itself

during the first hal! of this year was beyond
the control of our school system and the
University of Wlsconsln-Mllwaukee. Tills
resulted from the uncertainty of funding
when the Congress faUed to provide the
funds to carry out the program. Should the
program contlnue--and I strongly recom
mend that It shoUld-It Is most advisable
that the people In the program be given the
status and security that comes with knowl
edge that their efforts are acceptable. Every
effort should be made to provide funds and
to plan for the coming year well In advance.

On behalf of the teaching staff of Wells
Street Junior High SChool I wish to offer my
sincerest appreciation for your Interest and
efforts In making the Teacher Corps a reality.

Sincerely yours,
JOHN SCHERTZL,

Principal.

GARFIELD SCHOOL,
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT No.1,

Racine, Wis., February 17, 1967.
Hon. GAYLORD NELSON,
Senate Office Build.ing,
Washington, D.O.

DEAR SENATOR NELSON; Garfield Elementary
School In Racine has a Teacher Corps Team
on Its staff this year. As principal of the
school, I feel they have been of much help
to us. Garfield Is an Inner-city school with
many socially, educationally, and econom
Ically disadvantaged children among Its en
rollment. The Team has been working In the
areas of tutoring Individuals and small
groups, helping teachers with units of stUdy
In the classroom, making home visits and
contacts, and operating after school activ
Ities for the children.

We have seen positive results educationally
for many children because of the Individual
help the Team has provided. With the help
of a Team member, the classroom teachers
have been able to try and accomplish some
exciting and Interesting projects that have
motivated learning for their students. The
after school actIvities are correlated with
learning situations during the regUlar school
day. Because of these activities many children
have a more positive attitude toward schOOl
and life In general.

I am looking forward to haVing this Team
with us again for the next school year. I trust
funds wUl be made available for this purpose.

Sincerely,
ROGER M. JONES,

Principal.

N. FIFTH STREET SCHOOL,
OFFICII: OF THE PRINCIPAL,

Milwaukee, Wis., February 20, 1967.
Hon. GAYLORD NELSON,
Senate Office Build.ing,
Washington, D.O.

DEAR SENATOR NELSON: The National
Teachers Corps interns who have been a
part of our teaching staff since September
are making a decidedly significant contribu
tion through theIr work with children. At
the same time they are developing under
standings and skUls that w1ll enable them
to work successfully with the disadvantaged.

We have long known that children with
serious emotional problems would be greatly
benefited by individualized Instruction.
Twenty-six chlldren are seen dally In tutor
Ing sItuations by the four members of our
teaching corps. This forty minute period In
a one-to-one relationshIp or as a member of
a small group represents a most valuable ad
vantage for each chlld Involved both In terms
of IndivIdualized learnIng opportunity and
the psychologIcal help given the child In the
small group Inter-change.

Each Intern works with class-sized groups
In a student teachIng situation for a quarter
of a day and particIpates In <;lassroom ac
tIVities for the entire day on Thursday of
each week. This dally contact With the chll-
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dren Is enabling them to develop competence
with techniques In their training period,
that are now usually attained by teachers In
servIce. Interns who develop COnfidence In
their own ability to work successfully with
disadvantaged children wUl be a genuine as
set to our profession.

In addition Mr. Whang and Mr. Lawhorn
are offering a forty-five minute supervised
physical education program after school,
two afternoons each week. Miss Owens and
Mrs. Roth are setting up a study program for
mothers to assist them In helping their chil
dren With homework and to encourage them
to appreciate the Importance of their In
terest In promoting the progress of their
children.

These community-oriented projects w1ll
further deepen the interns understanding of
the disadvantaged. At the same time, they
w1ll be supplying enrichment experiences of
real benefit to children and their parents.

The success of this program Is significantly
sharpened by the constant guidance and
evaluations of such experienced team leaders
as Mr. Lltscher. Teachers In training rarely
have this concentrated a degree of guidance.

Those of us who have worked with Central
City children for years have been aware of a
need for specialized preparation for the
teachers of our children.

The approach Inaugurated by the National
Teachers Corps Is truly an encouraging one.
Efforts seem to be directed toward setting up
a program that will seek creative solutions
for the problem of preparing teachers for
their vital task.

Very truly yours,
GLADYS CAUGHLIN,

Principal.

RESPONSES OF OFFICE OF EDUCATION TO QUES
TIONS FROM SENATOR JAVITS (MAY 25, 1967)

Q. Title 1 of ESEA provides that funds
should be expended In areas haVing high
concentrations of children from low-Income
families. However, this legislation provides
that Teachers Corpsmen shall be used In
areas haVing "concentrations of children
from low-Income fammes." Why do you feel
that the Teachers Corps should not also
cover "high" concentrations, especially In
the light of the Administration's oppositIon
last year to the Senate's eliminating "high"
from Title I of ESEA?

A. At the present time, gUidelines encour
age projects to be conducted In schools where
at least one-half of the children are from
low-Income fammes. However, the legisla
tion does not InclUde such language. The
addition of the word "high" to the legisla
tion WOUld, therefore, be acceptable to both
program offices and the Administration.

Q. The fear has been expressed that re
cruitment of teachers by the Teacher Corps
w1ll make teacher hiring more difficult for
,rem.ote non-poverty rural areas now expe
II'lencing difficulties In securing teachers.
What are your views?

A. The Teacher Corps does not recruit ex
perienced teachers. Experienced teachers' who
serve as team leaders do so mostly In their
own schools. Last year 72% of the team
leaders served In their own areas. This year
we expect that about 90% of the team lead
ers w1ll be selected by the schools from
among their own teachers. Last year 42 %
of the Teacher Corps Interns, BA graduates
who are not teachers, came from the local
area. This year we estimate that It w1ll be
50% or more since present Interns, In be
half of their school systems and universities,
will recruit at nearby campuses. Because of
nationwide pUblicity some 30% to 40% of
applications wUI come directly to the Teacher
Corps. Their names w1Jl be submitted to
programs In their areas in which tJ:ey have
asked to serve. Further, since the Teacher
Corps recruits new sources of manpower for
the teaching profession, the program should

benefit non-poverty rural areas In the final
analysIs,

Q. The House has seen fit to extend the
Teachers Corps for two years Instead of the
three years requested by the Administration.
Is this two-year extension satisfactory to
you?

A. A three-year extension Is preferable to
a two-year extension. The major weakness
of Teachers Corps Is that local schools and
universities have not had enough time for
planning. Any extension that Increases the
opportunity to plan will make possible more
effective, less expensive programs.

Q. Does not the Administration find It In
consistent on one hand to advocate adding a
local control provision for the National
'Teachers Corps but to fight against adding
such proviSions In other education legiS
lation?

A. The Teacher Corps has always em
phasized local control. The language change
represents no policy change for the Corps.
The "local control" amendment Is also con
sistent with all other educational policies of
the United States Office of Education.
Vlslb1l1ty for this principle was simply re
quired In the case of the Teacher Corps
program.

Q. Does the OE have sufficient experience
to Indicate what becomes of Individuals after
leaving the Teachers Corps? Do they con
tinue teaching In poverty areas? Do they
engage In training others for poverty-area
teaching service? Is there any OE program
for Teacher Corps "veterans"?

A. Since the Teacher Corps program Is
one designed for two years of service the
program has not yet "graduated" Its first
class of veteran Teacher Corps members.
However, an opinion survey was taken of
the members by the Office. In this survey 91
percent of Teacher Corps Interns did say they
would continue In teaching; 81 percent In
poverty schools. Experience with Master of
Arts In Teaching Programs that have many
elements of Teacher Corps training Indicates
that more teachers stay on the job when they
have received specialized training In the
teaching of the disadvantaged than do
teachers trained at the undergraduate level
for no specific teaching assIgnment.

Q. It has been Indicated that of 10,000
applicants for the Teacher Corps only 1,213
were selected. Given the shortages of teachers
In poverty areas, are those who cannot be
used referred to school boards needing pov
erty-area teachers? Is there any special dis
position with respect to the 88 percent of
applicants who cannot be used?

A. All applicants have been asked for per
mission to refer them to school systems. Al
most all applicants have granted this per
mission. Their names have been offered to
any school system that Is Interested. Their
names have also been made available to a
central clearing agency, but such agencies
charge a fee for making references. Articles
have also appeared In various publications of
NEA which Inform school districts that
Teacher Corps-WaShington has files on hand
of persons who wish to serve In poverty areas.

Q. Since the Federal Government fur
nishes all teachers In BIA schools, why does
the Administration recommend amending
the Act to provide OE funds-which other
wise would go for Teachers Corpsmen In the
States-for the Teacher Corps for these BIA
schools? To put It st1ll another way, why
should one Federal agency give subventions
to another---should not Congress eliminate
the "middleman" and give BIA the addi
tional funds?

A. The Administration Is requesting au
thority to place Teacher Corps teams In BIA
schools because It Is thought that such teams
could greatly benefit the children In the
schools. At present, BIA does not have the
authority to employ or fund a two-year mas
ter's program combining both pre-service
and In-service training for specialized teach-
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STATEMENT OF JOHN M. LUMLEY, DmECToR,
DIVISION OF FEDERAL RELATIONS, NATIONAL
EDUCATION ASSOCIATION; JOINTLY FOR NEA
AND THE AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF ScHOOL
ADMINISTRATORS

Mr. LUMLEY. The statement that I make
for the National Education Association also
has been approved by the American Associa
tion of School Administration. It w1ll be a
joint statement.

Senator YARBOROUGH. So. this is a Joint
statement that you are making on behalf of
the NEA?

Mr. LUMLEY. Yes.
Senator YARBOROUGH. Fine. Thank you. We

are glad to have it.
* • * • *

trained in this way tn order to be able to do
abetter job. . , '.

Q. At present, who determines what
schools the Corpsmen will serve in-iS it the
State Department of Education. the local
school districts or your oftlce?

A. The local school systems themselves re
quest and develop Teacher Corps programs in
cooperation with a nearby University that
offers a master's degree program. The joint
proposals must be approved by the State De
partment of Education. The legislation re
qUires a distribution of programs among the
States based on percentages of the populatIon
in poverty. Teacher Corps in Washington has
the authority to finally approve projects only
on the basis of qUality determined by criteria
established for such projects.

TEACHERS CORPS COMMENTS
Senator DOMINICK. I wanted to ask you

about the Teachers COrps again that you re
ferred to.

Do you envisage this as a method of get
ting more teachers in the school system as a
whole. or do. you envision this as getting
teachers into those areas where it is diftlcult
to get anybody to teach at the present time?

Mr. LUMLEY. Well, primarlly it is to get
more teachers that are dedicated that will
go into the so-called ghetto schools or the
disadvantaged schools. This will be, I think,
a greater contribution than getting more
teachers. And I think that the inclusion of
the third and fourth year people Will even
increase thls. I tend to believe that these
young people are ideallstic and if they go
into these schools and learn the problems
there, that they w1ll tend to stay, in answer
to the question that you ralsed before.

I will hasten to say that I would hope
eventually the Teachers Corps would go out
of business, that the--'

senator DoMINICK. Is it not a natural at
tribute of any body Who is paying for the
school system in their area and is in large
portion overburdened by property taxes
which are the main things that support it to
suddenly say, "Holy smokes, we have got a
bonanza here. We are going to ask for as
many Teacher Corps people as we can be
cause the Federal Government is going to
pay for it and we don't have to worry about
it"?

Mr. LUMLEY. Well. I believe the way the
Teachers Corps has operated-and I think
that Mr. Graham, the Director, has done a
remarkable job in this, has been to get the
school districts to assume a greater responsi
blllty by showing them what can be done
wIth these Teachers Corps people and then
eliminate them and not do What you are
saying, not add teachers to the school dis
trict. In other words, they accept-that is the
reason I said I would hope that eventually
the Teachers Corps, the system of the Teach
ers Corps would put them out of business. I
do not think that is going to be next year or
the year after, but eventually wlll be.

Senator DOMINICK. You are a rea:Iist Just
as I am. There are very few agencies of gov-

•••*•

Would you comment on how this differs from
the Teacher Corps?

A. The qualifications of a senior educa
tion major involved in practice teaching are
quite different from those of a Teacher
Corps intern. A senior education major is
by definition an undergraduate student
without any academic credentials at the
time of his or her internship. The student or
practice teacher, therefore. costs the school
in terms of time demanded from the resident
faCUlty and money in terms of bonuses paid
to such faculty for undertaking the super
vision of a stUdent-teacher.

The conditions under Which the student
teacher does his or her practice teaching
also differ greatly from those conditions in
which the Teacher Corps interns do service.
Most practice teaching is carried out in
model schools rather than in the poverty
schools. Usually, the stUdent-teacher is not
held responsible for taking University courses
or performing service to the community in
projects outside regUlar school hours.

On the other hand, a Teacher Corps intern
is a highly qualified person by the time he
begins his practice teaching in a school. He
has his BA and has completed pre-service
training in the education of the disadvan
taged. He is part of a team; he is super
vised by and learns from a team leader out
side the resident faculty. As such he contrib
utes supplementary staff to the school rather
than costing the school in terms of money
and the time of the resident faculty. The
conditions under which a Teacher Corps
intern earns his master's and does his "prac
tice teaching" are far from those of the
model school. He must deal with schools
which report at least 50 percent of their en
rollment is lOW-income. He must work close
ly with university faCUlty and the commu
nity while earning his master's and doing
his service. The demands on his time are,
therefore, twice as great as those of the
student-teacher.

Q. You will remember that during our
deliberations on the Higher Education Act
of 1965. we passed an amendment Which pro
vides for 100% loan forgiveness for students
With NDEA loans who agree to teach in cer
tain schools Which have a large proportion
of disadvantaged children. Does this loan
forgiveness apply to the Teacher Corpsmen
also?

A. NDEA loan forgiveness does not apply
to Teacher Corps interns because they are
not regarded as having assumed full respon
sibll1ty of teaching in the classroom. Theo
retically, loan forgiveness does apply to the
Teacher Corps experienced teachers. As the
basic reqUirement for an experienced teacher
to qualify for the Teacher Corps is a master's
degree and five years of teaching experience.
very few of these experienced teachers are
stlll receiving loan forgiveness. The best esti
mate is fewer than 20 out of 268 experienced
teachers now with the Teacher Corps pro
gram, are receiving this NDEA loan forgive
ness.

Q. Do you feel that stipends, even at the
reduced level of $75 a week, are necessary to
attract dedicated personnel in the Teacher
Corps, especially since Peace Corpsmen and
VISTA volunteers dedicate two years of their
lives to serving the less fortunate for only a
$50 month stipend?

A. At $75 a week SUbject to federal, State
and local taxes, the Teacher Corps interns
will receive substantially less than the sti
pend paid to a person on a graduate fellow
ship. VISTA and Peace Corps Volunteers re
ceive clothing, housing, food, and money put
aside in a bank in addition to their monthly
allowance. It wlll be as hard to live in the
big cities of Americaon $75 a week as it is for
a Peace Corps Volunteer to live in most parts
of the world. At the end of their first ,year,
most Teacher Corpsmen will receive offers of
greater pay, but, EO far, have chosen to be

RESPONSES OF OFFICE OF EDUCATION TO
QUESTIONS FROM SENATOR PROUTY

(May 25, 1967)
Q. I note that you are requesting that

authority for the Teacher Corps be trans
ferred from Title V of the Higher Educa
tion Act of 1965 to Title I of the Elementary
and Secondary Education Act.

Why do you feel that the purposes of the
Corps would be better served under the
ESEA; and at the same time why wouldn't
the program for the preparation of person
nel in the education of handicapped chil
dren, which Is now provIded under PL. 85
926. not also be transferred to ESEA?

A. It is appropriate that the Teacher Corps
program be placed in Title I of the ESEA
sInce it Is currently admInistered jointly
with other elementary and secondary edu
cation programs by the Bureau of Elemen
tary and Secondary EducatIon. The Teacher
Corps was enacted wIth the mandate to
supplement teaching staffs In poverty
schools and to train new teachers for the
disadvantaged. Only schools havIng concen
trations of children from low-Income fam
llles are eligible for Teacher Corps projects.
In thIs respect the Teacher Corps is directed
to the same schools as TItle I. Teacher Corps
teams have been at work thIs year in Title
I schools, provIdIng an added resource to
assIst teachers In poverty schools. The pro
gram for trainIng personnel for the educa
tion of the handIcapped is currently admIn
istered JoIntly with other such programs for
the handicapped by the Bureau of the Han
dicapped. It would, therefore, seem most ap
propriate to continue the present method of
admInistration for this program.

Q. Would you explain to the Committee
how salaries for experienced teachers are
determined?

I noted in testimony given before the other
Body earlier that the average salary is $8,770
for the first year and $9,800 for the second.
This would appear to me quite high when
you compare it to the average annual salary
of classroom teachers in the United States
which is $6.828. My understanding is that
only san Francisco pays more than what ex
perienced teachers are now receiving, which
I understand is an average of $10,248. Fur
thermore. 92 % of all classroom teachers earn
less than $8,500. It would appear to me that
the continuation of salaries at this level
does a great disservice to our dedicated
teachers who are performing the same work
for far less pay and publicity. Would you
care to comment?

A. Experienced teachers who serve as team
leaders are paid according to local scales for
comparable training. experience and respon
siblllties. Team leaders generally have mas
ter's degrees and 5 to 8 years of experience.
Most of them are also paid a stipend for
their supervisory responsibl11ties as team
leaders for 3 to 4 interns on the basis of
local stipend scales for such responsiblllties.
The schools selected their better trained and
more experienced teachers as Teacher Corps
team leaders. Rather than a disservice to
the dedicated teachers in the schools, such
service, therefore, has offered them an op
portunity for greater responsibl11ty and rec
ognition.

Q. For years we in Vermont, and I assume
.that other States, have had teacher training
programs Whereby senior education majors
are assigned to partiCUlar schools in Vermont
to practice teaching for a number of weeks.
The cost of this is borne by the student and
the institution and is part of the curriCUlum.

ers of low-income children. The Indianchil
dren now residing in or attending BIA
schools would not receive the same benefits
from simply increasing BIA funds to employ
more "regular trained" teachers as they
would from two years of service from
Teacher Corps specialized personnel.
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4. How do you rate the motivation of
Teacher Corpsmen compared With other be
ginning teachers in the schools serving the
poverty areas?

Very enthusiastic _
Favorable _
Unfavorable • _
NeutraL. _

A source of personnel available now for
work in schools serving the poverty
areas_~ ... .. _. _

A future source of qualified teachers for
work in schools serving the povertyareas ._._

Other • _

Corpsmen are more highly motivated _
No difference is observed between corps-

men and other beginning teachers _
Corpsmen are not as highly molivated __Uncertain _

5. In general, how would you describe the
cooperation of Corpsmen With your regular
school statr?

6. What is your impression of the attitude
of your regular staff toward the corpsmen?

Corpsmen are working well with theregular staff _
Corpsmen are not working well with theregular staff _
Other _

7. Please explain briefly your answer in
Question 6 above: (The following statements
are indIcatIve of the responses of the super
intendents and principals.)

(a) "There have been many requests by
regular teachers to have NTC members work
With them In their classrooms."

(b) "Regular teaching staff is grateful for
additional assistance, however, some teach
ers are envious of the fact that corpsmen are
released two days a week to attend classes at
'the university while making the same
salary."

(c) "The regular staff and the community
are very enthusiastic."

(d) "Our teachers are pleased with the
teacher corps and are real proud of the help
the corps has given them. We would like to
see the program contInued:'

(e) "At first there was distrust and sus
picion. Most of it is gone. Still there is envy
and it is based on the payment received to

59 go to school:'n (f) "At first they did not understand the
46 purpose of teacher corps. This is understand-

able In view of all the delays inVOlved. Con
gress could improve this for the future years
by passing appropriations sooner:'

(g) "Our staff is highly pleased with the
enthusiasm and progress in two schools now
using the NTC program. Both pupils and
teachers are happy in the unusual accom
plishments of this enriching approach to
learning."

(h) "The interest of the corpsmen not as
73 great as was anticipated. The cooperating
~ college did not send us the team that we
33 requested; therefore, we had to make num

erous changes when they arrived In our sys
tem.1t

8. What are your plans for next year?

31
44
6
7

39
39
5
5

Superin- Principals
tendents

Superin- Principals
tendents

UNDERGRADUATE CORPSMEN
Mr. GRAHAM. There was-in that earlier

question, sir, about these people who have
had 2 years' education and then they per
form in a local school system-as Dr. Lum
ley suggested, that is entirely up to that
school system, that university and the State,
and here Will be a division among the States.
Some States that have a hesitancy about
haVing that kind of person in their school
will elect to take just those people who have
completed their undergraduate work and are
working at the graduate level. Other States
may say, "No, we would like some people who
are not working at the graduate leveL" But
that would be at their option.

Senator DoMINICK. Thank you.

The revised Teacher Corps program con
tained in HR 10943, SUb-part 1 of Part B,
places more responsibility on the local and
state education agencies and in the teacher
education institutions for recruItment and
traIning of Teacher Corps participants. We
believe this improves the Teacher Corps pro
gram and will allay some of the fears of fed
eral control which the present program has
raised in the minds of some. We believe the
amounts authorized in the bill are reason
able and that the Teacher Corps program
will be a useful part of the Education Pro
fessions Development Act. The NEA has sup
ported the Teacher Corps from the begin
ning and continues to believe that this pro
gram can be a valuable part of the total
effort to improve educational opportunities
for disadvantaged children. The Teacher
Corps program, as an experimental project,
is very useful in helping to identify the best
methods of preparIng teachers to teach in
economically and socially disadvantaged
areas. It also has brought inspiring and
dedicated young people into contact with
realities of the way of life of those of our
natIon who live in poverty-to the mutual
benefit of both groups. Those educational
administrators who have had firsthand ex
perience with the Teachers Corps are over
whelmingly in favor of continuing the pro
gram. Attached hereto is a summary of a
survey of Teacher Corps programs Which the
Committee may find of interest.

We note with approval that the Teacher
Corps program will be extended to cover
state and other agencies involved in pro
grams of educating children of migratory
agricultural workers.

2. How do you rate the tnservtce (follow
up) training that the Teacher Corpsmen are
receiving at the cooperating colleges or
university?

3. What do you see as the greatest benefit
from the Teacher Corps program?

Excellent. _
Adequate _
Inadequate • _
UnC9rtain _

DIVISION OF FEDERAL RELATIONS, NATIONAL
EDUCATIONAL ASSOCIATION

NEA QUESTIONNAIRE ON TEACHER CORPS,
FEB. 17, I9S7

1. How do you rate the preservtce (sum
mer) training program of the Teacher Corps
men assigned to your school or school
system?

ernment that· ever get started that then
Wither away by their own etrorts.

Mr. LUMLEY. That is true.
Senator DOMINICK. And here we are taik

ing about 1,200 that are now enrolled, 2,500
for the next year, 5,000 for the next, and yeu
have got a built-in bureaucracy that is enor
mous.. And my question to you is, do you
envisage any problem of this simply be
coming a Federal overlay of teaching skins
throughout the country, and is this neces
sarily good or bad?

Mr. LUMLEY. Well, the danger would be
there. I would have to say the danger would
be there, but I do not believe that It works
out that·· way, and I believe that tItle V
wIth Its provision for the school districts to
do some things In teacher training on their
own would help alleviate this and would get
them to meet these needs and not have this
Federal overlay.

Senator DOMINICK. What relationship do
you see, If any, between the fact that you
have regional centers set up determining
new courses, new techniques of teaching paid
for by the Federal Government, and then
you have the National Teachers Corps going
into the school districts, presumably having
been trained in the techniques and thereby
tending to use those as opposed to whatever
the curriculum may be in the local areas?

Mr. LUMLEY. The amendments in H.R.
10943 put this, the control and the recruit
ment of Teachers Corpsmen at the local level
and in the higher education at the college
or university level, and I believe that this
is the protection against the problem. It is a
problem that we have been concerned about.
As I say-when I say "We," I am talking
about the National Education Assoclation
we are getting into this idea of more and
more moving toward a centralized system,
whIch is the last thing we want.

Senator DOMINICK. How does the NEA feel
about thlrd- and fourth-year students teach
ing without having an undergraduate de
gree?

Mr. LUMLEY. They would have~to go In as
interns--I am sure that there would be no
way presently in-I could not say positively
there would not be any state, but I would
say I do not know of any state that would li
cense a 2-year person as a teacher, so they
would be going in as an intern under a
master teacher.

DISMISSAL PROVISIONS
Senator DOMINICK. Under this bill does an

administrator, school superintendent, or ad
ministrator have the right to fire these peo
ple whenever they feel SO incUned, or is there
any tenure Involved?

Mr. LUMLEY. I do not believe there is any
tenure, as I would read the bill, although it
would have to be a common actIon between
the school district and the Teachers Corps
at the national omce. I am pretty sure that
they can dismiss--they could determlne--In
other words, I do not see any reason why
they could not terminate the contract com
pletely.

Senator DOMINICK. Mr. Graham, do you
have any comment on that?

Mr. GRAHAM. No, sir, It does not have to
be in common action. The local school sys
tem can fire them-they can ask for 5 days'
notice, but that is just a formaUty. They can
be fired by that local school system and
there Is no tenure. Some school systems this
past year entered into contracts with these
people and gave them a kind of tenure, but
that was a surprise to us.

Now, if a person is really cutting the
mustard, if he is performing and if It has
been a personaUty matter and if there has
been-if there is another school system that
looks over the performance of this individual
and says we would Uke him in our school,
then he may be reassigned, but he has to
leave that local school right now.

Senator DoMINICK. Thank you.
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NOTE.-If you are a principal, please answer
Questions 9 and 10, skip Questions 11, 12, and
13, and continue with Questton 14.

If you are a superintendent, please skip
QuestiOns 9 and 10 and continue With Ques
tion 11.

9. How many Corpsmen are now assigned
to your school?

---.Number of Corpsmen
10. Including the Corpsmen now in your

school how many Corpsmen could you use
efficiently to supplement the services of your
regular staff?

---Minimum number
---Maximum number
11. How many schools in your system now

have Corpsmen?
---.Number of schools
12. How many Corpsmen are now working

in your system?
___Number of Corpsmen
13. What are your additional needs for

Corpsmen?
---Estimated number of additional

schools
___Estimated number of additional

Corpsmen
14. Please give your evaluation and any

other comments you care to make about the
effectiveness of the Teacher Corps as a pro
gram for training teachers to work in poverty
areas. (The following statements are indica
tive of the response of the superintendents
and principals.)

(a) "We believe the NTC can help us to
do B better job in preparing children for pro
ductive learning. We think the school must
do more than offer the stUdents the tradi
tional curriculum during the regular school
day. Corpsmen can introduce these pupils to
the world outside the routine and provide

Superin· Principals
tendents

Total 1968 appropriation
request ,._ 33,000,000

1968 bUdget request:
Preservlce In September 1967

for 450____________________ 1, OIl, 150
Preservlce in January 1968 for850 1,908,250

ContinuatIon costs for 1966group 7,402,700

First year training and sal-
aries for 600 (July 1967) __ 3,492,000

First year training and sal-
aries for 1,050 (Aug. and
Sept. 1967) ~ 4,620,300

First year training and sal-
aries for 850 (Jan. 1968) 1,9<12,900

Second summer for 1967group 2,970,000

Preservlce ., training for new
Corps members to begin
training In June 1968______ 3, B76, 125

1968-69 Academic year In-
service training costs, 1967
Group ----- 2,359,800

33,003,225Total

arts remedial program under Title I. They
have introduced new methods into teaching.
They work both With the parents and With
the children. They are very devoted and con
scientIous With the children. 1 only Wish we
had 25 instead of 5 that 1 might put them
in all our schools. We have not had a single
Incident or problem With the Corpsmen.
Please help to get more adequate funds so
we can have more."

(f) "Because the interns and the team
leader are not requIred to teach a full load of
classes, they can offer indiVidual help to some
children. They are planning also to otrer a
new type of semInar in order to help some of
our under-achieving students who might
benefit from small group work. The preserv
ice and inservlce training stresses the use of
innovative material and the Teacher Corps
team Is plannIng to experiment With the use
of some new materIals which might be valu
able in this school and Which might be valu
able in similar schools."
Summary Of Teacher Corps funding request,

June 22, 1967
1967 supplemental $3,823,700

learning situations during the school day
that are appropriate for the individual and
small groups."

(b) "The National Teacher Corps members
are highly motivated, concerned With the in
dividual child, demonstrate concern. Good
model for traditional teachers. Establish rap
port With students."

(c) "The Teacher Corps members are much
more highly motivated to work in poverty
areas than the average teachers."

(d) "It Is a very good program for train
Ing teachers to work In poverty areas."

(e) "Unlike teachers who are hired directly
from teacher colleges of other teacher train
Ing institutions, Teacher Corps personnel
have been prepared for some difficult situa
tions which they are likely to find in the
innercity schools. Because they treat the
children With more understanding, they are
more likely to reach the children alid to do
a more effective job than the teacher trained
in a traditional manner."

15. Please give any additional comments
about the usefulness of the work the Corps
men are doing now. Include here your com
ments about any new services or programs
that have been possible thIs year because of
the help of the Corpsmen. (The folloWing
statements are indicatIve of the responses of
the superintendents and principals.)

(a) "Our Corps members have served our
area well In the short time we have had
them. The Interns have performed Invalu
able services In remedial programs for Indi
viduals and small groups. The contact With
the community and its problems have been
useful both to the community and to the
Corps members themselves."

(b) "Such activities as home visits, crea
tive writing, tutorial services, remedial read
ing Instruction, and 4-cH Club work are some
of the services being performed by the Corps
men. We find the members most w1lling to
accept responsibl11ty and to have a good at-
titude toward the children." .

(c) "The corpsmen on the whole are do
Ing community work and have been able to
greatly enrIch and assist In our TItle I work."

(d) "Use of NTC has enabled us to reduce
the pupil-teacher ratio."

(e) "The shortage of teachers has been
such that we had five classrooms Without
teachers from September to ChrIstmas..We
Integrated the Corpsmen with a language

TEACHER CORPS-FISCAL YEAR 1967 SUPPLEMENTAL FUNDS

74

14

3
33

67

5

2
5

26

49I plan to ask lor additional corpsmen..•
J plan to keep the present corpsmen lor

the 2d year and then to ask lor reo
placements.......•.......••.•• _..

I plan to keep the present corpsmen for
the 2d year, bu t I do not think I will
ask lor replacements.......••_._ ...

I plan to dismiss the present corpsmen
at the end 01 the 1st yeaL .•........

Other.•••............•.••••....••.•

Number Unit
cost

Total costs Remarks

Number Unit cost Total costs

I APproximately 550 will begin traini~g in July and August and 600 will begin training in September.

TEACHER CORPS-1968 BUDGET REQUIREMENTS

A. 1967 summer training lor 750 oi the 883 interns enrolled as 01 Apr. 30, 1967:
1. Training allowance ._. .. _ _. __ ._ ., .
2. Stipends and dependents allowance:

a. Corpsman's stipend __ • _.. .. _........• ...• ._ •.•. __ c
b. Dependents allowance.. __ .....•.. _., .•••• _.... "" __ '_'"

Total of A_. __ -.- -.- -•..••..• -.----.
B. 1961 preservice training lor 1,150 I new recruits:

1. Transportation to preservice training.• , .... , .• _., •.•.....•••...••
2. Training costs lor interns•• _. __ ..•..•.... ,. _._ ..•......• _. _.....

3. Stipend and dependents allowance:
a. Interns_.. __ . _....• __ . . _ , _ .
b. Dependents..•_...• _, ••• _._._.' .

4. Salaries lor experienced teachers _.. _......•..•......
5. Transportation to residence (dropouts)_ •• _.....•.•...•••.•....••

Total 01 B ..•. _....•.•••......• __ •..••.••••••......

1967 supplementaL"._ •••••.•••. _•. ' •.. ' .

750 $750 $562,500 Average 0110 weeks training at university.

750 750 562,500 Based on $75 per week for 10 weeks.
750 150 112,500 8ased on $15 per week lor 10 weeks.

1,273,500 To be obligated by June 30,1967.

1,150 100 115,000 Travel cost from residence to training site. _
920 1,200 1,104,000 Provides lor instructional costs lor l1·week period and includes supplies,

equipment, staff, and other expenses incurred by the universicy.

920 825 760,000 Based on $75 per week lor 11 weeks.
920 165 1520,00 Based on $15~r week lor 11 weeks.
230 1,925 443,200 Based on $17 per week lor 11 weeks.. .
120 100 12,000 Estimated 10·percent dropout rate lrom preservice.

2,586,000 To be obligated by June 30,1967.

3,823,700

Remarks

A. 1967 preservice training for an additional 450 new recruits in September
and October of 1967:

1. Transportation to preservice training..•. _ .
2. Training costs lor interns _•.•..••..•. _.••....•...•

3. Stipends and dependents allowance:
(a) Interns_.._. __ , __ ._ .,. __ .• _ _
(b) Dependents..• __ .•... _..••. _.. ' __ ._ _ __ ._.

4. Salaries for experienced teachers _ .
5. Transportation to residence (dropouts) _.•. .

Total of A _ ......•.....•

450
360

360
360
90
45

$100
1,200

825
165

1,925
100

$45, 000 Travel costs from residence to training site.. . ..'
432,000 Provides lor instructional costs for l1·week period and Includes supplies,

equipment, stall and other expenses incurred by th~university.

297,000 Based on $75 per week for 11 weeks.
59, 400 Based on $15 per week for 11 weeks.

173,250 Based on $175 per week for 11 weeks.
45,000 Estimated 10 percent dropout rate from preservlce.

1,011,150
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Number Unit cost Total costs Remarks

750 648,000 Average of 10 weeks training at university

750 648,000 Based on $75 per week for 10 weeks.
150 129,600 Based on $15 per week for 10 weeks.

1,425,600

750 243,000 Average of 10 weeks' training at university.

750 243,000 Based en $75 per week for 10 weeks.
150 48,600 Based on $15 per week for 10 weeks.

534.600

750 459,000 Average of 10 weeks' training at university.

750 459,000 Based on $75 per week for 10 weeks.
150 91,800 Based on $15 per week for 10 weeks.

1,009,800

2,970,000

850 $100 $85,000 Travel costs from residence to training site.
680 1,200 816,000 Provides for instructional costs for JI·week period .and includes supplies,

equipment, staff and other expenses incurred by the university.

680 825 561,000 Based on $75 per week for'l1 weeks.
680 165 112,200 Based on $15/er week for 11 weeks.
170 1,925 327,250 Based on $17 per week for 11 weeks.
68 100 6,800 Estimated 10 percent dropout rate from preservice.

1,908,250

750 1,900 1,425,000 Estimated instructional costs to institutions.

750 5,384 4,038,000 Based on 90 percent of estimated base salary plus 100 percent of employee
benefits.

140 10,041 1,405,700 Based on 90 percent of estimated base salary and estimated supervisory
payment plus 100 percent of employee benefits.

890 400 356,000 Cost varies among school districts and as negotiated on the basis of individual
circumstances such as. the number of corps members, location of assign-

890 200 178,000
ment, and availability of local administration support.

Travel and shipment of household gOods from assIgnment to residence upon
completion of service. .

7,402,700 Can be funded under continuing resolution beginning July I, 1967.

392 1,900 745,000 Estimated instructional cost to institution.
490 100 49,000 Estimated cost of transporting household goods and dependents and Corps

members to inservice site.

392 3,240 1,270,000 Based on 90 percent of $75 per week plus $15 per d"t!:endent for 40 weeks.
392 317 124,000 Benefits based on 8.8 percent of $3,600 salary (inclu es items such as em-

ployers share of social security, health benefits, workman's compensation,
retirement, etc.).

98 10,041 984,000 Based on 90 percent of estimated base salary and estimated supervisory
payment pius 100 ~ercent of emPIO!ee benefits.

496 400 196,000 Cost varies among sc 001 districts an is ne~otiated on the basis of individual
circumstances such as the number of orps members, location of assign-
ments, and availability of local administrative support.

3,492,000 Can be funded under continuing resolution beginning July I, 1967.

856 950 813,200 Based on training institutions costs for % of the academic year.
945 100 94,500 Estimated cost of transporting househOld goods and dependents and Corps

members 10 inservice site.

856 2,268 1,941,400 Based on 90 percent of $75 per week plus $15 per dependent for 7/10 of Ihe
856 222 190,000 retUlar school year (28 weeks). Benefits based on 8.8 percent of $2,520

sa ary (includes items such as employer's share of social security, health
benefits, workman's compenisation, retirement, etc.) for 7/10 of the regular
school year.

189 6,966 1,316,600 Based on 90 percent of estmaled base salary and estimated supervisory
payment plus 100 percent of employee benefits for 7/10 of the regular school
year.

945 280 264,600 Based on 7/10 of a full year.

4,620,300

612 633 387,400 Based on training institution costs for li of the academic year.
765 100 76,500 Estimated cost of transporling household goods and dependents and Corps

members to inservice site.

612 1,260 771,100 Based on 90 percent of $75 per week plus $15 per dependent for 3% months
(14 weeks).

612 lJ1 67,900 Benefits based on 8,8 percent of salary (includes items such as employers'
share of social security, health benefits, workman's compensation, retire-
ment, etc.) for 34 months.

153 3,483 532,900 Based on 90 percent of estimated base salary and estimated supervisory pay-
ment plus 100 percent of employee benefits for 3!Ai months.

765 140 107,100 Based on 3% months.

1,942,900

(b) Experienced teachers • .. __ • ..

4. local school administration ... .. _.

Total of F. • .. _•. __ . _. • . • .. _._

G. 1968 summer training for 864 interns expected to be authorized by the 1967
supplemental:

J. Training costs • .. ... ... .... _.. 864
2. Stipends and dependents' allowance:

(a) Interns'stipend.. .. ... .... 864
(b) Dependents' allowance •. .______________ 864

Tolal of G .. _.. __ • . • • •

H. 1968 Summer training for 324 interns expected to be authorized by the 1968
appropriation and who will enler in Fall 1967:

1. Training costs_. .. .. .. .. • 324
2. Stipends and dependents' allowance:

(a) Interns stipend__ • .. __ ........._ 324
(b) Dependents' allowance.... • __ .. ._ •• _. 324

Total of H__ ... • .... .. __ •

I. 1968 summer training for 612 interns expected to be authorized by the 1968

apeof~~~~i~~ ~~ts~~~~i~~ ~~~:~~~ .."~~~e:_~~~: .. ••_ _ __ 612
2. Stipends and dependents' allow'ance:

(a) Interns' stipend__ • ,_. •• _. • • ... _ 612
(b) Dependents' allowanct __ 612

Total of L • : __

Total of G, H, and 1 ._ •• __ •__ • _

4. local school administration .. • •• ..

Total of L __ .. __ ... . . . .

F. 1967-68 academic year costs to train 850 Corps members to be started in the
winter of 1967:

1. Inservice training for interns..... •• _._ .. • __
2. Transportation to teaching assignmenL.. _.. • ..

3. Salaries during assignment:
(a) Interns ••. ' _ • •

Benefits_•. _ . __ • _. • .•• _

(b) Experienced teachers__ ••• __ •• •• _•• __

Total of D••• __ • , ..... _....... .. _..... _.

E. 1967-68 academic year costs to train 1,050 Corps members to begin in the
fall of 1967:

1. Inservice training for interns .. _
2. Transportation to teaching assignmenl. .._. _

3. Salaries during assignment:(a) Interns •• _••• __ .. . _
Benefits_. .... __~ • .. .. __

{b) Experienced teachers _, •• • .,,_ .. __ • _

4. local school adminlstration ._....... ._.. _._. _

Total of C .. __ ._._ •• _. __ .. , ..." .... _.... .• _.

D. 1967-68 academic year costs to train 600 Corps members expected to be
authorized by 1967 supplemental and begin in July 1967;

1. Inservice training for interns "__ __ • _
2. Transportation to teaching assignmenL.. .. _••_.

3. Salaries during assignment:
(a) Interns _••• • • • __ _.. _. _

Benefits._ •• ' _.. • _ • _._

4. Transportation to residence..... __ ......_•• .. _

B. Pr~~~~ice training for 850 new recruits beginning in January and February

1. Transportation to preservice training_. •••• ••• __ •
2. Training costs for intern5- •• ..... •__ •• •

3. Stipends and dependents allowance:(a) Interns • . __ •••• _••• • •
(b) Dependents .•• __ • __ ._. ..

4. Salaries for experienced teachers_. _.. • _
5. Transportation to residence (dropouls).. •••••• __ ... _. _

Total of B • ••••• • __ •__ ••, __ • ••• __

C. 1967-68 academic year costs to continue 750 interns and 150 experienced
teachers enrolled as of Apr. 30, 1967:

J. Inservice training for interns__ ._.. _.. _ _•• _
2. Salaries during assignment:(a) Interns • •• __ • • ••• •• __ ._. _

(b) Experienced teachers .. •• __ • ..

3. local school administration . .• __ •• _... _
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Number Unit cost Tolal costs Remarks

August<2,,"-1967

J. 1968 summer training for 2,500 new Corps members:
1. Transportation to preservice......•.•...•.•.• _..••••••••••••••••
2. Training cost for interns•••. ._ .............•.•..•••.•.•••..•.

3. Stipends and dependents' allowance:
(a) Interns .... _.. _. _•.•.•••.••...•....... -.....•
(b) Dependents__ . .. _._ •• _..• __ -•.• _. -... -•.••.. ---...

4. Salaries for experienced teachers..... _...•.•.....•.••.••• _.•..•
5. Transportation to residence for dropout..•.•.•...•...•.•••••. _.•.

Total of L __ _._ .. _ _. __ .. _..·.· ···_·····

K 196~9 academic year inservice training costs:
1. 1967 group of interns . •• _•. __ ..... _..••••••• ····_·· __
2. 1968 group of interns __.._••••••••••.•. ..•• _._ ••••• •••••····

Total of K__ •• _. __ .•••• _•••• -••••• -.- --•••••••••••••••••••••

1,725 $100 $177,500 Travel cost from residence to training site for Corps members.
1,3BO 1,200 1,656,000 Provides for instructional costs for 11 weeks and includes supplies, equipment,

statt, and other expenses incurred by the university.

1,380 825 1,138,500 Based on $75 per week for 11 weeks.
1,3BO 165 227,700 Based on $15ter week for 11 weeks.

345 1,925 664,125 Based on $17 per week for 11 weeks.
173 100 17,300 Travel cost from school to residence.

3,876,125 To be funded from the 1968 appropriation.

1,800 1,900 3,420,000 Estimated instructional cost to institute.
1,242 1,900 2,359,800 Do.

5,779, BOO

TABLE I.-NUMBER OF ELIGIBLE STUDENTS IN SELECTED
STATES UNDER TITLE II, NOEA PROGRAM, 8Y APPRO·
PRIATION LEVEL, 1968

Title III: Matching grants 0/ equipment
When we turn, however, to Title In NDEA,

the matching grant program for the purchase
of equipment, it is here where we see un
deniable evidence of budgetary reaction to
the detriment of a program which has
demonstrated that It has the confidence of
our school teachers and principals.

In my own State, In this year, of the first
850 odd claims paid, Oregon local school
districts over-matched the Federal contri
bution by $862,112. That is to say, more than
$860,000 was spent by school systems for the
purposes of Title III over and above what
would have been requested merely to meet
the 5Q-50 matching provisions. The author
ization contained in the legislation for fiscal
year 1968 for grants to the States for Title
In purposes amounts nationally to $96,800,
000. The Bureau of the Budget estimate for
this Item Is $47 million, and this in the face
of fiscal year 1967's appropriation of $79,200,
000. Requesting funds of only 48.5 per cent
of the authorization, I SUbmit, is not sound
financing of a vital educational program. It
is, rather, a program of attrition of the
concept.

This is compounded by the fallure of the
Bureau of the Budget to provide any funding
at all for the key area of TItle III, the area
of supervisory services.

Last year, the Congress provided $5.5 mil
110n to enable State departments of educa
tion to employ the personnel who work with
the school districts in planning and evaluat
ing their Title III programs. Money for state
supervisory services In connection with Title
III expenditures is well spent it the most
effectlve use of the money is to be made.

El1minatlon of this item is a vital blow
at the effectiveness of Title m. It wlll be
contended, I suppose, that these services can
be provided If a broadening of Title V of the
Elementary and secondary Education Act is
further authorized by the statute and fully
funded. However, I ask you to question that
representation.

I suggest that the better part of wisdom is
to continue to fund services which have
proven their worth untU such a time as re
placement mechanisms have been approved
by the Congress and adequately funded by

.the Congress in a subsequent year. To hazard
this important service upon a contingency
Is to run the risk of crlppl1ng a service in
the event that actions in another area are
not taken. I urge you, therefore, to restore
the full $10 mUllon authorized for super-

<a) <b)

Title II Title II
funding at funding at

$190,000,000 $225,000,000

EXHIBIT 4
TEACHER CORPS

Last fall, the Nation was faced with an un
precedented shortage of almost 170,000 qual
111ed teachers. The shortage was most acute
In the urban slums and In depressed rural
areas.

Testimony and evidence presented to the
committee strongly supports an inereesed
and Improved program of support by the
Federal Government to attract and prepare
men and women for teaching in schools serv
ing disadvantaged children. The Federal in
volvement to date has been l1m1ted. Insti
tutes to provide advanced lralning for teach
ers of disadvantaged youth have been sup
ported under title XI of the NatIonal De
fense Education Act. The National Teacher
Corps has been acclaimed by most local edu
cational agencies having a Teacher Corps
team; yet the program has been small In
comparison to the natIonal need. Recogniz
ing and considering seriously the potential
value of the Teacher Corps the committee
has given the utmost attention to this pro
gram.

A total of 1,213 Teacher Corps members
are engaged In 111 school districts serving
In 275 schools across the Nation.

EXHIBIT 5
H.R. 10196

Amendment Intended to be proposed by
Mr. Morse, for himself, and Mr. Harris,
Mr. Clark, Mr. Hart, Mr. Nelson, Mr. Ran
dolph, Mr. Yarborough, Mr. Church, Mr.
Wllliams (N.J.), Mr. Kennedy (Mass.),
Mr. Kennedy (N.Y.), Mr. Mondale, Mr.
Hartke and Mr. Gruening to the blll (H.R.
10196) Departments of Labor, and Health.
Education, and Welfare, and Related
Agencies Appropriation Bill, 1968
On page 15, llnes 11 and 12, delete

"$18,100,000" and insert in lleu thereof the
following: "$33,000,000".

EXHIBIT 6
EDUCATIONAL FUNDING

(Statement of Senator WAYNE MORSE, Demo
crat, of Oregon, before the Subcommittee
on Labor-HEW Appropriations, Senate
Committee on Appropriations)
Mr. Chairman, members of the subcom

mittee, the funding of educational programs
authorized by the Congress Is one of the
most Important responsibilities placed upon
members of the Senate. As I review the esti
mates of the Administration In this area, I
am filled with a deep concern. With your
permission, I would like to share with you
the areas of my concern and the reasons for
my disquiet.

Many major pieces of educational legisla
tion were enacted In the 88th and 89th Con
gresses. It is principally to the funding of
these that I shall address myself, but as
chairman of the Education SUbcommittee I
am the first to reallze the importance of the
great landmark legislation which preceded
those years. I refer particularly to the Hlll-

Elllott Act, sometimes called the National
Defense Education Act of 1958, and Publlc
Laws 815 and 874, the Impacted areas laws.

These three statutes have, as has the
Smith-Hughes Act of 1917, and its successor
vocational education legislatlon, clearly dem
onstrated their usefulness, and their polltlcal
strength through the support given by the
American people to the programs they en
gendered.

Let us look, then, at the first of the pro
posals before you for the funding of the
various titles of the National Defense Edu
cation Act.

NDEA ESTIMATES
Title II programs

First let me call to your attention the stu
dent loan provisions of Title II of the Na
tional Defense Education Act which was
funded in fiscal year 1967 with an appro
priation of $190 million. The authorizations
contained In the 1966 amendments to that
act now permit funding of the direct loan
program up to $225 mUllon. The legislative
committee in arriving at the $225 milllon
figure recognized that even this amount
would be insufficlent to meet all of the needs
of ellglble stUdents. The blll as passed the
Senate therefore contained additional lan
guage authorizing a participation sales mech
anism Which, had it operated as forecast by
the Administration, could have generated up
to $250 mil1lon of NDEA loan capacity. We
were unable to retain this language In our
conference with the House.

The Administration Is still convinced of
the ut1llty of sales participation and that
proposal is again before us this year in S.
1126, the Higher Education Amendments of
1967.

Testimony presented before the legislative
committee last year by both the Administra
tion and outside witnesses Indicates clearly
that there Is a need in fiscal year 1968 for
direct loan funds of a magnitUde of up to
$250 mil110n. I am at a loss to comprehend
why this program carries only a Bureau of
the Budget estimate to the Congress of $190
mlllion. I recognize that In the budget sub
mission process frequently it becomes ex
pedient for the Bureau of the Budget to make
arbitrary cuts, but I plead with you gentle
men, that in the educational area we be
guided by educational rather than budgetary
considerations. I strongly urge you to give
serious consideration to funding Title II stu
dent loans at the full authorization of $225
mlllion.

If Title II stUdent loan programs were
funded at the $225 milllon level authorized
by statute, I would point out to the sub
committee, as shown in the folloWing table,
that this addition of $35 mllllon to the esti
mates, as submitted, would enable 1,724 addi
tional students from Alabama, 11,780 addi
tional students from New York, and 1,027
addl tlonal students from Oregon an oppor
tunity to achieve financing of their higher
education costs. For the nation as a Whole,
if $225 million is appropriated, 79,384 addi
tional ellglble students could have this type
of financial assistance provided.

Stats

Alabama.•.__ • ._
New York••• ."._
Oreaon. __ •__••. _
All Slates._._.......

6,898
23,487
5,498

419,000

8,622
39,267
6,705

498,384

Increase
(col. (b)
minus

col. <a»

1,724
11,780
1,207

79,384
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visory services. This w1l1 enable Title III pro
grams to continue to operate effectively, and
I strongly urge that most serious considera
tion be also given to funding the State grant
operations at the level of at least $90 million.

How effective is the Title III program? As
I have indicated, it, has strong support in
my own state, as was made manifest to me
on March 28,1967 when I met with a group
of Oregon superintendents. I thought you
should also know that the legislative sub
committee, in connection with its oversight
functions by letter dated February 28, 1967
has requested the Commissioner of Educa
tion to provide the Education Subcommittee
with an analysis of the operations of the
program. On March 13, by follow-up letter to
the Commissioner, the subcommittee re
quested further information concerning this
program. I ask unanimous consent that the
two letters to which I have referred, together
wlthth'e March, 20 reply from the Commis
sioner of Education, appear at this point in
my testimony.

Prior to the time your subcommittee com
pletes its mark-Up on the b1l1, I hope to have
the complete report promised by the Com
missioner in his letter of March 20. With
your permission, I sbould like to forward this
to you for Inclusion in your hearings record,
if It is received in, suffIcient, time to enable
its being inclUded.

Mr. Chairman, I have dwelt at some length
on the Title III NDEA program beca,use if the
Bureau of the Budget estimates are funded
precisely as recommended, my State would
be cut by $321,750. What this means When
the matchlng factor is taken into account is
that instructional materials to the value of
$643,500 will be denied the chlldren in the
schools of my State. It is not a prospect that
I can face with equanimity.

In the current fiscal year Oregon received
some $84,371 for State administration of the
Title III programs. I understand that if the
various changes, proposed by the Executive
Branch are adopted, this figure would be
reduced in fiscal year 1968 to but $19,157.
This is a cut of $65,214. My own position on
this is qUite clear. I shall do everything that
I can to support full funding of educational
programs because of my own conviction that
educational considerations rather than
budgetary considerations should determine
Congressional policy with respect to the edu
cation of the boys and girls for whose bene
fit the public money is to be used.

Title IV: Fellowships
Well I am pleased to note In the Bureau of

the Budget estimates for 1968 that there Is
a sUghtly over $15 mlll10n increase over the
$80 million recommended, however, it should
be borne in mind that this is about $11 mll
Uon less than could have been usefully sup
ported by the Department. As a matter of
fact, if the fellowship program under Title
IV of NDEA were to operate at the level of
the authorizations this would enable an addi
tional 2.040 fellows to undertake graduate
stUdy. If your committee funds this vital
program, In terms of our human resources,
at only the $96.6 million figure recom
mended by the Bureau of the BUdget, you
wlll be closing the door to advanced study
for 683 young men and women, including 18
students from Alabama, 167 stUdents from
New York, and 28 students from Oregon.

Why is this so Important? Witness after
witness has testified before our committee
that teacher shortages, particularly in the
higher educational area, are becoming in
creasingly acute.

We know that today there are approxi
mately 6.05 mllllon stUdents enrolled In in
stitutions of higher education. We also know
the conservative projections indicate that a
scant eight years from now almost nine
mUllon students w1l1 be attending our col
leges and universities. This means that some
how. someway, if we are not to dllute the
educational opportunity to be afforded the

three mllllon additional undergraduate stu
dents, we will have to fund from some source
the additional collegiate teaching 'personnel
needed.
" 'Title nt 6fNDEAls an excellent mechanism
to accomplish this national purpose. It
shOUld be used to the full.

The funds recommended to the Congress
by the Bureau of the Budget w1l1 permit
some 5,460 students to start the long road
to the Ph. D. Last year we started 5,775 on
that route. I ask you, does it make good sense
in the national Interest to cut back, even
by 315, training opportunities which wlll
generate the teachers needed by the nine
mlllioncollege students of 1975? Ougbt we
not now fund this program to its full au
thorization and thus increase ratber than
decrease training' opportunities?

Title V: GUidance, counseling, and testing
Thirty mlllion dollars is authoriZed In Title

,V Of NDEA for grants to the States for guid
ance, counseling and testing activities. In
my view, the autbortzatlon itself, in tbis area
is insUfficient. I am confident that after the
Education Subcommittee's analytic revIew of
TItle V is completed there will be recom
mendations emerging for an Increased fund
ing of these functions.

I would point out that since the inception
of the program, amendments to the title
have increased the scope of its activities.
What originally started out as a purely
secondary school program was expanded by
amendments to the enabUng legislation so
that Title V now encompasses activities in
the elementary, secondary and certain higher
education areas. The authorization of Title
V at the time the amendments were taken
was not Increased to the extent that many
on the Senate side would have wished. I am
therefore, somewhat concerned to note that
the Bureau of the Budget recommendations
In this area contemplate no expansion of
the program, and, in effect fund this pro
gram at Uttle more than 80 per cent of its
authorization.

We have added between 1966 and 1967 al
most a mlIllon more youngsters to our ele
mentary and secondary schools, nationwide.
In 1968 it is anticipated that this number
will be increased by an additional 800,000
stUdents. By 1975 our projected enrollments
Indicate almost four m1l11on more youngsters
in our pubUc schools than were there last
year.

How, then, can we justify holding ap
propriations for the gUidance, counseling
and testing functions at the same level of
$24.5 million that prevailed in 1967? Here,
too, I ask you to consider the evidence care
fully and ask yourselves the question of
whether you can in good conscience recom
mend to the Senate that there be a retrogres
sion in services to the boys and girls in our
schools.

In this area, the ounce of prevention Is less
costly than the pound of cure. The motiva
tion of a young person, which Is strength
ened, Is less costly to evoke than is the cost
of the repair work necessary to bring the
dropout back into the school situation.

Title VI: Language and area centers
With respect to this program, which has

recently been departmentalized in part as
the result of amendments made in the In
ternational Education Act, which has yet to
be funded, the current authorization would
permit an $18 milllon expenditure. The
Bureau of the Budget has recommended that
this be funded at an 87.2 per cent level.
In view of the organizational changes which
have occurred and In view of the expanded
opportunities given through other areas In
the International Education Act, which, if
implemented by adequate funds, would en
able progreS8 to be made in this area, I urge
only that if the full authorization cannot
be supplied, at least the bUdget estimate be
fully supported in the appropriations bl11
reported.

Title VII: EducationaZ media research
The budget request for Title VII, the edu

cational media research title of NDEA, is
within $600,000 of the full authorization.
This represents a twelve per cent cut under
full funding. I would urge that the $5 mil
lion authorization be appropriated. The add!
tlonai $600,000 could well be spent on the
training of teachers In the use of new media.
Such training does not overlap the Title XI
NDEA Institutes authorization since the
latter are for educational media specialists.
It would be most salutary, in my judgment,
to fund institute programs for classroom
teachers so that they could be better pre
pared sklIlfully to use of the media In their
subject matter courses.

Title X: statisticaZ services
With respect, however, to Title X, grants

to the States for statistical services, I note
that no money is being requested this year
by the Bureau of the BUdget on the grounds
that this authority can be met under grants
advanced under Title V of the Elementary
and Secondary Education Act.

The authorization in NDEA, for this pro
gram at present amounts to $2.8 million.
Since there are a great many areas which
need funding under Title V of ESEA; I urge
you to continue to use the Title X authori
zation until such a time as It is clear beyond
a doubt that Title V of ESEA authorities are
large enough to absorb this specific program.

I would further point out that When a
program which has earmarked visible funds,
is merged into the anonymity of a general
authority, pressures are generated within
each of the 50 States to reduce commitment
to the previously Visible areas.

I regard this as a most important pro
gram, since the statistic generated are the
underpinning of the decisions we must make
in determining educational polley. To run
the chance of decreasing the valldlty of the
basis of our pollcymaking, through cutting
back on objective fact-finding, is to risk
consequences in the aggregate which are far
greater in cost than is this relatively small
amount of $2.8 million.

For this fiscal year of 1968 I therefore
urge that you restore to the bill $2,8 mil
lion, which Is the amount that I am assured
could be used with prUdent care by the De
partment In carryIng out the authorities
of the title.
Title XI: Teachers institutes tor advanced

study
The Bureau of the BUdget has requested

but $35.5 million for this program whose
authorization In the act stands as $56 mil
lion. In effect, the Bureau of the Budget Is
requesting a 63.3 per cent funding of this
program.

Yet this is a program which has operated
very succeS8fully and which enjoys great
support throughout the country. I would
point out that the money expended is being
spent by the Institutions of higher educa
tion in your States and that its benefits are
multiplied many times over through the
Increased effectiveness In the classroom
situation of the teachers who participate.

It will be said that it Is the hope of the
Administration that enabling legislation in
Title V of the Higher Education Act will
permit greater flexibility in the use of ed
ucational training funds and that in time
It would be the hope of the Admlnistm
tion to phase this 1mportant part of NDEA
out of existence.

There Is a problem here, however, of which
I think we are all cognizant. Once before,
at the request of the Administration, we
transferred from the Title XI Institutes,
training authorities, which we were as
sured could be met under other statu
tory authorities. Unfortunately, the pro
gram which should have provided the in
stitutes did not have suffIcient money in it
to meet all the training needs, with the
result that no training for one period of
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time was contemplated for school librarians.
Many of us were in receipt of communica
tions from these school librarians who were,
understandably, very concerned. I do not
think It Is the part of wisdom for us at
this time to permit such a situation again
to develop with respect to other disciplines.
We would be far better advised to fund this
training program for teachers at the full
authorization and continue to do so dur
Ing any period of transition to other au
thorities. For that reason, I respectfully urge
you to provide full funding for this pro
gram in the 1968 appropriations bill.

PUBLIC LAWS SIS AND S74

The Impacted areas legislation, Public
Laws 815 and 874, for the construction costs
and the operation and maintenance costs
respectively, of school districts, are no
strangers to this committee. These are pro
grams which, since 1950, have enjoyed such
strong Congressional support that their ex
tension and expansion has carried with It
many of our newer educational departures In
legislation.

Our most recent expansions which brought
the benefits of this legislation to the larger
cities of this country, has not yet been fully
recognized through adequate funding. It Is,
therefore, somewhat shocking to me that
under P.L. 874 the bUdget estimate Is lower
than what was appropriated for fiscal year
1967.

The same Is true with respect to PL. 815.
Furthermore, the bUdget estimates are

based upon the assumption that the Congress
w1ll permit the temporary provisions of PL.
815 to lapse. I may not be a very accurate
prophet with respect to educational legis
lation, but I think over my years In the Sen
ate I have gained the experience necessary to
qual1fy in political arithmetic. My very strong
Intuition tells me that before an Elementary
and Secondary Education Amendments Act
emerges from the legislative committee on
the Senate side It will Include provisions
further extending the temporary provisions
of P.L. 815. To assert otherwise would be to
fiy in the face of Congressional history.

If I am correct In this assessment, then It
would seem to me that the choice before the
Appropriations Committee, If It Is to act In
harmony With the sentiment of the Senate,
would be whether to fund this program In
the regular appropriations bill or whether It
would under fund It with a very high prob
ability approaching certainty that It would
be necessary to come at a later date before
the Senate With supplemental appropria
tions.

Included within S. 1125, the Elementary
and Secondary Amendments of 1967, are rec
ommendations regarding the continuation of
one of the PL. 874 programs, the School Dis
aster Act. I have already had representations
as chairman of the Education Subcommittee
from some of my colleagues that they are
eager and anxious to broaden and to expand
the coverage of that act, enabling additional
schools to benefit from the protections It of
fers. I am sure the same representations will
be made to you by your colleagues.

We all have a stake In this. A geograph
Ically smal! area through tornado or other
local manifestation of nature's terrible ener
gies can be devastated. Since this protection
against natural disaster Is based upon funds
appropriated for P.L. 815 and 874, It Is my be
lief that both programs ought to carry suffi
cient money so as to act as an adequate re
serve against the contingencies of nature.

I would point out, once again, that not
more money can be spent from these funds
than Is authorized under the formulas con
tained within the acts and If the funds are
not needed they revert to the Treasury. The
Congress, therefore, runs no risk In over
appropriating in these areas. The Congress
could run a risk, however, In being held ac
countable if the funds are empty when they
are most needed.

VOCATIONAL EDUCATION ACT OF 1963

WbUe In general the bUdget estimates of
almost $200 million to· fund grants to the
States under the Vocational Education Act
of 1963 is sUfficient to meet the purposes of
that legislation until such a time as the
authorizations are increased, there Is one
area of funding under this authority which
does cause me some concern.

No money Is provided In the budget for
the vocational work-study program, Which
last year received an appropriation of $10
million. The argument is made that the
Bureau of the BUdget would prefer to. con
centrate Its funding activities In this area
of assistance to young people within the
Neighborhood Youth Corps, authorized
under the poverty programs.

This will mean that many programs In
many of our States which have previously
been funded will be forced out of existence.
The authorization for vocational work-study,
however, continues through fiscal year 1968.
The basic legislation wll! come under the re
view of the legislative committee during
this session of the Congress. The Admin
Istration bill, S. 1125, has been Introduced.
Hearings will be held. During the course of
those hearings, I am confident that testi
mony will be elicited which will enable a
Congressional determination to be made of
our educational policy In this area of youth
education.

It would be my hope that your committee
would see fit to provide as an addition to
the President's bUdget, at least the $10 mil
lion that was provided last year, and that
the phasing out of this program If It Is to
be accomplished, be done through the ex
ercise of legislative authority rather than
at the behest of the Bureau of the BUdget.

HIGHER EDUCATION FUNDING

Mr. Chairman, I turn now to the funding
of authorities contained in the Higher Edu
cation Facilities Act of 1963 and the Higher
Education Act of 1965.
Higher Education Facilities Act oj 1963:

Funds jar construction
The authorizing legislation cantalns an

authorization of some $728 million. The
estimate submitted to the Congress by the
Bureau of the BUdget provides only $390
million. Earlier I spoke of the anticipated
enrollments expected by 1975 In higher edu
cation, estimated to be nine million stUdents
as contrasted to the present six mll1Ion plus.
As the budget estimates are reviewed by
you In your mark-up sessions. I would have
you ask yourselves this question: How long
does It take to build an adequate academic
facllltes structure? From the time the deci
sion Is taken to the time that the doors are
opened for the first class Is at least three
years. This Is the lead time you must keep
In mind. What you authorize for fiscal year
1968 has an Important bearing on the num
ber of youngsters a college can accommo
date in fiscal year 1970 or 1971, and after.
The $728 million authorized by the legisla
tion for fiscal year 1968 by no means will
meet the needs which have been estimated
by American Council on Education In testi
mony before my subcommittee. This testi
mony, which may be found on page 271 of
our hearings record on the Higher Education
Amendments of 1966, suggests a magnitUde
of total need of $4.375 billion per year. I
ask unanimous consent that the text of
the entire letter under date of July 20, 1966
signed by Dr. John F. Morse, Director of
the Commission on Federal Relations of the
American Council on Education, appear In
the hearings record at this point In my re
marks.

I would point out that It Is the judgment
of the educational authorities that there
will be a need for new construction starts
each year for the next ten years of some
where between three and four billion dol
lars. Since the time that letter was received,
I have come across no new evidence that

would suggest that a lower figure can be
anticipated. This Item and the Title n au
thorization of $120 million for graduate
school facUlties construction which the Bu
reau of the Budget wishes to fund only at
$50 million, are crucial educational policy
decisions which must be made by the Con
gress.

I recognize the grave responsibility the
President has for the national budget as
a whole and what he believes can be ab
sorbed by our economy. But I also am cog
nizant of my own responsibilities as a sen
ator and as chairman of the legislative sub
committee dealing with these matters, and
I urge upon you that you review the bUdget
estim.ates for school construction at the
higher education level on the basts of the
demographic facts and the economic bene
fits to the nation of higher education and
that you fund these authorities In such a
manner and at such levels as will enable us
and our successors to keep our commitment
to the American people that we Intend to
permit each young student to have access
to education and training commensurate
with his talents and abilities.

I have perhaps over-wearied the senate
by reiterating the point that expenditures
In this area ought to be considered as
capital Investment. At the risk of repeating
the obvious once again, and In the Interests
of our national security In the highest sense,
I urge you to provide the full amounts' au
thorized under existing law in the field of
higher education construction.

HIGHER EDUCATION ACT OF 1965 PROGRAMS

I commend to your'attentlon the commit
tee 'print entitled, "Notes and Working Pa
pers Concerning the Administration of Pro
grams Authorized under Public Law 89-329,
the Higher Education Act of 1965, during
Fiscal Year 1966." The materials contained in
the committee print,' caples of which have
been furnished the SUbcommittee. were
brought· t()gether at my direction In order
that we might in the legislative cominittee
have a brief overview of how well these pro
grams have gotten . underway in the first
year of their existence.

Title 1; Continuing education
Under Title I of the Higher Education Act,

$50 mllliou" was authorized to be appro
priated. Only one-fifth of that amount was
appropriated In fiscal year 1967. For 1968
the Bureau' of the Budget recommends to
you only $16.5 ml1llon. How was the $10 mil
lion spent In fiscal year 1967?

The answer to this is set forth on pages 8
through 43 of the committee print. I wl1l not
weary the subcommittee with a recapitula
tion of the materials in the committee print,
but I would like to cite three of the par
ticipating States' programs.

The State of Alabama received $184,730 of
the $10 ml1llon appropriation. What was it
spent for?. .

Among other Items, public administration
seminars for the range of State and local
government personnel In cooperation with
the University of Alabama, $26,350. Public
health Instructor training courses,$4,900.
Public administration seminars for the range
of State and local government personnel in
cooperation with the Alabama League ot
Municipalities, $43,200. Another $48,700 WSJ;
spent on courses for small business operator,;
In fiscal management, and $12,820 was spent
to Introduce courses In physical planning to
local government officials.

In New York, which had $541,940 allocated
to It, $49,527 went for a training p~ogram for
department of buildings under the sponsor
ship of the City University of New York and
New York City Community College; $30,000
went to the College of Pharmacy of Columbia
University for a speakers bureau on drug use;
$5,000 went for a seminar for government.
labor and Industry In meeting urban pro
grams under the sponsorship of the State
University at Albany; $30,000 was spent by
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the State University at BUffalo in leadership
training and planning for the Niagara fron
tier; $58,000 was used by Syracuse University
for seminars on county problems for officials
and citizens.

In my own state of Oregon, which received
but $146,495, $10,000 was spent by the Uni
versity of Oregon in training courses.of newly
elected mayors,' councilmen and commis
sioners in Oregon; $35,656 for action pro~

grams under Oregon State University at
Corva111s for small town local leadership; and
$8,022 was. applied by the jOint elfort of the
University of Oregon, Oregon State Univer
sity, and Portland State University at con
ferences in urban planning for planning
commissioners.

These are lllustrative examples of the kinds
of programs of immediate benefit to the men
and women, to the citizens of our nation.
There are a great variety of programs that
could be supported under the authorities of
Title I. but I think you wlll agree with me
after you review the data set forth, that this
program has justified its existence, and is de
serving of far greater support than is con
tained in the one-third financing contem
plated by the Bureau of the BUdget. Citizens
who are concerned about crime would surely
applaUd training programs for local law en
forcement officers. Insurance men can see the
need for courses directed to the education of
firemen. This program is one which is con
trolled by the institutions of higher educa
tion in the States and the training it pro
vides is responsive to locally felt needs. I urge
its full funding.
Title II: College library assistance and library

training and researcn
We turn now to Title II, the College Li

brary Assistance, Library Training and Re
search title of the act. You wlll find a review
of this program on pages 49 through 58 of
the committee print.

The authorization for college library re
sources was established at $50 mlll!on for
fiscal year 1968. The Bureau of the Budget
proposes that you appropriate one-half or
$25 million. Since I believe that the college
library is at the very center and core of any
higher educational endeavor, I cannot in
good conscience do other than to urge that
the budget estimates for this highly impor
tant program be fixed at the authorization
celIlng.

I also urge that you restore to the full
$15 milllon of the authorization funds for
library training and library research. Here
the Bureau of the BUdget recommends only
78.6 per cent of the authorization.

In testimony before my subcommittee, per
sonnel shortages in the librarian field have
been documented time and time again. It is
only through provision of adequate finan
clal resources that we can start to make a
beginning in reducing the educational train
ing backlog for library personnel.

Within Title II also is the item for cata
loging of lIbrary materials by the Library of
Congress, authorized at $7.7 mlllion for fiscal
year 1968. Here the Bureau of the Budget is
asking only for 51.4 per cent financing. I
urge you to inquire carefully of the Admin
istration representatives what possible fac
tual justification they could have for a cut
of this magnitude in this program. Either
there have been developments since the
enactment of the 1966 law which were not
then apparent to the Administration, or
bUdgetary considerations once again have
been given primacy over the educational
needs of our schools and colleges.

Title III: Strengtnening developing
institutions

Title ill of the Higher Education Act is
concerned with strengthenin,g developing
Institutions. It is discussed on pages 62-92
of the committee print. Although this pro
gram carries an authorization of $55 ml1lion,
the Bureau of the BUdget is asking for fund-

CxnI--1327-Part 16

ing at only 54.5 per cent or $30 mlllion. A
review of the programs, which were sup
ported in the first year of the operation of
this title, can support, in my judgment, the
fUll funding needed if this progl;am is to
expand and to provide the types and kinds of
services needed by so many .Institutions that
now cannot be served. Only one small pro
gram is now funded in my State, yet I know
that some of our recently established junior
and community colleges which are geograph
ically removed from the main stream of aca
demic progress could usefully participate in
this program.

Title IV: StUdent assistance
The student assistance title of the Higher

Education Act, Title IV, has three parts.
Part A provides for initial economic oppor

tunity grants authorized at $70 million and
funded by the Bureau of the Budget at but
$58.1 mlllion. Continuing grants to support
those individuals previously awarded this
type of assistance are encompassed within
the title. It was the jUdgment of the Depart
ment of Health, Education, and Welfare that
$110 mi1110n would be needed to meet these
costs. Yet the Bureau of the Budget has sub
mitted only $97.5 milllon to meet what I
assume must be fixed costs. Here I would
suggest that the subcommittee might very
well wish to make inquiry of the Bureau of
the BUdget regarding the basis of the re
duced estimate. Was it based on later figures
as to the number of youngsters who had
dropped out of the program, or do they
contemplate removing this type of assistance
from a SUbstantial number of young peOple?
It the latter is the conclusion that is
reached, then I can see no possible justifica
tion which in equity could be urged for the
course of action pursued.

I am also very grieved to note that in Part
C of Title IV, the College Work-Study Pro
gram, the Bureau of the BUdget is wllling
to fund 70 per cent of the authorized
amount. I do not see how this cut can be
justified on the basis of a decreased need on
the part of the students. I can only assume
that considerations other than educational
considerations played a part in the decision.
If this is the case, I would urge that the sub
committee restore to the program at the
very least the $171,600,000 requested by the
Department and preferably the $200 mlllion
authorized by the Congress.

Title V: Teacher programs
Title V of the Higher Education Act con

tains teacher training proposals of two types:
the National Teacher Corps and fellowships
for teachers.

I have on a number of occasions on the
fioor of the Senate in recent months brought
to the attention of my colleagues my strong
support for full funding of the Teacher
Corps. I can understand that untll further
authorizing legislation passes the Congress
and is enacted into law, there is no basis at
this time for the Appropriations Committee
including an item for this program except on
a contingency basis. I urge that language be
written into the bllI on the basis that S.
1125 has been introduced in the Senate and
that companion legislation, H.R. 7819, has
received the approval of the House Commit
tee on Education and Labor, and it should be
considered shortly on the floor of the House.
I urge that no less than $21 mllllon, the fig
ure contained in HR. 7819 for fiscal year
1968, be provided on the contingency basis.

It is my own hope that when the legisla
tion has cleared the Senate and the confer
ence of the two Houses, a basis will have
been laid for a much larger appropriation.

May I call to your attention the following
commenta taken from letters received by the
Teacher Corps as to the merits of the pro
gram.

The first is from Mr. J. M. Caughman,
Superintendent, Laurel Municipal Separate
SChool District, Laurel, Mississippi. He says:

"This is one of our finest programs. But
we could not have attempted it without .the
help of the Corpsmen, for we lacked the per
sonnel and local finances that were neces
sary.

"We are very definitely going to make fine
teachers out of. the interns and we think we
are going to be able to keep them all in
Laurel when they are through with the
Teacher Corps...

The second is from Mr. Walter S. Carter,
Jr., Superintendent, De Soto County Schools,
Hernando, Mississippi. He says:

"We have 2 teams and both have been ex
tremely successful. Their work With small
troups and sometimes full classes, has been
in schools where 90% of the stUdents come
from poverty families.

"I would like to give a lot of credit to
Memphis State University because their work
in selection and training of these interns has
given us two fine teams.

"When it first came out I informed my
board of education that we had no interest
at all in Teacher Corps. But talks with people
from Old Mississippi and from MemphiS State
encouraged me to try the Corpsmen on an
experimental basis.

"Naturally, there was a little reservation on
both sides at first ... on the part of the regu
lar teachers and on the part of the interns.
But once it was established that it was a
purely educational program, and once they
really got down to work, the problems began
to disappear. There was a growing respect
on both sides.

"We hope the program wlll be financed and
financed well. For it is one of the better
programs that we know. Many others don't
measure up to Teacher Corps. It was handled
through the proper educational channels and
there was never any confusion as to its ob
jectives. It had its stops and starts and its
bad days, but throughout it was a program
to give an educational boost to kids Who
really need it.

"We started with good people and they
have gotten good instructions from Memphis
State University. And in the schools they
have gotten close supervision from their team
leaders, cooperating teachers and from the
princlpals. And as a result of all this, we are
going to produce a group of superior teach
ers."

Sentiments simHar to this have been re
ceived from school districts all over the coun
try. They constitute, in my jUdgment, a
powerful testimonial as to the value of this
program.

With respect to Part C of Title B, masters
fellowships for prospective and experienced
teachers, I note that the Bureau of the
BUdget proposes to fund this program at 12.5
per cent of the authorized figure. Again, I
can only reiterate what I have said before in
other connections-that if we are to meet
the responsiblllties in providing training for
teachers, we cannot shirk our responsiblllties
to fund these programs to the level of need.
I therefore urge that in reporting the blll to
the fioor it contain not less than a full ap
propriation of the authorization formula.

Title VI: Improvement Of undergraduate
instruction

Title VI of the Higher Education Act of
1965 brought to higher education the kind
and type of matching grant support that has
proved to be so successful at the elementary
and secondary level under the Title III au
thorities of NDEA. As you know, the author
izations for Title VI are divided into three
parts: $10 mi11l0n is authorized for TV equip
ment, $60 mlllion for other types of match
ing equipment and materials, with but $5
million earmarked for institutes in the train
ing of teachers in the use of these new edu
cational media materials.

I wouid urge that this program, which has
received much support in our legislative com
mittee hearings, be fully funded at the au-
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Aufjust:2;'1967
Last summer, local schools conducted sum

mer programS for educationally deprived
chlldren which cost $250,000.000 in Tltle I
funds. The National Advisory Council on the
Education of the Disadvantaged Children in
its report released on November 25. 1966,
made a special study of the summer programs
conducted under Tltle I last year. The Coun
cll produced a very thoughtful report on
these programs ·and concluded that a sub
stantial portion of the Tltle I funds shOUld
be used In this manner. Two paragraphs from
the Council's report summarize their con
clusions:

"In summary. the Council believes that
future summer programs, besides being im
portant in themselves, can have special bene
ficial eOects on the year-round success Of
Title 1 programs which can be attained in no
other way. They provide an atmosphere of
experimentation and innovation by freeing
teachers from the rigid 'winter school' re
qulrements of fixed schedules and prescribed
texts. By reducing pupil-teacher ratios, sum
mer programs Invite the development of
closer, warmer classroom relationships. Fl
nal!y, and of prime Importance, they enable
Intensive programs of teacher training. These
important advantages lead the Councll to
believe that dollars thoughtfUlly expended
on summer schools may be among the most
prOductive dollars spent by Tltle I. Their ful!
potential wlll be realized when successful
practices discovered in summer are trans
planted to 'regular' school as year-round
practices.

"The Council Is deeply concerned for the
future of summer programs. Many of the
summer projects visited by its observers came
Into existence only because Tltle I money
was appropriated by Congress too late for
ful! use In the regular school year. Since
these districts now have earlier assurance
of funds for the new school year, many are
planning to dispense With summer programs.
This, the Council Is convinced, would be a
great loss, both to the pupils and educators.
So strong is this feeling that the Council
recommends an early decision by appropri
ate officialS to reserve a substantial percent
age of Title 1 funds jor summer programs."

However, in light of the fact that the Title
I programs for fiscal year 1967 got underway
In the schools last September, most districts
have used their funds and wUl be unable to
continue the successfUl programs conducted
last summer.

The programs which have been launched
by the nation's schools under Title I of the
Elementary and Secondary Education Act
are bringing about vast improvements In
the educational services to disadvantaged
children. The programs have been cited by
the Commissioner of Education and by other
leading authorities as remarkable for their
effect on new educational practices for the
poor children of the nation. Over eight mil
lion chlldren benefitted from these programs
In fiscal year 1966. We know that the number
of these children Who need to be served Is
even greater this year. This will not be possi
ble because of the stretch-out in the use of
funds this year for children served last year.

On a per capita basis the amount author
Ized for each eligible chlld in the program
has actually decreased for .fiscal year 1966
67. The formula last year produced an allow
ance of about $210 per chlld, whereall the
amounts available this year authorize ap
proximately $170 per eligible chlld ·In the
formula. This Is caused by the addition of
500,000 children to the formula without a
proportionate Increase in appropriations.

The fiscal year 1967 situation was further
aggravated by a decision of the Administra
tion, which was enforced untll late In March
to Withhold authority from the States to re
allot Title I funds to dlstricts within the
State whenever some districts With unused
allotments would make funds available to
other dlstrlcts that need additional funds.
This authority was clearly intended by the

to be given to these objectives. I know that
restoration of full funding to the Library
Services and Construction Act would meet
With the full approbation of the people.

FUNDING OF PUBLIC LAW S9-10

ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION

PROGRAMS

Within the past several weeks the State
educational agencies were notilled of the
final allocations under Tltle I of the Ele
mentary and Secondary Education Act. These
allocations distributed a fiscal year appro
priation which amounts to $1,053,410,000.
However, the allocations Which have been
made represent only 74 per cent of the
amount which the Congress authorized for
this program and which many members of
this body anticipated would be avallable.

In the 1966 amendments to Title I of the
Elementary and Secondary Education Act we
provided a formula Which substantially In
creased the authorization for fiscal year 1967
and for fiscal year 1968. This was done
through a precise formula which was based
on identified poor children In accordance
with census data, AFDC data and for other
children who are classified as neglected, de
linquent or foster chlldren. The Intent of
these amendments was to increase substan
tially the amounts aVailable to schools to
provide programs for educationally disad
vantaged chlldren. The distressing fact of
life Is that the amounts which were recom
mended by the Administr.:tlon and which are
now avallable carry out only a fraction of
the Congressional Intent.

Last spring after the President sl:;bmitted
his FY 1967 budget to congress, and the U.S.
Ofllce of Education advised the States of the
amounts avallable, It was predicted that the
appropriation request of the President would
fund about 85 per cent of the authorizations
contained in the Administration proposals in
Title I for fiscal year 1967.

The Congress, In its consideration of the
legislation, provided liberalizing amendments
which increased the authorizations by $125,
000,000 beyond the Administration proposals.
To be exact, the authorizations approved by
the congress amounted to $1,430,000,000 and
the authorizations proposed In the Admin
Istration bill were estimated at $1,305,000,000.
However, despite the fact that the congress
added $125,000,000 In authorizations for pro
grams designed to aid the children of poverty
in their quest for educational equality, the
appropriation request of the Administration
remained unchanged.

The appropriation language Which was in
cluded in the Appropriation Act for fiscal
year 1967 also contained a substantive pro
Vision Which In effect amended the provision
of the statute Which cal!s for ratable reduc
tion of allocations which appropriations are
less than the amounts authorized. This new
provision stipUlates that State allocations
may not be less than the amount spent by
the States during the preceding year, fiscal
year 1966. The effect of this prOViso is that
about. one-half of the States receive alloca
tions based on the minimum stipUlated In
the Appropriation Act, While the other half
are paid In accordance With the ratable re
duction prOVision of the basic statute. Thus,
Instead of all States receiving 74 per cent of
their entitlements, one-half receive In excess
of this sum while the others receive 70 per
cent of their Title I entitlements.

Across the country. the effect of the re
duced appropriation is to curtail education
projects for disadvantaged children. At the
very time that these remarkably successful
programs should be strengthened and ex
panded, many districts and· state oll1ces are
finding that they are already overcommitted
in their programs for the fiscal year and must
reduce staff in order to stay Within the funds
which are available. Others must forego
planned summer programs which are of spe
cial benefit to educationally disadvantaged
children.

thorized amount. I deplore the fact that the
Bureau of the Budget for this new program
Is requesting but 14 per cent of the 1968 au
thorization for TV equlpment. only about
21.6 per cent for the funding of the matching
grants for other equlpment. and but half of
the authorized amount for institutes. These
cuts cannot be justified on the basis of edu
cational pollcy considerations. As Is shOwn
by the figures avallable to you, the Depart
ment of Health. Education, and Welfare re
quested from the Bureau of the Budget fund
Ing of TV equlpment at 75 per cent of the
authorization, fundlng of other equlpment
on the basis of two_thirds of the authoriza
tion, and funding at 100 per cent of the au
thorization for the Institute portion of the
statute.

Tlme and tlme again In our hearings wit
nesses urged that adequate funding be made
aVailable to institutions of higher education
in order that those who teach our teachers
may have an opportunity to acquaint them
selves With more effective methods of trans
mitting their knowledge. Title VI, if properly
funded. can, in my jUdgment, increase the
ell1ciency of our teacher training programs
and thus enhance greatly the quallty of edu
cation that can be given to the boys and girls
attendlng our elementary and secondary
schools.

To use an agricultural analogy. money In
this area Is the seed com that w11l make for a
bountiful harvest if the Congress is wllllng
to accept the responslblllty of a prudent
farmer and Invest to the degree necessary, In
the eqUipment and materials and services of
Title VI in order to Increase the quality and
quantity of our educational production.

LIBRARY SERVICES AND CONSTRUCTION ACT

The Library Services and Construction
Act, as amended, funds four titles. The
authorization for Title I. library services,
for 1968 is $45 mlllion. Library construction
Is authorized under Title II at $50 ml!lion.
Inter-llbrary cooperation, the substance of
Title III, carries an authorization of $7.5
mlllion. Title IV, the specialized State library
services title, contains authorization of $7.5
mlllion for State institutional llbrary serv
Ices and $4 mlllion for Ilbrary services for
the physically handicapped. The Bureau of
the Budget is requesting 77.7 per cent for
the Title I authorization, only 54.3 per cent
of the construction authorization of Tltle
II, less than one-third or 31.6 per cent of
the inter-library cooperation authorization,
a woefUlly inadequate 28.2 per cent for
State Institutional library services, and a
scant one-third of the authorization pro
vided by the Congress for library serVices
for our physicany handicapped citizens.

I suspect that when the Bureau of the
BUdget prepared the estimates which are
now being considered they were operating
on the basis that deferral of construction
was necessary to protect the public Interest
against inflationary price rises. I submit to
you the situation at the present time shOUld
cause us to take a second look at that
phllosophy. Certainly, the Administration
itself In recent weeks has reversed its pollcy
as demonstrated by the release of highway
construction funds and Its long overdue per
mission to the Oll1ce of Education to exercise
reallocation authorities under Title I of
ESEA. I suggest to you gentlemen, therefore,
that should you accept my recommendation
that fun funding be given to the construc
tion programs you would not be going
counter to actlon taken in other areas by
the Administration. If your interrogation
of the agency oll1cials brings forth an un
changed position. then I ask you to consider
most carefully the public interest question of
Whether as a nation we ought to adopt a
policy which gives priority to our highways
over priority to meeting the educational
needs and reqUirements of our citizenry and
their chlldren. At the very least, gentlemen,
I suggest that equality of treatment ought
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Congress to be used to offset tbe negative
effects of ratable reduction. Last April, tbe
States were assured by the Omce of Educa
tion tbat this reallotment would ease the
impact of reduced grants. Only In late Marcb,
because of bUdget decisions which had previ
ously Ignored program requirements, has
this promise to the' districts been honored.
How can we expect our schools to operate
in this atmosphere of uncertainty?

In fiscal year 1968 the amendments pro
vided by the legislation increase the family
low-Income factor under which chlldren are
determined to be eligible from $2,000 to $3,
000. Another amendment provides a mini
mum rate of payment per child in tbe
formula based on tbe national average ex
penditure per pupil, Whenever the national
average exceeds the average expenditure In
the State in which an eligible district is lo
cated. Thus, the estimated authorization for
fiscal year 1968 amounts to $2.4 billion as
compared with the current year authoriza
tion of $1,430,000,000. The legislative com
mittees of Congress which considered this
legislation gave extensive stUdy to the for
mula as well as to the needs of educationally
deprived cbildren In our schools whlcb tbe
program is intended to help. The bearings
were comprehensive and the conference com
mittee thoroughly examined the formula be
fore the final report was issued on October
18, 1966.

Against the authorization of $2.4 blllion,
the bUdget request for fiscal year 1968
amounts to only $1.2 blllion. Tbus, it is pro
posed that the program be financed for next
year at 50 per cent of the authorized amount.
In other words, It is proposed that we slide
back from 70 per cent programs In 1967 to
50 per cent programs In 1968 at a time when
we should be expanding our effort. The num
ber of ellgible children in the formula in fis
cal year 1968 wlll rise from 6 million to 8
mllllon with the result that the amount
available per chlld will decrease again to a
sum close to $150 per child. Thus, in the
three years the program wlll have been In
operation the average amount available on
a per capita basis for each educationally dis
advantaged chlld In the formula will have
gone steadlly down from $210, to $170, to
$150, despite nominal increases in total ap
propriations.

One of the principles whlcb has been em
phasized by the Omce of Education since the
program was Initiated Is that there sbould
be a substantial investment of resources for
each child participating in the program. This
point bas been emphasized as a means of
avoiding watered-down and ineffective pro
grams. The history of recent years is replete
with examples of education programs which
have blossomed successfully on an experi
mental basis of adequate resources and then
faded qUickly when the services and re
sources were spread too thin over the chil
dren to be served. It is now well established
that educationally deprived children require
resources far in excess of those needed for
the average, middle-class child. In recogni
tion of this principle, the authorizing legis
lation was based on a principle of Increas
ing the financial resources available to edu
cationally deprived children. This principle
is being discarded at the very time that we
are beginning to se,e positive signs of success
In our treatment of the needs of education
ally depriVed chUdren.

The Commissioner of Education has now
reported to the Congress on the analysis of
the reports received from the States last fall
covering the programs conducted during fis
cal year 1966, the first year of the program.
These reports reveal tbat State after State
has indicated the success of Its efforts. There
follows a listing ot' quotations included in
the reportreveallng the nature of changes
Which. have come about as a result of the
TItle I programs.

WHAT THE STATES SAID ABOUT TITLE I

FolloWing are excerpts from the evaluation
reports submitted by State agencies:

Alaska: "The fiscal 1966 programs under
Title I, ESEA have been most effective In en
hancing educational opportunities for dis
advantaged youth."

Arkansas: "Probably the most outstanding
effect of Title I In general has been on edu
cators themselves. Most have gained Insight
Into the problems and needs of deprived
children who in most instances make up at
least one-third of the school population. The
program has caused educators to assess their
school programs from the standpoint of In
dividual needs rather than the needs of the
scbools."

California: "School district personnel gen
erally agree that the stUdents Improved at
titUde, motivation and Interest toward learn-·
Ing. As these are important factors In learn
Ing, continued growth may be anticipated.
Teachers also reported a positive change In
their own attitudes towards these children
and in their techniques in working With dis
advantaged children."

Connecticut: "There is considerable evi
dence that teachers, administrators, and
other persons associated with our schools
feel that progress Is being made in Improv
ing the educational opportunities of de
prived children and youth."

Delaware: "... The children ... became
more anxious to succeed at their own rate
and they worked in small groups with much
more ease and confidence . . ."

District of Columbia: "In general, the al
lotment of large sums of money for pro
grams prOViding individual services which
have never been possible before has actu
ally been a tremendous impetus and uplift
ing infiuence upon both students and pro
fessional staff of the District."

Florida: "This program is helping almost
helpless children to gain confidence In them
selves. It is affording opportunities for ex
periences that w1ll 'widen their horizons'
and help them to develop a new outlook on
life."

Georgia: "Superintendents, principals,
teachers, and Title I staff workers on the
State and local level approach consensus in
laUding the enhancement of educational op
portunities, experiences, achievement, and
general attitUdes for Title I beneficiaries and
'spin off' benefits for all others in the
educational institution."

Guam: "Title I bas enhanced education of
the deprived by provIding educational ex
periences which would have not been pos
sible due to financial conditions in our
school system."

Hawaii: "The results have proven most
beneficial to both teachers and students;
since more time can be devoted to class
room preparations and the actual instruc
tions, the quallty of teaching improved."

Idaho: "Many children have had cultural
experiences that might not have been avail
able in their lifetime if it had not been for
Title I."

l111nois: "Perhaps one of the most impor
tant accomplishments of Title I, is the im
proved attitude on the part of teachers and
other school personnel working With these
disadvantaged children."

Indiana: "... It seems that the future of
the disadvantaged in these LEA's local edu
cational agencies was belghtened by their
Title I programs."

Iowa: "The Title I project in some cases
has had a significant Impact on the entire
staff of the LEA and Will probably precipi
tate different types of experiences not only
for the Title I children but for the other
children in the local education agency as
well."

Kansas: "For the flrst time, the under
privileged stUdent could realize and take part
in the cultural advantages of the more priVi
leged group of society."

Kentucky: "There is no doubt that Title
I projects are having a great Impact on edU
cational opportunities, experiences and gen
eral attitUdes toward education as they re
late to culturally deprived students."

Maine: "For the first time, in many In
stances, school personnel bave been able to
provide special attention to the educationally
disadvantaged children, and ·to concentrate
their efforts in an attempt ,to meet the
needs oftbese children. The reported results
have been most rewarding •.. Thousands of
children have been helped."

Maryland: "Indications are tbat educa
tional opportUnities have indeed been ex
tended significantly through thIs program
and that it has provided experiences which
sbould result in Improved levels of achieve
ment and in mucb improved general atti
tUde toward education."

Massachusetts: "Insofar as it can be de
termined at this time, there is a very real
'carry over' of project benefits, both aca
demically and attitudlnally, from the period
of project operation through present time.

"This Is to us, one of the marked accom
plishments of the program.

Michigan: "This was the first time the
spotlight has been placed on the deprived
youngster and as a result many teachers gave
serious thought to Improving methods In
this area."

Missouri: "General observatIon of Title I
projects in operation indicate there has been
a substantial amount of gOod derived from
the services provided through this program."

Mississippi: "This program has allowed and
provided pupils a chance to learn by bring
Ing about a better school environment and
extending services heretofore unheard of in
the schools of this state. Materials, equip
ment, Improved facilities, food services.
health serVices. and other specialized serv
ices have brought about an atmosphere more
conducive to learning. Perhaps, of equal
importance has been the capture of a new
vision by teachers and this vision, this en
thusiastic spirit, has been caught by pupils
and translated Into improved attitUdes and
a deepened interest in education."

Montana: "Nearly all schools reported
gOOd cooperation with and from non-pUblic
school officials. One school superintendent
reported outstanding cooperation from the
non-pUblic school, and indicated that he
belleved the pUblic relations for the pUblic
school were Improved."

Nebraska: "Title I students and teachers
seem to have an enthusiasm for learning
that is not so apparent in the reguiar
classes!'

New Hampshire: "In tbis short period of
time we have passed through the embryonic
stage of a revolutionary educational venture.
Much has been learned. We have become
knowledgeable about the need of education
ally depriVed children; but in no way can
we now consider ourselves experts. nor claim
that these needs are completely fulfilled."

New MeXico: "If we are to grade ourselves
on a total evaluation of our Title I program,
we feel that we must give ourselves a su
perior rating."

Nevada: "Title I ... has forced the pUblic
schools, colleges, universities, and the lay
publlc to become more aware of a certaIn
segment of the student population of the
nation's schools. As a result ... we have seen
evidence of many efforts to prOVide compen
satory educational programs and services to
a group of youngsters who otherwise would
still have been floundering In the regular
school program."

Oklahom.a: "The ESEA program has al
lowed more fleXibility in the providing of
necessary fac1llties, personnel, materials and
equipment required to provide equal and
upgraded educational opportunities for the
school children of this state. These deprived
students ... have shown much progress In



21048 CONGRESSIONlU .RECORD e..:-.:SENATE;
achievement areas and an overall improve
ment of attitude toward school."

Oregon: "There has been gratification in
the response and interest on the part of the
children.... Many school administrators and
teachers became much more aware of the
needs of these educationally disadvantaged
children..•. If Title I continues over a period
of many years the results should be excel
lent in bringing about improvement for the
educationally disadvantaged children."

South Dakota: "Many excellent projects
have been initiated.... Particularly gratify
ing were those programs deallng with health,
teacher aids, instructional secretaries, gUid
ance, specIal education. pilot studies. and
teaching load reduction.... A well trained
teacher with adequate faclllties can be ot
primary importance if her time is not taken
up with all sorts ot administrative duties
and her class load is within reason."

South Carollna: "For the first year of op
eration Title I has begun to prOVide high
priority schools With the basic services and
programs enjoyed as a matter of course by
schools located in more affluent areas. There
is a beginning being made toward a more
sophisticated evaluation of the character
istics and needs of the deprived."

Tennessee: "The introduction of the Title
I philosophy, which was not new to the
teachers in the deprived schools but was
simply a crysta1l1zation of their often
verbalized aspirations for their pupils,
schools, and communities, stimulated them
to new action. Perhaps it is this revitaliza
tion itself that reflected the impact of Title
I legislation most dramatically..."

Texas: "There is no doubt that pupil
achievement was heightened in many in
stances, in areas of behavior tar beyond the
traditional academic subjects."

Trust Territory: "The Title I program is
helping the deprived schools of Micronesia
bridge the gap between isolated island life
and the technological 20th Century. The
program is prOViding teachers, supplies, and
equipment, so necessary for creating educa
tional opportunities for children that have
Ilttle or no concept of what exists beyond
the reefs of their small islands.... A num
ber of projects have provided job-related
experiences that were designed to help youth
master socIal skilIs needed to become self
supporting, self-respecting, and self-direct
ing."

Utah: "It would be safe to say that most
of the projects showed greater than normally
expected achievement, growth, and that a
much greater breadth of experiences was
provided for the educationally disadvantaged
children than is normal. It caused educators
to plan and evaluate more'in depth than
had preViously been the case."

Vermont: "Remedial reading programs
have shown substantial gains in reading
skUls and in overcoming a feeling of in
feriority arising from under-achievement."

Virgin Islands: "Title I motivated staff in
changing complacent attitudes toward edu
cational needs of disadvantaged children."

Virginia: "Title I is seen by the LEA as a
tool for combating the drop-out problem by
means ot early remediation, attendance and
counseIlng service and an offering of reallstic
vocational and industrial courses Which wUl
hold the child's interests through to gradua
tion and provide him With skills to find a
job after high school."

Washington: "It can be generalized that
Title I has enhanced the educational oppor
tunities, experiences, achievements and gen
eral attitudes (of children) towards educa
tion."

Wisconsin: "Across the country, from hard
facts or soft data, test scores, teacher im
pressions, parent reactions, finger-printed
and smudged notes from children, etc., the
reaction to Title ,I in general has been that
it has, in fact, had a significant impact on
education. and that the disadvantaged chil-

dren are beIng given a greater opportunity
to participate in the existing educational sys
tem. Within the first year of operation with
the mammoth problems, hang-ups, and a ma
jority of people who completely 'lost their
cool,' the fact that Title I got off the ground.
and in addition accomplished significant
gains is pretty phenomenal,"

Wyoming: "Title I has become very suc
cessful in changing the attitUdes of children,
teachers, parents. and administrators."

The question before us now is Whether we
are going to impose educational stalemate on
the schools and pass out another rejection
slip to the children of poverty. Every year
that passes is irreplaceable. The time to edu
cate chlldren is while they are children. The
clear message of our recent successful efforts
to educate the children of poverty-both
Project Head Start and Title I of ESEA-is
that we Inust begin early in their Ilfe, pro
Vide continuous and enriched services. and
that we must substantially increase the re
sources for these disadvantaged children. A
national calamity awaits us if we persist in
ignoring the educational needs of millions of
children, whose educational fallure will be on
our hands if we let them down in this hour
of educational crIsIs.

The sad situation that exists today is that
vital education efforts for disadvantaged chil
dren are completely throttled by arbitrary
decisions that ignore Congressional intent
and which deny human needs. "Cost reduc
tion" has taken over in the Administration
to the point where major program decisions
and policies are governed completely by the
Whims of budget examiners. Apparently the
Congress must examine these decisions and
make its judgment as to national needs and
priorities.

Title II: School library resources, textbooks
and other instructional materials

Title II, which funds school library re
sources at the elementary and secondary
level, is a program which is at the very core
and heart of educational quallty improve
ment. The authorization for 1968 for this
program is $154.5 mUlion. The Bureau of the
Budget has requested but $105 mlllion for
the program, slightly more than two-thirds
of the authorization. I strongly urge that
this program be fulIy funded because untll
we can bring all of our school libraries to at
least minimum standards we UteralIy wlll be
unable to accomplish much in the many
other programs of educational revitaUzation
which the record of hearings in the past few
years indicates are needed.
Title III: Supplementary educational centers

and services
With respect to Title III, supplementary

educational services and centers, portion of
the act whose authorization for 1968 was
$515 mlllion, I think it is to be deplored that
the Bureau of the Budget is asking for only
a 46.6 per cent or $240 mill10n in appropriated
funds. Just the other day I received word re
garding six Title III ESEA programs in my
State that received funding under the Jan
uary 1st deadline. At the same time I learned
that eight programs had to be refused and
four were placed in suspense. 'I'he additional
funding I seek in this area would prevent the
necessity next year of having to reject sound
projects and programs.

This year in the January proposal review
period, nationalIy there were some 1,723 pro
grams presented to the Office of Education.
Only 173 were funded. More than 500 had
to be placed in the hold category. These
school districts who have SUbmitted proposals
this year in gOOd faith and at the expendi
ture of much time and energy of dedicated
personnel cannot help but take into ac
count the action of the Congress on this
appropriations blll When they come to de
ciding Whether the game is worth the candle
next year. This program has begun very well.
Do not quench its spirit and elfectiveness by

denying to it the financial resources Which
are authorized.

Title IV: Cooperative research
Cooperative research activities have no

precise :authorization ceiling. seventy mil
lion dollars was appropriated last year. The
Department of Health, Education, and Wel
fare could. with economy and efllciency util
ize, in my understanding. at least $138 mil
lion for fiscal year 1968 but the Bureau of
the BUdget is presenting estimates to you of
only $71,850,000. Since many of the research
programs need serial financing from two to
three years, holding the status quo in terms
of appropriations means that new programs
cannot be funded, if existing research is to
be brought to its conclusion. I urge you to
prOVide at least $138 million for the program.
Title V: Strengthening State departments Of

education
When we turn to Title V. that aspect of

ESEA which is devoted to strengthening the
resources of State departments of education.
we find that th\..Bureauof the Budget is
proposing only 5~. per cent of the $50 mil
lion authorization. If the Congress is serious
in its desire to bring into being a truly coop
erative Federal-State system then it would
seem to me incumbent upon us to provide
the financing necessary in this educational
area to accomplIsh our objective.

I would point, out also that under the
bUdget formulation the $29,750,000 estimate
is not the $7.750,000 increase over the $22
million appropriated last year that it would
seem to be since that additional $7,750,000
figure includes precisely the amount that
the Administration does not propose to fund
under State supervisory services and pro
grams Title III and X of the NDEA. So here
again. we see the bUdget estimates represent
no progress in meeting the problems of edu
cational financing at the State level despite
the increase in schools and educational serv
ices needed because of popUlation growth.
The Bureau of the BUdget is marching back
ward by giving you an estimate at last year's
level. Do not forget that our programs of the
past few years have created heavy demands
upon the State educational authorities. Next
year I am sure the load will be even heavier.
Therefore, I urge the full appropriation of
the authorization of this title.
Title VI: Education Of handicapped child.ren

Perhaps the most severe decrease made by
the Bureau of the Budget this year is in the
area which one would have thought would
command our greatest sympathy. The new
Title VI of ESEA, is a State grant, State plan
program devoted to meeting the special edu
cational needs and requirements of handi
capped children including the provision of
related medical and other services. In this
title, the Bureau of the Budget made no
mere 50 per cent slash, there is more than
a 90 per cent slash. The Bureau of the BUdget
for Title VI recommends 9,7 per cent of the
authorization for fiscal year 1968. This is
an unconscionably low figure which deserves
to be rejected. It is a ,reflection on the in
telligence of those Senators who have long
and wholeheartedly supported on bipartisan
lines this recognition of the obllgation we
owe to the children WhO, through no fault
of their own are unable to compete on an
equal basis with other boys and girls be
cause of their handicaps.

It has taken a long time and much work
and effort on the part ,of a great many to
gain recognition for special education.
I hope you will crown that work with ade
quate recognition through fUll financing of
this program.

Title VII: Disseminatfonof information
Mr. Chairman, Title VII of ESEA author

ized a very modest $2 million for a program
of dissemination of information in the field
of education. It was put into our legislative
blll at the urging of one of your colleagues
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on the committee, Senator Yarborough. It
had the full support of all of our members.
But it is totally lacking, evidently, in any
support by the Bureau of the Budget. No
money is provided in the estimates for this
item. I can only hope that this was an
oversight. I cannot believe that an Adminis
tration, headed by a man who in the Sen
ate and as President has consistently sup
ported education, would have knowingly de
leted an authorization for this purpose by
withholding approval of its funding. The ten
year or more lag in bringing research findings
from the university to the elementary and
secondary classrooms is due in part to the
fact that dissemination of educational in
formation is not strongly funded. I hope
that you will include this item in your
reported bill.

ADULT EDUCATION ACT 01' 1966

Mr. Chairman, I bring this portion of
my statement to a· close by commending
to you the funding at the $60 mUlion level
authorized for the Adult Education Act.
Here the Bureau of the BUdget is proposing
to you 73.6 per cent of the authorization
but, Mr. Chairman, in view of the testimony
taken before the legislative committee, it is
my personal jUdgment that even the $60
million authorization, if fully funded, would
not result in any waste in this State match
ing grant, State plan program operation.
Indeed, and again in my judgment, I doubt
that the $60 mUlion would meet the type
and needs in this area.

You have only to review, as I trust you
will, some of the correspondence I have ap
pended to my statement from the young men
and women Who are receiving help under
the present program to become convinced
of its value. In this connection, Mr. Chair
man. I ask your indulgence that the letters
I have attached as an appendiX to this
statement be printed in full in your hearings
record, because each letter in its individual
way testifies far more ably that I can to
the value of each of the programs I have
discussed during the course of my presenta
tion.

CONCLUSION

This completes my review of the appro
priation needs as I see them. In concluding
my statement to you I can only urge that
as you weigh and analyze the mUltitude of
considerations which have a proper part in
corning to your collective decision on these
segments of the total Labor-HEW appro
priations bill you keep foremost in your
mind's eye the impact of your funding deci
sions upon the aspirations of the boys and
girls and young men and women whose
Uves will be affected by the preparation each
receives during these years from kindergar
ten through graduate school. The shape and
destiny of the 21st Century wUl be formed
by them.

Our generation has great cause to be
thankful for the foresight of our predeces
sors in these chambers. The steps that they
took enabled us to serve in our time, our
generation. We should do Ukewise for our
successors.

Through the multitUde of dally decisions
Which press upon us in myriad detail we
sometimes forget that our prime responsi
blllty transcends the immediate. We ought
to take into account the decades which 11e
ahead in our planning and our funding.

Therefore, I urge you that most serious
consideration be given to funding each of the
educational measures at the fUlly authorized
amounts. It is only in this way I feel that we
can keep America strong. These young Ameri
cans are the only true natural resource of
this country. Consider their w'!lfare in your
mark-up sessions and I am C9nfident that
the welfare of the nation will be well served.

Thank you.

Mr. LAUSCHE. Mr. President, I have
lIstened to the arguments for the last

2 hours in connection with a meas
ure which describes the people of the
United States as being sort of uncon
scious to their responsibility in the field
of providing health, educational, and
welfare services.

I now wish to say a word in behalf of
the taxpayers of our Nation. I want to
point out the tremendous increase in the
expenditures made by the Federal Gov
ernment in the last 2 years in provid
ing educational, health, and welfare
services. I want to acquaint Senators as
sembled here with the fact that the ap
propriation bill of 1966, without consider
ing supplemental appropriations, was
$8,859,000,000 for 1966, and the bill now
before us assigns to the program
$13,409,835,000.

In 1967, the appropriation was $10,
473,000,000. In 1968, the measure which
we have before us now, provides for
$13,409,835,000.

In other words, in 2 years, the moneys
provided by the taxpayers of the United
states for the services which I mentioned
heretofore, have increased, without con
sidering the supplementals, from $8.859
million to $13.5 million. The increase is
more than 50 percent in 2 years. It is
wonderful to talk about expanding serv
ices. I do not believe there is a single
Senator that does not subscribe to the
charitable and merciful views expressed
on the fioor of the Senate today, but if
we contemplate increasing expenditures
in every department by 50 percent in 2
years, what will the eventual tax burden
be that will fall upon the people of this
country?

Remember that within a month we will
be asked to adopt an increase in taxes in
the form of a surcharge tax of 6
percent-the talk now is 10 percent. Not
one word of exception do I take to the
arguments made today about the need
to help, but I do take exception-and
deeply-to the arguments that Congress
has not attempted to perform its duty.
The augmentation will be 50 percent in
2 years. I submit to the Senate that that
is not an insignificant amount of money
$8,859,000,000 in 1966, and $13 billion in
1968.

With regard to the Teachers Corps,
just one word. It may be fine, yet I doubt
the advisability of having a pool of
teachers in Washington sent out to the
different communities which may ask for
them-a pool of teachers which will cost
the Government $7,500 a teacher a year.

How many teachers will we have be
fore the whole program is over? How
many of these teachers to be sent out
of Washington will there be on the Fed
eral payroll?

I am not moved by the argument that
school superintendents will plead, "Send
us these teachers." Certainly they will
say that because the Federal Govern
ment will be paying $7,500 a year to each
teacher while their services are being
rendered in the local communities.

In summary, I am not complaining
about the arguments made here today
for the need to expand services. I merely
want to point out that in 2 years we
will have expanded the programs in an
amount equal to 50 percent.

It is ironical to condemn Congress and
the taxpayers that they have not been

performing their duty. The tax burden
is getting pretty heavy. I know it is get
ting heavy so far as I am concerned,
with Montgomery County in Maryland
wanting income taxes, with Cuyahoga.
County in Ohio wanting taxes, with the
city of Cleveland wanting taxes, with the
State government wanting taxes, and
with the Federal Government wanting
taxes, and every other governmental
unit searching for additional means to
provide moneys for their expenditures.

Mr. NELSON. Mr. President, will the
Senator from Ohio yield for an inquiry?

Mr. LAUSCHE. I yield.
Mr. NELSON. Did I correctly under

stand the Senator to say that the cost
would be $7,500 a year per teacher?

Mr. LAUSCHE. That is what I believe
I heard the Senator from New Hamp
shire say, that the cost would be about
$7,500 a year per teacher. They will be
paid $75 a week for 52 weeks and the
cost of other prerequisites. They would
be students in the colleges and not ac~

credited teachers.
Mr. COTTON. If the Senator from

Ohio will yield, let me say that the
Senator from Vermont [Mr. PROUTY]
made that statement.

Mr. PROUTY. The average cost, in
cluding salary, would be $7,500 a year. I
underestimated the cost of the super
visors.

Mr. LAUSCHE. Nine thousand dollars?
Mr. PROUTY. Eleven thousand dollars.
Mr. LAUSCHE. Well, I did not know

that.
Mr. PROUTY. I believe it is $10,200.
Mr. LAUSCHE. Mr. President, I yield

the floor.
Mr. HILL. Mr. President, I suggest the

absence of a quorum.
The PRESIDING OFFICER. The clerk

will call the roll.
The assistant legislative clerk pro

ceeded to call the roll.
Mr. HILL. Mr. President, I ask unan

imous consent that the order for the
quorum call be rescinded.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. With
out objection, it is so ordered.

Mr. HILL. Mr. President, I have great
appreciation for the Senator from Ore
gon and all he has done for the cause
of education and promoting that cause,
but I want to say that the Committee
on Appropriations-the full committee
as well as the subcommittee-considered
this item and reported the bill out of
committee that is now before the Senate.
It contains practically $4 billion for edu
cation. The exact figure is $3,943,015,
000-$4 billion for education alone.

Frankly, the committee had in mind
trying to stay within the overall budget.
having in mind the war in Vietnam, the
expense and costs of that war, and hav
ing also in mind the imminence of an
increase in taxes.

The truth is that with the amount of
money now provided in the bill for this
item, which is $18.1 million, together
with the supplementary amount which
our distinguished friend from Rhode Is
land [Mr. PASTORE] put in the supple
mental bill in May, about 2 months ago,
there will be a total of $21,923,700 for
the Teachers Corps.

I may say. in that connection, that the
regular appropriation for the fiscal year
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On page 30, line 8, strike out "$51,234,000"
and lnllert in Heu thereof "$66,234,000".

On page 30, line 8, strike out "$15,000,000"
and Insert in lieu thereof "$30,000,000".

Mr. HARTKE. Mr. President, I ask
for tl1e yeas and nays on my amend
ment.

The yeas and nays were ordered.
HARTKE AMENDMENT ON MENTAL RETARDATION

CENTER CONSTRUCTION FUNDS

Mr. HARTKE. Mr. President, my
amendment would give vitally needed
support to the construction of mental
retardation facilities by providing, as the
Appropriations Committee has done for
the past 3 years, for full funding of
the authorization. Specifically, the
change I propose applies to line 2 of page
29 of the bill, in which the figure of
$51,234,000 would be changed to
$66,234,000 and the sum of $15,000,000
would be changed to $30,000,000.

Mr. HILL. Mr. President, will the Sen
ator yield?

Mr. PASTORE. Mr. President, may we
have order? VVe cannot hear the
colloquy.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Let there
be order in the Chamber.

Mr. HILL. Mr. President, I have
checked on this matter. There is
$12,157,000 remaining unobligated as of
July I, the end of the fiscal year. So that
really all we need to bring the amount
to the full $30 million is $2,843,000.

Mr. HARTKE. Mr. President, I say to
my distinguished committee chairman
that he has done an excellent job on the
appropriations. However, itis my under
standing from checking with the agency
that the correct amount is now $10 mil
lion. It was $12 million at the time the
hearings were held. However, I under
stand that it is now only $10 million. The
agency will therefore have not merely
$15 million,but $25 million without add
ing to the appropriation.

But to say that this is equivalent to a
$25 million appropriation is a miscon
ception as to the operations of the pro
gram.The situation is, and has con
sistently been, the same as in previous
years. The money appropriated has ob
ligational authority which extends over
2 yearsi so that there is no require
ment that it should all be spent during
the fiscal year. Because programs move
slowly, it is the plan of the operational
people to actually make some two-thirds
of the expenditure in anyone appropria
tion not in the current fiscal year but in
the succeeding year.

Thus, in fiscal year 1966 when $12.5
million was appropriatf>d, there was ob
ligated out of that sum in fiscal year 1966
only about one-third. Two-thirds was
obligated in 1967 and spent in 1967 .fiscal
year. But now that year is ended. Was
there money left over? No. At least none
which was' available for distribution.
There was, at the end of fiscal year 1967,
$12,000 left which had not been spent
from the fiscalyear1966 $12.5 million.
But there. was exactly $18 out of that
amount which could have been spent.
The remainder of the $12,000 was specif
ically earmarked for American Samoa,
Guam, and the Virgin Islands, and, their
programs were not off the ground. It

Ervin Morton
Hansen Mundt
Hayden Murphy
Hickenlooper Pearson
Hill Russell
Holland Smathers
Holllngs Smith
Hruska Sparkman
Jordan, N.C. Spong
Jordan, Idaho Stennis
Lausche Talmadge
Long, La. Thurmond
Mansfield Tower
McClellan Wll1lams, Del.
Monroney Young, N. Dak,

NOT VOTING-12
Fannin Metcalf
Gruenlng MUler
Kuchel Pell
McGee Yarborough

MORSE'S amendment was re-

Anderson
Baker
Bayh
Brewster

So Mr.
jected.

Mr. HILL. Mr. President, I move to
reconsider the vote by which the amend
ment was rejected.

Mr. MANSFIELD. Mr. President, I
move to lay that motion on the table.

The motion was agreed to.
Mr. HARTKE. Mr. President, I send

an amendment to the desk and ask that
it be stated. '

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The
amendment will be stated.

The assistant legislative clerk read as
follows:

Allott
Bartlett
Bennett
Bible
Boggs
Byrd, Va.
Byrd, W. Va.
Cannon
Carlson
Cotton
Curtis
Dirksen
Dominick
Eastland
Ellender

Aiken
Brooke
Burdick
Case
Church
Clark
Cooper
Dodd
Fang
Fulbright
Gore
Griffin
Harris
Hart
Hartke

Mr. BYRD of West Virginia. I an
nounce that the senator from New Mex
ico [Mr. ANDERSON] and the Senator from
Indiana [Mr. BAYH] are absent on omcial
business.

I also announce that the Senator from
Maryland [Mr. BREWSTER], the Senator
from Alaska [Mr. GRUENING], the Sena
tor from Wyoming [Mr. MCGEE], the
Senator frem Montana [Mr. METCALF],
the Senator from Rhode Island [Mr.
FELL], and the Senator from Texas [Mr.
YARBOROUGH] are necessarily absent.

I further announce that, if present
and voting, the Senator from Alaska [Mr.
GRUENING] and the Senator from Mary
land [Mr. BREWSTER] would each vote
"yea."

Mr. DffiKSEN. I announce that the
Senator from Tennessee [Mr. BAKER], the
Senator from California [Mr. KueHEL],
and the Senator from Iowa [Mr. MILLER]
are necessarily absent.

The Senator from Arizona [Mr. FAN
NIN] is detained on omcial business.

On this vote, the Senator from Califor
nia [Mr. KUCHEL] is paired with the
Senator from Iowa [Mr. MILLER]. If
present and voting, the Senator from
California would vote "yea" and the Sen
ator from Iowa would vote "nay,"

The result was announced-yeas 43,
nays 45, as follows:

[No. 199 Leg.]
YEA8-43

Hatfield Muskie
Inouye Nelson
Jackson Pastore
Javits Percy
Kennedy, Mass. Prouty
Kennedy, N.Y. Proxmire
Long, Mo. Randolph
Magnuson Ribicotr
McCarthy Scott
McGovern Symington
McIntyre Tydings
Mondale Wll1iams, N.J.
Montoya Young, Ohio
Morse
Moss

1967 was $7,500,000 for this item. So we
will have now about three times what
the appropriation was for the fiscal year
1967.

I say again, the bill contains altogether
some $4 billion for education. So it is
the strong feeling of the committee that
the pending amendment should be re
jected.

Mr. MORSE. Mr. President, I shall
take only 1 minute in reply. Referring
to the report of the committee itself, it
is $14,311,000 under the budget estimate.
So the committee could give me this
slight amount fer the Teachers Corps,
to get it up to $33 million, and still be
within the budget.

Mr. HILL. Mr. President, if we could
have a consensus that no Senator would
ask for any more, then it might be all
right. I do not mind saying that I have
been approached with a suggestion to in
crease the amount provided for mental
retardation-that has a tremendous ap
peal as far as I am concerned-as well
as for other items.

Mr. MORSE. I was using these figures
to have a little fun with the Senator, to
point out that we would still be within
the budget estimate.

Mr. ffiLL. If Senator MORSE had all
he wanted, we would be within the budg
et, but magnificent as he is, and great
as he is, he is one out of 100.

Mr. MORSE. But I am thinking of
thousands and thousands of little boys
and girls. I am pleading for them
through this amendment. I am pleading
for this critical need. That is why we
have to look at the purpose and the bene
fits that will come out of it. Human
welfare is involved here.

I also point out that the administra
tion seeks this amendment. The admin
istration urges adoption of this amend
ment. They know the problem that con
fronts us in regard to the poverty
stricken ghettos of the country at this
time. Here is the transfusion going into
the schools of those ghettos by supplying
the teaching aids they need.

Lastly, I want to say to my friend from
Alabama that I think we have a clear
duty to evaluate the money that is going
into education. True, we have a bill with
$4 billion, but this ought to be very near
the top of the list. Not only is it not at
the top of the list, but the committee has
eliminated a large amount from what the
testimony showed the need is and what
the legislative committee recommended.
That is where the policy statements were
made.

Finally, let me say I think we have to
take a look at whether or not we are
going to spend this money where it is
sorely needed and save elsewhere. I am
not going into a discussion of where we
can save, but there are places where we
can save without in any way affecting
the life of a human being, but this
amendment would save the lives of
human beings.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The ques
tion is on agreeing to the amendment of
the Senator from Oregon. The yeas and
nays have been ordered, and the clerk
will call the roll.

The assistant legislative clerk called
the roll.
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